By-L.aws
QF

. NIAGARA FALLS PUBLIC WATER AUTHORITY
Pursuant to the authority contained in sections 1230-a through 1230-aa of Title 10-B of
Article 5 of the Public Authorities Law, as set out in chapter two hundred seventy five of the
Laws of Two Thousand Two of the State of New York (the “Authority Act”), the Niagara Falls
Public Water Authority (the “Authority™) hereby approves the following By-Laws for the
-regulation of its activities: N

© ARTICLE I
SEAL

The official seal of the Authority shall be in the design circular in form beariﬁg the words
and dates as follows: Niagara Falls Public Water Authority 2002.- - -

ARTICLE U1
QFFICE OF THE AUTHORITY

The pﬁn@ipal office of the Authority shall be in the County of Niagara.

ARTICLE 11
: -FISCAL YEAI_{ =

The fiscal year of the Authority shall commence on J anuarj.rr 1% of each calendar year éuc_i
conclude af the close of business on December 3 1% of each calendar year. The fiscal year may
be changed by resolution adopted at a-regular or special meeting of the Authority.

ARTICLEIV
MEMBERS OF THE AUTHORITY

SECTION1. Number. Thé number of Members constituting the Authority shall be three (3).

SECTION 2.  Appointment. One (1) Member shall serve by appoimtment of the Mayor of the
City of Niagara Falls; one (1) Member shall serve by appointment of the Temporary President of
the Senate at the recommendation of the Senator(s) representing all or a portion of the City of
Niagara Falls; and one (1) Member shall serve by appointment of the Speaker of the Assembly at
the recommendation of the Assembly member(s) representing all or a portion of the City of
Niagara Falls. . ' : : '

SECTION 3. Term. The Member who shall serve By appointment of the Mayor of the City of

Niagara Falls, shall be appointed for a term of office ending on December thirty-first of the third
year following the year in which the Authority Act became law. The Member who shall serve
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by appointment of the Temporary President of the Senate, shall be appointed for a term ending
on the thirty-first day of December of the fourth year following the year in which. the Authority
Act became law. The Member who shall serve by appointment of the Speaker of the Assembly,
shall be appointed for a term ending on the’ thirty-first day of December of the fifth year
following the year in which the’ Authority Act became law. .

Subsequent appointmeﬁts of Members shall be made for three (3) year terms ending-in
each instance on December thirty-first of the last year of such term. Members shall continue fo
hold office until their successors are appointed and qualify. ' '

SkcTIONd.  Qualifications. All Members shall hold at a minimum, a bachelor’s degree from
an accredited college or university with concentration or a degree in one of the following areas
of study and at least five (5) years of professional experience thereis, or without such degree,
such Member shall have at least ten (10) years of professional experience in one of the following
fields: legal, environmental, financial, management, engineering, human resources or science.

SECTION 5. Rész’dency. At all times, at least one Member Silaﬂ' be a resident of the City of
Niagara Falls. Any Member fulfilling such requirement shall forfeit his/her Membership upon
. termination of residency in the City of Niagara Falls, which forfeiture shall create a vacancy. -

SECTION 6.  Vacancies. Vacancies on the Authority, created for any reason shall be filled in
the manner provided for .original appointment of Members. Any vacancy occurring other than
by expiration of the term- of office shall be filled by appointment for the unexpired term.
Successor Members appointed under this Section shall hold office until their successors have

been duly appointed and qualified.

SECTION 7.  Removal. Members may be removed from office by the public ofticer or public
body which is empowered by the Authority Act to appoint such Member, only for inefficiency,
neglect of duty or misconduct in office, provided however, that such Member shall be given a

~ copy of the charges against him/her and given an opportunity to be heard in-person or by,

counsel, in his/mer defense upon not less than ten (10) days notice.

SecTiON 8. Compensation. Members shall Teceive no compensation for their services, but
* shall be reimbursed for their actual and necessary eXpenses incurred in connection with the
carrying out of their duties on behalf of the Authority and the purposes.of the Authority Act;
provided however, that no Member shall be reimbursed for any expense of attending ordinary
Authority meetinigs, or any other expense exceeding one thousand dollars ($1,000) incurred with

respect to any individual purpose, unless the Authority at 2 meeting duly called and held when

“all three (3) Members are present shall have authorized such expenditure by such Member.

ARTICLE V
MEETINGS OF MEMBERS

SECTION Y.  Ampual Meeting. The Annual Meeting of the Members shall be held on the first
day of March in each fiscal year, or if a legal holiday, on the next secular day, or on such date
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and at such time as may be fixed by the Members for the transaction of business as may properly
be brought before such meeting.

SECTION2.  Regular Meetings. Regular meetings of the Members shall be held at such times
as the Members may from time to time determine. Each Member in each fiscal year shall attend
at least seventy-five percent (75%) of all meetings of the Authority.

SECTION3.  Special Meetings. Special Meetings of the Members shall be held at any time,
upon call by the Chair or of at least two-thirds (2/3rds) of the total nuraber of Members. =

SECTIONA.  Place of Meetings. The Annual, regularly scheduled and Special Meetings of the
Members shall be held at the principal office of the Authority or at such other place, within or
without the State of New York, as the Members may from time to fime determine.

SECTION 5.  Notice of Meeting. Written or electronic notice of the place, day and hour of
every regular and special meeting shall be given to each Member by delivering the same to such
Member personally, or via facsimile, e-mail or other like fxansnﬁssion, at his/her residence or
usual place of business, at least one (1) day before the meeting, or shall be sent regular or
overnight to each Member, postage prepaid, and addressed fo him/ber at the last known Post

Office address according to the records of the Authority, at least three (3) days before the

meeting. No notice of any adjourned meeting of the Authority need be given other than by

* announcement at the meeting. All notices for Special Meetings shall state the purpose of the
meeting and no business other than that stated in such notice shall be transacted at any Special
Meeting, unless _fev'ery qualified Member is preseni and it is unanimously agreed to consider
matters other than those specifically provided for in notice of such Special Meeting.

SECTION 6. Waiver of Notice. Notice of a meeting need not be given to any Member who
submils 2 signed written waiver thereof whether before, during or after the meeting ner to any
Member who attends the mesting without protesting, prior thereto or at its commencement, the
lack of notice to such Member. : ‘ '

SecTION 7. Personal Attendance by Conference Communication Equipment. Anyone or
more Memmbers or any committee thereof may participate in a meeting of such Members by
means of a conference telephone or similar. communications equipment allowing all persons
participating in the meeting to hear, or see and hear each other at the same time.  Participation by
such means shall constitute presence in person at the meeting. '

SECTION 8. Conduct of Meetings. Meetings of the Members shall be presided over by the
Chair of the Authority or in the absence of the Chair by the Vice Chair and in the absence of
both a chair to be-chosen at the meeting. The Secretary of the Authority shall act as Secretary of
the meeting, 1f present. .

SECTION 9. I/:'ating. At all meetings of Members, each Member entitled to vote thereat shall
have one (1) vote. The powers of the Authority shall be exercised by a majority of Members
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present at any meeting at which a quorum is present, except as otherwise provided by law or
these By-Laws. : o

SECTION 10. Proxies. There shall be no voting by proxy.

SECTION 11. Quoram. A majority of the duly appointed Members shall be necessary to
constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at each meeting of the Authority; but if at any
meeting there be less than a quorum present, a majority of those present may adjourn the
meeting from time to time without notice other than by announcement at the meeting, until a

quorum shall attend. At any adjournment, at which a quorum shall be present, any business may |

be transacted which might have been transacted at the meeting as originally called.

SECTION 12.  Committees. The Authority may, in its discretion, by an affirmative vote of a
majority of all Members appoint a Member or Memibers to serve as a Special Purpose
Committee for the purpose of exploring and reviewing any issue as prescribed by the Chair.
Any such committee shall consist of as many members as the Chair shall determine. '

ARTICLE VI ‘
OFFICERS OF THE AUTHORITY

Sperion 1. Appointment of Officers. The officers of the Authority shall consist of a chair, 2
vice-chair, a treasurer and a secretary. Such secretary-or treasurer need not be 2 Member of the
Authority. Such officers shall be appeinted by the Members of the Authority and shall serve in
such capacities 4t the pleasure of the Authority. In addition to the secretary or treasurer, the
Members may appoint, and at their pleasure remove such additional officers as it may deem
necessary for the performance of the powers and ‘duties of the Authority.

SEcTion2.  Tenure of Office. All officers of the Authority shall hold office wmtil their
successors are chosen and qualify in their stead. . ‘

SECTION3. Removal Any Officer of the Auﬂwrit)}.may be removed with or without cause by.
a vote of the majority of the Members of the Authority at 2 meeting called for that purpose or
whenever in the Member’s judgment, the best interests of the Authority may be served thereby.
ARTICLE VII
DuTIES OF OFFICERS

SECTION 1. Chair of the Authority. The Chair shall preside at all meetings of the Authonty.
The Chair shall be responsible for the discharge of the executive functions and powers of the
_Authority, but shall be empowered to delegate any one or more of such functions or powers,
including, without limitation, that of appointment, discipline and temoval of officers or
employees, to one or more officers appointed by the Authority and shall perform such other
duties as the Authorjty may direct. The Chair shall sign and execute, on behalf of the Authority,
all contracts, instruments or other required documentation when so authorized by resolution of
the Authority.
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SECTION2.  Vice Chair.of the Authority. The Vice Chair shall perform the duties of the
Chair in the event the office of Chair is vacant, or in the event the Chair 1s unable to perform
such duties by reason of illness, disability or absence and shall perform such other duties as may
be designated by the Authority. '

Section 3. Secretary. The Secretary shall attend and keep full minutes of all meetings of the
Members in books provided for that purpose. He/she shall see that all notices are duly given in
accordance with the provisions of these By-Laws or as required by law. He/she shall be the

- custodian of the records and of the Seal of the Authority. He/she shall affix the Seal to all
“documents, the execution of which on behalf of the Authority, under the Seal, is duly authorized
by the Members and when so affixed may attest the same. He/she shall have such other powers
and duties as may be properly designated by the Authority. The absence of asealona
document, however, Sh_ail not invalidate such document. '

SECTIONS.  Treasurer. The Treasurer shall keep correct and complete books and records of
account for the f,&uiherit}f. Subject to the control and supervision of the Authority, the Treasurer
shall maintain banking arrangements to receive, have custody of and disburse the Authority's
moneys and securities. He/she shall invest the Authority's funds as required, establish and
" coordinate policies for investment in pension and other similar trusts, and provide insurance
coverage as required. He/she shall direct the granting of credit and the collection of accounts due

 the Authority. He/she shall have such other powers and duties as may be properly designated by

the Authority. The Treasurer shall execute a bond, conditioned upen the faithful performance of
the duties of his/her office. The amount and sufficiency of such bond shall be approved by the
Authority and the premium therefor shall be paid for by the Authority. '

SECTIONS.  Insurance. The Authority may maintain insurance, at its expense, to protect -
itself, any officer, employee or agent of the Authority against any expense, liability or loss,
whether or not the Authority would have the power to indemnify such person against such
expense, liability or loss under this Article or applicable law. '

ARTICLE VIII
o B e
* DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION OF OFFICERS AND MEMBERS

All of the Members and fficers of the Authority are entitled to defense and ‘
indemnification from the Authority pursuant to and in accordance with section 18 of the New
Vork Public Officers Law and shall not have personal liability resulting from the ownership,
construction, maintenance or operation of any of the projects or properties of either the -
Authority or the Niagara Falls Water Board, or the carrying out of any of the powers of the

Authority Act. S

ARTICLE IX
AMENDMENTS

SECTION 1. Power to Amend. The Members shall have the power to adopt, amend or repeal

the By-Laws of the Authority by a majority vote of the total number of Members,
notwithstanding any vacancies. | o
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Adopted: . Aprl £ 2003
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§ 1230-v. Code of ethics, NY PUB AUTH § 1230-v

McKinney's Consolidated Laws of New York Annotated
Public Authorities Law (Refs & Annos)
Chapter 43-a. Of the Consolidated Laws
Article 5. Public Utility Authorities
Title 10-B. Niagara Falls Public Water Authority

McKinney's Public Authorities Law § 1230-v
§ 1230-v. Code of ethics

Effective: July 30, 2002
Currentness

1. As used in this section the term “employee” shall mean any member, officer, agent or employee of the authority or
the water board.

2. No employee shall have any interest financial or otherwise, direct or indirect, or engage in any business or transaction
or professional activity or incur any obligation of any nature, which is in substantial conflict with the proper discharge
of his or her duties in the public interest.

3. Standards for such code of ethics shall be as follows:

(a) No employee shall accept other employment which will impair his or her independence of judgment in the exercise
of his or her official duties.

(b) No employee shall accept employment or engage in any business or professional activity which will require the
employee to disclose confidential information which he or she has gained by reason of his or her official position or
authority.

(c) No employee shall disclose confidential information acquired by the employee in the course of his or her official
duties nor use such information to further his or her personal interests.

(d) No employee shall use or attempt to use his or her official position to secure unwarranted privileges or exemptions
for himself or herself or others.

(e) No employee shall engage in any transaction as representative or agent of the authority or water board with any
person or business entity in which he or she has a direct or indirect financial interest that might reasonably tend to conflict
with the proper discharge of his or her official duties.


http://www.westlaw.com/Browse/Home/StatutesCourtRules/NewYorkStatutesCourtRules?transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Search)&rs=clbt1.0&vr=3.0
http://www.westlaw.com/Browse/Home/StatutesCourtRules/NewYorkStatutesCourtRules?guid=N600972C9B4864838A141526D5F2847CD&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Search)&rs=clbt1.0&vr=3.0
http://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=l&cite=lk(NYPAR)&originatingDoc=N527D22B089B811D8A785F88B1CCF3D4B&refType=CM&sourceCite=McKinney%27s+Public+Authorities+Law+%c2%a7+1230-v&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&pubNum=1000118&contextData=(sc.Search)
http://www.westlaw.com/Browse/Home/StatutesCourtRules/NewYorkStatutesCourtRules?guid=NA69FA113B3F54B60A5A62AB50659C5E4&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Search)&rs=clbt1.0&vr=3.0
http://www.westlaw.com/Browse/Home/StatutesCourtRules/NewYorkStatutesCourtRules?guid=N415271FFD3F44927915A0A214A731886&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Search)&rs=clbt1.0&vr=3.0
http://www.westlaw.com/Browse/Home/StatutesCourtRules/NewYorkStatutesCourtRules?guid=NEBB67E674A584C239C60287C612A2C6E&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Search)&rs=clbt1.0&vr=3.0

§ 1230-v. Code of ethics, NY PUB AUTH § 1230-v

(f) An employee shall not by his or her conduct give reasonable basis for the impression that any person can improperly
influence such employee or unduly enjoy his or her favor in the performance of his or her official duties, or that he or
she is affected by the kinship, rank, position or influence of any party or person.

(g) An employee shall abstain from making personal investments in enterprises which he or she has reason to believe may
be directly involved in decisions to be made by the employee or which will otherwise create substantial conflict between
his or her duty in the public interest and his or her private interest.

(h) An employee shall endeavor to pursue a course of conduct which will not raise suspicion among the public that he
or she is likely to be engaged in acts that are in violation of his or her trust.

(1) No employee employed on a full-time basis nor any person, firm or association of which such an employee is a
member, nor corporation a substantial portion of the stock of which is owned or controlled directly or indirectly by such
employee, shall sell goods or services to any person, firm, corporation or association which is licensed or whose rates are
fixed by the water board in which such employee serves or is employed.

(§) If any employee shall have a financial interest, direct or indirect, having a value of ten thousand dollars or more,
in any activity which is subject to the jurisdiction of a regulatory agency, he or she shall file with the secretary of state
and secretary of the water board a written statement that he or she has such a financial interest in such activity which
statement shall be open to public inspection.

4. In addition to any penalty contained in any other provision of law, any such employee who shall knowingly and
intentionally violate any of the provisions of this section may be fined, suspended or removed from office or employment
in accordance with the rules and regulations of the water board. It shall be a misdemeanor for any such employee to
be in any way or manner interested, directly or indirectly, in the furnishing of work, materials, supplies or labor, in any
contract therefor which the authority or the water board is empowered to make by this title.

Credits
(Added L.2002, c. 275, § 1, eff. July 30, 2002.)

McKinney's Public Authorities Law § 1230-v, NY PUB AUTH § 1230-v
Current through 1..2019, chapter 31, 50-59. Some statute sections may be more current, see credits for details.

End of Document © 2019 Thomson Reuters. No claim to original U.S. Government Works.
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Confidential Evaluation of Board Performance

Somewhat | Somewhat
Criteria Agree Agree Disagree | Disagree

Board members have a shared understanding
of the mission and purpose of the Water Auth.

The policies, practices and decisions of the
Board are always consistent with this mission.

Board members comprehend their role and
fiduciary responsibilities and hold themselves
and each other to these principles.

The Board has adopted policies, by-laws, and
practices for the effective governance,
management and operations of the Water
Auth. and reviews these annually.

The Board sets clear and measurable
performance goals for the Water Auth. that
contribute to accomplishing its mission.

The decisions made by Board members are
arrived at through independent judgment and
deliberation, free of political influence, pressure
or self-interest.

Individual Board members communicate
effectively with executive staff so as to be well
informed on the status of all important issues.

Board members are knowledgeable about the
Water Authority programs, financial
statements, reporting requirements, and other
transactions.

The Board meets to review and approve all
documents and reports prior to public release
and is confident that the information being
presented is accurate and complete.

The Board knows the statutory obligations of
the Water Auth. and if the Water Auth. is in
compliance with state law.

Board and committee meetings facilitate open,
deliberate and thorough discussion, and the
active participation of members.

Board members have sufficient opportunity to
research, discuss, question and prepare before
decisions are made and votes taken.

Individual Board members feel empowered to
delay votes, defer agenda items, or table
actions if they feel additional information or
discussion is required.

The Board has identified the areas of most risk
to the Water Auth. and works with
management to implement risk mitigation
strategies before problems occur.

Board members demonstrate leadership and
vision and work respectfully with each other.

Date Completed:




Niagara Falls Public Water Authority - Annual Financial Disclosure Form 2018

Adapted from:

NIAGARA COUNTY ANNUAL FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE FORM - 2017
Name and Address

First Name Middle Name Last Name ~
Niagara Falls Public Water Authority Authority Board Membe
Department/Agency or Committee : Title
5815 Buffalo Avenue, Niagara Falls, NY 14304 716-283-9770
Department Address Phone
Residence Address Phone

1. Spouse and Dependent Children
Provide the name of your spouse (if married) and names of any dependent
children:

Spouse Child/Age

Child/Age Child/Age

2. Financial Interest: Note: For questions 3 to 6, do not report the exact
dollar amounts. Instead, report Categories of Amounts using the
following:

Category A: Under $5,000 Category D: $25,000-50,000
Category B: $5,001-10,000 Category E: $50,001-100,000
Category C: $10,001-25,000 Category F: Over $100,000

a. Business Positions. List any office, trusteeship, directorship,
partnership or other position in any business, propriety or not-for-profit
organization held by you and your spouse and dependent children, if any,
and indicate whether these businesses are involved with the NFPWA

Name of Family  Position Organization
Member i Nature of Involvement




b. Outside Employment. Describe any outside occupation, employment,
trade, business or profession providing more than $1,000.00 for a year for
you or your spouse and dependent children, if any, and indicate whether any
such activities are regulated by any state or local agency.

Name of Family Position Name, Address State or Local Category
Member Description of Agency of Amount
Organization

¢. Future Employment. Describe any contact, promise or other
agreement between you and anyone else with respect to your
employment after leaving your NFPWAgffice or position.

d. Past Employment. Identify the source and nature of any income in
excess of $1,000 per year from any prior employer including deferred
income, contributions to pension or retirement fund, profit plan, severance
pay or payments under a buy-out agreement.

Name & Address of Description of Income Category of Amount
Income Source (i.e., pension, deferred) '

e. Investments. Itemize and describe all investments in excess of $5,000
or 5% of the value in any business, corporation, partnership or other assets
including stocks, bonds, loans, pledged collateral or other investments for
you, your spouse and dependent children, ifany. "~ "~~~ I

Name of Family Name & Address  Description of.  Category of
Member of Real Estate Investment Amount




f. Trusts. ldentify each interest in a trust or estate or similar beneficial
interest in any assets in excess of $2,000 except form IRS eligible
retirement plans or interest in an estate or trust of a relative for you and
your spouse and dependent children.

Name of Family Trustee/Executor  Description of Category of
Member Trust/Estate Amount

g. Other Income. ldentify the source and nature of any other income in
excess of $1,000 per year from any other source not described above,,
including teaching income, lecture fees, consuitant for contractual income
or other income of any nature for you, your spouse and dependent
children.

Name of Family Name/Address Nature of Income Category of
Member of Source Amount

3. Gifts and Honorariums
List source of all gifts aggregating in excess of $250 received during the
last year by you, your spouse or dependent children, excluding gifts from
relatives. The term “gifts” includes gifts of cash, property, personal items,
payments to third parties on your behalf, forgiveness of debt, honorariums
and any other payments that are not reportable as income.

Name of Family Member Name/Address of Donor Category of Amount

4. Third Party Reimbursements. :
ldentify and describe the source of any third party reimbursement for
travel related expenditures in excess of $250 for any matter that relates to
your official duties. The term “reimbursement” includes any travel related
expenses provided by anyone other than the County for speaking
engagements, conferences or fact finding events that relate to your official
duties.

Source Description Category of Amount




5. Debts.
Describe all debts of you, your spouse and dependent children in excess

of $5,000.
Name of Family Member Name/Address Creditor Category of Amount

6. Interestin Contracts.
Describe any interest of you, your spouse or dependent children in any

contract involve the NFPWA or Niagara Falls Water Board.

Name of Family Member Contract Description

8. Political Parties.
List any position you held within the last five (5) years as an officer of any
political party, political committee or political organization. The term
“political organization” includes any independent or any organization that
is affiliated with, or a subsidiary of a political party.

Signed Date

RETURN TO: NIAGARA COUNTY BOARD OF ETHICS
c¢/o Human Resources Office
111 Main Street, Suite G2
Lockport, New York 14094



Authorities Budget Office
Policy Guidance

Authority Mission Statement and Performance Measurements

Name of Public Authority:

Niagara Falls Public Water Authority

Public Authority's Mission Statement:

In accordance with its enabling legislation, the mission of the Niagara Falls
Public Water Authority is to finance the acquisition and improvement by the
Niagara Falls Water Board of the water, wastewater, and stormwater systems
serving the City of Niagara Falls. In this capacity, the Authority has been
able substantially to reduce the burden of debt on users of the systems, and
benefits the people of the City, the service area, and the State through the
improvement of their health, welfare, and prosperity.

Date Adopted:

List of Performance Goals (If additional space is needed, please attach):

1. Meeting annually, and within one month of any request by the
Niagara Falls Water Board for a meeting of the Authority.

2. Timely financing or refinancing of water, wastewater, and stormwater
system acquisition or improvements upon the request of the
Water Board.

3. Timely payment of all debt service and related amounts on obligations
of the Authority.



Additional questions:

1. Have the board members acknowledged that they have read and understood the
mission of the public authority?

Yes.

2. Who has the power to appoint the management of the public authority?

The Authority’s enabling legislation provides that one member each of its
governing board are appointed by the NYS Senate, NYS Assembly, and Mayor of
the City of Niagara Falls. The Authority’s enabling legislation does not specifically
empower it to have employees, and pursuant to its financing agreement with the
Niagara Falls Water Board, the Authority “may not employ any paid officers or
employees” but may retain independent contractors. Therefore, the Authority
utilizes the services of Water Board employees to manage the day-to-day
operations of the Authority.

3. If the Board appoints management, do you have a policy you follow when appointing
the management of the public authority?

Not applicable.

4. Briefly describe the role of the Board and the role of management in the
implementation of the mission.

The Authority’s governing board is vested with and exercises the powers of the
Authority, including approval of all debt issuances, approval of Authority contracts,
and authorizing such other actions as may be taken by the Authority. Water Board
employees perform day-to-day management of the Authority’s limited operations.

5. Has the Board acknowledged that they have read and understood the responses to
each of these questions?

Yes.



§ 2824. Role and responsibilities of board members, NY PUB AUTH § 2824

McKinney's Consolidated Laws of New York Annotated
Public Authorities Law (Refs & Annos)
Chapter 43-a. Of the Consolidated Laws
Article 9. General Provisions (Refs & Annos)
Title 2. Boards of Public Authorities

McKinney's Public Authorities Law § 2824
§ 2824. Role and responsibilities of board members

Effective: March 1, 2010
Currentness

1. Board members of state and local authorities shall (a) execute direct oversight of the authority's chief executive
and other management in the effective and ethical management of the authority; (b) understand, review and monitor
the implementation of fundamental financial and management controls and operational decisions of the authority; (c)
establish policies regarding the payment of salary, compensation and reimbursements to, and establish rules for the time
and attendance of, the chief executive and management; (d) adopt a code of ethics applicable to each officer, director
and employee that, at a minimum, includes the standards established in section seventy-four of the public officers law;
(e) establish written policies and procedures on personnel including policies protecting employees from retaliation for
disclosing information concerning acts of wrongdoing, misconduct, malfeasance, or other inappropriate behavior by an
employee or board member of the authority, investments, travel, the acquisition of real property and the disposition of
real and personal property and the procurement of goods and services; (f) adopt a defense and indemnification policy and
disclose such plan to any and all prospective board members; (g) perform each of their duties as board members, including
but not limited to those imposed by this section, in good faith and with that degree of diligence, care and skill which
an ordinarily prudent person in like position would use under similar circumstances, and may take into consideration
the views and policies of any elected official or body, or other person and ultimately apply independent judgment in the
best interest of the authority, its mission and the public; (h) at the time that each member takes and subscribes his or
her oath of office, or within sixty days after the effective date of this paragraph if the member has already taken and
subscribed his or her oath of office, execute an acknowledgment, in the form prescribed by the authorities budget office
after consultation with the attorney general, in which the board member acknowledges that he or she understands his
or her role, and fiduciary responsibilities as set forth in paragraph (g) of this subdivision, and acknowledges that he or
she understands his or her duty of loyalty and care to the organization and commitment to the authority's mission and
the public interest.

2. Individuals appointed to the board of a public authority shall participate in state approved training regarding their
legal, fiduciary, financial and ethical responsibilities as directors of an authority within one year of appointment to
a board. Board members shall participate in such continuing training as may be required to remain informed of best
practices, regulatory and statutory changes relating to the effective oversight of the management and financial activities
of public authorities and to adhere to the highest standards of responsible governance.

3. No chair who is also the chief executive officer shall participate in determining the level of compensation or
reimbursement, or time and attendance rules for the position of chief executive officer.
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§ 2824. Role and responsibilities of board members, NY PUB AUTH § 2824

4. Board members of each state and local authority, or subsidiary thereof, shall establish an audit committee to be
comprised of not less than three independent members, who shall constitute a majority on the committee, and who shall
possess the necessary skills to understand the duties and functions of the audit committee; provided, however, that in
the event that a board has less than three independent members, the board may appoint non-independent members to
the audit committee, provided that the independent members must constitute a majority of the members of the audit
committee. The committee shall recommend to the board the hiring of a certified independent accounting firm for such
authority, establish the compensation to be paid to the accounting firm and provide direct oversight of the performance
of the independent audit performed by the accounting firm hired for such purposes.

5. Notwithstanding any provision of any general, special or local law, municipal charter or ordinance to the contrary,
no board of a state or local authority shall, directly or indirectly, including through any subsidiary, extend or maintain
credit, arrange for the extension of credit, or renew an extension of credit, in the form of a personal loan to or for any
officer, board member or employee (or equivalent thereof) of the authority.

6. Members of the audit committee shall be familiar with corporate financial and accounting practices.

7. Board members of each state and local authority, or subsidiary thereof, shall establish a governance committee to be
comprised of not less than three independent members, who shall constitute a majority on the committee, and who shall
possess the necessary skills to understand the duties and functions of the governance committee; provided, however, that
in the event that a board has less than three independent members, the board may appoint non-independent members
to the governance committee, provided that the independent members must constitute a majority of the members of
the governance committee. It shall be the responsibility of the members of the governance committee to keep the board
informed of current best governance practices; to review corporate governance trends; to recommend updates to the
authority's corporate governance principles; to advise appointing authorities on the skills and experiences required of
potential board members; to examine ethical and conflict of interest issues; to perform board self-evaluations; and to
recommend by-laws which include rules and procedures for conduct of board business.

8. Board members of each state and local authority, or subsidiary thereof which issues debt, shall establish a finance
committee to be comprised of not less than three independent members, who shall constitute a majority on the committee,
and who shall possess the necessary skills to understand the duties and functions of the committee; provided, however,
that in the event that a board has less than three independent members, the board may appoint non-independent members
to the finance committee, provided that the independent members must constitute a majority of the members of the
finance committee. It shall be the responsibility of the members of the finance committee to review proposals for the
issuance of debt by the authority and its subsidiaries and make recommendations.

Credits
(Added L.2005, c. 766, § 18, eff. Jan. 13, 2006. Amended L.2009, c. 505, §§ 10, 11, eff. Feb. 9, 2010, repealed by L.2009,
c. 506, § 29, eff. March 1, 2010; L.2009, c. 506, §§ 10, 11, 11-¢, eff. March 1, 2010.)

McKinney's Public Authorities Law § 2824, NY PUB AUTH § 2824
Current through 1..2019, chapter 34, 50-59. Some statute sections may be more current, see credits for details.

End of Document © 2019 Thomson Reuters. No claim to original U.S. Government Works.
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§ 2824-a. Mission statement and measurement report, NY PUB AUTH § 2824-a

McKinney's Consolidated Laws of New York Annotated
Public Authorities Law (Refs & Annos)
Chapter 43-a. Of the Consolidated Laws
Article 9. General Provisions (Refs & Annos)
Title 2. Boards of Public Authorities

McKinney's Public Authorities Law § 2824-a
§ 2824-a. Mission statement and measurement report

Effective: March 1, 2010
Currentness

Each state authority shall submit to the authorities budget office on or before March thirty-first, two thousand ten, and
each local authority shall submit to the authorities budget office on or before March thirty-first, two thousand eleven, a
proposed authority mission statement and proposed measurements which the authorities budget office shall post on its
website. The proposed authority mission statement and proposed measurements shall have the following components:
a brief mission statement expressing the purpose and goals of the authority, a description of the stakeholders of the
authority and their reasonable expectations from the authority, and a list of measurements by which performance of the
authority and the achievement of its goals may be evaluated. Each authority shall reexamine its mission statement and
measurements on an annual basis, and publish a self-evaluation based on the stated measurements; provided, however,
such reexamination may be waived pursuant to a determination by the director of the authorities budget office that such
undertaking is unnecessary for an individual authority.

Credits
(Added L.2009, c. 506, § 12, eff. March 1, 2010.)

McKinney's Public Authorities Law § 2824-a, NY PUB AUTH § 2824-a
Current through L.2019, chapter 34, 50-59. Some statute sections may be more current, see credits for details.

End of Document © 2019 Thomson Reuters. No claim to original U.S. Government Works.
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§ 2825. Membership on authorities and commissions;..., NY PUB AUTH § 2825

McKinney's Consolidated Laws of New York Annotated
Public Authorities Law (Refs & Annos)
Chapter 43-a. Of the Consolidated Laws
Article 9. General Provisions (Refs & Annos)
Title 2. Boards of Public Authorities

McKinney's Public Authorities Law § 2825
§ 2825. Membership on authorities and commissions; independence; and financial disclosure

Effective: October 13, 2010
Currentness

Notwithstanding the provisions of any general, special or local law, municipal charter or ordinance: 1. No public officer
or employee shall be ineligible for appointment as a trustee or member of the governing body of a state or local authority,
as defined in section two of this chapter, and any public officer or employee may accept such appointment and serve as
such trustee or member without forfeiture of any other public office or position of public employment by reason thereof.

2. Except for members who serve as members by virtue of holding a civil office of the state, the majority of the remaining
members of the governing body of every state or local authority shall be independent members; provided, however,
that this provision shall apply to appointments made on or after the effective date of chapter seven hundred sixty-six
of the laws of two thousand five which added this subdivision. The official or officials having the authority to appoint
or remove such remaining members shall take such actions as may be necessary to satisfy this requirement and further,
shall consider the prospective diversity of the members of a state authority when making their determinations to appoint
any member. For the purposes of this section, an independent member is one who:

(a)is not, and in the past two years has not been, employed by the public authority or an affiliate in an executive capacity;

(b) is not, and in the past two years has not been, employed by an entity that received remuneration valued at more than
fifteen thousand dollars for goods and services provided to the public authority or received any other form of financial
assistance valued at more than fifteen thousand dollars from the public authority;

(c) is not a relative of an executive officer or employee in an executive position of the public authority or an affiliate; and

(d) is not, and in the past two years has not been, a lobbyist registered under a state or local law and paid by a client
to influence the management decisions, contract awards, rate determinations or any other similar actions of the public
authority or an affiliate.

3. Notwithstanding any other provision of any general, special or local law, municipal charter or ordinance to the
contrary, board members, officers, and employees of a state authority shall file annual financial disclosure statements as
required by section seventy-three-a of the public officers law. Board members, officers, and employees of a local public
authority shall file annual financial disclosure statements with the county board of ethics for the county in which the
local public authority has its primary office pursuant to article eighteen of the general municipal law.


http://www.westlaw.com/Browse/Home/StatutesCourtRules/NewYorkStatutesCourtRules?transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.DocLink)&rs=clbt1.0&vr=3.0
http://www.westlaw.com/Browse/Home/StatutesCourtRules/NewYorkStatutesCourtRules?guid=N600972C9B4864838A141526D5F2847CD&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.DocLink)&rs=clbt1.0&vr=3.0
http://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=l&cite=lk(NYPAR)&originatingDoc=N43609DF0B9EC11DFB25D86BEE73FD0FE&refType=CM&sourceCite=McKinney%27s+Public+Authorities+Law+%c2%a7+2825&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&pubNum=1000118&contextData=(sc.DocLink)
http://www.westlaw.com/Browse/Home/StatutesCourtRules/NewYorkStatutesCourtRules?guid=NA69FA113B3F54B60A5A62AB50659C5E4&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.DocLink)&rs=clbt1.0&vr=3.0
http://www.westlaw.com/Browse/Home/StatutesCourtRules/NewYorkStatutesCourtRules?guid=NE399E04D58D94BE9B72BAAC46AC05255&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.DocLink)&rs=clbt1.0&vr=3.0
http://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=l&cite=lk(NYPAC43-AART9R)&originatingDoc=N43609DF0B9EC11DFB25D86BEE73FD0FE&refType=CM&sourceCite=McKinney%27s+Public+Authorities+Law+%c2%a7+2825&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&pubNum=1000118&contextData=(sc.DocLink)
http://www.westlaw.com/Browse/Home/StatutesCourtRules/NewYorkStatutesCourtRules?guid=N380F2EA8B6F441D2932E5CF15F1BF951&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.DocLink)&rs=clbt1.0&vr=3.0
http://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=L&pubNum=1000118&cite=NYPAS2&originatingDoc=N43609DF0B9EC11DFB25D86BEE73FD0FE&refType=LQ&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.DocLink)
http://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=L&pubNum=1000124&cite=NYPOS73-A&originatingDoc=N43609DF0B9EC11DFB25D86BEE73FD0FE&refType=LQ&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.DocLink)

§ 2825. Membership on authorities and commissions;..., NY PUB AUTH § 2825

Credits

(Formerly § 1851, added L.1954, c. 74, § 1, eff. March 3, 1954. Renumbered § 2501, L..1956, c. 925, § 1. Renumbered §
2525, 1L.1957, c. 914, § 19. Renumbered § 2825, L.1983, c. 838, § 16. Amended L.2005, c. 766, § 19, eff. Jan. 13, 2006;
L.2009, c. 505, § 13, eff. Feb. 9, 2010, repealed by L.2009, c. 506, § 29, eff. March 1, 2010; L.2009, c. 506, § 13, eff. March
1,2010; L.2010, c. 174, § 1, eff. Oct. 13, 2010.)

McKinney's Public Authorities Law § 2825, NY PUB AUTH § 2825
Current through L.2019, chapter 34, 50-59. Some statute sections may be more current, see credits for details.

End of Document © 2019 Thomson Reuters. No claim to original U.S. Government Works.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Board of Directors
Niagara Falls Water Board:

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Niagara Falls Water Board (the Board)
as of and for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, and the related notes to financial
statements, which collectively comprise the Board’s basic financial statements as listed in the table
of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Board’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Board’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the Niagara Falls Water Board, as of December 31, 2018 and 2017,
and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the
years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Other Matters

As described in note 1(d) to the financial statements, the District adopted the provisions of
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No 75 - “Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions,” during the year ended December 31,

2018. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis on pages 4 through 10, and the required supplementary
information as listed in the table of contents on pages 44 through 46 be presented to supplement the
basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part
of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audits of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or
provide any assurance.

Other Supplementary Information

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Niagara Falls Water Board’s basic financial statements. The accompanying
other supplementary information as listed in the table of contents is presented for purposes of
additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements.



The other supplementary information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of
the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our
opinion, the other supplementary information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the
basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April 15,
2019, on our consideration of the Board’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Board’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
in considering the Board’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

EFPR Growp, CPAs, PLLC

Williamsville, New York
April 15,2019



NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2018 and 2017

As management of the Niagara Falls Water Board (the Board), we offer readers of the Board’s
financial statements this narrative and analysis of the financial activities of the Board for the years
ended December 31, 2018 and 2017.

Following this Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) are the financial statements of the
Board together with the notes thereto. Please read the MD&A in conjunction with the Board’s
financial statements and the accompanying notes in order to obtain a full understanding of the Board’s
financial position and results of operations.

The Board was created by an Act of the State of New York, as more fully described in note 1 to the
financial statements, and commenced operations on September 25, 2003. In accordance with an
agreement with the City of Niagara Falls, New York (the City) the Board received all assets, liabilities
and operating activities (including all personnel) of the City’s former Water and Sewer Funds. In
return, the Board issued debt, which was used to defease outstanding City bonded debt relating to its
Water and Sewer Funds.

Financial Highlights

e The assets and deferred outflows of the Board exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows by
$(4,121,136) and $55,546,505 (net position) at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.
At December 31, 2018 and 2017, $(62,040,700) and $1,679,945 (unrestricted net position),
respectively, may be used to meet the Board’s ongoing obligations.

e The Board’s operating income for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 was
$2,049,284 and $937,446, respectively.

e The Board’s total bond indebtedness decreased by $4,044,754 during the current fiscal year,
as a result of principal payments made of $3,915,000 and premium amortization of $129,754.

e The Board reflected a liability for postemployment benefits of $87,609,060 and $27,393,994
at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

e The Board implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No
75 - “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than
Pensions.” This resulted in a restatement of net position of $58,986,686.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Board’s basic financial
statements which include the financial activities of the Board, and its blended component unit, the
Niagara Falls Public Water Authority (the Authority). The reasons for blending the financial activities
are explained in note 1 to the financial statements. An overview of the responsibilities of the Board
and the Authority is presented as follows.
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Board Authority
Owns the System *  Issues debt
Operates and maintains the System *  Provides proceeds of debt for
Responsible for System improvements construction and improvements
Sets rates and collects revenues *  Provides oversight regarding adequacy
Pays debt service on bonds of revenues and System conditions

The financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the Board’s
finances in a manner similar to a private-sector business, and are organized as follows:

The statement of net position presents information on all of the Board’s assets, deferred
outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference
between the four reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position
may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Board is improving or
deteriorating.

The statement of revenue, expenses and changes in net position presents information on how
the Board’s net position changed during the reporting period. All changes in net position are
reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the
timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for
some items that will result in cash flows for future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected water and
sewer rents, earned but unused vacation and postemployment benefits).

The statement of cash flows presents information depicting the Board’s cash flow activities
for the reporting period and the effect that these activities had on the Board’s cash and
equivalent balances.

The notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the financial statements. The notes to the financial
statements can be found on pages 16 through 41 of this report.

Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of the Board’s financial
position. Assets and deferred outflows exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows by $(4,121,136) at
December 31, 2018, as compared to $55,546,505 at December 31, 2017, as presented as follows:

Niagara Falls Water Board’s Net Position

December 31, Increase/(Decrease)
2018 2017 Dollars Percent

Current assets $ 31,479,515 33,805,510 (2,325,995) (6.9%)
Noncurrent assets 152,335,662 152,388.407 (52,745) (0.1%)
Total assets 183,815,177 186.,193.917 (2,378.740) (1.3%)

Deferred outflows 1,821,720 1,415,110 406,610 28.7%
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

December 31, Increase/(Decrease)
2018 2017 Dollars Percent

Current liabilities $ 11,710,927 9,890,152 1,820,775 18.4%
Noncurrent liabilities 175,566,392 120,932,772 54,633,620 45.2%
Total liabilities 187,277,319 130,822,924 56,454,395 43.2%

Deferred inflows 2,480,714 1,239,598 1,241,116 100.1%
Net investment in capital assets 26,040,626 20,904,136 5,136,490 24.6%
Restricted 31,878,938 32,962,424  (1,083,486) (3.3%)
Unrestricted (62,040,700) 1,679.945 (63.720,645) (3,793.0%)
Total net position $ _(4,121.136) _55.546,505 (59.667.641) (107.4%)

The Board’s net investment in capital assets, is a surplus net position of $26,040,626 and $20,904,136
at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. This results from the timing of the amortization of the
Board’s capital debt, as outstanding principal for most of the Board’s serial bonds is not paid until
late into the life of the debt, while depreciation occurs annually.

The Board’s unrestricted net position was $(62,040,700) and $1,679,945 at December 31, 2018 and
2017, respectively. These assets are not limited as to how and for what they may be used. The
restricted debt service portion of the Board’s net position $4,795,231 and $3,799,654 at December
31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, represents funds that are set aside to be used towards debt service.
The restricted capital projects portion of the Board’s net position $12,672,427 and $13,617,444 at
December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, represents funds that are set aside primarily for the
reconstruction of the Falls Street Tunnel. The restricted debt reserve fund portion of the Board’s net
position $9,182,488 and $8,822,394 at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, represents funds
for future debt service payments. The restricted operating and maintenance reserve fund portion of
the Board’s net position was $5,228,792 and $6,722,932 at December 31, 2018 and 2017,
respectively, represents funds to pay the cost of extraordinary repairs to and maintenance of the
system.

The Board’s unrestricted net position is the remainder of total net position after taking net investment
in capital assets, restricted for capital projects, restricted for operations and maintenance and restricted
for debt related reserves into account. Unrestricted net position decreased in 2018 by $63,720,645
because of an increase in net investment in capital assets of $5,136,490, a decrease of $1,083,486 in
restricted, a loss of $680,955 and a restatement for other postemployment benefits of $59,986,686.

A comparison of current assets to current liabilities of the Board at December 31, 2018 and 2017
follows:

2018 2017
Current assets $ 31,479,515 33,805,510
Current liabilities 11,710,927 9,890,152
Ratio of current assets to current liabilities 2.69 342
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The Board’s total net position decreased by $59,667,641 during the year ended December 31, 2018,
as compared to a decrease of $2,047,362 for the year ended December 31, 2017. Key elements of the
current year’s decrease in net position are as follows:

Niagara Falls Water Board’s Changes in Net Position

Increase/

2018 2017 (decrease)
Total operating revenue $ 31,259.913 30,152,829 1,107,084
Total operating expenses (29.210.629) (29.215.383) 4.754
Operating income 2,049,284 937,446 1,111,838
Total non-operating revenue (expenses) (2,730,239) (2.984.808) 254,569
Change in net position, before restatement (680,955) (2,047,362) 1,366,407
GASB No.75 implementation (58.986.686) - (58.986.686)
Change in net position, after restatement $(59,667.641) (2.047,.362) (57.620,279)

The Board’s major sources of operating revenue are charges for water and sewer services which
comprise approximately 99% of total operating revenue. These revenues combined comprise an
approximate $1.1 million increase in operating revenue in 2018. These revenues are dependent upon
rates charged for these services, with such rates being determined by the Board. Please see the section
entitled “Economic Factors and Next Year’s Rates” within this MD&A for a listing of the rates
charged during 2018 and approved rates for 2019.

The Board’s largest operating expense area relates to its employees. Together, personnel costs
(salaries) and employee benefits approximate 44% of all operating expenses. In 2018, these costs
totaled approximately $12.9 million as compared to $14.2 million in 2017, representing an
approximate $1.3 million decrease in this area. This decrease is due to amortization of other
postemployment benefits liability in 2017.

Within the non-operating revenue (expenses) category, interest expense is by far the largest expense
item and represents the cost of carrying serial bonds totaling $91,380,000 and $95,295,000, at
December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

The following is a summary of the Board’s cash flow activities for the years ended December 31,
2018 and 2017:

2018 2017

Cash flows provided by (used in):

Operating activities $ 10,269,567 11,176,527

Capital and related financing activities (14,032,042) (10,866,428)

Investing activities 1,731,313 5,701,260
Change in cash and equivalents (2,031,162) 6,011,359
Cash and equivalents at beginning of year 23,422,740 17,411,381
Cash and equivalents at end of year $21,391,578 23,422,740
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The Board’s available cash and equivalents decreased by $2,031,162 during the year ended December
31, 2018, as compared to an increase of $6,011,359 during the year ended December 31, 2017. Cash
provided by operating activities reflected a positive balance of $10,269,567 for the year ended
December 31, 2018.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital Assets - The Board’s investment in capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) as of
December 31, 2018, amounted to $120,456,724, as compared to $119,425,983 at December 31, 2017.
This includes land, plant and transmission (infrastructure type assets), machinery and equipment, and
construction in progress. The Board’s greatest investment in capital assets comes in the form of
infrastructure. Significant factors affecting capital assets during the reporting period include:

e The Board recorded total additions to capital assets of $7,483,243.

e Additions to construction in progress totaled $7,483,243. Completed capital projects
transferred to depreciable asset categories totaled $11,290,530.

e The Board recorded total depreciation of $6,452,502 and $6,111,206 for the years ended
December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

A summary of capital assets, net of depreciation where applicable, is as follows:

2018 2017
Nondepreciable assets:
Land $ 463,713 463,713
Construction in progress 3,184,153 6,991,440
Depreciable assets:
Plant and transmission assets (water system) 46,875,435 47,712,419
Plant and transmission assets (wastewater system) 64,822,543 60,173,970
Machinery and equipment 5.110.880 4,084.441
Total $ 120,456,724 119,425,983

Construction in progress represents ongoing capital construction which will be transferred to the
appropriate asset category (and begin to be depreciated) upon completion.

More detailed information about the Board’s capital assets is presented in the notes to financial
statements.

Serial Bonds - At December 31, 2018, the Board had outstanding serial bonds totaling $91,380,000
as compared to $95,295,000 at December 31, 2017. During the year ended December 31, 2018, the
Board made principal payments of $3,915,000 on these bonds.

The Board used bond debt to finance the original purchase of the assets (net of liabilities and including
the water, sewer and storm water systems) from the City. In the future, the Board may utilize bond
debt issuances as a primary source of funds for construction, renovations and system improvements.
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Postemployment Benefits - Upon retirement, the Board’s employees are entitled to continuous
health insurance coverage. At December 31, 2018 and 2017, the liability recorded for these benefits
amounted to $87,609,060 and $27,393,994, respectively. This increase is due to the implementation
of GASB Statement No. 75.

Compensated Absences - Upon separation, Board employees are entitled to payment of unused sick
and vacation time. The total liability relating to these payments at December 31, 2018 is $709,411,
compared to December 31, 2017 is $701,680. The timing of the payments relating to compensated
absences is dependent upon many factors, including the retirement or separation from service, and is
therefore difficult to predict; however, the Board estimates that $35,471 of such liability is current at
December 31, 2018.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Rates

As noted earlier, the Board’s largest sources of operating revenues are water and sewer rents from
customers. These revenues result from rates charged based on water usage by the individual
customer. Rates can be adjusted accordingly in order to help meet the expenses of the Board. When
considering rate changes, the Board utilizes the services of a rate consultant to help forecast the
magnitude and effects of potential changes. As required by law, the general public’s opinions are
also taken into consideration, through public hearings, when contemplating a change in rates charged
for services. Water rates charged for 2018 and approved rates to be charged for 2019 are as follows:

2018 2019
Amount to be charged Amount to be charged
(per 100 cubic feet) (per 100 cubic feet)
Inside Outside Inside Outside
Amount Consumed city city city city
First 20,000 cubic feet per quarter 3.35 8.95 342 9.13
Next 60,000 cubic feet per quarter 2.90 7.81 2.96 7.97
Next 120,000 cubic feet per quarter 2.46 6.51 2.51 6.64
Over 200,000 cubic feet per quarter 2.04 5.48 2.08 5.59
Minimum charge for water consumption
per quarter 43.55 116.35 44.40 118.68
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In addition to the above schedule of rates for water consumed, a demand charge is assessed for each
user’s meter, as set forth below:
2018 Rate 2019 Rate

Size and Type (per quarter) (per quarter)
Under 17 Disc $ 3.70 3.70
1” Disc 25.00 25.00
2” Disc 40.00 40.00
2” Compound 40.00 40.00
3” Compound 50.00 50.00
4” Compound 100.00 100.00
6” Compound 220.00 220.00
8” Compound 250.00 250.00
10” Compound 275.00 275.00
12 Compound 400.00 400.00

In addition to charging for water consumption and services, the Board also charges users with respect
to sewer and wastewater services provided. All users have been divided into two “user classes” -
Commercial/Small Industrial/Residential Users (CSIRU) and Significant Industrial Users (SIU).

Sewer rates for the CSIRU class are determined by the total metered water consumption in each
quarter. Rates charged for 2018 and rates to be charged during 2019 are as follows:

Amount Consumed 2018 2019
Minimum charge per quarter
(up to 1,300 cubic feet) $ 57.64 58.79
Additional usage in excess
of 1,300 cubic feet ($/cubic feet) 4.43 4.52

Sewer rates for the SIU class are determined each quarter based on the actual measured quantities and
composition of wastewater flow. Such rates are determined by the Board and are based upon five
representative 24-hour composite samples taken quarterly. Rates for the SIU class for the year ended
December 31, 2018 and approved for 2019 were $3,115 per million gallons for wastewater flow;
$1.00 per pound for all suspended solids discharged; and $1.73 per pound for all soluble organic
carbon compounds discharged. In addition, SIU’s are charged fees, as needed, for certain other
“substances of concern” which are discharged in their wastewater.

Contacting the Board’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide taxpayers, customers, and creditors with a general
overview of the Board’s finances and to show the Board’s accountability for the money it receives.
If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact Ms. Kendra
Walker, Michael O’Laughlin Municipal Water Plan, 5815 Buffalo Avenue, Niagara Falls, New York
14304.
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Statements of Net Position
December 31, 2018 and 2017

Assets
Current assets:

Cash and equivalents

Accounts receivable, net of allowance for
uncollectible accounts

Due from other governments, net of allowance
for uncollectible accounts

Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Restricted cash and investments - capital projects
Restricted cash and investments - debt service fund
Restricted cash and investments - debt service reserve fund
Restricted cash and investments - operating and
maintenance reserve

Capital assets:
Land
Waste and waste water system
Machinery and equipment
Construction in progress
Less accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation

Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Pensions

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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2018 2017
$ 21,391,578 23,422,740
8,740,792 8,669,935
1,250,223 1,340,184
96,922 372,651
31,479,515 33,805,510
12,672,427 13,617,444
4,795,231 3,799,654
9,182,488 8,822,394
5,228,792 6,722,932
463,713 463,713
179,692,253 170,159,589
10,079,046 8,321,180
3,184,153 6,991,440
(72,962,441)  (66,509,939)
120,456,724 119,425,983
152,335,662 152,388,407
183,815,177 186,193,917
1,821,720 1,415,110
(Continued)
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Statements of Net Position, Continued

Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Overpayments
Current portion of noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences
Total OPEB liability
Bonds payable

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences
Total OPEB liability
Bonds payable
Net pension liability - proportionate share - ERS System

Total noncurrent liabilities
Risk management and contingent liabilities (note 11)
Total liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Pensions
Gain on refunding

Total deferred inflows of resources
Net Position

Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for capital projects

Restricted for debt service fund
Restricted for debt service reserve fund
Restricted for operating and maintenance
Unrestricted

Total net position

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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2018 2017
2,855,551 1,679,879
2,178,090 2,262,617
4,850 3,000
35,471 35,084
2,581,965 1,994,572
4,055,000 3,915,000
11,710,927 9,890,152
673,940 666,596
85,027,095 25,399,422
89,390,249 93,575,003
475,108 1,291,751
175,566,392 120,932,772
187,277,319 130,822,924
1,509,865 207,754
970,849 1,031,844
2,480,714 1,239,598
26,040,626 20,904,136
12,672,427 13,617,444
4,795,231 3,799,654
9,182,488 8,822,394
5,228,792 6,722,932
(62,040,700) 1,679,945
§ (4,121,136) 55,546,505




NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD

Statements of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017

Operating revenue:
Water rents and charges
Sewer rents and charges
Licenses and permits
Other services

Total operating revenue

Operating expenses:
Personnel costs
Contractual expenses
Employee benefits
Depreciation expense

Total operating expenses
Operating income

Non-operating revenue (expenses):
Use of money and property
Gain on sale of property
Interest expense

Total non-operating revenue (expenses)
Change in net position

Net position at beginning of year, before restatement
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle (note 14)

Net position at beginning of year, as restated

Net position at end of year

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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018 2017
$ 10,772,298 10,201,166
20,019,512 19,430,827
222,950 227,396
245,153 293,440
31,259,913 30,152,829
6,065,718 5,432,579
9,902,911 8,928,037
6,789,498 8,743,561
6,452,502 6,111,206
29210,629 29,215,383
2,049,284 937,446
647,827 459,709
8,783 11,039
(3,386,849)  (3,455,556)
(2,730,239)  (2,984,808)
(680,955)  (2,047,362)
55,546,505 57,593,867
(58,986,686) -
(3,440,181) 57,593,867

$ (4,121,136) 55,546,505




NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD

Statements of Cash Flows

Years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers and users
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Gain on sale of property
Acquisition of capital assets
Amortization of deferred gain on refunding
Amortization of premium on capital debt
Principal paid on capital debt
Interest paid on capital debt

Net cash used in capital and related
financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:

Interest earned

Change in restricted cash and investments - capital projects

Change in restricted cash and investments - debt
service fund

Change in restricted cash and investments - debt service
reserve fund

Change in restricted cash and investments - operating and
maintenance

Net cash provided by investing
activities

Change in cash and equivalents

Cash and equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and equivalents at end of year

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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2018 2017
$ 31,280,867 30,701,932
(9,418,908)  (8,686,164)
(11,592,392) (10,839,241)
10,269,567 11,176,527
8,783 11,039
(6,515,845)  (3,736,530)
(60,995) (60,996)
(129,754) (129,753)
(3,915,000)  (3,780,000)
(3,419,231)  (3,170,188)
(14,032,042) (10,866,428)
647,827 459,709
945,017 1,680,000
(995,577) 19,106,877
(360,094)  (8,822,394)
1,494,140  (6,722,932)
1,731,313 5,701,260
(2,031,162) 6,011,359
23,422,740 17,411,381
$ 21,391,578 23,422,740
(Continued)
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Statements of Cash Flows, Continued

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Operating income
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation expense
Changes in:
Accounts receivable
Due from other governments
Prepaid expenses
Note receivable
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Overpayments
Compensated absences
Total OPEB liability
Net pension liability - proportionate share - ERS System
Deferred outflows of resources - pensions
Deferred inflows of resources - pensions

Total adjustments

Net cash provided by operating activities

Supplemental schedule of cash flow information - adjustment
for capital assets financed by accounts payable

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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2018 2017
$ 2,049,284 937,446
6,452,502 6,111,206
(70,857) 251,125
89,961 122,756
275,729 (5,591)

- 172,222

208,274 247,464
(52,145) 40,683
1,850 3,000

7,731 (96,431)
1,228,380 3,251,599
(816,643)  (865,491)
(406,610) 1,069,948
1,302,111 (63,409)
8,220,283 10,239,081

$ 10,269,567 11,176,527
$ 1,840,594 873,196




NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2018 and 2017

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the Niagara Falls Water Board (the Board) have been prepared in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
(GAAP) as applied to governmental units. Included in the Board’s reporting entity is a
blended component unit, the Niagara Falls Public Water Authority (the Authority).

(a) Reporting Entity
The Board was created by Chapter 325 of the Laws of 2002 of the State of New York (the
State), codified as Sections 1231-a of Title 10-C of Article 5 of the Public Authorities Law
of the State, as amended (the Board Act). The Authority was created by Chapter 275 of
the Laws of 2002 of the State, constituting the Niagara Falls Public Water Authority Act,
codified as Sections 1230-a through 1230-aa of Title 10-B of Article 5 of the Public
Authorities Law of the State, as amended (the Authority Act).

The Board is a corporate municipal instrument of the State consisting of five members
primarily responsible for the jurisdiction, control, possession, supervision and use of
water, wastewater and storm water systems within the City of Niagara Falls, New York
(the City).

The Authority is a public benefit corporation consisting of three members and is primarily
responsible for obtaining financing for water, wastewater and storm water systems within
the City.

Board members for both the Board and Authority are appointed pursuant to the enabling
legislation.

Pursuant to the Board Act and the Authority Act, the Board, the Authority and the City
executed an acquisition agreement effective September 25, 2003 whereby the Authority
issued bonds enabling the Board to purchase all of the assets, net of liabilities, of the City’s
public water, wastewater and storm water systems. The Board began operations of these
systems on that date.

Currently there are approximately 19,536 residential, 329 commercial and 24 large industrial
type customers. Total population served by the water system is estimated at 51,000. The
average daily demand is 23.1 million gallons per day. The Board’s wastewater system
generally covers the same service area and customer base as the water system. The
wastewater treatment plant processes approximately 29.3 million gallons of wastewater
per day.

Blended Presentation of Component Unit - Although they are legally separate entities, blended
component units are, in substance, part of the government’s operations. The following is
a brief description of the blended component unit included in the primary government.
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD

Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

(a) Reporting Entity, Continued
Niagara Falls Public Water Authority - Among the powers given to the Authority is the ability
to borrow money and issue negotiable or non-negotiable notes, bonds or other obligations
for the acquisition, renovation and improvement to the regional water system.

The Authority may also apply for licenses, permits and approval of plans associated with the
acquisition, renovation and improvement of the regional water system. In the process of
borrowing funds to improve facilities, professional consultants may be retained to offer
technical services and advice for the purpose and benefit of acquiring or improving the
systems.

The Authority has entered into an agreement with the Board to make payments for the debt
service required by these bonds. The Board is also required to make payments for
Authority expenses. The obligation to make debt service is a general obligation to which
its full faith and credit are pledged.

The Authority is considered a component unit since the Board is obligated to pay debt service
and fund other accounts of the Authority. Thus, the Authority is “fiscally dependent”
upon the Board to establish rates and collect fees necessary to pay these debts. Further,
the Authority is “blended” with the Board in the financial statements because the
Authority exists solely to provide services that predominantly benefit the Board.

(b) Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting
The financial statements of the Board have been prepared in accordance with GAAP as
applied to governmental units. The Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is
the accepted standard-setting body for establishing government accounting and financial
reporting principles.

The activities of the Board are accounted for similar to those often found in the private sector
using the flow of economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting. All assets, liabilities, deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of
resources, net position, revenues, and expenses are accounted for through a single
enterprise fund with revenues recorded when earned and expenses recorded at the time
liabilities are incurred.

Revenues from providing water and sanitary sewer services are reported as operating
revenues. Transactions which are capital, financing or investing related are reported as
non-operating revenues. All expenses related to operating systems are reported as
operating expenses. Interest expense and financing costs are reported as non-operating
expenses.

(c) Budgets

The annual budget is the financial plan for the effective operation of the Board and the
Authority. The Board uses the budget as a management tool for internal control purposes
and to assist in setting of appropriate user charges.
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD

Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

(d) Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net
Position
e Cash and Equivalents - The Board’s cash and equivalents represent cash on hand, demand
deposits, and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from
the date of acquisition.

e Restricted Cash and Investments - Capital Projects - In 2007, the Board received
$19,000,000 from the New York State Power Authority (the Power Authority) which is
restricted for capital improvement projects including, but not limited to, the Falls Street
Tunnel. At December 31, 2018 and 2017, the total amount restricted for capital projects
amounted to $12,672,427 and $13,617,444, respectively.

e Restricted Cash and Investments - Debt Service Fund - As a result of the purchase of the
water and sewer systems from the City, certain bond covenants, as disclosed in note 5,
were established requiring resources (consisting of cash and investments) to be maintained
for specific purposes necessary to operate the water and sewer systems. At December 31,
2018 and 217, the total amount restricted for debt service fund amounted to $4,795,231
and $3,799,654, respectively.

Cash has been deposited into various trust funds with a fiscal agent to satisfy certain
covenants. Further, the amounts have been invested into various short-term investments
in compliance with the Board’s investment policy. Certain funds were used for their
intended purposes and are no longer available for investment.

e Restricted Cash and Investments - Debt Service Reserve Fund - This fund was established
to fulfill the debt service reserve requirements on the outstanding bonds as and when they
become due. At December 31, 2018 and 2017, the total amount restricted for debt service
reserve fund amounted to $9,182,488 and $8,822,394, respectively.

e Restricted Cash and Investments - Operating and Maintenance - This fund is restricted to
pay the cost of extraordinary repairs to and maintenance of the system. At December 31,
2018 and 2017, the total amount restricted for operating and maintenance amounted to
$5,228,792 and $6,722,932, respectively.

e Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures
A framework has been established for measuring fair value. That framework provides a fair
value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value.
The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable
inputs (Level 3 measurements). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are described
below:

e Level Il - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for
identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the Board has the ability
to access.

18
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(d) Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net
Position, Continued
e Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology include:

¢ Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets;
¢ Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets;
¢ Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the assets or liabilities; and

¢ Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data
by correlation or other means.

e Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the
fair value measurement.

An asset’s or liability’s fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is
based on the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement.
Valuation techniques used need to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize
the use of unobservable inputs. There have been no changes in the methodologies used at
December 31, 2018.

The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at
fair value.

Mutual funds and equities - Valued at the closing price reported on the active market
in which the individual securities are traded.

Corporate and government bonds - Valued at the closing price reported on the active
markets in which the individual securities are traded.

The Board assess the levels of the investments at each measurement date, and transfers
between levels are recognized on the actual date of the event or change in circumstances
that caused the transfer in accordance with its accounting policy regarding the recognition
of transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy.

e Accounts Receivable - All receivables are reported at their gross values and, where
appropriate, are reduced by the estimated portion that is expected to be uncollectible. The
Board has adopted a policy of recognizing water and sewer revenues in the period in which
the services are provided. Billings to customers generally consist of revenues earned from
the prior three months for quarterly billed customers, and revenues earned from the prior
month for monthly billed customers.

The collection of current water and sewer charges is performed by the Board. The City,
acting as collecting agent for the Board, collects delinquent water and sewer charges.
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(d) Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net
Position, Continued
e Prepaid Expenses - Prepaid expenses reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods
and are recorded as prepaid items in the financial statements.

e Capital Assets - Capital assets acquired by the Board as part of the September 25, 2003
acquisition agreement with the City were reported at fair value on the acquisition date.
Capital assets acquired by the Board subsequent to the initial acquisition are stated at cost
including interest capitalized during construction, where applicable. Costs include
material, direct labor and other items such as supervision, payroll taxes, employee
benefits, transportation, and certain preliminary legal, engineering and survey costs. The
costs of repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred. Contributed fixed assets are
recorded at fair market value at the date received.

Construction projects are conducted on a continuing basis in order to maintain or enhance
the systems. Preliminary legal, engineering and survey costs include studies conducted
prior to the actual construction period that directly result in specific construction projects.
While capital projects are in process, all associated costs are recorded as construction in
progress. Once completed, all costs, including legal, engineering, survey and construction
costs, are reclassified to their respective asset categories and depreciated according to their
useful lives.

Depreciation has been recorded using the straight-line method of depreciation. The
estimated useful lives of the Board’s major classes of depreciable assets are based on the
utility of the respective assets. The estimated useful lives of depreciable fixed assets are

as follows:
Assets Years
Land N/A
Plant and transmission assets 25-50
Machinery and equipment 5-20

e (Compensated Absences - Board employees are granted vacation and sick leave and earn
compensatory absences in varying amounts. In the event of termination or upon
retirement, all union employees are entitled to payment for accumulated vacation and
compensatory time limited to amounts defined under their respective collectively
bargained agreements. All non-union employees are entitled to similar benefits as defined
by their respective contracts with the Board.

Payments of vacation and sick leave and compensatory time are dependent upon many
factors; therefore, the timing of future payments is not readily determinable. However,
management believes that sufficient resources will be available for the payments of
vacation leave and compensatory time when such payments become due.
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(d) Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net
Position, Continued
e During the year ended December 31, 2018, the Board adopted provisions of GASB
Statement No. 75 - “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits
Other Than Pensions.” The primary objective of this Statement is to improve accounting
and financial reporting by state and local governments for postemployment benefits other
than pensions (other postemployment benefits or OPEB). See note 7 and note 14 of the
financial statements for the impact of the implementation on the financial statements.

In addition to providing pension benefits, the Board provides postemployment health
insurance coverage and survivor benefits to retired employees and their survivors in
accordance with the provisions of various employment contracts in effect at the time of
retirement. Substantially all of the Board’s employees may become eligible for these
benefits if they reach normal retirement age while working for the Board. Health care
benefits are provided through the Board’s self-insurance plan. The Board pays 100% of
the cost for retiree’s health care insurance, excluding co-pays which are the sole
responsibility of the retirees. Survivor beneficiaries reimburse the Board monthly for
100% of the calculated premiums. The Board recognizes the cost of providing health
insurance by recording its share of insurance premiums as an expenditure.

e Bond and Note Discounts/Premiums - Discounts and premiums are presented as
components of bonds or notes payable. The discounts/premiums are amortized over the
life of the bonds and notes on a method that approximates the effective interest method.

e Long-term Obligations - Long-term debt obligations are reported as liabilities in the
accompanying Statements of Net Position.

e Retirement Plan - The Board provides retirement benefits for substantially all of its
regular, full-time employees through contributions to the New York State Employees’ and
Local Employees’ Retirement System (ERS). The ERS provides various plans and
options, some of which require employee contributions, as described in note 8.

e Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources - Deferred outflows
of resources represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period and
so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The
Board has two items that qualify for reporting in this category. The first item is related to
pensions reported in the Statement of Net Position. This represents the effect of the net
change in the Board’s proportion of the collective net pension liability and difference
during the measurement period between the Board’s contributions and its proportionate
share of total contributions to the pension system not included in pension expense. The
second item is the Board contributions to the pension systems subsequent to the
measurement date.
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(d) Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net
Position, Continued
Deferred inflows of resources represents an acquisition of net position that applies to
future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until
that time. The Board has two items that qualify for reporting in this category. The first is
related to pensions reported in the Statement of Net Position. This represents the effect of
the net change in the Board’s proportion of the collective net pension liability and
difference during the measurement periods between the Board’s contributions and its
proportion share of total contributions to the pension systems not included in the pension
expense. The second item is the deferred gain the Board incurred on its debt refunding
transaction.

(e) Use of Estimates
The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

(f) Income Taxes
The Board is a public benefit corporation of the State of New York. As such, income earned
in the exercise of its essential government functions is exempt from State and Federal
income taxes.

(g) Subsequent Events
The Board has evaluated subsequent events through the date of the report which is the date
the financial statements were available to be issued.

(2) Cash and Equivalents and Investments

The Board’s investment policies are governed by State statute. Board monies must be deposited
in Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) insured commercial banks or trust
companies located within the State. The Board is authorized to use demand accounts and
certificates of deposit. Permissible investments include obligations of the U.S. Treasury and
U.S. agencies, repurchase agreements, and obligations of the State or its localities.

Collateral is required for demand deposits and certificates of deposit in an amount equal to or
greater than the amount of all deposits not covered by FDIC insurance coverage. Obligations
that may be pledged as collateral are outlined in Chapter 623 of the laws of the State.
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The Board’s cash and equivalents at December 31, 2018 and 2017 include the following captions

on the statements of net position:

2018 2017

Cash and equivalents $21,391,578 23,422,740
Restricted cash and investments:
Capital projects 12,672,427 13,617,444
Debt service fund 4,795,231 3,799,654
Debt service reserve fund 9,182,488 8,822,394
Operating and maintenance 5,228,792 6,722,932
Total $ 53,270,516 56,385,164
Cash and equivalents are comprised of the following:

2018 2017
Petty cash (uncollateralized) $ 100 100
Deposits 25,248,079 47,461,390
Investments 28,022,337 8,923,674
Total $ 53,270,516 56,385,164

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits - In the case of deposits, this is the risk that, in the event of a
bank failure, the Board’s deposits may not be returned to it. As noted above, by State statute,
all deposits in excess of FDIC insurance coverage must be collateralized. As of December
31, 2018 and 2017, all uninsured bank deposits were fully collateralized with securities held
by the pledging financial institution’s trust department or agent in the Board’s name.

Custodial Credit Risk - Investments - For investments, this is the risk that, in the event of the
failure of the counterparty, the Board will not be able to recover the value of its investments
that are in the possession of an outside party. At December 31, 2018 and 2017, all of the
Board’s restricted cash in the form of investments was registered in the Board’s name and was
invested in U.S. Government backed securities.

The Board’s investments at December 31, 2018, consist of the following:

Investments Maturity Fair Value
U.S. Treasuries Notes 1/31/19 - 11/1/41 $ 11,603,121
Federal Home Mortgage Corp. 1/14/19 - 5/28/20 12,931,227
Certificates of Deposit 4/30/18 - 12/2/20 3,487,989
Total investments $ 28,022,337

These investments are classified as Level 1.

Maturity Schedule
Less than one year $ 18,908,759
More than one year 9.113.578

$ 28,022,337
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The Board’s investments at December 31, 2017, consist of the following:

Investments Maturity Fair Value
U.S. Treasuries 3/1/18 - 11/1/41 $ 1,229,466
Federal Home Mortgage Corp. 1/16/18 - 2/1/18 7,415,018
Federal Farm Credit Bank 3/20/18 279.190
Total investments $ 8.923.674

These investments are classified as Level 1.

Maturity Schedule

Less than one year $ 8,024,002
More than one year 899.672
$ 8923674

Concentration Credit Risk - For investments, this is the risk of loss attributable to the quantity of
the government’s investment in a single issuer. Investments in single issuers that equal or
exceed 5% of total investments have a reportable concentration of credit risk. At December
31, 2018, the Board held 46%, 42% and 12% of its investment balance in Federal Home
Mortgage Corp., U.S. Treasury Notes, and Certificates of Deposit, respectively.

(3) Receivables

Major revenues accrued by the Board at December 31, 2018 and 2017 include the following:

(a) Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable primarily represents amounts due from customers for current and
delinquent water and wastewater services provided, including penalties, unpaid bill
charges, collection fees and shut-off charges.

Customers are billed either on a monthly or quarterly basis depending on the type of user
(industrial or residential), and the level of water and sewer usage. Customers may make
payments without penalty on current charges up until 20 days after receiving their bill.
Any unpaid balances remaining after these 20 days are subject to a penalty of 6%, and
those customers receive an unpaid bill notice. If balances still remain unpaid after 30
additional days, final unpaid notices are mailed. The customers are then given 10 days to
remit payment, after which the property is tagged, and shut-off procedures begin.

During the first week of December of every year, unpaid balances are transferred to the City
tax roll for collections through the subsequent year’s tax levy or in-rem property sales.
Any amounts relating to unpaid water and wastewater balances collected by the City
through these means are delivered to the Board.
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(a) Accounts Receivable, Continued
As of December 31, 2018, $1,307,973 was included in allowance for uncollectible accounts
to account for receivable balances that may not be collected. As of December 31, 2017,
$1,278,723 was included in allowance for uncollectible accounts to account for receivable
balances that may not be collected.

(b) Due from Other Governments
Due from other governments represents amounts due from the City for the tax transfer.
Amounts accrued at December 31, 2018 and 2017 consist of $1,250,223 and $1,340,184,
respectively.

The tax transfer represents uncollected water and sewer charges that have been turned over to
the City for collection in conjunction with the City’s property tax levy. The City remits
these charges to the Board each January and July for collections it receives for the previous
six-month period. This amount includes collected but not yet remitted charges at year-
end. Charges from all previous years’” water and sewer operations transferred to the City
that are not collected totaled $6,286,360 and $6,115,063 at December 31, 2018 and 2017,
respectively. Management has recorded an allowance for uncollectible accounts with
respect to these balances of $5,036,137 and $4,774,879 at December 31, 2018 and 2017,
respectively.

(4) Capital Assets

The Board’s capital assets activity for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 is
summarized as follows:

Balance Balance
1/1/2018 Increases Decreases 12/31/2018

Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land $ 463,713 - - 463,713
Construction in progress 6,991.440 7.483.243 (11,290.530) 3.184.153
Total capital assets not
being depreciated 7.455.153 7.483.243  (11.290.530) 3.647.866
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Plant and transmission costs:
Water system 87,610,212 2,102,630 - 89,712,842
Wastewater system 82,549,377 7,430,034 - 89,979,411
Machinery and equipment 8,321,180 1,757,866 - 10,079,046
Total capital assets
being depreciated 178,480,769 11,290,530 - 189,771,299
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Less accumulated depreciation:
Plant and transmission costs:
Water system
Wastewater system
Machinery and equipment

Total accumulated
depreciation

Total being depreciated, net

Capital assets, net

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress

Total capital assets not
being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Plant and transmission costs:
Water system
Wastewater system
Machinery and equipment

Total capital assets
being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation:
Plant and transmission costs:
Water system
Wastewater system
Machinery and equipment

Total accumulated
depreciation

Total being depreciated, net

Capital assets, net
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Balance Balance
1/1/2018 Increases Decreases 12/31/2018
$ (39,897,793) (2,939,614) - (42,837,407)
(22,375,407) (2,781,461) - (25,156,868)
(4.236,739) (731.427) - (4.968.166)
(66,509.939) (6.452.502) - (72.962.441)
111.970.830 4.838.028 - 116.,808.858
$ 119425983 12,321,271 (11,290,530) 120.456,724

Balance Balance
1/1/2017 Increases Decreases 12/31/2017
463,713 - - 463,713
7.466.615 4,045,931 (4.521.106) 6.991.440
7.930.328 4,045,931 (4,521.106) 7.455.153
87,488,822 121,390 - 87,610,212
78,730,158 3,819,219 - 82,549,377
7.650.108 671.072 - 8.321.180
173.869.088 4.611.681 - 178.480.769
(37,006,083) (2,891,710) - (39,897,793)
(19,764,275) (2,611,132) - (22,375,407)
(3.628.375) (608.364) - (4,236.739)
(60,398.733) (6,111.206) - (66.509.939)
113,470,355  (1,499.525) - 111,970,830
$ 121,400,683 2,546,406 (4.521,106) 119,425,983
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(5) Bond Indebtedness

The Authority issues debt to provide for the acquisition of the water and sewer systems and for
the initial funding of operating and maintenance and debt reserves.

The proceeds of Series 2012B amounted to $6,607,122 - Clean Water issue were used to payoff
the EFC Note used to fund North Gorge Interceptor Capacity Restoration Project.

In 2013, the Board issued $74,240,000 in general obligation bonds with an average interest rate
of 4.72% and received an additional premium of $142,002. The bonds were used for an
advanced refunding of $63,535,000 of 2003 Bonds with an average interest rate of 3.79%.
The net proceeds of approximately $64 million were deposited in a trust with an agent to
provide for future debt service payments on the bonds. As a result, the bonds are considered
defeased and the liability for those bonds has been removed from the Board’s financial
statements. The economic gain on the transaction (the difference between the present values
of the debt service payments on the old and new debt) is approximately $1.7 million.

During 2014 net proceeds of the Series B bonds were used to entirely refund the Series 2004
Serial Bonds of $4,095,000, specifically reducing the interest to be paid by approximately
$610,000.

During 2015, net proceeds of the Series D bonds were used to entirely refund the Series 2005A&B
Serial Bonds of $4,380,000 specifically reducing the interest to be paid by approximately
$550,000. As aresult, the bonds are considered defeased and the liability for these bonds has
been removed from the Board’s financial statements. The economic gain on the transaction
(the difference between the present values of the debt service payments on the old and new
debt) is approximately $450,000.

During 2016, net proceeds of the Series A bonds were used to entirely refund the Series 2005
bonds of $23,115,000 specifically reducing the interest to be paid by approximately
$4,100,000. As a result, the bonds are considered defeased and the liability for these bonds
has been removed from the Board financial statements. The economic gain on the transaction
(the difference between the present values of the debt service payments on the old and new
debt) is approximately $4.1 million. The accounting gain on this refunding was originally
$1,097,923 which will be amortized through 2034. The unamortized gain on refunding
amounted to $970,849 and $1,031,844 at December 31, 2018 and 207, respectively

Serial bond activity for the year ended December 31, 2018 is presented on the following page:
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Serial Bond Activity:

Niagara Falls Public Water Authority Bonds:

Series 2013 A Bonds
Series 2013B Bonds
Series 2016A Bonds

New York State Environmental Facilities
Corporation Water Revolving Funds
Revenue Bonds:

Series 2013B - Clean Water

Series 2013B - Drinking Water
Series 2013B - Drinking Water
Series 2013B - Drinking Water
Series 2015D - Drinking Water
Series 2014B - Drinking Water
Series 2012B - Clean Water

Totals

Reconciliation to statements of net position:
Principal outstanding
Unamortized premium on bonds

Current portion of bonds payable
Noncurrent portion of bonds payable

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued
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Principal Principal
Year of Year of Interest Original Outstanding Outstanding
Issue Maturity Rate % Amount 1/1/2018 Paid 12/31/2018
2013 2034 3.0-5.0 § 36,060,000 35,200,000 310,000 34,890,000
2013 2024 4.309 8,415,000 5,460,000 825,000 4,635,000
2016 2034 3.13-5.0 20,130,000 20,130,000 - 20,130,000
2013 2033 3.88-5.05 14,030,000 11,865,000 575,000 11,290,000
2013 2023  4.75-4.91 5,580,000 5,580,000 - 5,580,000
2013 2019 5.14-5.59 6,770,000 2,240,000 1,240,000 1,000,000
2013 2019 5.14-5.59 3,385,000 1,120,000 620,000 500,000
2015 2034 3.81-4.57 4,380,000 4,055,000 - 4,055,000
2014 2021 5.40 4,095,000 4,095,000 175,000 3,920,000
2012 2041 0.26-4.27 6,607,122 5,550,000 170,000 5,380,000
$109,452,122 95,295,000 3,915,000 91,380,000
$ 95,295,000 91,380,000
2,195,003 2,065,249
§ 97,490,003 93,445,249
3,915,000 4,055,000
93,575,003 89,390,249
$ 97,490,003 93,445,249
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The annual maturities of long-term debt as of December 31, 2018 are as follows:

Premium

Year on bonds Serial bonds Total
2019 $ 129,754 4,055,000 4,184,754
2020 129,754 4,135,000 4,264,754
2021 129,754 4,280,000 4,409,754
2022 129,754 4,430,000 4,559,754
2023 129,754 4,575,000 4,704,754
2024-2028 648,770 27,215,000 27,863,770
2029-2033 648,770 33,140,000 33,788,770
2034-2038 118,939 8,305,000 8,423,939
2039-2041 - 1,245,000 1,245,000
$2,065,249 91,380,000 93,445,249

Annual interest payments due on serial bonds as of December 31, 2018 are as follows:

2019 $ 3,132,360
2020 3,228,716
2021 2,741,537
2022 2,939,642
2023 2,527,988
2024-2028 11,377,764
2029-2033 5,490,759
2034-2038 507,131
2039-2041 100.474
Total $ 32,046,371

Financing Agreement Covenants

The financing agreement between the Authority and the Board relating to all current and future
bonding contain various covenants pertaining to the use and maintenance of the trust funds
established from the proceeds of each bonding. At December 31, 2018, management believes
the Board was in compliance with the following loan covenants:

The Board is required to establish and collect rates, fees and charges sufficient in each fiscal year
at least equal to the sum of:

(1) 115% of the estimated aggregate debt service and projected debt service payable in such
fiscal year;

(2) 100% of Board operating expenses and Authority expenses payable in such fiscal year;
and

(3) 100% of the amount necessary to pay the required deposits for such fiscal year.
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The Board shall review the adequacy of fees, rates and charges at least semi-annually.

The Board shall enforce the payment of any and all amounts owed for the use of the systems.

The Board shall (unless required by law) not furnish or supply, or cause to be furnished or
supplied, any product, use or service of the systems, free of charge.

The debt service fund balance, beginning with the first day of each calendar month, shall receive
all revenues until the balance in the debt service fund equals the minimum monthly balance.
The minimum monthly balance is defined as an amount equal to the sum of the aggregate
amounts of debt service that have accrued with respect to all series of bonds, calculating the
debt service that has accrued as an amount equal to the sum of:

(1) The interest on the bonds that has accrued and is unpaid and that will have accrued by the
end of the then calendar month; and

(2) The portion of the next due principal installment for the bonds that would have accrued
(as deemed to accrue in the manner interest accrues) by the end of the then calendar month.

(6) Compensated Absences

As explained in note 1, the Board reports the value of compensated absences as a liability. The
annual budgets of the operating funds provide funding for these benefits as they become
payable. The payment of compensated absences is dependent on many factors; therefore, the
timing of future payments is not readily determinable. The current portion payable is
estimated at 5% of the total compensated absences liability. The current portion of the liability
amounted to $35,471 and $35,084 at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. The long-
term portion of the liability amounted to $673,940 and $666,596 at December 31, 2018 and
2017, respectively.

(7) Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB)

Plan Description and Benefits

Plan Description - The Board provides continuation of medical, prescription drug, dental, vision
and chiropractic coverage for employees who retire and are at least age 50 and have an age,
plus years of service, of at least 70. All retirees and future retirees hired prior to June 1, 2006
have no contribution requirements for both individual and family coverage. All future retires
hired after June 1, 2006 are required to pay 20% of the individual and family premiums. The
Board currently pays for postemployment health care benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis.
These financial statements assume that pay-as-you-go funding will continue.
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The Board provides certain health care benefits for retired employees. Substantially all of the
employees may become eligible for these benefits if they reach the normal retirement age and
have the required minimum age plus years of service working for the Board. At December
31, 2018 and 2017, the current portion of the postemployment benefits liability was
$2,581,965 and $1,994,572, respectively. The noncurrent portion of the postemployment
benefits liability amounted to $85,027,095 and $25,399,422 at December 31, 2018 and 2017,
respectively.

Employees covered by benefit terms
At December 31, 2018, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

Current retirees 97
Active employees 88
185

Total OPEB Liability
The Board’s total OPEB liability of $87,609,060 was measured as of December 31, 2018 and was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of January 1, 2018.

Actuarial Assumptions and Other Inputs

The total OPEB liability in the January 1, 2018 actuarial valuation was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions and other inputs, applied to all periods included in the
measurement, unless otherwise specified:

Salary increases 3.0%

Discount rate 3.8%

Inflation 2.60%

Healthcare cost trend rates 7.0% for 2018, decreasing to an ultimate rate of

5.0% for 2024
Mortality rates were based on the Society of Actuaries Mortality Improvement Scale MP-2018.
Changes in the Total OPEB Liability

Original OPEB liability as of January 1, 2018 (under GASB 45) $ 27,393,994
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle (required by GASB 75) 58.986.686
Total OPEB liability as of January 1, 2018 86,380,680
Changes for the year:
Service cost 540,656
Interest 3,234,085
Benefit payments (2,546.361)
Total changes 1,228,380
Total OPEB liability as of December 31, 2018 $ 87,609,060
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Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the Board, as well as what the Board’s total
OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point
lower (2.8%) or 1-percentage-point higher (4.8%) than the current discount rate:

Current
1% Discount 1%
Decrease Rate Increase
(2.8%) (3.8%) (4.8%)
Total OPEB liability $ 105.269.459 87.609.060 74.388.584

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare costs trend rates

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the Board, as well as what the Board’s total
OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point
lower or 1-percentage point higher than the current discount rate:

Current
1% Trend 1%
Decrease Rate Increase
Total OPEB liability $ 72723841 87.609.060 107,037,190
OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related

to OPEB

For the year ended December 31, 2018, the Board recognized OPEB expense of $3,774,741. At
December 31, 2018, the Board reported no deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to OPEB.

The Board implemented GASB Statement No. 75 - “Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions” effective for its fiscal year beginning January
1, 2018. With the implementation of GASB No. 75, the method of calculating and recording
the OPEB liability has changed significantly and therefore the Board has determined the
presentation of GASB No. 45 information for the prior year is not warranted.
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(8) Pension Plans

(a) Plan Descriptions and Benefits Provided

Employees’ Retirement System (ERS)

The Board participates in the New York State and Local Employees’ Retirement System
(ERS). This is a cost-sharing multiple-employer retirement system. The System provides
retirement benefits as well as death and disability benefits. The net position of the System
is held in the New York State Common Retirement Authority (the Authority), which was
established to hold all net assets and record changes in plan net position allocated to the
System. The Comptroller of the State of New York serves as the trustee of the Board and
is the administrative head of the System. System benefits are established under the
provision of the New York State Retirement and Social Security Law (RSSL). Once a
public employer elects to participate in the System, the election is irrevocable. The New
York State Constitution provides that pension membership is a contractual relationship
and plan benefits cannot be diminished or impaired. Benefits can be changed for future
members only by enactment of a State statute. The Board also participates in the Public
Employees; Group Life Insurance Plan (GLIP), which provides death benefits in the form
of life insurance. The System is included in the State’s financial report as a pension trust
fund. That report, including information with regard to benefits provided, may be found
at www.osc.state.ny.us/retire/publications/inex.php or obtained by writing to the New
York State and Local Retirement System, 110 State Street, Albany, New York 12244.

The System is noncontributory except for employees who joined after July 27, 1976, who
contribute 3 percent of their salary for the first ten years of membership, and employees
who joined on or after January 1, 2010 who generally contribute 3.0 to 3.5 percent of their
salary for their entire length of service. In addition, employee contribution rates under
ERS tier VI vary based on a sliding salary scale. The Comptroller annually certifies the
actuarially determined rates expressly used in computing the employers’ contributions
based on salaries paid during the Systems fiscal year ending March 31.

Contributions for the current year and two preceding years were equal to 100 percent of the
contributions required, and were as follows:

ERS
2018 $ 583,405
2017 659,383
2016 646,238
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(8) Pension Plans, Continued

(b) Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

At December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Board reported the following liability for its
proportionate share of the net pension liability for ERS. The net pension liability was
measured as of March 31, 2018 and 2017. The total pension liability used to calculate the

net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation. The Board’s proportionate
share of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the Board’s long-term share

of contributions to the System relative to the projected contributions of all participating
members, actuarially determined. This information was provided by ERS in reports
provided to the Board. At December 31, 2018, the Board’s proportion was 0.0147209%,
which was an increase of 0.0009733 from its proportion measured as of March 31, 2017.

Measurement date 3/31/2018 3/31/2017
Board’s proportionate share of the net pension liability $ 475,108 1,291,751

Board’s proportion of the Plan’s net
pension liability 0.0147209%  0.0137476%

For the year ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Board recognized pension expense of
$662,236 and $800,430 for ERS, respectively. At December 31, 2018 and 2017 the
Board’s reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related
to pensions from the following sources:

2018 2017
Deferred  Deferred Deferred  Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of  Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources Resources Resources

Differences between expected

and actual experience $ 169,456 140,032 32,370 196,160
Changes of assumptions 315,036 - 441,309 -
Net difference between projected

and actual earnings on pension

plan investments 690,057 1,362,104 258,015 -
Changes in proportion and

differences between the Board’s

contributions and proportionate

share of contributions 229,698 7,729 185,704 11,594
Board’s contributions subsequent

to the measurement date 417,473 - 497,712 -
Total $ 1,821,720 1,509,865 1,415,110 207,754

Board contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of
the net pension liability in the subsequent year. Other amounts reported as deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be
recognized in pension expense as follows:
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
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(8) Pension Plans, Continued

(b) Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions, Continued

Year ending ERS
2019 $ 189,560
2020 132,756
2021 (295,210)
2022 (132,724)

$ (105,618)

(c) Actuarial Assumptions
The total pension liability as of the measurement date was determined by using an actuarial
valuation as noted in the table below, with update procedures used to roll forward the total
pension liability to the measurement date. The actuarial valuations used the following
actuarial assumptions:

Significant actuarial assumptions used in the valuations were as follows:

Actuarial valuation date April 1, 2017
Measurement date March 31, 2018
Investment rate of return (net of investment

expense, including inflation) 7.0%
Salary increases 3.8%
Inflation rate 2.5%
Cost-of-living adjustments 1.3%

Annuitant mortality rates are based on April 1, 2010 - March 31, 2015 System’s experience
with adjustments for mortality improvements based on Society of Actuaries Scale MP-
2014.

The actuarial assumptions used in the April 1, 2017 valuation are based on the results of an
actuarial experience study for the period April 1, 2010 - March 31, 2015.

The long term rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building
block method in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected returns, net of investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major
asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long term expected rate of return
by weighting the expected future real rates of return by each the target asset allocation
percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of
the arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized as follows:
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(¢) Actuarial Assumptions, Continued

Measurement date March 31, 2018
Long-term
expected
real rate Target
of return* allocation
Asset type:
Domestic equity 4.55% 36.00%
International equity 6.35% 14.00%
Private equity 7.50% 10.00%
Real estate 5.55% 10.00%
Absolute return strategies 3.75% 2.00%
Opportunistic portfolio 5.68% 3.00%
Real assets 5.29% 3.00%
Bonds and mortgages 1.31% 17.00%
Cash (0.25%) 1.00%
Inflation - indexed bonds 1.25% 4.00%

* The real rate of return is net of the long-term inflation assumption of 2.50%.

(d) Discount Rate

The discount rate used to calculate the total pension liability was 7.0% in 2018 and 2017. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumes that contributions
from plan members will be made at the current contribution rates and that contributions
from employers will be made at statutorily required rates, actuarially determined. Based
upon those assumptions, the System’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available
to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore the long
term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of

projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

(e) Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to the Discount Rate

The following presents the Board’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated
using the discount rate of 7.0%, as well as what the Board’s proportionate share of the net
pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage
point lower (6.0%) or 1-percentage point higher (8.0%) than the current rate:

1% Current
Decrease  Assumption
(6.0%) (1.0%)
Board’s proportionate share of
the net pension asset (liability) $ (3.594,798)  (475.108)
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD

Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(8) Pension Plans, Continued

(f) Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position
The components of the current-year net pension liability of all participating employers as of
the respective measurement dates, were as follows:

(Dollars in Millions)
Measurement date 3/31/2018 3/31/2017
Employers’ total pension liability $(183,400) (177,400)
Fiduciary net position 180,173 168,004
Employers’ net pension liability $ _(3,227) (9.396)
Ratio of fiduciary net position to the
employers’ total pension liability 98.24% 94.70%

(g) Contributions to the Pension Plan
Employer contributions are paid annually based on the System’s fiscal year which ends on
March 31%. Retirement contributions as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 represent the
projected employer contribution for the period of April 1, 2018 through March 31, 2019
and April 1, 2017 through March 31, 2018, respectively based on paid ERS wages
multiplied by the employer’s contribution rate, by tier. This amount has been recorded as
deferred outflows of resources in the accompanying financial statements.

(9) Net Position

The Board’s financial statements utilize a net position presentation. Net position is categorized
as net investment in capital assets, restricted for debt service, restricted for capital projects
and unrestricted.

Net Investment in Capital Assets - This category groups all capital assets into one component of
net position. Accumulated depreciation and the outstanding balances of debt that are
attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of these assets reduce the balance
in this category.

The Board’s investment in capital assets, net of related debt is in a surplus position of $26,040,626
and $20,904,136 at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. The surplus results from the
amortization of the Board’s capital debt, as outstanding principal for the majority of Board’s
serial bonds is not paid until late into the life of the debt while depreciation occurs ratably
over the life of the assets.
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(9) Net Position, Continued

Restricted Net Position - This category represents external restrictions imposed by creditors,
grantors, contributors, or laws and regulations of other governments and restrictions imposed
by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Restricted for Capital Projects:

Amounts restricted for capital projects is $12,672,427 and $13,617,444 at December 31, 2018
and 2017, respectively. In 2007, the Board received $19,000,000 from the Power
Authority under a “Relicensing Settlement Agreement.” The Agreement provided for the
creation of a “Niagara Falls Water Board Capital Improvement Fund.” These funds are
restricted for future use related to capital improvements of the Board including but not
limited to any specific project including the Falls Street Tunnel project.

Restricted for Debt Service Fund:

Board restrictions at December 31, 2018 and 2017 of $4,795,231 and $3,799,654,
respectively, are for debt service.

Restricted for Debt Service Reserve Fund:

Amounts restricted for the debt service reserve fund is $9,182,488 and $8,822,394 at
December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. These funds are controlled by bond trustee.
The required minimum balance is the less of maximum future annual debt service
requirement or 125% of the average future annual debt service requirements for all
outstanding bonds. The required minimum balance was $6,707,955 and $7,179,698 at
December 31,2018 and 2017, respectively. This resulted in excess reserves of $2,474,533
and $1,642,696 at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

Restricted for Operations and Maintenance:

Amounts restricted for operations and maintenance is $5,228,792 and $6,722,932 at
December 2018 and 2017, respectively. These reserves may be used to pay the cost of
extraordinary repairs to and replacements of the system. Surplus amounts on deposit at
the end of the fiscal year may be used for any purpose determined by the Board to be
beneficial for the system unless the Authority notifies the Board that it does not concur
with such application of surplus and expenditures. At December 31,2018 and 2017, there
was excess reserves of $359,561 and $2,021,941, respectively. The required minimum
balance is 1/6™ of prior year operating expenses which equates to $4,869,231 and
$4,700,991 at December 2018 and 2017, respectively.

Unrestricted Net Position - This category represents net position of the Board not restricted for
any project or other purpose. Additions of $5,136,490 to net investment in capital assets and
decreases of $1,083,486 to net position decreased unrestricted net position by $4,053,004.
The total loss for the year of $680,955 also decreased unrestricted net position. Net position
at the beginning of the year decreased by $58,986,686 due to the implementation of GASB
Statement No. 75.
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(10) Labor Relations

The majority of the Board’s employees are represented by various unions under four collective
bargaining units agreements, with the balance governed by Board policies. Contracts for all
of the bargaining units covered a six year term which expired on December 31, 2010. The
Board has started negotiated new contracts with the bargaining units as of June 2017.

(11) Risk Management and Contingent Liabilities

Risk management and contingent liabilities at December 31, 2018 and 2017 are detailed as
follows:

(a) Insurance

The Board is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts; theft of, damage to and
destruction of assets; injuries to employees; and natural disasters, for which the Board
carries commercial insurance. There were no settlements that significantly exceeded
insurance coverage for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017.

(b) Litigation
The Board is involved in litigation arising in the ordinary course of its operations. The Board
believes that its ultimate liability, if any, in connection with these matters will not have a
material effect on its financial condition or results of operations.

(12) Significant Events

(a) Management Restructuring
In February 2017 the Board underwent significant management restructuring. As part of the
restructuring three Directors and general counsel to the Board were replaced.
Additionally, the Director of Financial Services resigned prior to December 31, 2016 and
was replaced in 2017.

(b) New York Office of the State Comptroller Audit
The New York Office of the State Comptroller (OSC) released an audit of the Water Board
for the period of January 1, 2013 through April 30, 2015. Issues noted by OSC were
addressed through the additions of schedule 1 and 2 on pages 42 - 43 and reserves analysis
noted in note 9.

(c) Environmental
As a result of alleged discharges from the waste water treatment plant during the Summer of
2017, the New York State Department of Environmental Conservation (NYSDEC) and
the Board entered into a Consent Order on December 19, 2017 (R9-20170906-129). This
Consent Order required the Board to pay a civil penalty in the amount of $50,000 and to
implement a schedule of enumerated actions over the following fifteen (15) months. The
Board is now in the process of implementing these actions under the supervision of the
NYSDEC.
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(13) Accounting Standards Issued But Not Yet Implemented

GASB Statement No. 83 - “Certain Asset Retirement Obligations.” This Statement, issued in
November 2016, addresses accounting and financial reporting for certain asset retirement
obligations (AROs). Governments that have legal obligations to perform certain future asset
retirement activities related tangible capital assets should recognize a liability based on the
guidance in this Statement. The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting
periods beginning after June 15, 2018, which is the fiscal year beginning January 1, 2019 for
the Board. This Statement is not expected to have a material effect on the financial statements
of the Board.

GASB Statement No. 84 - “Fiduciary Activities.” This Statement, issued in January 2017,
established criteria for identifying fiduciary activities of all state and local governments. The
focus of the criteria generally is on (1) whether a government is controlling assets of the
fiduciary activity and (2) the beneficiaries with whom a fiduciary relationship exists. This
Statement is effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018, which is the
fiscal year beginning January 1, 2019 for the Board. This Statement is not expected to have
a material effect on the financial statements of the Board.

GASB Statement No. 87 - “Leases.” This Statement, issued in June 2017, requires recognition of
certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as operating leases
and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment
provisions of the contract. It establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the
foundational principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. The
requirements of this Statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning
after December 15, 2019, which is the fiscal year beginning January 1, 2020 for the Board.
Management is in process of evaluating the potential impact due to the implementation of this
Statement on the financial statements of the Board.

GASB Statement No. 88 - “Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, Including Direct Borrowings
and Direct Placements.” This Statement, issued in April of 2018, requires that additional
essential information related to debt be disclosed in notes to financial statements, including
unused lines of credit; assets pledged as collateral for the debt; and terms specified in debt
agreements related to significant events of default with finance-related consequences,
significant termination events with finance-related consequences, and significant subjective
acceleration clauses. This Statement also requires that existing and additional information be
provided for direct borrowings and direct placements of debt separately from other debt. The
provisions of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2018,
which is the fiscal year beginning January 1, 2019 for the Board. Management is in the
process of evaluating the potential impact of this Statement on the financial statements of the
Board.
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GASB Statement No. 89 - “Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a Construction
Period.” This Statement, issued in June 2018, establishes accounting requirements for interest
cost incurred before the end of a construction period. Such interest cost includes all interest
that previously was accounted for in accordance with the requirements of paragraphs 5-22 of
Statement No. 62 - “Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained
in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements” which are superseded by this
Statement. The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning
after December 15, 2019, which is the fiscal year beginning January 1, 2020 for the Board.
Management is in the process of evaluating the potential impact due to the implementation of
this Statement on the financial statements of the Board.

GASB Statement No. 90 - “Majority Equity Interests - an amendment of GASB Statements No.
14 and No. 61.” This Statement, issued in August 2018, seeks to improve the consistency and
comparability of reporting a government’s majority equity interest in a legally separate
organization and to improve the relevance of financial statement information for certain
component units. It defines a majority equity interest and sets parameters as to whether a
majority equity interest is to be reported as an investment or component unit. The
requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December
15, 2018, which is the fiscal year beginning January 1, 2019 for the Board. Management is
in the process of evaluating the potential impact due to the implementation of this Statement
on the financial statements of the Board.

(14) Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle

For the year ended December 31, 2018, the Board implemented GASB Statement No. 75 -
“Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions.”
The implementation of this Statement resulted in the reporting of the entire actuarial accrued
liability for other postemployment benefits. The Board’s net position at December 31, 2017
has been restated as follows:

Net position at beginning of year, as previously stated $ 55,546,505
GASB Statement No. 75 implementation:
Beginning total OPEB liability (86,380,680)
Less: Net other postemployment benefits obligations
under GASB Statement No. 45 27.393.994
Net position at beginning of year, as restated § (3.440.181)
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Niagara Falls Water Authority (a Blended Component Unit)
Other Supplementary Information

Statements of Net Position
December 31, 2018 and 2017

Schedule 1

Assets 2018 2017

Current assets - cash and equivalents $ 133,829 78,959
Noncurrent assets - due from Water Board 94,676,932 98,787,551

Total assets 94,810,761 98,866,510

Liabilities

Current liabilities - bonds payable 4,055,000 3,915,000
Noncurrent liabilities - bonds payable 89,390,249 93,575,003
Risk management and contingent liabilities (note 11)

Total liabilities 93,445,249 97,490,003

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Gain on refunding 970,849 1,031,844
Net Position

Unrestricted $ 394,663 344,663
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Schedule 2
NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Niagara Falls Water Authority (a Blended Component Unit)
Other Supplementary Information
Statements of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017

2018 2017
Operating transfers in $ 50,000 -
Change in net position 50,000 -
Net position at beginning of year 344,663 344,663
Net position at end of year § 394,663 344,663
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Changes in the Board's
Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios
December 31, 2018

Total OPEB liability

Service cost $ 540,656
Interest 3,234,085
Benefit payments (2,546,361)
Net change in total OPEB liability 1,228,380
Total OPEB liability - beginning 86,380,680
Total OPEB liability- ending $ 87,609,060
Covered payroll $ 3,900,691
Total OPEB liability as a percentage of covered payroll 2,245.99%

Notes to schedule:

Changes of assumptions - Changes of assumptions and other inputs reflect the effects of
changes in the discount rate each period. The following are the discount rates used in each

2018 3.80%

This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years.
However, information is presented for those years that are available.
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Board's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
Years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017

NYSERS Pension Plan
2018 2017 2016 2015

Board's proportion of the net pension 0.0147209% 0.0137476%  0.0134405%  0.0141606%

liability
Board's proportionate share of the net

pension liability $ 475,108 1,291,751 2,157,242 478,381
Board's covered payroll $ 4,374,241 4,719,361 4,397,005 4,082,614
Board's proportionate share of the net

pension liability as a percentage of

its covered payroll 10.86% 27.37% 49.06% 11.72%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage

of the total pension liability 98.29% 94.70% 90.70% 97.95%

* This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirements to show information for 10 years. However,
information is presented for those years that are available.
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Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Employer Pension Contributions
Years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017

NYSERS Pension Plan
018 2017 2016 015 2014 2013

Contractually required contribution $ 583,405 659,383 646,238 725,071 864,054 900,289
Contributions in relation to the

contractually required contribution 583,405 659,383 646,238 725,071 864,054 900,289
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - - - - - -
Board's covered payroll $ 4,374,241 4,719,361 4,397,005 4,082,614 4,483,962  4,442.277
Contributions as a percentage of

covered payroll 13.34% 13.97% 14.70% 17.76% 19.27% 20.27%

* This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirements to show information for 10 years. However, information is
presented for those years that are available.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER
MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Board of Directors
Niagara Falls Water Board:

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the
Niagara Falls Water Board (the Board), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2018, and the
related notes to financial statements, which collectively comprise the Board’s basic financial
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated April 15, 2019.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Board’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Board’s internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Board’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the Board’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention
by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Board’s financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion
on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed one instance of noncompliance or other
matter that is required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards and which is described
in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses as item 2018-001.

The Board’s Response to Finding

The Board’s response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule
of findings and responses. The Board’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Board’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Board’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

EFPR Group, CPAs, PLLC

Williamsville, New York
April 15,2019
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Schedule of Findings and Responses
Year ended December 31, 2018

(2018-001) PARIS Filing

Condition - The Board did not file the independent audit report within 90 days after the end of the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2018 via the Public Authorities information System (PARIS).

Criteria - Pursuant to Section 2800 of Public Authorities Law, the Board is required to submit their
annual report via PARIS within 90 days after the end of each fiscal year.

Effect - The Authorities Budget Office has the authority to “publicly warn and censure authorities for
non-compliance” with this requirement and to recommend the “suspension or dismissal of officers or
directors, based on information that is, or is made, available to the public under law.”

Cause - The auditors could not complete their work within the required timeframe because the Board
was unable to obtain all information necessary for capital assets and other postemployment benefit
liability timely enough to allow filing by the statutory filing deadline.

Recommendation - We recommend that the Board submit the independent audit report to PARIS as
soon as possible.

Management’s Correction Action - The Board has approved the independent audit report and will file
with PARIS upon receipt of the final reports.
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Status of Prior Year Audit Findings
Year ended December 31, 2018

(2017-001) PARIS Filing

Condition - The Board did not file the independent audit report within 90 days after the end of the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2017 via the Public Authorities information System (PARIS).

Cause - The auditors could not complete their work within the required timeframe because the Board
was unable to obtain all information necessary for capital assets timely enough to allow filing by the
statutory filing deadline.

Status - The PARIS filing deadline was not met for the year ended December 31, 2017 due to the

timeliness of capital assets accounting was not completed to allow the independent auditors to
complete their work.

50



.
YEFPRGrROUP CPAS:

6390 Main Street, Suite 200
Williamsville, NY 14221

P 716.634.0700
TF 800.546.7556
F 716.634.0764
w EFPRgroup.com

REPORT TO THE BOARD

April 15,2019

The Board of Directors
Niagara Falls Water Board

Dear Board Members:

We have audited the financial statements of the Niagara Falls Water Board (the Board) as of
and for the year ended December 31, 2018, and have issued our report thereon dated April 15, 2019.
Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our responsibilities under
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and Government Auditing
Standards, as well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We
have communicated such information in our engagement letter. Professional standards also require
that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit.

Significant Accounting Policies

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The
significant accounting policies used by the Board are described in note 1 to the financial statements.
As described in note 1(d) to the financial statements, the Board adopted Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 75 - “Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions,” during the year ended December 31, 2018. We
noted no transactions entered into by the Board during the year for which there is a lack of
authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the
financial statements in the proper period.

Accounting Estimates

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by
management and are based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current
events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive
because of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future
events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates
affecting the financial statements were:

e (ollection of accounts receivable
e Useful lives used to depreciate capital assets

e FEstimated unbilled receivables
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The Board of Directors
Niagara Falls Water Board
Page 2

e Compensated absences

e Postemployment benefits

e Pension plans

For the year ended December 31, 2018, we evaluated the key factors and assumptions used

by management in determining accounting estimates and were reasonable in relation to the financial
statements taken as a whole.

Sensitive Disclosures

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their
significance to financial statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting the financial
statements were:

¢ Bond indebtedness (note 5)

e Postemployment benefits (note 7)

e Pension plans (note 8)

¢ Risk management and contingent liabilities (note 11)

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing
our audit.

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely adjustments identified
during the audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of
management. There were no material uncorrected misstatements detected as a result of our audit
procedures.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this report, professional standards define a disagreement with management
as a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction,
that could be significant to the financial statements or the auditors’ report. We are pleased to report
that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the
management representation letter.



The Board of Directors
Niagara Falls Water Board
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Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation
involves application of an accounting principle to the Board’s financial statements or a
determination of the type of auditors’ opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our
professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the
consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other
accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles
and auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the Board’s auditors.
However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our
responses were not a condition to our retention. During our annual audit of the Board, we noted a
compliance and other matter which is described in the schedule of findings and responses as item
(2018-001).

Other Information in Documents Containing Audited Financial Statements

With respect to the required supplementary information accompanying the financial
statements, we made certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods
of preparing the information to determine that the information complies with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, the method of preparing it has not changed from
the prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the
financial statements. We compared and reconciled the required supplementary information to the
underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements
themselves.

This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Directors and management of
the Niagara Falls Water Board and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other
than these specified parties.

We appreciate the opportunity to serve as your auditors. Please contact us at your
convenience if you would like to meet with us to discuss our findings in further detail or to review

any other questions that you might have.

Very truly yours,

EFPR (rowp, CPAs, PLLC

EFPR GROUP, CPAs, PLLC
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April 15,2019

CONFIDENTIAL

The Board of Directors
Niagara Falls Water Board

Dear Board Members:

We have completed our audit of the financial statements of the Niagara Falls Water Board
(the Board) for the year ended December 31, 2018. Considering the test character of our audit, you
will appreciate that reliance must be placed on adequate methods of internal control as your

principal safeguard against irregularities which a test examination may not disclose.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors,
management and others within the Board.

We now present for your consideration our comments and recommendations based upon
observations made during out audit.

Disaster Recovery Plan

During our audit, we noted that there was no disaster recovery plan to provide a
comprehensive method for the restoration of operations or an alternate processing location if
needed.

The lack of a comprehensive plan and a more frequent backup of the Board’s data could
likely result in lost information and inefficiencies in restoring Board operations in the event of a
disaster. We recommended that the Board review its backup process to minimize the potential loss
of information and develop a comprehensive plan for restoration of Board information systems in
the event of a disaster.

Previous Recommendations

We reviewed the disposition of recommendations included in our letter dated April 23,
2018. The following is a summary of the action taken by the Board with regard to our
recommendations.
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Monthly Financial Close - During the course of the 2017 audit, it was noted that internal financial
reports were not prepared for the Board on a monthly basis. Significant adjustments were made at
year-end by management that were not reflected in internally prepared financial reports throughout
the year. In 2018, monthly budget to actual and uses were prepared for the Board meetings. These
included month end journal entries to properly reflect financial activity. This comment is consider
cleared.

Plant Fund General Ledger - The Board does not maintain adequate accounting records for the plant
fund. No general ledger or supporting cash receipts or cash disbursement journals were maintained.
In order to properly account for transactions and prepare accurate financial statements, we
recommended that the Board maintain a general ledger and cash receipts and cash disbursement
journals for the plant fund similar to how the other funds are maintained. Management will
continue to develop these procedures.

We take this opportunity to thank the staff of the Niagara Falls Water Board for the courtesy
and cooperation extended to us during the audit. If you have any questions regarding the foregoing
comments or wish any assistance in their implementation, please contact us at your convenience.

Very truly yours,

EFPR Growp, CPAs, PLLC

EFPR GROUP, CPAs, PLLC
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH
SECTION 201.3 of TITLE TWO OF THE OFFICIAL COMPILATION OF
CODES. RULES AND REGULATIONS OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK

To the Board of Directors
Niagara Falls Water Board
Niagara Falls, New York

We have examined Niagara Falls Water Board’s (the Board) compliance with the requirements of
Section 201.3 of Title Two of the Official Compilation of Codes, Rules and Regulations of the State
of New York (Section 201.3) during the year ended December 31, 2018. Management is responsible
for the Board’s compliance with those requirements. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
the Board’s compliance based on our examination.

Our examination was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and standards applicable to attestation engagements
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the examination to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the Board complied, in all material respects, with the specified requirements referenced
above. An examination involves performing procedures to obtain evidence about whether the Board
complied with the specified requirements referenced above. The nature, timing, and extent of the
procedures selected depend on our judgment, including an assessment of the risks of material
noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error. We believe that the evidence we obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our examination does not provide a
legal determination on the Board’s compliance with Section 201.3.

In our opinion, the Board complied, in all material respects, with the requirements of Section 201.3
for the year ended December 31, 2018.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have issued our report dated April 15, 2019,
in which we are required to report all deficiencies that are considered to be significant deficiencies or
material weaknesses in internal control; fraud and noncompliance with provisions of laws and
regulations that have a material effect on the Board’s compliance with Section 201.3 and any other
instances that warrant the attention of those charged with governance; noncompliance with provisions
of contracts or grant agreements, and abuse that has a material effect on the subject matter. We are
also required to obtain and report the views of responsible officials concerning the findings,
conclusions, and recommendations, as well as any planned corrective actions. We performed our
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examination to express an opinion on whether the Board complied with the aforementioned
requirements and not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control
over compliance with those requirements or other matters; accordingly, we express no such opinions.
The results of our tests disclosed no matters that are required to be reported under Government
Auditing Standards.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board’s management, the Governing
Board, the New York State Office of the State Comptroller, and the New York State Authority Budget
Office and is not intended and should not be used by anyone other than those specified parties.

EFPR G}Lm;.,p, CPAs, PLLC.

Williamsville, New York
April 15,2019



NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Annual Investment Report
December 31, 2018

The following represents the annual investment report as required by Section 2925 of Public
Authorities Law:

Permitted Investments

Pursuant to GML Section 11, the Board is authorized to invest moneys not required for immediate
expenditures for terms not to exceed its projected cash flow needs in the following type of
investments:

e Obligations of the United States of America;

Obligations guaranteed by agencies of the United States of America where payment of

principal and interest are guaranteed by the United States of America;

Obligations of the State of New York;

Special time deposit accounts;

Certificates of deposits;

Obligations of public authorities, public housing authorities, urban renewal agencies and

industrial development agencies where the general State statutes governing such entities or

whose specific enabling legislation authorizes such investments;

e Obligations issued pursuant to Local Finance Law Section 24.00 or 25.00 (with approval of
State Comptroller) by any municipality, school district or district corporation other than City
of Niagara Falls; and

e Eligible Investments, as defined in the Indenture between Board, Manufacturers and Traders
Trust Company and Bank on Buffalo, as Trustees as amended from time to time.

Amendments Made to Investment Guidelines

None

Safeguards

Investments are held subject to an indenture between the Board, Manufacturers and Traders Trust
Company and Bank on Buffalo, as Trustees.

Eligible securities used for collateralizing deposits shall be held by a third party bank, trust company
or trust department of the bank subject to security and custodial agreements at the discretion of the
Board.

The security and custodial agreements shall provide that securities held by the bank or trust company
or agent of and the custodian for, the Board, will be kept separate and apart from the general assets
of the custodial bank trust company.



NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Annual Investment Report
December 31, 2018

The security and custodial agreement shall provide that eligible securities are being pledged to secure
the Board deposits and investments together with agreed upon interest, if any, and any costs or
expenses arising out of the collection of such deposits upon default.

Authorized Financial Institutions and Dealers

The Board shall maintain a list of financial institutions and dealers, approved for investment purposes
and establish appropriate limits to the amount of investments which can be made with each financial
institution or dealer. All financial institutions with which the local government conducts business
must be credit worthy. Banks shall provide their most recent Consolidated Report of Condition at the
request of the Board. Security dealers not affiliated with a bank shall be required to be classified as
reporting dealers affiliated with New York Federal Reserve Bank, as primary dealers. The Executive
Director or Chairman is responsible for evaluating the financial position and maintaining a listing of
proposed depositories, trading partners and custodians. Such listing shall be evaluated at least
annually.

Provisions for Reporting on Investments

The Board retains an independent accountant to provide an examination report of all investment
practices on an annual basis.

Fees Related to Investment Services

The Board paid $36,734 for fees related to investment services for the year ended December 31, 2018.
Investments

The Board’s investments at December 31, 2018, consist of the following:

Investments Maturity Fair Value
U.S. Treasuries 1/31/19 - 11/1/41 $ 11,603,121
Federal Home Mortgage Corp. 1/14/19 - 5/28/20 12,931,227
Certificates of deposit 4/30/18 - 12/2/20 3.487.989
Total investments $ 28,022,337

These investments are classified as Level 1.

Maturity Schedule

Less than one year $ 18,908,759
More than one year 9.113.578

$ 28,022,337
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED
ON AN EXAMINATION OF THE ANNUAL INVESTMENT REPORT PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors
Niagara Falls Water Board
Niagara Falls, New York

We have examined, in accordance with the attestation standards established by the American Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and standards applicable to attestation engagements contained in
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the annual
investment report of the Niagara Falls Water Board (the Board), as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2018, and have issued our report thereon dated April 15, 2019.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our examination of the annual investment report, we considered the
Board’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the examination
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the
annual investment report, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Board’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Board’s internal control.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Board’s annual investment report is free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of annual investment report amounts. However, providing an
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our examination, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.
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Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Board’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an examination performed
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Board’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

EFPR G)um,p, CPAs, PLLC.

Williamsville, New York
April 15,2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Board of Directors
Niagara Falls Water Board:

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Niagara Falls Water Board (the
Board) as of and for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, and the related notes to financial
statements, which collectively comprise the Board’s basic financial statements as listed in the table
of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the Board’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Board’s internal control. Accordingly, we express
no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the Niagara Falls Water Board, as of December 31, 2017 and 2016,
and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the
years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis on pages 4 through 10, and the required supplementary
information as listed in the table of contents on pages 45 to 47 be presented to supplement the basic
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part
of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an
opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Supplementary Information

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Niagara Falls Water Board’s basic financial statements. The
accompanying other supplementary information as listed in the table of contents is presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements.

Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our
opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial
statements as a whole.



Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April 23,
2018, on our consideration of the Board’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion
on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Board’s
internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

EFPR Group, CPAs, PLLC

Williamsville, New York
April 23,2018



NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2017 and 2016

As management of the Niagara Falls Water Board (the Board), we offer readers of the Board’s
financial statements this narrative and analysis of the financial activities of the Board for the years
ended December 31, 2017 and 2016.

Following this Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) are the financial statements of the
Board together with the notes thereto. Please read the MD&A in conjunction with the Board’s
financial statements and the accompanying notes in order to obtain a full understanding of the
Board’s financial position and results of operations.

The Board was created by an Act of the State of New York, as more fully described in note 1 to the
financial statements, and commenced operations on September 25, 2003. In accordance with an
agreement with the City of Niagara Falls, New York (the City) the Board received all assets,
liabilities and operating activities (including all personnel) of the City’s former Water and Sewer
Funds. In return, the Board issued debt, which was used to defease outstanding City bonded debt
relating to its Water and Sewer Funds.

Financial Highlights

e The assets and deferred outflows of the Board exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows
by $55,546,505 and $57,593,867 (net position) at December 31, 2017 and 2016,
respectively. At December 31, 2017 and 2016, $1,679,945 and $481,805 (unrestricted net
position), respectively, may be used to meet the Board’s ongoing obligations.

e The Board’s operating income for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 was
$937,446 and $2,174,422, respectively.

e The Board’s total bond indebtedness decreased by $3,909,753 during the current fiscal year,
as a result of principal payments made of $3,780,000 and premium amortization of
$129,753.

e The Board reflected a liability for postemployment benefits of $27,393,994 and $24,142,395
at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Board’s basic financial
statements which include the financial activities of the Board, and its blended component unit, the
Niagara Falls Public Water Authority (the Authority). The reasons for blending the financial
activities are explained in note 1 to the financial statements. An overview of the responsibilities of
the Board and the Authority is presented as follows.

Board Authority
* Owns the System * Issues debt
*  QOperates and maintains the System *  Provides proceeds of debt for
* Responsible for System improvements construction and improvements
*  Sets rates and collects revenues * Provides oversight regarding adequacy
* Pays debt service on bonds of revenues and System conditions



NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

The financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the Board’s
finances in a manner similar to a private-sector business, and are organized as follows:

The statement of net position presents information on all of the Board’s assets, deferred
outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference
between the four reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position
may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Board is improving
or deteriorating.

The statement of revenue, expenses and changes in net position presents information on how
the Board’s net position changed during the reporting period. All changes in net position are
reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the
timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for
some items that will result in cash flows for future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected water and
sewer rents, earned but unused vacation and postemployment benefits).

The statement of cash flows presents information depicting the Board’s cash flow activities
for the reporting period and the effect that these activities had on the Board’s cash and
equivalent balances.

The notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the financial statements. The notes to the financial
statements can be found on pages 16 through 42 of this report.

Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of the Board’s financial
position. Assets and deferred outflows exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows by $55,546,505 at
December 31, 2017, as compared to $57,953,867 at December 31, 2016, as presented as follows:

Niagara Falls Water Board’s Net Position

December 31, Increase/(Decrease)

2017 2016 Dollars Percent

Current assets $ 33,805,510 28,334,663 5,470,847 19.34%
Noncurrent assets 152,388,407 159,604,658 (7,216,251) (4.52%)
Total assets 186,193,917 187,939,321 (1,745,404) (0.93%)

Deferred outflows 1,415,110 2,485,058 (1,069,948) (43.06%)
Current liabilities 9,890,152 8,866,689 1,023,463 11.54%
Noncurrent liabilities 120,932,772 122,599,820 (1,667,048) (1.36%)
Total liabilities 130,822,924 131,466,509 _(643,585) (0.49%)

Deferred inflows 1,239,598 1,364,003 _(124,405) (9.12%)
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

December 31, Increase/(Decrease)

2017 2016 Dollars Percent

Net investment in capital assets $ 20,904,136 18,908,087 1,996,049 10.56%
Restricted 32,962,424 38,203,975 (5,241,551) (13.72%)
Unrestricted 1,679,945 481,805 1,198,140 248.68%

Total net position $ 55,546,505 57,593,867 (2,047,362) (3.55%)

The Board’s net investment in capital assets, is a surplus net position of $20,904,136 and
$18,908,087 at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. This results from the timing of the
amortization of the Board’s capital debt, as outstanding principal for most of the Board’s serial
bonds is not paid until late into the life of the debt, while depreciation occurs annually.

The Board’s unrestricted net position was $1,679,945 and $481,805 at December 31, 2017 and
2016, respectively. These assets are not limited as to how and for what they may be used. The
restricted debt service portion of the Board’s net position $3,799,654 and $22,906,531 at December
31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, represents funds that are set aside to be used towards debt service.
The restricted capital projects portion of the Board’s net position $13,617,444 and $15,297,444 at
December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, represents funds that are set aside primarily for the
reconstruction of the Falls Street Tunnel. The restricted debt reserve fund portion of the Board’s net
position $8,822,394 and $0 at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, represents funds for
future debt service payments. The restricted operating and maintenance reserve fund portion of the
Board’s net position was $6,722,932 at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, represents funds
to pay the cost of extraordinary repairs to and maintenance of the system.

The Board’s unrestricted net position is the remainder of total net position after taking net
investment in capital assets, restricted for capital projects, restricted for operations and maintenance
and restricted for debt related reserves into account. Unrestricted net position increased in 2017 by
$1,198,140 because of an increase in net investment in capital assets of $1,996,049, a decrease of
$5,241,551 in restricted and a $2,047,362 loss.

A comparison of current assets to current liabilities of the Board at December 31, 2017 and 2016
follows:

2017 2016
Current assets $ 33,805,510 28,334,663
Current liabilities 9,890,152 8,866,689
Ratio of current assets to current liabilities 3.42 3.20

The Board’s total net position decreased by $2,047,362 during the year ended December 31, 2017,
as compared to a decrease of $1,324,667 for the year ended December 31, 2016. Key elements of
the current year’s decrease in net position are as follows:
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

Niagara Falls Water Board’s Changes in Net Position

Increase/

2017 2016 (decrease)
Total operating revenue $ 30,152,829 30,380,370 (227,541)
Total operating expenses (29,215,383) (28,205,948) (1,009,435)
Operating income 937,446 2,174,422  (1,236,976)
Total non-operating revenue (expenses) (2,984,808) (3,499,089) 514,281
Change in net position $ (2,047,362) (1,324,667) (722,695)

The Board’s major sources of operating revenue are charges for water and sewer services which
comprise approximately 98% of total operating revenue. These revenues combined comprise an
approximate $0.4 million decrease in operating revenue in 2017. These revenues are dependent
upon rates charged for these services, with such rates being determined by the Board. Please see the
section entitled “Economic Factors and Next Year’s Rates” within this MD&A for a listing of the
rates charged during 2017 and approved rates for 2018.

The Board’s largest operating expense area relates to its employees. Together, personnel costs
(salaries) and employee benefits approximate 49% of all operating expenses. In 2017, these costs
totaled approximately $14.2 million as compared to $12.9 million in 2016, representing an
approximate 10% increase in this area. This increase is due to the increase in personnel costs and
related benefits.

Within the non-operating revenue (expenses) category, interest expense is by far the largest expense
item and represents the cost of carrying serial bonds totaling $95,295,000 and $99,075,000 at
December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

The following is a summary of the Board’s cash flow activities for the years ended December 31,
2017 and 2016:

2017 2016

Cash flows provided by (used in):

Operating activities $11,176,527 12,982,848

Capital and related financing activities (10,866,428) (14,898,155)

Investing activities 5,701,260 (1,679,773)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and equivalents 6,011,359  (3,595,080)
Cash and equivalents at beginning of year 17,411,381 21,006,461
Cash and equivalents at end of year $23422,740 17,411,381

The Board’s available cash and equivalents increased by $6,011,359 during the year ended
December 31, 2017, as compared to a decrease of $3,595,080 during the year ended December 31,
2016. Cash provided by operating activities reflected a positive balance of $11,176,527 for the year
ended December 31, 2017.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital Assets - The Board’s investment in capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) as of
December 31, 2017, amounted to $119,425,983, as compared to $121,400,683 at December 31,
2016. This includes land, plant and transmission (infrastructure type assets), machinery and
equipment, and construction in progress. The Board’s greatest investment in capital assets comes in
the form of infrastructure. Significant factors affecting capital assets during the reporting period
include:

e The Board recorded total additions to capital assets of $4,611,681.

e Construction in progress increased by $4,045,931, and decreased by $4,521,106 which
represents completed capital projects transferred to their applicable asset categories.

e The Board recorded total depreciation of $6,111,206 and $6,001,279 for the years ended
December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

A summary of capital assets, net of depreciation where applicable, is as follows:

2017 2016
Nondepreciable assets:
Land $ 463,713 463,713
Construction in progress 6,991,440 7,466,615
Depreciable assets:
Plant and transmission assets (water system) 47,712,419 50,482,739
Plant and transmission assets (wastewater system) 60,173,970 58,965,883
Machinery and equipment 4,084,441 4,021,733
Total $ 119,425,983 121,400,683

Construction in progress represents ongoing capital construction which will be transferred to the
appropriate asset category (and begin to be depreciated) upon completion.

More detailed information about the Board’s capital assets is presented in the notes to financial
statements.

Serial Bonds - At December 31, 2017, the Board had outstanding serial bonds totaling
$95,295,000, as compared to $99,075,000 at December 31, 2016. During the year ended December
31, 2017, the Board made principal payments of $3,780,000 on these bonds.

The Board used bond debt to finance the original purchase of the assets (net of liabilities and
including the water, sewer and storm water systems) from the City. In the future, the Board may
utilize bond debt issuances as a primary source of funds for construction, renovations and system
improvements.

Postemployment Benefits - Upon retirement, the Board’s employees are entitled to continuous
health insurance coverage. At December 31, 2017 and 2016, the liability recorded for these benefits
amounted to $27,393,994 and $24,142,395, respectively. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability is
$64,724,770 and $69,856,462 at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

8



NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD

Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

Compensated Absences - Upon separation, Board employees are entitled to payment of unused
sick and vacation time. The total liability relating to these payments at December 31, 2017 is
$701,680, compared to $798,111 at December 31, 2016. The timing of the payments relating to
compensated absences is dependent upon many factors, including the retirement or separation from
service, and is therefore difficult to predict; however, the Board estimates that $35,084 of such
liability is current at December 31, 2017.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Rates

As noted earlier, the Board’s largest sources of operating revenues are water and sewer rents from
customers. These revenues result from rates charged based on water usage by the individual
customer. Rates can be adjusted accordingly in order to help meet the expenses of the Board.
When considering rate changes, the Board utilizes the services of a rate consultant to help forecast
the magnitude and effects of potential changes. As required by law, the general public’s opinions
are also taken into consideration, through public hearings, when contemplating a change in rates
charged for services. Water rates charged for 2017 and approved rates to be charged for 2018 are as
follows:

2017 2018
Amount to be charged Amount to be charged
(per 100 cubic feet) (per 100 cubic feet)
Inside Outside Inside Outside
Amount Consumed city city city city
First 20,000 cubic feet per quarter 3.27 8.74 3.35 8.95
Next 60,000 cubic feet per quarter 2.83 7.63 2.90 7.81
Next 120,000 cubic feet per quarter 2.40 6.36 2.46 6.51
Over 200,000 cubic feet per quarter 1.99 5.35 2.04 5.48
Minimum charge for water consumption
per quarter 4251  113.62 43.53 116.35
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

In addition to the above schedule of rates for water consumed, a demand charge is assessed for each
user’s meter, as set forth below:
2017 Rate 2018 Rate

Size and Type (per quarter) (per quarter)
Under 1” Disc $ 370 3.70
1” Disc 25.00 25.00
2” Disc 40.00 40.00
2” Compound 40.00 40.00
3” Compound 50.00 50.00
4> Compound 100.00 100.00
6” Compound 220.00 220.00
8” Compound 250.00 250.00
10” Compound 275.00 275.00
12 Compound 400.00 400.00

In addition to charging for water consumption and services, the Board also charges users with
respect to sewer and wastewater services provided. All users have been divided into two “user
classes” - Commercial/Small Industrial/Residential Users (CSIRU) and Significant Industrial Users
(SIV).

Sewer rates for the CSIRU class are determined by the total metered water consumption in each
quarter. Rates charged for 2017 and rates to be charged during 2018 are as follows:

Amount Consumed 2017 2018
Minimum charge per quarter
(up to 1,300 cubic feet) $ 56.29 57.64
Additional usage in excess
of 1,300 cubic feet ($/cubic feet) 4.33 4.43

Sewer rates for the SIU class are determined each quarter based on the actual measured quantities
and composition of wastewater flow. Such rates are determined by the Board and are based upon
five representative 24-hour composite samples taken quarterly. Rates for the SIU class for the year
ended December 31, 2017 and approved for 2018 were $3,042 per million gallons for wastewater
flow; $0.98 per pound for all suspended solids discharged; and $1.69 per pound for all soluble
organic carbon compounds discharged. In addition, SIU’s are charged fees, as needed, for certain
other “substances of concern” which are discharged in their wastewater.

Contacting the Board’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide taxpayers, customers, and creditors with a general
overview of the Board’s finances and to show the Board’s accountability for the money it receives.
If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact Ms. Kendra
Walker, Michael O’Laughlin Municipal Water Plan, 5815 Buffalo Avenue, Niagara Falls, New
York 14304.
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD

Statements of Net Position
December 31, 2017 and 2016

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and equivalents
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for
uncollectible accounts
Due from other governments
Prepaid expenses
Note receivable - current portion

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Restricted cash and investments - capital projects
Restricted cash and investments - debt service fund
Restricted cash and investments - debt service reserve fund
Restricted cash and investments - operating and
maintenance reserve

Capital assets:
Land
Waste and waste water system
Machinery and equipment
Construction in progress
Less accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation

Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Pensions

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

11

017 016
$ 23,422,740 17,411,381
8,669,935 8,921,060
1,340,184 1,462,940
372,651 367,060
- 172,222
33,805,510 28,334,663
13,617,444 15,297,444
3,799,654 22,906,531
8,822,394 -
6,722,932 -
463,713 463,713
170,159,589 166,218,980
8,321,180 7,650,108
6,991,440 7,466,615
(66,509,939) (60,398,733)
119,425,983 121,400,683
152,388,407 159,604,658
186,193,917 187,939,321
1,415,110 2,485,058
(Continued)



NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD

Statements of Net Position, Continued

Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Overpayments
Current portion of noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences

Postemployment benefits
Bonds payable

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences
Postemployment benefits
Bonds payable

Net pension liability - proportionate share - ERS System

Total noncurrent liabilities
Risk management and contingent liabilities (note 12)
Total liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Pensions
Gain on refunding
Total deferred inflows of resources
Net Position

Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for capital projects

Restricted for debt service fund
Restricted for debt service reserve fund
Restricted for operating and maintenance
Unrestricted

Total net position

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

12

017 016
1,679,879 1,032,439
2,262,617 1,936,566

3,000 -
35,084 76,550
1,994,572 2,041,134
3,915,000 3,780,000
9,890,152 8,866,689
666,596 721,561
25,399,422 22,101,261
93,575,003 97,619,756
1,291,751 2,157,242
120,932,772 122,599,820
130,822,924 131,466,509

207,754 271,163
1,031,844 1,092,840
1,239,598 1,364,003

20,904,136 18,908,087
13,617,444 15,297,444
3,799,654 22,906,531
8,822,394 -
6,722,932 -
1,679,945 481,805

$ 55,546,505 57,593,867




NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD

Statements of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

Operating revenue:
Water rents and charges
Sewer rents and charges
Licenses and permits
Other services

Total operating revenue

Operating expenses:
Personnel costs
Contractual expenses
Employee benefits
Depreciation expense

Total operating expenses
Operating income

Non-operating revenue (expenses):
Use of money and property
Gain on sale of property
Interest expense
Debt issuance costs

Total non-operating revenue (expenses)
Change in net position
Net position at beginning of year

Net position at end of year

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

13

017 2016
$ 10,201,166 10,857,206
19,430,827 19,147,911
227,396 240,670
293,440 134,583
30,152,829 30,380,370
5,432,579 4,942,509
8,928,037 9,271,978
8,743,561 7,990,182
6,111,206 6,001,279
29215,383 28,205,948
937446 2,174,422
459,709 525,688
11,039 33,974
(3,455,556)  (3,840,715)
; (218,036)
(2,984,808)  (3,499,089)
(2,047,362)  (1,324,667)
57,593,867 58,918,534
$ 55,546,505 57,593,867




NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD

Statements of Cash Flows

Years ended December 31,2017 and 2016

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers and users
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Proceeds from sale of bonds
Gain on sale of property
Disposal of capital assets
Acquisition of capital assets
Debt issuance costs
Acquisition of premium on capital debt
Acquisition of deferred gain on refunding
Amortization of deferred gain on refunding
Amortization of premium on capital debt
Principal paid on capital debt
Interest paid on capital debt

Net cash used in capital and related
financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest earned
Change in restricted cash and investments - debt
service reserve fund

Change in restricted cash and investments - capital projects

Change in restricted cash and investments - debt service
reserve fund

Change in restricted cash and investments - operating and
maintenance

Net cash provided by (used in)
investing activities

Net change in cash and equivalents

Cash and equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and equivalents at end of year

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

14

017 2016
$ 30,701,932 33,105,558
(8,686,164)  (9,816,935)
(10,839,241) (10,305,775)
11,176,527 12,982,848
- 20,130,000
11,039 33,974
- (30,102)
(3,736,530)  (6,289,104)
- (218,036)
- 2,335,569
- 1,092,840
(60,996) -
(129,753) (845,789)
(3,780,000) (26,770,000)
(3,170,188)  (4,337,507)
(10,866,428) (14,898,155)
459,709 525,688
19,106,877 (2,205,461)
1,680,000 -
(8,822,394) -
(6,722,932) -
5,701,260 (1,679,773)
6,011,359 (3,595,080)
17,411,381 21,006,461
$ 23,422,740 17,411,381
(Continued)



NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Statements of Cash Flows, Continued

2017 2016
Reconciliation of operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Operating income $ 937,446 2,174,422
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation expense 6,111,206 6,001,279
Changes in:

Accounts receivable 251,125 3,494,798
Due from other governments 122,756 (968,780)

Prepaid expenses (5,591) 87,014

Note receivable 172,222 201,069
Accounts payable 247,464 (131,971)
Accrued liabilities 40,683 (855,364)
Overpayments 3,000 (1,899)
Awards payable - (500,000)
Compensated absences (96.,431) (38,603)
Postemployment benefits 3,251,599 3,257,635

Net pension liability (865,491) 1,678,861
Deferred outflows - pensions 1,069,948 (1,686,776)
Deferred inflows - pensions (63,409) 271,163

Total adjustments 10,239,081 10,808,426

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 11,176,527 12,982,848

Supplemental schedule of cash flow information - adjustment

for capital assets financed by accounts payable $ 873,196 473,220

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2017 and 2016

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the Niagara Falls Water Board (the Board) have been prepared in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
(GAAP) as applied to governmental units. Included in the Board’s reporting entity is a
blended component unit, the Niagara Falls Public Water Authority (the Authority).

(a) Reporting Entity
The Board was created by Chapter 325 of the Laws of 2002 of the State of New York (the
State), codified as Sections 1231-a of Title 10-C of Article 5 of the Public Authorities
Law of the State, as amended (the Board Act). The Authority was created by Chapter
275 of the Laws of 2002 of the State, constituting the Niagara Falls Public Water
Authority Act, codified as Sections 1230-a through 1230-aa of Title 10-B of Article 5 of
the Public Authorities Law of the State, as amended (the Authority Act).

The Board is a corporate municipal instrument of the State consisting of five members
primarily responsible for the jurisdiction, control, possession, supervision and use of
water, wastewater and storm water systems within the City of Niagara Falls, New York
(the City).

The Authority is a public benefit corporation consisting of three members and is primarily
responsible for obtaining financing for water, wastewater and storm water systems
within the City.

Board members for both the Board and Authority are appointed pursuant to the enabling
legislation.

Pursuant to the Board Act and the Authority Act, the Board, the Authority and the City
executed an acquisition agreement effective September 25, 2003 whereby the Authority
issued bonds enabling the Board to purchase all of the assets, net of liabilities, of the
City’s public water, wastewater and storm water systems. The Board began operations
of these systems on that date.

Currently there are approximately 19,535 residential, 329 commercial and 23 large industrial
type customers. Total population served by the water system is estimated at 51,000.
The average daily demand is 20.1 million gallons per day. The Board’s wastewater
system generally covers the same service area and customer base as the water system.
The wastewater treatment plant processes approximately 29.3 million gallons of
wastewater per day.

Blended Presentation of Component Unit - Although they are legally separate entities,
blended component units are, in substance, part of the government’s operations. The
following is a brief description of the blended component unit included in the primary
government.
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

(a) Reporting Entity, Continued
Niagara Falls Public Water Authority - Among the powers given to the Authority is the
ability to borrow money and issue negotiable or non-negotiable notes, bonds or other
obligations for the acquisition, renovation and improvement to the regional water
system.

The Authority may also apply for licenses, permits and approval of plans associated with the
acquisition, renovation and improvement of the regional water system. In the process of
borrowing funds to improve facilities, professional consultants may be retained to offer
technical services and advice for the purpose and benefit of acquiring or improving the
systems.

The Authority has entered into an agreement with the Board to make payments for the debt
service required by these bonds. The Board is also required to make payments for
Authority expenses. The obligation to make debt service is a general obligation to which
its full faith and credit are pledged.

The Authority is considered a component unit since the Board is obligated to pay debt
service and fund other accounts of the Authority. Thus, the Authority is “fiscally
dependent” upon the Board to establish rates and collect fees necessary to pay these
debts. Further, the Authority is “blended” with the Board in the financial statements
because the Authority exists solely to provide services that predominantly benefit the
Board.

(b) Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting
The financial statements of the Board have been prepared in accordance with GAAP as
applied to governmental units. The Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing government accounting and
financial reporting principles.

The activities of the Board are accounted for similar to those often found in the private
sector using the flow of economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting. All assets, liabilities, deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of
resources, net position, revenues, and expenses are accounted for through a single
enterprise fund with revenues recorded when earned and expenses recorded at the time
liabilities are incurred.

Revenues from providing water and sanitary sewer services are reported as operating
revenues. Transactions which are capital, financing or investing related are reported as
non-operating revenues. All expenses related to operating systems are reported as
operating expenses. Interest expense and financing costs are reported as non-operating
expenses.

(c) Budgets

The annual budget is the financial plan for the effective operation of the Board and the
Authority. The Board uses the budget as a management tool for internal control
purposes and to assist in setting of appropriate user charges.
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

(d) Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and Net Position

Cash and Equivalents - The Board’s cash and equivalents represent cash on hand,
demand deposits, and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or
less from the date of acquisition.

Restricted Cash and Investments - Capital Projects - In 2007, the Board received
$19,000,000 from the New York State Power Authority (the Power Authority) which is
restricted for capital improvement projects including, but not limited to, the Falls Street
Tunnel. At December 31, 2017 and 2016, the total amount restricted for capital projects
amounted to $13,617,444 and $15,297,444, respectively.

Restricted Cash and Investments - Debt Service Fund - As a result of the purchase of the
water and sewer systems from the City, certain bond covenants, as disclosed in note 6,
were established requiring resources (consisting of cash and investments) to be
maintained for specific purposes necessary to operate the water and sewer systems.

Cash has been deposited into various trust funds with a fiscal agent to satisfy certain
covenants. Further, the amounts have been invested into various short-term investments
in compliance with the Board’s investment policy. Certain funds were used for their
intended purposes and are no longer available for investment.

Restricted Cash and Investments - Debt Service Reserve Fund - This fund was
established to fulfill the debt service reserve requirements on the outstanding bonds as
and when they become due.

Restricted Cash and Investments - Operating and Maintenance - This fund is restricted to
pay the cost of extraordinary repairs to and maintenance of the system.

Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures

A framework has been established for measuring fair value. That framework provides a fair
value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value.
The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable
inputs (Level 3 measurements). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are described
below:

e Levell- Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for
identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the Board has the ability
to access.
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

(d) Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and Net Position, Continued
e Level 2- Inputs to the valuation methodology include:

Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets;

Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets;

Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the assets or liabilities; and

Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market
data by correlation or other means.

e Level 3- Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to
the fair value measurement.

The asset’s or liability’s fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is
based on the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement.
Valuation techniques used need to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize
the use of unobservable inputs. There have been no changes in the methodologies used
at December 31, 2017.

The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured
at fair value.

Mutual funds and equities - Valued at the closing price reported on the active market
in which the individual securities are traded.

Corporate and government bonds - Valued at the closing price reported on the active
markets in which the individual securities are traded.

The Board assess the levels of the investments at each measurement date, and transfers
between levels are recognized on the actual date of the event or change in circumstances
that caused the transfer in accordance with its accounting policy regarding the
recognition of transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy.

e Accounts Receivable - All receivables are reported at their gross values and, where
appropriate, are reduced by the estimated portion that is expected to be uncollectible.
The Board has adopted a policy of recognizing water and sewer revenues in the period in
which the services are provided. Billings to customers generally consist of revenues
earned from the prior three months for quarterly billed customers, and revenues earned
from the prior month for monthly billed customers.

The collection of current water and sewer charges is performed by the Board. The City,
acting as collecting agent for the Board, collects delinquent water and sewer charges.
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

(d) Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and Net Position, Continued

Prepaid Expenses - Prepaid expenses reflect costs applicable to future accounting
periods and are recorded as prepaid items in the financial statements.

Capital Assets - Capital assets acquired by the Board as part of the September 25, 2003
acquisition agreement with the City were reported at fair value on the acquisition date.
Capital assets acquired by the Board subsequent to the initial acquisition are stated at
cost including interest capitalized during construction, where applicable. Costs include
material, direct labor and other items such as supervision, payroll taxes, employee
benefits, transportation, and certain preliminary legal, engineering and survey costs. The
costs of repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred. Contributed fixed assets are
recorded at fair market value at the date received.

Construction projects are conducted on a continuing basis in order to maintain or
enhance the systems. Preliminary legal, engineering and survey costs include studies
conducted prior to the actual construction period that directly result in specific
construction projects. While capital projects are in process, all associated costs are
recorded as construction in progress. Once completed, all costs, including legal,
engineering, survey and construction costs, are reclassified to their respective asset
categories and depreciated according to their useful lives.

Depreciation has been recorded using the straight-line method of depreciation. The
estimated useful lives of the Board’s major classes of depreciable assets are based on the
utility of the respective assets. The estimated useful lives of depreciable fixed assets are
as follows:

Assets Years
Land N/A
Plant and transmission assets 25-50
Machinery and equipment 5-20

Compensated Absences - Board employees are granted vacation and sick leave and earn
compensatory absences in varying amounts. In the event of termination or upon
retirement, all union employees are entitled to payment for accumulated vacation and
compensatory time limited to amounts defined under their respective collectively
bargained agreements. All non-union employees are entitled to similar benefits as
defined by their respective contracts with the Board.

Payments of vacation and sick leave and compensatory time are dependent upon many
factors; therefore, the timing of future payments is not readily determinable. However,
management believes that sufficient resources will be available for the payments of
vacation leave and compensatory time when such payments become due.
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

(d) Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and Net Position, Continued

Postemployment Benefits - In accordance with GASB Statement No. 45, the Board
recognizes in its financial statements, the financial impact of postemployment benefits,
principally employer funded health care costs. The impact on the Board’s financial
position and results of its operations is more adequately disclosed under note 8.

Bond and Note Discounts/Premiums - Are presented as components of bonds payable.
The discounts/premiums are amortized over the life of the bonds and notes on a method
that approximates the effective interest method.

Long-term Obligations - Long-term debt is reported as liabilities in the accompanying
Statements of Net Position. Bond premiums are deferred and amortized over the life of
the respective bonds.

Retirement Plan - The Board provides retirement benefits for substantially all of its
regular, full-time employees through contributions to the New York State Employees’
and Local Employees’ Retirement System (ERS). The ERS provides various plans and
options, some of which require employee contributions, as described in note 9.

Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources - In the Statement of Net Position, in
addition to assets and liabilities, the Board will report separate sections for deferred
outflows of resources and another for deferred inflows of resources. Deferred outflows
of resources, represent a consumption of net position that applies to a future period and
so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then.
The Board has two items that qualify for reporting in this category. The first item is
related to pensions reported in the Statement of Net Position. This represents the effect
of the net change in the Board’s proportion of the collective net pension liability and
difference during the measurement period between the Board’s contributions and its
proportionate share of total contributions to the pension system not included in pension
expense. The second item is the Board contributions to the pension systems subsequent
to the measurement date.

In addition to liabilities, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a separate
section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element,
deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to
future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until
that time. The Board has two items that qualify for reporting in this category. The first
is related to pensions reported in the Statement of Net Position. This represents the
effect of the net change in the Board’s proportion of the collective net pension liability
and difference during the measurement periods between the Board’s contributions and
its proportion share of total contributions to the pension systems not included in the
pension expense. The second item is the deferred gain the Board incurred on its debt
refunding transaction.
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(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

(e) Use of Estimates
The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

(f) Income Taxes
The Board is a public benefit corporation of the State of New York. As such, income earned
in the exercise of its essential government functions is exempt from State and Federal
income taxes.

(q) Subsequent Events
The Board has evaluated subsequent events through the date of the report which is the date
the financial statements were available to be issued.

(2) Cash and Equivalents and Investments

The Board’s investment policies are governed by State statute. Board monies must be deposited
in Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) insured commercial banks or trust
companies located within the State. The Board is authorized to use demand accounts and
certificates of deposit. Permissible investments include obligations of the U.S. Treasury and
U.S. agencies, repurchase agreements, and obligations of the State or its localities.

Collateral is required for demand deposits and certificates of deposit in an amount equal to or
greater than the amount of all deposits not covered by FDIC insurance coverage.
Obligations that may be pledged as collateral are outlined in Chapter 623 of the laws of the
State.

The Board’s cash and equivalents at December 31, 2017 and 2016 include the following
captions on the statements of net position:

2017 2016

Cash and equivalents $23,422,740 17,411,381
Restricted cash and investments:

Capital projects 13,617,444 15,297,444

Debt service fund 3,799,654 22,906,531

Debt service reserve fund 8,822,394 -

Operating and maintenance 6,722,932 -

Total $ 56,385,164 55,615,356
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(2) Cash and Equivalents and Investments, Continued

Cash and equivalents are comprised of the following:

2017 2016
Petty cash (uncollateralized) $ 100 100
Deposits 47,461,390 45,914,035
Investments 8,923,674 9,701,221
Total $ 56,385,164 55,615,356

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits - In the case of deposits, this is the risk that, in the event of a
bank failure, the Board’s deposits may not be returned to it. As noted above, by State
statute, all deposits in excess of FDIC insurance coverage must be collateralized. As of
December 31, 2017 and 2016, all uninsured bank deposits were fully collateralized with
securities held by the pledging financial institution’s trust department or agent in the Board’s

name.

Custodial Credit Risk - Investments - For investments, this is the risk that, in the event of the
failure of the counterparty, the Board will not be able to recover the value of its investments
that are in the possession of an outside party. At December 31, 2017 and 2016, all of the
Board’s restricted cash in the form of investments was registered in the Board’s name and

was invested in U.S. Government backed securities.
The Board’s investments at December 31, 2017, consist of the following:

Investments Maturity
U.S. Treasuries 3/1/18 - 11/1/41
Federal Home Mortgage Corp. 1/16/18 - 2/1/18
Federal Farm Credit Bank 3/20/18

Total investments
These investments are classified as Level 1.
Maturity Schedule

Less than one year
More than one year
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Fair Value

1,229,466
7,415,018
279,190

8,923,674

8,024,002
_ 899,672

8,923,674
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(2) Cash and Equivalents and Investments, Continued

The Board’s investments at December 31, 2016, consist of the following:

Investments Maturity Fair Value
U.S. Treasuries 3/1/17 - 11/1/41 $ 1,255,632
Federal Home Mortgage Corp. 1/11/17 - 6/20/17 8,041,174
Federal Farm Credit Bank 2/17/17 - 5/30/17 404,415
Total investments $ 9,701,221

These investments are classified as Level 1.
Maturity Schedule

Less than one year $ 8,619,216
More than one year 1,082,005
$ 9,701,221

Concentration Credit Risk - For investments, this is the risk of loss attributable to the quantity of
the government’s investment in a single issuer. Investments in single issuers that equal or
exceed 5% of total investments have a reportable concentration of credit risk. At December
31, 2017, the Board held 83% and 14% of its investment balance in Federal Home Mortgage
Corp. and U.S. Treasury notes, respectively.

(3) Receivables

Major revenues accrued by the Board at December 31, 2017 and 2016 include the following:

(a) Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable primarily represents amounts due from customers for current and
delinquent water and wastewater services provided, including penalties, unpaid bill
charges, collection fees and shut-off charges.

Customers are billed either on a monthly or quarterly basis depending on the type of user
(industrial or residential), and the level of water and sewer usage. Customers may make
payments without penalty on current charges up until 20 days after receiving their bill.
Any unpaid balances remaining after these 20 days are subject to a penalty of 6%, and
those customers receive an unpaid bill notice. If balances still remain unpaid after 30
additional days, final unpaid notices are mailed. The customers are then given 10 days
to remit payment, after which the property is tagged, and shut-off procedures begin.
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(3) Receivables, Continued

(a) Accounts Receivable, Continued
During the first week of December of every year, unpaid balances are transferred to the City
tax roll for collections through the subsequent year’s tax levy or in-rem property sales.
Any amounts relating to unpaid water and wastewater balances collected by the City
through these means are delivered to the Board.

As of December 31, 2017, $1,278,723 was included in allowance for uncollectible accounts
to account for receivable balances that may not be collected. As of December 31, 2016,
$1,102,478 was included in allowance for uncollectible accounts to account for
receivable balances that may not be collected.

(b) Due from Other Governments
Due from other governments represents amounts due primarily from the City. Amounts
accrued at December 31, 2017 and 2016 consist of:

2017 2016
City of Niagara Falls - tax transfer $ 1,340,184 1,253,422
Due from Cascades Company - 209,518

$ 1,340,184 1,462,940

The tax transfer represents uncollected water and sewer charges that have been turned over
to the City for collection in conjunction with the City’s property tax levy. The City
remits these charges to the Board each January and July for collections it receives for the
previous six-month period. This amount includes collected but not yet remitted charges
at year-end. Charges from all previous years’ water and sewer operations transferred to
the City that are not collected totaled $6,115,063 and $6,062,119 at December 31, 2017
and 2016, respectively. Management has recorded an allowance for uncollectible
accounts with respect to these balances of $4,774,879 and $4,599,179 at December 31,
2017 and 2016, respectively.

(4) Notes Receivable

Cascades Company

During 1987, Nitec Paper Corporation filed for bankruptcy with several years of outstanding
taxes, water and sewer charges due to the City, the County of Niagara (the County), and the
Niagara Falls Board of Education (the Board of Education). The City obtained the deed in
lieu of foreclosure and sold the plant to Cascades Company for outstanding taxes and
charges totaling $5,400,000. Upon closing, $100,000 was paid to the City with the
remaining $5,300,000 to be paid over 30 years as follows: Commencing November 1, 1988
through October 1, 1997, monthly payments of interest only at 3%; beginning on November
1, 1997 through October 1, 2017, monthly payments of interest and principal of $29,394.
The Board receives 59.4% of these monthly payments, with the remaining 40.6% split
between the City (16.2%), the County (6.8%), and the Board of Education (17.6%).
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(4) Notes Receivable, Continued

Cascades Company, Continued

2017 2016
Cascades Company $ - 172,222
Less current portion - (172,222)
Notes receivable - noncurrent portion $ - -

(5) Capital Assets

The Board’s capital assets activity for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 is
summarized as follows:
Balance Balance
1/1/2017 Increases Decreases 12/31/2017

Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land $ 463,713 - - 463,713

Construction in progress 7,466,615 4,045,931 (4,521,106) 6,991,440
Total capital assets not

being depreciated 7,930,328 4,045,931 (4,521,106) 7,455,153

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Plant and transmission costs:

Water system 87,488,822 121,390 - 87,610,212
Wastewater system 78,730,158 3,819,219 - 82,549,377
Machinery and equipment 7,650,108 671,072 - 8,321,180
Total capital assets
being depreciated 173,869,088 4,611,681 - 178,480,769
Less accumulated depreciation:
Plant and transmission costs:
Water system (37,006,083) (2,891,710) - (39,897,793)
Wastewater system (19,764,275) (2,611,132) - (22,375,407)
Machinery and equipment (3,628,375) (608,364) - (4,236,739)
Total accumulated
depreciation (60,398,733) (6,111,206) - (66,509,939)
Total being depreciated, net 113,470,355  (1,499,525) - 111,970,830
Capital assets, net $ 121,400,683 2,546,406 (4,521,106) 119,425,983
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(5) Capital Assets, Continued

Balance Balance
1/1/2016 Increases Decreases 12/31/2016
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land 463,713 - - 463,713
Construction in progress 1,545,362 6,211,254 (290,001) 7,466,615
Total capital assets not
being depreciated 2,009,075 6,211,254 (290,001) 7,930,328
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Plant and transmission costs:
Water system 87,488,822 - - 87,488,822
Wastewater system 78,730,158 - - 78,730,158
Machinery and equipment 7,390,209 290,001 (30,102) 7,650,108
Total capital assets
being depreciated 173,609,189 290,001 (30,102) 173,869,088
Less accumulated depreciation:
Plant and transmission costs:
Water system (34,113,319) (2,892,764) - (37,006,083)
Wastewater system (17,197,022) (2,567,253) - (19,764,275)
Machinery and equipment (3,117,215)  _(541,262) 30,102 (3,628,375)
Total accumulated
depreciation (54,427,556) (6,001,279) 30,102  (60,398,733)
Total being depreciated, net 119,181,633  (5,711,278) - 113,470,355
Capital assets, net $ 121,190,708 499,976 (290,001) 121,400,683

(6) Bond Indebtedness

The Authority issues debt to provide for the acquisition of the water and sewer systems and for
the initial funding of operating and maintenance and debt reserves. During the year ended
December 31, 2016, the Authority issued Series 2016A bonds amounting to $20,130,000.

The proceeds of Series 2012B amounted to $6,607,122 - Clean Water issue were used to payoff
the EFC Note used to fund North Gorge Interceptor Capacity Restoration Project.
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(6) Bond Indebtedness, Continued

In 2013, the Board issued $74,240,000 in general obligation bonds with an average interest rate
of 4.72% and received an additional premium of $142,002. The bonds were used for an
advanced refunding of $63,535,000 of 2003 Bonds with an average interest rate of 3.79%.
The net proceeds of approximately $64 million were deposited in a trust with an agent to
provide for future debt service payments on the bonds. As a result, the bonds are considered
defeased and the liability for those bonds has been removed from the Board’s financial
statements. The economic gain on the transaction (the difference between the present values
of the debt service payments on the old and new debt) is approximately $1.7 million.

During 2014 net proceeds of the Series B bonds were used to entirely refund the Series 2004
Serial Bonds of $4,095,000, specifically reducing the interest to be paid by approximately
$610,000.

During 2015, net proceeds of the Series D bonds were used to entirely refund the Series
2005A&B Serial Bonds of $4,380,000 specifically reducing the interest to be paid by
approximately $550,000. As a result, the bonds are considered defeased and the liability for
these bonds has been removed from the Board’s financial statements. The economic gain on
the transaction (the difference between the present values of the debt service payments on
the old and new debt) is approximately $450,000.

During 2016, net proceeds of the Series A bonds were used to entirely refund the Series 2005
bonds of $23,115,000 specifically reducing the interest to be paid by approximately
$4,093,685. As a result, the bonds are considered defeased and the liability for these bonds
has been removed from the Board financial statements. The economic gain on the
transaction (the difference between the present values of the debt service payments on the
old and new debt) is $4,108,685.

Serial bond activity for the year ended December 31, 2017 is presented on the following page:
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(6) Bond Indebtedness, Continued
Serial Bond Activity:

Niagara Falls Public Water Authority Bonds:

Series 2013 A Bonds
Series 2013B Bonds
Series 2016A Bonds

New York State Environmental Facilities
Corporation Water Revolving Funds
Revenue Bonds:

Series 2013B - Clean Water
Series 2013B - Drinking Water
Series 2013B - Drinking Water
Series 2013B - Drinking Water
Series 2015D - Drinking Water
_ Series 2014B - Drinking Water
Series 2012B - Clean Water

Totals

Reconciliation to statements of net position:
Principal outstanding
Unamortized premium on bonds

Current portion of bonds payable
Non-current portion of bonds payable

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

Year of Year of

Interest

Issue Maturity Rate %

2013
2013
2016

2013
2013
2013
2013
2015
2014
2012

2034
2024
2034

2033
2023
2019
2019
2034
2021
2041

30-5.0
4.309
3.13-5.0

3.88-5.05
4.75-4.91
5.14-5.59
5.14-5.59
3.81-4.57
5.40
0.26 - 4.27
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Principal Principal

Original Outstanding Outstanding
Amount 1/1/2017 Issued Paid 12/31/2017

$§ 36,060,000 35,495,000 295,000 35,200,000
8,415,000 6,245,000 785,000 5,460,000
20,130,000 20,130,000 - 20,130,000
14,030,000 12,425,000 560,000 11,865,000
5,580,000 5,580,000 - 5,580,000
6,770,000 3,440,000 1,200,000 2,240,000
3,385,000 1,720,000 600,000 1,120,000
4,380,000 4,220,000 165,000 4,055,000
4,095,000 4,095,000 - 4,095,000
6,607,122 5,725,000 175,000 5,550,000
$ 109,452,122 99,075,000 3,780,000 95,295,000
99,075,000 95,295,000
2,324,756 2,195,003
101,399,756 97,490,003
3,780,000 3,915,000
97,619,756 93,575,003
101,399,756 97,490,003
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(6) Bond Indebtedness, Continued

The annual maturities of long-term debt as of December 31, 2017 are as follows:

Premium

Year on bonds Serial bonds Total
2018 § 129,754 3,915,000 4,044,754
2019 129,754 4,055,000 4,184,754
2020 129,754 4,135,000 4,264,754
2021 129,754 4,280,000 4,409,754
2022 129,754 4,430,000 4,559,754
2023-2027 648,769 25,860,000 26,508,769
2028-2032 648,769 31,935,000 32,583,769
2033-2037 248,695 15,190,000 15,438,695
2038-2041 - 1,495,000 1,495,000
$2,195,003 95,295,000 97,490,003

Annual interest payments due on serial bonds as of December 31, 2017 are as follows:

2018 $ 3,486,817
2019 3,132,360
2020 3,228,716
2021 2,741,537
2022 2,939,642
2023-2027 12,115,798
2028-2032 6,689,777
2033-2037 1,052,494
2038-2041 146,046
Total $ 35,533,187

Financing Agreement Covenants

The financing agreement between the Authority and the Board relating to all current and future
bonding contain various covenants pertaining to the use and maintenance of the trust funds
established from the proceeds of each bonding. At December 31, 2017, management
believes the Board was in compliance with the following loan covenants:

The Board is required to establish and collect rates, fees and charges sufficient in each fiscal
year at least equal to the sum of:

(1) 115% of the estimated aggregate debt service and projected debt service payable in such
fiscal year;

(2) 100% of Board operating expenses and Authority expenses payable in such fiscal year;
and

(3) 100% of the amount necessary to pay the required deposits for such fiscal year.
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(6) Bond Indebtedness, Continued
The Board shall review the adequacy of fees, rates and charges at least semi-annually.

The Board shall enforce the payment of any and all amounts owed for the use of the systems.

The Board shall (unless required by law) not furnish or supply, or cause to be furnished or
supplied, any product, use or service of the systems, free of charge.

The debt service fund balance, beginning with the first day of each calendar month, shall receive
all revenues until the balance in the debt service fund equals the minimum monthly balance.
The minimum monthly balance is defined as an amount equal to the sum of the aggregate
amounts of debt service that have accrued with respect to all series of bonds, calculating the
debt service that has accrued as an amount equal to the sum of:

(1) The interest on the bonds that has accrued and is unpaid and that will have accrued by
the end of the then calendar month; and

(2) The portion of the next due principal installment for the bonds that would have accrued
(as deemed to accrue in the manner interest accrues) by the end of the then calendar
month.

(7) Compensated Absences

As explained in note 1, the Board reports the value of compensated absences as a liability. The
annual budgets of the operating funds provide funding for these benefits as they become
payable. The payment of compensated absences is dependent on many factors; therefore,
the timing of future payments is not readily determinable. The current portion payable is
estimated at 5% of the total compensated absences liability. Additionally, for the year ended
December 31, 2016, the compensated absences for three individuals whose contracts were
terminated in February 2017 are considered part of the current portion payable. The current
portion of the liability amounted to $35,084 and $76,550 at December 31, 2017 and 2016,
respectively. The long-term portion of the liability amounted to $666,596 and $721,561 at
December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

(8) Postemployment Benefits

The Board provides postemployment benefits to eligible retirees in the form of health insurance.
The obligation of the Board and its employees to contribute to the cost of providing these
benefits has been established pursuant to various collective bargaining agreements and
Board policy for those individuals not included in one of the bargaining units. Under such
agreements, participants are not required to contribute to the health care plan. In 2008, the
Board adopted the requirements of GASB Statement No. 45. In conformance with the
provisions of that statement, the Board recognizes the costs of postemployment health care
in the year when the employees’ services are received, reports the accumulated liability from
prior years, and provides information useful in assessing potential demands on the Board’s
future cash flows. Recognition of the liability accumulated from prior years will be phased
in over 30 years commencing in 2008.
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(8) Postemployment Benefits, Continued

Plan Description - The Board provides continuation of medical, prescription drug, dental, vision
and chiropractic coverage for employees who retire and are at least age 50 and have an age,
plus years of service, of at least 70. All retirees and future retirees hired prior to June 1,
2006 have no contribution requirements for both individual and family coverage. All future
retires hired after June 1, 2006 are required to pay 20% of the individual and family
premiums.

The Board provides certain health care benefits for retired employees. Substantially all of the
employees may become eligible for these benefits if they reach the normal retirement age
and have the required minimum age plus years of service working for the Board. The
Board, on an annual basis, accrues the cost that represents the present value of these benefits
to be paid over the estimated lives of the retirees. The annual other postemployment benefit
cost (OPEB) charged to operations for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016
amounted to $5,708,698 and $5,465,210, respectively. At December 31, 2017 and 2016, the
current portion of the postemployment benefits liability was $1,994,572 and $2,041,134,
respectively. The non-current portion of the postemployment benefits liability amounted to
$25,399,422 and $22,101,261 at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

The number of participants as of January 1, 2017 and 2016 was as follows:

2017 2016

Active employees 73 80
Retired employees 89 75
Total 162 155

Funding Policy - The Board currently pays for postemployment health care benefits on a pay-as-
you-go basis. These financial statements assume that pay-as-you-go funding will continue.

2017 2016
Benefit Obligations and Normal Costs
Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) $ 64,724,770 69,856,462
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) $ 64,724,770 69,856,462
Normal costs at beginning of year 1,200,026 1,153,871
Interest on normal cost 26,967 46,155
$ 1,226,993 1,200,026
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(8) Postemployment Benefits, Continued

Level Dollar Amortization

Calculation of ARC under projected Unit Credit Method:
Amortization of UAAL over 30 years with interest to

end of year
Interest on amortization payment
Normal costs with interest to end of year

Annual required contribution (ARC)

Annual OPEB Cost Contribution

Contributions made for years ended December 31, 2017

and 2016

Contributions as a percentage of required contribution

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

Annual required contribution (OPEB cost)
Contributions made on a pay-as-you-go basis

Increase in net OPEB obligation
Net OPEB obligation at beginning of year

Net OPEB obligation at end of year

Current
Noncurrent

Actuarial methods and assumptions:
Actuarial cost method

Discount rate

2017 trend rate (Medical)

2016 trend rate (Medical)

Yearly decrease after year 2

Years until ultimate rate

The remaining amortization period at
December 31, 2017 and 2016
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2017 2016
$ 4,332,789 3,407,824
148,916 857,360
1,226,993 1,200,026
$ 5708698 _5465.210
2,457,099 2,207,575
43.0% 40.4%
5,708,698 5,465,210
(2,457,099) (2,207,575)
3,251,599 3,257,635
24,142, 395 20,884,760
$ 27,393,994 24,142,395
1,994,572 2,041,134
25,399,422 22,101,261
$ 27,393,994 24,142,395
Projected Projected
Unit Credit  Unit Credit
4% 4%
8.00% 8.50%
7.50% 8.00%
0.50% 0.50%
5 years 5 years
21 years 22 years
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(9) Pension Plans

(a) Plan Descriptions and Benefits Provided

Employees’ Retirement System (ERS)

The Board participates in the New York State and Local Employees’ Retirement System
(ERS). This is a cost-sharing multiple-employer retirement system. The System
provides retirement benefits as well as death and disability benefits. The net position of
the System is held in the New York State Common Retirement Authority (the
Authority), which was established to hold all net assets and record changes in plan net
position allocated to the System. The Comptroller of the State of New York serves as
the trustee of the Board and is the administrative head of the System. System benefits
are established under the provision of the New York State Retirement and Social
Security Law (RSSL). Once a public employer elects to participate in the System, the
election is irrevocable. The New York State Constitution provides that pension
membership is a contractual relationship and plan benefits cannot be diminished or
impaired. Benefits can be changed for future members only by enactment of a State
statute. The Board also participates in the Public Employees; Group Life Insurance Plan
(GLIP), which provides death benefits in the form of life insurance. The System is
included in the State’s financial report as a pension trust fund. That report, including
information  with regard to benefits provided, may be found at
www.osc.state.ny.us/retire/publications/inex.php or obtained by writing to the New York
State and Local Retirement System, 110 State Street, Albany, New York 12244,

The System is noncontributory except for employees who joined after July 27, 1976, who
contribute 3 percent of their salary for the first ten years of membership, and employees
who joined on or after January 1, 2010 who generally contribute 3.0 to 3.5 percent of
their salary for their entire length of service. In addition, employee contribution rates
under ERS tier VI vary based on a sliding salary scale. The Comptroller annually
certifies the actuarially determined rates expressly used in computing the employers’
contributions based on salaries paid during the Systems fiscal year ending March 31.

Contributions for the current year and two preceding years were equal to 100 percent of the
contributions required, and were as follows:

ERS
2017 $ 659,383
2016 646,238
2015 725,071
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(9) Pension Plans, Continued

(b) Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

At December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Board reported the following liability for its
proportionate share of the net pension liability for ERS. The net pension liability was
measured as of March 31, 2017 and 2016. The total pension liability used to calculate
the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation. The Board’s
proportionate share of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the Board’s
long-term share of contributions to the System relative to the projected contributions of
all participating members, actuarially determined. This information was provided by

ERS in reports provided to the Board.

Measurement date 3/31/2017 3/31/2016
Net pension liability $ 1,291,751 2,157,242
Board’s proportion of the Plan’s net

pension liability 0.0137476%  0.0134405%

For the year ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Board recognized pension expense of
$800,430 and $902,036 for ERS, respectively. At December 31, 2017 and 2016 the
Board’s reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions from the following sources:

2017 2016
Deferred  Deferred Deferred  Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of  Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources Resources Resources

Differences between expected

and actual experience $ 32,370 196,160 10,901 255,705
Changes of assumptions 441,309 - 575,271 -
Net difference between projected

and actual earnings on pension

plan investments 258,015 - 1,279,794 -
Changes in proportion and

differences between the Board’s

contributions and proportionate

share of contributions 185,704 11,594 134,079 15,458
Board’s contributions subsequent

to the measurement date 497,712 - 485,013 -
Total $ 1,415,110 207,754 2,485,058 271,163

Board contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of
the net pension liability in the subsequent year. Other amounts reported as deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be
recognized in pension expense as follows:
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(b) Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions, Continued

Year ended ERS
2018 $ 304,988
2019 304,988
2020 249,875
2021 (150,207)
2022 .

Thereafter -

$ 709,644

(c) Actuarial Assumptions
The total pension liability as of the measurement date was determined by using an actuarial
valuation as noted in the table below, with update procedures used to roll forward the
total pension liability to the measurement date. The actuarial valuations used the
following actuarial assumptions:

Significant actuarial assumptions used in the valuations were as follows:

Measurement date March 31, 2017

Actuarial valuation date April 1, 2016

Interest rate 7.0%

Salary scale 3.8% Average

Decrement tables April 1, 2010 - March 31, 2015
System’s Experience

Inflation rate 2.5%

Annuitant mortality rates are based on April 1, 2010 - March 31, 2015 System’s experience
with adjustments for mortality improvements based on Society of Actuaries Scale MP-
2014.

The actuarial assumptions used in the April 1, 2016 valuation are based on the results of an
actuarial experience study for the period April 1, 2010 - March 31, 2015.

The long term rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building
block method in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected returns net of investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major
asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long term expected rate of return
by weighting the expected future real rates of return by each the target asset allocation
percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of the arithmetic real rates
of return for each major asset class included in the target asset allocation are summarized
below:
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(9) Pension Plans, Continued

(c) Actuarial Assumptions, Continued

Measurement date March 31, 2017
Long-term
expected
real rate Target
of return allocation
Asset type:
Domestic equity 4.55% 36.00%
International equity 6.35% 14.00%
Private equity 7.75% 10.00%
Real estate 5.80% 10.00%
Absolute return strategies 4.00% 2.00%
Opportunistic portfolio 5.89% 3.00%
Real assets 5.54% 3.00%
Bonds and mortgages 1.31% 17.00%
Cash (0.25%) 1.00%
Inflation - indexed bonds 1.50% 4.00%

* The real rate of return is net of the long-term inflation assumption of 2.50%.
(d) Discount Rate

The discount rate used to calculate the total pension liability was 7.0% in 2017 and 2016.
The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumes that
contributions from plan members will be made at the current contribution rates and that
contributions from employers will be made at statutorily required rates, actuarially
determined. Based upon the assumptions, the System’s fiduciary net position was
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan
members. Therefore the long term expected rate of return on pension plan investments
was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension

liability.

(e) Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to the Discount Rate

The following presents the Board’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated
using the discount rate of 7.0%, as well as what the Board’s proportionate share of the
net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-
percentage point lower (6.0%) or 1-percentage point higher (8.0%) than the current rate:

1% Current
Decrease  Assumption
(6.0%) (7.0%)
Employer’s proportionate share of
the net pension (asset) liability $ 4125596 1,291,751
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(9) Pension Plans, Continued

(f) Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position
The components of the current-year net pension liability of all participating employers as of
the respective measurement dates, were as follows:

(Dollars in Millions)

Measurement date 3/31/2017 3/31/2016
Employers’ total pension liability $(177,400) (172,303)
Plan net position 168,004 156,253
Employers’ net pension liability $ _(9,396) (16,050)
Ratio of plan net position to the

Employers’ total pension liability 94.7% 90.7%

(9) Contributions to the Pension Plan
Employer contributions are paid annually based on the System’s fiscal year which ends on
March 31%. Retirement contributions as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 represent the
projected employer contribution for the period of April 1, 2017 through March 31, 2018
and April 1, 2016 through March 31, 2017, respectively based on paid ERS wages
multiplied by the employer’s contribution rate, by tier. This amount has been recorded as
deferred outflows of resources in the accompanying financial statements.

(10) Net Position

The Board’s financial statements utilize a net position presentation. Net position is categorized
as net investment in capital assets, restricted for debt service, restricted for capital projects
and unrestricted.

Net Investment in Capital Assets - This category groups all capital assets into one component of
net position. Accumulated depreciation and the outstanding balances of debt that are
attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of these assets reduce the
balance in this category.

The Board’s investment in capital assets, net of related debt is in a surplus position of
$20,904,136 and $18,908,087 at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. The surplus
results from the amortization of the Board’s capital debt, as outstanding principal for the
majority of Board’s serial bonds is not paid until late into the life of the debt while
depreciation occurs ratably over the life of the assets.
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Restricted Net Position - This category represents external restrictions imposed by creditors,
grantors, contributors, or laws and regulations of other governments and restrictions
imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Restricted for Capital Projects:

Amounts restricted for capital projects is $13,617,444 and $15,297,444 at December 31,
2017 and 2016, respectively. In 2007, the Board received $19,000,000 from the Power
Authority under a “Relicensing Settlement Agreement.” The Agreement provided for
the creation of a “Niagara Falls Water Board Capital Improvement Fund.” These funds
are restricted for future use related to capital improvements of the Board including but
not limited to any specific project including the Falls Street Tunnel project.

Restricted for Debt Service Fund:

Board restrictions at December 31, 2017 and 2016 of $3,799,654 and $22,906,531,
respectively, are for debt service. In 2017, the Board reallocated funds based on
investigation of reserves.

Restricted for Debt Service Reserve Fund:

Amounts restricted for the debt service reserve fund is $8,822,394 at December 31, 2017.
These funds are controlled by bond trustee. The required minimum balance is the less of
maximum future annual debt service requirement or 125% of the average future annual
debt service requirements for all outstanding bonds. The required minimum balance was
$7,179,698 at December 31, 2017. This resulted in excess reserves of $1,642,696 at
December 31, 2017.

Restricted for Operations and Maintenance:

Amounts restricted for operations and maintenance is $6,722,932 at December 2017. These
reserves may be used to pay the cost of extraordinary repairs to and replacements of the
system. Surplus amounts on deposit at the end of the fiscal year may be used for any
purpose determined by the Board to be beneficial for the system unless the Authority
notifies the Board that it does not concur with such application of surplus and
expenditures. At December 31, 2017 there was excess reserves of $2,021,941. The
required minimum balance is 1/6" of prior year operating expenses which equates to
$4,700,991.

Unrestricted Net Position - This category represents net position of the Board not restricted for
any project or other purpose. Additions of $1,996,049 net investment in capital assets and
decreases of $5,241,551 of restrictions for debt service increased unrestricted net position by
$3,245,502. The total loss for the year of $2,047,362 also decreased unrestricted net
position.
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(11) Labor Relations

The majority of the Board’s employees are represented by various unions under four collective
bargaining units agreements, with the balance governed by Board policies. Contracts for all
of the bargaining units covered a six year term which expired on December 31, 2010. The
Board has negotiated new contracts with the bargaining units as of June 2017.

(12) Risk Management and Contingent Liabilities

Risk management and contingent liabilities at December 31, 2017 and 2016 are detailed as
follows:

(a) Insurance

The Board is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts; theft of, damage to and
destruction of assets; injuries to employees; and natural disasters, for which the Board
carries commercial insurance. There were no settlements that significantly exceeded
insurance coverage for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016.

(b) Litigation
The Board is involved in litigation arising in the ordinary course of its operations. The
Board believes that its ultimate liability, if any, in connection with these matters will not
have a material effect on its financial condition or results of operations.

(13) Significant Events

(a) Management Restructuring
In February 2017 the Board underwent significant management restructuring. As part of the
restructuring three Directors and general counsel to the Board were replaced.
Additionally, the Director of Financial Services resigned prior to December 31, 2016
and was replaced in 2017.

(b) New York Office of the State Comptroller Audit
The New York Office of the State Comptroller (OSC) released an audit of the Water Board
for the period of January 1, 2013 through April 30, 2015. Issues noted by OSC were
addressed through the additions of schedule 1 and 2 on pages 43 - 44 and reserves
analysis noted in note 10.

(c) Environmental

As a result of alleged discharges from the waste water treatment plant during the Summer of
2017, the New York State Department of Environmental Conservation (NYSDEC) and
the Board entered into a Consent Order on December 19, 2017 (R9-20170906-129).
This Consent Order required the Board to pay a civil penalty in the amount of $50,000
and to implement a schedule of enumerated actions over the following fifteen (15)
months. The Board is now in the process of implementing these actions under the
supervision of the NYSDEC.
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(15) Accounting Standards Issued But Not Yet Implemented

GASB Statement No. 75 - “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits
Other Than Pensions.” This Statement, issued in June 2015, establishes new accounting and
financial reporting requirements for governments whose employees are provided with
OPEB, as well as for certain non-employer governments that have a legal obligation to
provide financial support for OPEB provided to the employees of other entities. This
Statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2017, which is the fiscal year
beginning January 1, 2018 for the Board. This Statement is being evaluated for its effect on
the financial statements of the Board.

GASB Statement No. 83 - “Certain Asset Retirement Obligations.” This Statement, issued in
November 2016, addresses accounting and financial reporting for certain asset retirement
obligations (AROs). Governments that have legal obligations to perform certain future asset
retirement activities related tangible capital assets should recognize a liability based on the
guidance in this Statement. The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting
periods beginning after June 15, 2018, which is the fiscal year beginning January 1, 2019 for
the Board. This Statement is not expected to have a material effect on the financial
statements of the Board.

GASB Statement No. 84 - “Fiduciary Activities.” This Statement, issued in January 2017,
established criteria for identifying fiduciary activities of all state and local governments.
The focus of the criteria generally is on (1) whether a government is controlling assets of the
fiduciary activity and (2) the beneficiaries with whom a fiduciary relationship exists. This
Statement is effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018, which is the
fiscal year beginning January 1, 2019 for the Board. This Statement is not expected to have
a material effect on the financial statements of the Board.

GASB Statement No. 85 - “Omnibus 2017.” This Statement, issued in March 2017, addresses
issues that have been identified during implementation and application of certain GASB
Statements. The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning
after June 15, 2017, which is the fiscal year beginning January 1, 2018 for the Board.
Management is in the process of evaluating the potential impact due to the implementation
of this Statement on the financial statements of the Board.

GASB Statement No. 86 - “Certain Debt Extinguishment Issues.” This Statement, issued in
May 2017, addresses issues related to in substance defeasances occurring through repayment
of debt from existing resources. The requirements of this Statement are effective for
reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2017, which is the fiscal year beginning January
1, 2018 for Board. Management is in the process of evaluating the potential impact due to
the implementation of this Statement on the financial statements of Board.
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(15) Accounting Standards Issued But Not Yet Implemented

GASB Statement No. 87 - “Leases.” This Statement, issued in June 2017, requires recognition
of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as operating
leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment
provisions of the contract. It establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the
foundational principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. The
requirements of this Statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning
after December 15, 2019, which is the fiscal year beginning January 1, 2020 for the Board.
Management is in process of evaluating the potential impact due to the implementation of
this Statement on the financial statements of the Board.
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Niagara Falls Water Authority (a Blended Component Unit)
Other Supplementary Information
Statements of Net Position
December 31,2017 and 2016

Schedule 1

Assets 2017 2016

Current assets - cash and equivalents $ 78,959 78,959
Noncurrent assets - due from Water Board 98,787,551 102,758,300

Total assets 98,866,510 102,837,259

Liabilities

Current liabilities - bonds payable 3,915,000 3,780,000
Noncurrent liabilities - bonds payable 93,575,003 97,619,756
Risk management and contingent liabilities (note 12)

Total liabilities 97,490,003 101,399,756

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Gain on refunding 1,031,844 1,092,840
Net Position

Unrestricted $ 344,663 344,663
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Schedule 2
NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD

Niagara Falls Water Authority (a Blended Component Unit)
Other Supplementary Information
Statements of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Years ended December 31,2017 and 2016

2017 2016
Operating expenses - contractual expenses $ - 3,871
Change in net position - (3,871)
Net position at beginning of year 344,663 348,534
Net position at end of year $ 344,663 344,663
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Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Funding Progress
Other Postemployment Benefits Plan
Last three fiscal years

Unfunded
liability
Actuarial Unfunded asa
Fiscal Valuation actuarial percentage
year ended Date Value of  Accrued accrued Funded Covered of covered
December 31, January 1.  assets liability liability ratio payroll payroll
2017 2017 $ - 64,724,770 64,724,770 0% 5,183,944  1249%
2016 2014 - 69,856,462 69,856,462 0% = 4,994,649 1399%
2015 2014 - 67,708,721 67,708,721 0% 3,649,206  1855%
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Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
Years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

NYSERS Pension Plan
2017 2016 2015

Board's proportion of the net pension liability 0.0137476%  0.0134405%  0.0141606%
Board's proportionate share of the net pension liability ~ $ 1,291,751 $2,157242 $ 478,381
Board's covered payroll $4,719,361 $4,397,005  $4,082,614
Board's proportionate share of the net pension liability

as a percentage of its covered - employee payroll 27.37% 49.06% 11.72%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total

pension liability 94.70% 90.70% 97.95%

* This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirements to show information for 10 years. However,
information is presented for those years that are available.
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Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Employer Pension Contributions
Years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

NYSERS Pension Plan
2017 2016 2013

Contractually required contribution $§ 659,383 646,238 725,071 864,054 900,289

o
(e}
—
(]
[\ ]
(e}
—
NN

Contributions in relation to the
contractually required contribution 659,383 646,238 725,071 864,054 900,289

Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - - - - -

Board's covered employee payroll $ 4,719,361 4,397,005 4,082,614 4,483,962 4,442277

Contributions as a percentage of
covered employee payroll 13.97% 14.70% 17.76% 19.27% 20.27%

* This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirements to show information for 10 years. However,
information is presented for those years that are available.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER
MATTERS, BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Board of Directors
Niagara Falls Water Board:

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the
Niagara Falls Water Board (the Board), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2017, and the
related notes to financial statements, which collectively comprise the Board’s basic financial
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated April 23, 2018.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Board’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Board’s
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Board’s
internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the Board’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to
merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses, or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Board’s financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, including Investment Guidelines for Public Authorities
and Board’s Investment Guidelines, honcompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed an instance of noncompliance or other
matter that is required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards and which is described
in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses as item 2017-001.

The Board’s Response to Finding

The Board’s response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and responses. The Board’s response was not subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion
on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Board’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Board’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

EFPR Growp, CPAs, PLLC

Williamsville, New York
April 23,2018
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Schedule of Findings and Responses
Year ended December 31, 2017

(2017-001) PARIS Filing

Condition - The Board did not file the independent audit report within 90 days after the end of the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2017 via the Public Authorities information System (PARIS).

Criteria - Pursuant to Section 2800 of Public Authorities Law, the Board is required to submit their
annual report via PARIS within 90 days after the end of each fiscal year.

Effect - The Authorities Budget Office has the authority to “publicly warn and censure authorities
for non-compliance” with this requirement and to recommend the “suspension or dismissal of
officers or directors, based on information that is, or is made, available to the public under law.”

Cause - The auditors could not complete their work within the required timeframe because the
Board was unable to obtain all information necessary for capital assets timely enough to allow filing
by the statutory filing deadline.

Recommendation - We recommend that the Board submit the independent audit report to PARIS as
soon as possible.

Management’s Correction Action - The Board has approved the independent audit report and will
file with PARIS upon receipt of the final reports.
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Status of Prior Year Audit Findings
Year ended December 31, 2017

(2016-001) PARIS Filing

Condition - The Board did not file the independent audit report within 90 days after the end of the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2016 via the Public Authorities information System (PARIS).

Cause - Prior to the beginning of the audit fieldwork for the year ended December 31, 2016 three
Directors had their employment contracts terminated. Additionally, before year-end the Director of
Financial Services resigned. This caused the timing of the audit fieldwork to be moved back as well
as a learning curve for new accounting personnel to produce essential reports needed to complete
the audit.

Status - The PARIS filing deadline was not met for the year ended December 31, 2017 due to the

timeliness of capital assets accounting was not completed to allow the independent auditors to
complete their work.

51



Ve
YEFPRGrOUP CPAS:

6390 Main Street, Suite 200
Williamsville, NY 14221

P 716.634.0700
TF 800.546.7556

F 716.634.0764
w EFPRgroup.com

April 23, 2018

CONFIDENTIAL

The Board of Directors
Niagara Falls Water Board

Dear Board Members:

We have completed our audit of the financial statements of the Niagara Falls Water Board
(the Board) for the year ended December 31, 2017. Considering the test character of our audit, you
will appreciate that reliance must be placed on adequate methods of internal control as your
principal safeguard against irregularities which a test examination may not disclose.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors,
management and others within the Board.

We now present for your consideration our comments and recommendations based upon
observations made during out audit.

Previous Recommendations

We reviewed the disposition of recommendations included in our letter dated July 24, 2017.
The following is a summary of the action taken by the Board with regard to our recommendations.

Monthly Financial Close - Internal financial reports were not prepared for the Board on a monthly
basis. Significant adjustments were made at year-end by management that were not reflected in
internally prepared financial reports throughout the year. In order for management to make
appropriate financial decisions, we recommended that accurate internal financial reports be
prepared on a timely basis subsequent to month end. Additionally, these procedures would
highlight cash flow and other operational problems. Management will continue to develop these
procedures.

Plant Fund General Ledger - The Board does not maintain adequate accounting records for the plant
fund. No general ledger or supporting cash receipts or cash disbursement journals were maintained.
In order to properly account for transactions and prepare accurate financial statements, we
recommended that the Board maintain a general ledger and cash receipts and cash disbursement
journals for the plant fund similar to how the other funds are maintained. Management will
continue to develop these procedures.
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The Board of Directors
Niagara Falls Water Board
Page 2

Accounts Receivable - During the course of the 2016 audit, we noted several accounts receivable
which were more than one year old. Although an adequate allowance for uncollectible accounts has
been recorded, we recommended that management review the receivable balances for
reasonableness of collection. After making a final attempt at collection of these balances, any
accounts which are over one year old should be written off against the allowance.

In our review of accounts receivable balances it was noted that management performed this
analysis. Necessary balances were written off as collection was very unlikely.

We take this opportunity to thank the staff of the Niagara Falls Water Board for the courtesy
and cooperation extended to us during the audit. If you have any questions regarding the foregoing
comments or wish any assistance in their implementation, please contact us at your convenience.

Very truly yours,
EFPR GROUP, CPAs, PLLC

(/_/_,_.A
%7 /‘J/_;;VW#V*"&—\_ — —_

Douglas E. Zimmerman, CPA
Partner
Chief Operating Officer
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REPORT TO THE BOARD

April 23, 2018

The Board of Directors
Niagara Falls Water Board

Dear Board Members:

We have audited the financial statements of the Niagara Falls Water Board (the Board) as of
and for the year ended December 31, 2017, and have issued our report thereon dated April 23, 2018.
Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our responsibilities under
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and Government Auditing
Standards, as well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We
have communicated such information in our engagement letter. Professional standards also require
that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit.

Significant Accounting Policies

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The
significant accounting policies used by the Board are described in note 1 to the financial statements.
No new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed
during 2017. We noted no transactions entered into by the Board during the year for which there is
a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in
the financial statements in the proper period.

Accounting Estimates

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by
management and are based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current
events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive
because of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future
events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates
affecting the financial statements were:

e Collection of accounts receivable
e Useful lives used to depreciate capital assets
e Estimated unbilled receivables
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e Compensated absences

e Postemployment benefits

e Pension plans

For the year ended December 31, 2017, we evaluated the key factors and assumptions used

by management in determining accounting estimates and were reasonable in relation to the financial
statements taken as a whole.

Sensitive Disclosures

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their
significance to financial statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting the financial
statements were:

e Bond indebtedness (note 6)

e Postemployment benefits (note 8)

e Pension plans (note 9)

e Risk management and contingent liabilities (note 12)

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing
our audit.

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely adjustments identified
during the audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of
management. There were no material uncorrected misstatements detected as a result of our audit
procedures.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this report, professional standards define a disagreement with management
as a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction,
that could be significant to the financial statements or the auditors’ report. We are pleased to report
that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the
management representation letter.
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Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation
involves application of an accounting principle to the Board’s financial statements or a
determination of the type of auditors’ opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our
professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the
consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other
accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles
and auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the Board’s auditors.
However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our
responses were not a condition to our retention. During our annual audit of the Board, we noted a
compliance and other matter which is described in the schedule of findings and responses as item
(2017-001).

Other Information in Documents Containing Audited Financial Statements

With respect to the required supplementary information accompanying the financial
statements, we made certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods
of preparing the information to determine that the information complies with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, the method of preparing it has not changed from
the prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the
financial statements. We compared and reconciled the required supplementary information to the
underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements
themselves.

This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Directors and management of
the Niagara Falls Water Board and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other
than these specified parties.

We appreciate the opportunity to serve as your auditors. Please contact us at your
convenience if you would like to meet with us to discuss our findings in further detail or to review
any other questions that you might have.

Very truly yours,

EFPR Group, CPAs, PLLC

EFPR GROUP, CPAs, PLLC
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Board of Directors
Niagara Falls Water Board:

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Niagara Falls Water Board (the
Board) as of and for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the related notes to financial
statements, which collectively comprise the Board’s basic financial statements as listed in the table
of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the Board’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Board’s internal control. Accordingly, we express
no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Niagara Falls Water Board as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the
respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the years then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

As discussed in note 2 to the financial statements, the Board adopted the provisions of
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 72 - “Fair Value Measurement
and Application,” during the year ended December 31, 2016. Our opinion is not modified with
respect to this matter.

Other Supplementary Information

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a
whole. The accompanying other supplementary information is presented for purposes of additional
analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility
of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audits of the financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and
other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis on pages 4 through 10, and the required supplementary
information as listed in the table of contents on pages 43 to 45 be presented to supplement the basic
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part
of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an
opinion or provide any assurance.



Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated July 24,
2017, on our consideration of the Board’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion
on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Board’s
internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

EFPR Growp, CPAs, PLLC

Williamsville, New York
July 24, 2017



NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2016 and 2015

As management of the Niagara Falls Water Board (the Board), we offer readers of the Board’s
financial statements this narrative and analysis of the financial activities of the Board for the years
ended December 31, 2016 and 2015.

Following this Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) are the financial statements of the
Board together with the notes thereto. Please read the MD&A in conjunction with the Board’s
financial statements and the accompanying notes in order to obtain a full understanding of the
Board’s financial position and results of operations.

The Board was created by an Act of the State of New York, as more fully described in note 1 to the
financial statements, and commenced operations on September 25, 2003. In accordance with an
agreement with the City of Niagara Falls, New York (the City) the Board received all assets,
liabilities and operating activities (including all personnel) of the City’s former Water and Sewer
Funds. In return, the Board issued debt, which was used to defease outstanding City bonded debt
relating to its Water and Sewer Funds.

The Board adopted the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
Statement No. 72 - “Fair Value Measurement and Application,” during the year ended December
31, 2016.

Financial Highlights

e The assets and deferred outflows of the Board exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows
by $57,593,867 and $58,918,534 (net position) at December 31, 2016 and 2015,
respectively. At December 31, 2016 and 2015, $481,805 and $8,279,649 (unrestricted net
position), respectively, may be used to meet the Board’s ongoing obligations.

e The Board’s operating income for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 was
$2,174,422 and $5,875,062, respectively.

e The Board’s total bond indebtedness decreased by $5,150,220 during the current fiscal year,
as a result of principal payments made of $26,770,000 and premium amortization of
$834,976, offset by issuance of $20,130,000 of principal and premium of $2,324,756. The
issuance of bond principal and premium was a result of refunding a bond of
$23,115,000.

e The Board reflected a liability for postemployment benefits of $24,142,395 and $20,884,760
at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.



NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD

Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Board’s basic financial
statements which include the financial activities of the Board, and its blended component unit, the
Niagara Falls Public Water Authority (the Authority). The reasons for blending the financial
activities are explained in note 1 to the financial statements. An overview of the responsibilities of
the Board and the Authority is presented below.

Board Authority
* Owns the System * Issues debt
*  QOperates and maintains the System * Provides proceeds of debt for
* Responsible for System improvements construction and improvements
*  Sets rates and collects revenues *  Provides oversight regarding
* Pays debt service on bonds adequacy of revenues and System
conditions

The financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the Board’s
finances in a manner similar to a private-sector business, and are organized as follows:

e The statement of net position presents information on all of the Board’s assets, deferred
outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference
between the four reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position
may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Board is improving
or deteriorating.

e The statement of revenue, expenses and changes in net position presents information on how
the Board’s net position changed during the reporting period. All changes in net position are
reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the
timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for
some items that will result in cash flows for future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected water and
sewer rents, earned but unused vacation and postemployment benefits).

e The statement of cash flows presents information depicting the Board’s cash flow activities
for the reporting period and the effect that these activities had on the Board’s cash and
equivalent balances.

e The notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the financial statements. The notes to the financial
statements can be found on pages 16 through 40 of this report.

Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of the Board’s financial
position. Assets and deferred outflows exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows by $57,953,867 at
December 31, 2016, as compared to $58,918,534 at December 31, 2015, as presented below:



NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD

Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

Niagara Falls Water Board’s Net Position

December 31, Increase/(Decrease)

2016 2015 Dollars Percent

Current assets $ 28,334,663 34,571,622 (6,236,959) (18.04%)
Noncurrent assets 159,604,658 157,361,444 2,243,214 1.43%
Total assets 187,939,321 191,933,066 (3,993,745) (2.08%)

Deferred outflows 2,485,058 798,282 1,686,776 211.30%
Current liabilities 8,866,689 10,670,532 (1,803,843) (16.90%)
Noncurrent liabilities 122,599,820 123,142,282 (542,462) (0.44%))
Total liabilities 131,466,509 133,812,814 (2,346,305) (1.75%)

Deferred inflows 1,364,003 - 1,364,003 100.00%
Net investment in capital assets 18,908,087 14,640,371 4,267,716 29.15%
Restricted 38,203,975 35,998,514 2,205,461 6.13%
Unrestricted 481,805 8,279,649 (7,797,844) (94.18%)
Total net position $ 57,593,867 58,918,534 (1,324,667) (2.25%)

The Board’s net investment in capital assets, is a surplus net position of $18,908,087 and
$14,640,371 at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. This results from the timing of the
amortization of the Board’s capital debt, as outstanding principal for most of the Board’s serial
bonds is not paid until late into the life of the debt, while depreciation occurs annually.

The Board’s unrestricted net position was $481,805 and $8,279,649 at December 31, 2016 and
2015, respectively. These assets are not limited as to how and for what they may be used. The
restricted debt service portion of the Board’s net position $22,906,531 and $20,701,070 at
December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively, represents funds that are set aside to be used towards
debt service. The restricted capital projects portion of the Board’s net position ($15,297,444 at
December 31, 2016 and 2015) represents funds that are set aside primarily for the reconstruction of
the Falls Street Tunnel.

The Board’s unrestricted net position is the remainder of total net position after taking net
investment in capital assets, restricted for capital projects, and restricted for debt service into
account. Unrestricted net position decreased in 2016 by $7,797,844 because of an increase in net
investment in capital assets of $4,267,716, an increase of $2,205,461 in restricted for debt service
and a $1,324,667 loss.

A comparison of current assets to current liabilities of the Board at December 31, 2016 and 2015
follows:

2016 2015
Current assets $ 28,334,663 34,571,622
Current liabilities 8,866,689 10,670,532
Ratio of current assets to current liabilities 3.20 3.24



NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD

Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

The Board’s total net position decreased by $1,324,667 during the year ended December 31, 2016,
as compared to an increase of $1,920,835 for the year ended December 31, 2015. Key elements of
the current year’s decrease in net position are as follows:

Niagara Falls Water Board’s Changes in Net Position

Increase/

2016 2015 (decrease)
Total operating revenue $ 30,380,370 33,175,352  (2,794,982)
Total operating expenses (28,205,948) (27,300,290) (905,658)
Operating income 2,174,422 5,875,062  (3,700,640)
Total non-operating revenue (expenses) (3,499,089) (3,954,227) 455,138
Change in net position $ (1,324,667) 1,920,835  (3,245,502)

The Board’s major sources of operating revenue are charges for water and sewer services which
comprise approximately 98% of total operating revenue. These revenues combined comprise an
approximate $2.7 million decrease in operating revenue under 2016. These revenues are dependent
upon rates charged for these services, with such rates being determined by the Board. Please see the
section entitled “Economic Factors and Next Year’s Rates” within this MD&A for a listing of the
rates charged during 2016 and approved rates for 2017.

The Board’s largest operating expense area relates to its employees. Together, personnel costs
(salaries) and employee benefits approximate 46% of all operating expenses. In 2016, these costs
totaled approximately $12.9 million as compared to $13.7 million in 2015, representing an
approximate 5.8% decrease in this area. This decrease is due to the decrease in personnel costs and
related benefits.

Within the non-operating revenue (expenses) category, interest expense is by far the largest expense
item and represents the cost of carrying serial bonds totaling $99,075,000 and $105,715,000 at
December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. In 2015, the Board recognized an expense of $500,000
related to a jury award for litigation. See note 12(b).

The following is a summary of the Board’s cash flow activities for the years ended December 31,
2016 and 2015:

2016 2015

Cash flows provided by (used in):

Operating activities $12,982,848 13,978,428

Capital and related financing activities (14,898,155) (11,109,707)

Investing activities (1,679,773) 27,757
Net increase (decrease) in cash and equivalents (3,595,080) 2,896,478
Cash and equivalents at beginning of year 21,006,461 18,109,983
Cash and equivalents at end of year $17,411,381 21,006,461



NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD

Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

The Board’s available cash and equivalents decreased by $3,595,080 during the year ended
December 31, 2016, as compared to an increase of $2,896,478 during the year ended December 31,
2015. Cash provided by operating activities reflected a positive balance of $12,982,848 for the year
ended December 31, 2016.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital Assets - The Board’s investment in capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) as of
December 31, 2016, amounted to $121,400,683, as compared to $121,190,708 at December 31,
2015. This includes land, plant and transmission (infrastructure type assets), machinery and
equipment, and construction in progress. The Board’s greatest investment in capital assets comes in
the form of infrastructure. Significant factors affecting capital assets during the reporting period
include:

e The Board recorded total additions to capital assets of $6,501,255.

e Construction in progress increased by $6,211,254, and decreased by $290,001 which
represents completed capital projects transferred to their applicable asset categories.

e The Board recorded total depreciation of $6,001,279 and $5,663,169 for the years ended
December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

A summary of capital assets, net of depreciation where applicable, is as follows:

2016 2015
Nondepreciable assets:
Land $ 463,713 463,713
Construction in progress 7,466,615 1,545,362
Depreciable assets:
Plant and transmission assets (water system) 50,482,739 53,375,503
Plant and transmission assets (wastewater system) 58,965,883 61,533,136
Machinery and equipment 4,021,733 4,272,994
Total $ 121,400,683 121,190,708

Construction in progress represents ongoing capital construction which will be transferred to the
appropriate asset category (and begin to be depreciated) upon completion.

More detailed information about the Board’s capital assets is presented in the notes to financial
statements.

Serial Bonds - At December 31, 2016, the Board had outstanding serial bonds totaling
$99,075,000, as compared to $105,715,000 at December 31, 2015. During the year ended
December 31, 2016, the Board made principal payments of $26,770,000 on these bonds and issued
$20,130,000 of new bonds. This is the result of refunding a bond of $23,115,000.

The Board used bond debt to finance the original purchase of the assets (net of liabilities and
including the water, sewer and storm water systems) from the City. In the future, the Board may
utilize bond debt issuances as a primary source of funds for construction, renovations and system
improvements.



NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD

Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

Postemployment Benefits - Upon retirement, the Board’s employees are entitled to continuous
health insurance coverage. At December 31, 2016 and 2015, the liability recorded for these benefits
amounted to $24,142,395 and $20,884,760, respectively. The underfunded actuarial accrued
liability is $69,856,462 and $67,708,721 at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Compensated Absences - Upon separation, Board employees are entitled to payment of unused
sick and vacation time. The total liability relating to these payments at December 31, 2016 is
$798,111, compared to $836,714 at December 31, 2015. The timing of the payments relating to
compensated absences is dependent upon many factors, including the retirement or separation from
service, and is therefore difficult to predict; however, the Board estimates that $76,550 of such
liability is current at December 31, 2016.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Rates

As noted earlier, the Board’s largest sources of operating revenues are water and sewer rents from
customers. These revenues result from rates charged based on water usage by the individual
customer. Rates can be adjusted accordingly in order to help meet the expenses of the Board.
When considering rate changes, the Board utilizes the services of a rate consultant to help forecast
the magnitude and effects of potential changes. As required by law, the general public’s opinions
are also taken into consideration, through public hearings, when contemplating a change in rates
charged for services. Water rates charged for 2016 and approved rates to be charged for 2017 are as
follows:

2016 2017
Amount to be charged Amount to be charged
(per 100 cubic feet) (per 100 cubic feet)
Inside Outside Inside Outside
Amount Consumed city city city city
First 20,000 cubic feet per quarter 3.27 8.74 3.27 8.74
Next 60,000 cubic feet per quarter 2.83 7.63 2.83 7.63
Next 120,000 cubic feet per quarter 2.40 6.36 2.40 6.36
Over 200,000 cubic feet per quarter 1.99 5.35 1.99 5.35
Minimum charge for water consumption
per quarter 4251  113.62 42.51 113.62



NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

In addition to the above schedule of rates for water consumed, a demand charge is assessed for each
user’s meter, as set forth below:
2016 Rate 2017 Rate

Size and Type (per quarter) (per quarter)
Under 1” Disc $ 370 3.70
1” Disc 25.00 25.00
2” Disc 40.00 40.00
2” Compound 40.00 40.00
3” Compound 50.00 50.00
4> Compound 100.00 100.00
6” Compound 220.00 220.00
8” Compound 250.00 250.00
10” Compound 275.00 275.00
12 Compound 400.00 400.00

In addition to charging for water consumption and services, the Board also charges users with
respect to sewer and wastewater services provided. All users have been divided into two “user
classes” - Commercial/Small Industrial/Residential Users (CSIRU) and Significant Industrial Users
(SIV).

Sewer rates for the CSIRU class are determined by the total metered water consumption in each
quarter. Rates charged for 2016 and rates to be charged during 2017 are as follows:

Amount Consumed 2016 2017
Minimum charge per quarter
(up to 1,300 cubic feet) $ 56.29 56.29
Additional usage in excess
of 1,300 cubic feet ($/cubic feet) 4.33 4.33

Sewer rates for the SIU class are determined each quarter based on the actual measured quantities
and composition of wastewater flow. Such rates are determined by the Board and are based upon
five representative 24-hour composite samples taken quarterly. Rates for the SIU class for the year
ended December 31, 2016 were $2,913 per million gallons for wastewater flow; $0.94 per pound
for all suspended solids discharged; and $1.62 per pound for all soluble organic carbon compounds
discharged. Approved rates for 2016 were $2,913 per million gallons for wastewater flow; $0.94
per pound for all suspended solids discharged; and $1.62 per pound for all soluble organic carbon
compounds discharged. In addition, SIU’s are charged fees, as needed, for certain other
“substances of concern” which are discharged in their wastewater.

Contacting the Board’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide taxpayers, customers, and creditors with a general
overview of the Board’s finances and to show the Board’s accountability for the money it receives.
If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact Ms. Kendra
McClain, Michael O’Laughlin Municipal Water Plan, 5815 Buffalo Avenue, Niagara Falls, New
York 14304.
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD

Statements of Net Position
December 31, 2016 and 2015

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and equivalents
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for
uncollectible accounts
Due from other governments
Prepaid expenses
Note receivable - current portion

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Restricted cash and investments - capital projects
Restricted cash and investments - debt service reserve
Note receivable - noncurrent portion

Capital assets:
Land
Waste and waste water system
Machinery and equipment
Construction in progress
Less accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation

Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

Deferred outflows of resources - pensions

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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2016 2015
$ 17,411,381 21,006,461
8,921,060 12,415,858
1,462,940 494,160
367,060 454,074
172,222 201,069
28,334,663 34,571,622
15,297,444 15,297,444
22,906,531 20,701,070

- 172,222

463,713 463,713
166,218,980 166,218,980
7,650,108 7,390,209
7,466,615 1,545,362
(60,398,733)  (54,427,556)
121,400,683 121,190,708
159,604,658 157,361,444
187,939,321 191,933,066
2,485,058 798,282

(Continued)



NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Statements of Net Position, Continued

Liabilities
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable

Accrued liabilities

Overpayments

Award payable (note 12(b))

Current portion of long-term liabilities:
Compensated absences
Postemployment benefits
Bonds payable

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences
Postemployment benefits
Bonds payable
Net pension liability - proportionate share - ERS System

Total noncurrent liabilities
Risk management and contingent liabilities (note 12)
Total liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Pensions
Gain on refunding

Total deferred inflows of resources
Net Position

Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for capital projects
Restricted for debt service
Unrestricted

Total net position

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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2016 2015
$ 1,032,439 1,272,362
1,936,566 3,288,722

- 1,899

. 500,000

76,550 41,836
2,041,134 1,910,713
3,780,000 3,655,000
8,866,689 10,670,532
721,561 794,878
22,101,261 18,974,047
97,619,756 102,894,976
2,157,242 478,381
122,599,820 123,142,282
131,466,509 133,812,814
271,163 .
1,092,840 -
1,364,003 .
18,908,087 14,640,371
15,207,444 15,297,444
22,906,531 20,701,070
481,805 8,279,649

$ 57,593,867 58,918,534




NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD

Statements of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015

Operating revenue:
Water rents and charges
Sewer rents and charges
Licenses and permits
Other services

Total operating revenue

Operating expenses:
Personnel costs
Contractual expenses
Employee benefits
Depreciation expense

Total operating expenses
Operating income

Non-operating revenue (expenses):
Use of money and property
Gain on sale of property
Interest expense
Debt issuance costs

Award payable (note 12(b))
Total non-operating revenue (expenses)
Change in net position
Net position at beginning of year, before restatement
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle
Net position at beginning of year, as restated

Net position at end of year, as restated

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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2016 2015
10,857,206 11,550,903
19,147,911 21,112,768
240,670 250,258
134,583 261,423
30,380,370 33,175,352
4,942,509 5,021,834
9,271,978 7,905,491
7,990,182 8,709,796
6,001,279 5,663,169
28,205,948 27,300,290
2,174,422 5,875,062
525,688 618,846
33,974 26,141
(3,840,715)  (4,099,214)
(218,036) -

- (500,000)
(3,499,089)  (3,954,227)
(1,324,667) 1,920,835
58,018,534 56,998,633
- (934)
58,018,534 56,997,699
57,593,867 58,918,534




NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD

Statements of Cash Flows

Years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers and users
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Proceeds from sale of bonds
Gain on sale of property
Disposal of capital assets
Acquisition of capital assets
Debt issuance costs
Acquisition of premium on capital debt
Acquisition of deferred gain on refunding
Premium paid on capital debt
Principal paid on capital debt
Interest paid on capital debt

Net cash used in capital and related
financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest earned
Change in restricted cash and investments - debt
service reserve

Net cash provided by (used in)
investing activities

Net change in cash and equivalents

Cash and equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and equivalents at end of year

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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2016 2015
$ 33,105,558 32,027,073
(9,816,935)  (7,410,106)
(10,305,775)  (10,638,539)
12,982,848 13,978,428
20,130,000 4,380,000
33,974 26,141
(30,102) (6,083)
(6,289,104)  (3,375,054)
(218,036) -
2,335,569 -
1,092,840 -
(845,789) (66,938)
(26,770,000)  (7,920,000)
(4,337,507)  (4,147,773)

(14,898,155)

(11,109,707)

525,688 618,346
(2,205,461) (591,089)
(1,679,773) 27,757
(3,595,080) 2,896,478
21,006,461 18,109,983

$ 17,411,381 21,006,461

(Continued)



NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Statements of Cash Flows, Continued

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Operating income
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation expense

Changes in:
Accounts receivable
Due from other governments
Prepaid expenses
Note receivable
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Overpayments
Awards payable
Compensated absences
Postemployment benefits
Net pension liability
Deferred outflows - pensions
Deferred inflows - pensions

Total adjustments

Net cash provided by operating activities

Supplemental schedule of cash flow information - adjustment
for capital assets financed by accounts payable

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

15

2016 2015
$ 2174422 5,875,062
6,001,279 5,663,169
3,494,798  (1,020,185)
(968,780) (304,511)
87,014 243,754
201,069 195,134
(131,971) 251,631
(855,364) 55,328
(1,899) (18,717)
(500,000) -
(38,603) (99,578)
3,257,635 3,248,127
1,678,861 (283,297)
(1,686,776) 172,511
271,163 -
10,808,426 8,103,366
$ 12,982,848 13,978,428
$ 473,220 581,172




NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2016 and 2015

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the Niagara Falls Water Board (the Board) have been prepared in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
(GAAP) as applied to governmental units. Included in the Board’s reporting entity is a
blended component unit, the Niagara Falls Public Water Authority (the Authority).

(a) Reporting Entity
The Board was created by Chapter 325 of the Laws of 2002 of the State of New York (the
State), codified as Sections 1231-a of Title 10-C of Article 5 of the Public Authorities
Law of the State, as amended (the Board Act). The Authority was created by Chapter
275 of the Laws of 2002 of the State, constituting the Niagara Falls Public Water
Authority Act, codified as Sections 1230-a through 1230-aa of Title 10-B of Article 5 of
the Public Authorities Law of the State, as amended (the Authority Act).

The Board is a corporate municipal instrument of the State consisting of five members
primarily responsible for the jurisdiction, control, possession, supervision and use of
water, wastewater and storm water systems within the City of Niagara Falls, New York
(the City).

The Authority is a public benefit corporation consisting of three members and is primarily
responsible for obtaining financing for water, wastewater and storm water systems
within the City.

Board members for both the Board and Authority are appointed pursuant to the enabling
legislation.

Pursuant to the Board Act and the Authority Act, the Board, the Authority and the City
executed an acquisition agreement effective September 25, 2003 whereby the Authority
issued bonds enabling the Board to purchase all of the assets, net of liabilities, of the
City’s public water, wastewater and storm water systems. The Board began operations
of these systems on that date.

Currently there are approximately 19,534 residential, 329 commercial and 23 large industrial
type customers. Total population served by the water system is estimated at 51,600.
The average daily demand is 20.4 million gallons per day. The Board’s wastewater
system generally covers the same service area and customer base as the water system.
The wastewater treatment plant processes approximately 27.4 million gallons of
wastewater per day.

Blended Presentation of Component Unit - Although they are legally separate entities,
blended component units are, in substance, part of the government’s operations. The
following is a brief description of the blended component unit included in the primary
government.
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

(a) Reporting Entity, Continued
Niagara Falls Public Water Authority - Among the powers given to the Authority is the
ability to borrow money and issue negotiable or non-negotiable notes, bonds or other
obligations for the acquisition, renovation and improvement to the regional water
system.

The Authority may also apply for licenses, permits and approval of plans associated with the
acquisition, renovation and improvement of the regional water system. In the process of
borrowing funds to improve facilities, professional consultants may be retained to offer
technical services and advice for the purpose and benefit of acquiring or improving the
systems.

The Authority has entered into an agreement with the Board to make payments for the debt
service required by these bonds. The Board is also required to make payments for
Authority expenses. The obligation to make debt service is a general obligation to which
its full faith and credit are pledged.

The Authority is considered a component unit since the Board is obligated to pay debt
service and fund other accounts of the Authority. Thus, the Authority is “fiscally
dependent” upon the Board to establish rates and collect fees necessary to pay these
debts. Further, the Authority is “blended” with the Board in the financial statements
because the Authority exists solely to provide services that predominantly benefit the
Board.

(b) Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting
The financial statements of the Board have been prepared in accordance with GAAP as
applied to governmental units. The Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing government accounting and
financial reporting principles.

The activities of the Board are accounted for similar to those often found in the private
sector using the flow of economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting. All assets, liabilities, deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of
resources, net position, revenues, and expenses are accounted for through a single
enterprise fund with revenues recorded when earned and expenses recorded at the time
liabilities are incurred.

Revenues from providing water and sanitary sewer services are reported as operating
revenues. Transactions which are capital, financing or investing related are reported as
non-operating revenues. All expenses related to operating systems are reported as
operating expenses. Interest expense and financing costs are reported as non-operating
expenses.

(c) Budgets

The annual budget is the financial plan for the effective operation of the Board and the
Authority. The Board uses the budget as a management tool for internal control
purposes and to assist in setting of appropriate user charges.
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

(d) Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and Net Position

Cash and Equivalents - The Board’s cash and equivalents represent cash on hand,
demand deposits, and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or
less from the date of acquisition.

Restricted Cash and Investments - Capital Projects - In 2007, the Board received
$19,000,000 from the New York State Power Authority (the Power Authority) which is
restricted for capital improvement projects including, but not limited to, the Falls Street
Tunnel. At December 31, 2016 and 2015, the total amount restricted for capital projects
amounted to $15,297,444.

Restricted Cash and Investments - Debt Service Reserve - As a result of the purchase of
the water and sewer systems from the City, certain bond covenants, as disclosed in note
6, were established requiring resources (consisting of cash and investments) to be
maintained for specific purposes necessary to operate the water and sewer systems.

Cash has been deposited into various trust funds with a fiscal agent to satisfy certain
covenants. Further, the amounts have been invested into various short-term investments
in compliance with the Board’s investment policy. Certain funds were used for their
intended purposes and are no longer available for investment.

The debt service reserve fund was established to fulfill the debt service reserve
requirements on the outstanding bonds as and when they become due.

Investments - During the year ended December 31, 2016, the Board adopted the
provisions of GASB Statement No. 72 - “Fair Value Measurement and Application.”
The primary objective of this Statement is to provide guidance for applying fair value to
certain investments and disclosures related to all fair value measurements. The
implementation of this Statement requires the Board to disclose its valuation techniques.
See note 2 for the financial statement impact of the implementation on the financial
statements.

Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures

A framework has been established for measuring fair value. That framework provides a fair
value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value.
The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable
inputs (Level 3 measurements). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are described
below:

e Levell- Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for
identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the Board has the ability
to access.
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

(d) Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and Net Position, Continued
e Level 2- Inputs to the valuation methodology include:

Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets;

Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets;

Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the assets or liabilities; and

Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market
data by correlation or other means.

e Level 3- Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to
the fair value measurement.

The asset’s or liability’s fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is
based on the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement.
Valuation techniques used need to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize
the use of unobservable inputs. There have been no changes in the methodologies used
at December 31, 2016.

The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured
at fair value.

Mutual funds and equities - Valued at the closing price reported on the active market
in which the individual securities are traded.

Corporate and government bonds - Valued at the closing price reported on the active
markets in which the individual securities are traded.

The Board assess the levels of the investments at each measurement date, and transfers
between levels are recognized on the actual date of the event or change in circumstances
that caused the transfer in accordance with its accounting policy regarding the
recognition of transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy.

e Accounts Receivable - All receivables are reported at their gross values and, where
appropriate, are reduced by the estimated portion that is expected to be uncollectible.
The Board has adopted a policy of recognizing water and sewer revenues in the period in
which the services are provided. Billings to customers generally consist of revenues
earned from the prior three months for quarterly billed customers, and revenues earned
from the prior month for monthly billed customers.

The collection of current water and sewer charges is performed by the Board. The City,
acting as collecting agent for the Board, collects delinquent water and sewer charges.
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

(d) Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and Net Position, Continued

Prepaid Expenses - Prepaid expenses reflect costs applicable to future accounting
periods and are recorded as prepaid items in the financial statements.

Capital Assets - Capital assets acquired by the Board as part of the September 25, 2003
acquisition agreement with the City were reported at fair value on the acquisition date.
Capital assets acquired by the Board subsequent to the initial acquisition are stated at
cost including interest capitalized during construction, where applicable. Costs include
material, direct labor and other items such as supervision, payroll taxes, employee
benefits, transportation, and certain preliminary legal, engineering and survey costs. The
costs of repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred. Contributed fixed assets are
recorded at fair market value at the date received.

Construction projects are conducted on a continuing basis in order to maintain or
enhance the systems. Preliminary legal, engineering and survey costs include studies
conducted prior to the actual construction period that directly result in specific
construction projects. While capital projects are in process, all associated costs are
recorded as construction in progress. Once completed, all costs, including legal,
engineering, survey and construction costs, are reclassified to their respective asset
categories and depreciated according to their useful lives.

Depreciation has been recorded using the straight-line method of depreciation. The
estimated useful lives of the Board’s major classes of depreciable assets are based on the
utility of the respective assets. The estimated useful lives of depreciable fixed assets are
as follows:

Assets Years
Land N/A
Plant and transmission assets 25-50
Machinery and equipment 5-20

Compensated Absences - Board employees are granted vacation and sick leave and earn
compensatory absences in varying amounts. In the event of termination or upon
retirement, all union employees are entitled to payment for accumulated vacation and
compensatory time limited to amounts defined under their respective collectively
bargained agreements. All non-union employees are entitled to similar benefits as
defined by their respective contracts with the Board.

Payments of vacation and sick leave and compensatory time are dependent upon many
factors; therefore, the timing of future payments is not readily determinable. However,
management believes that sufficient resources will be available for the payments of
vacation leave and compensatory time when such payments become due.
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

(d) Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and Net Position, Continued

Postemployment Benefits - In accordance with GASB Statement No. 45, the Board
recognizes in its financial statements, the financial impact of postemployment benefits,
principally employer funded health care costs. The impact on the Board’s financial
position and results of its operations is more adequately disclosed under note 8.

Bond and Note Discounts/Premiums - Are presented as components of bonds payable.
The discounts/premiums are amortized over the life of the bonds and notes on a method
that approximates the effective interest method.

Long-term Obligations - Long-term debt is reported as liabilities in the accompanying
Statements of Net Position. Bond premiums are deferred and amortized over the life of
the respective bonds.

Retirement Plan - The Board provides retirement benefits for substantially all of its
regular, full-time employees through contributions to the New York State Employees’
and Local Employees’ Retirement System (ERS). The ERS provides various plans and
options, some of which require employee contributions.

Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources - In the Statement of Net Position, in
addition to assets and liabilities, the Board will sometimes report separate section for
deferred outflows of resources and another for deferred inflows of resources. Deferred
outflows of resources, represent a consumption of net position that applies to a future
period and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure)
until then. The Board has two items that qualify for reporting in this category. The first
item is related to pensions reported in the Statement of Net Position. This represents the
effect of the net change in the Board’s proportion of the collective net pension liability
and difference during the measurement period between the Board’s contributions and its
proportionate share of total contributions to the pension system not included in pension
expense. The second item is the Board contributions to the pension systems subsequent
to the measurement date.

In addition to liabilities, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a separate
section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element,
deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to
future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until
that time. The Board has two items that qualify for reporting in this category. The first
is related to pensions reported in the Statement of Net Position. This represents the
effect of the net change in the Board’s proportion of the collective net pension liability
and difference during the measurement periods between the Board’s contributions and
its proportion share of total contributions to the pension systems not included in the
pension expense. The second item is the deferred gain the Board incurred on its debt
refunding transaction.
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

(e) Use of Estimates
The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

(f) Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions

The Board adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 68 - “Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Pensions - an Amendment to GASB Statement No. 27” and GASB
Statement No. 71 - “Pension Transitions for Contributions Made Subsequent to the
Measurement Date - an Amendment to GASB Statement No. 68.” The primary
objective of the Statements is to improve accounting and financial reporting by state and
local governments for pensions. The implementation of the Statements requires the
Board to report as an asset and/or liability its portion of the collective pension asset
and/or liability in the New York State Employees’ Retirement System. The
implementation of the Statements also requires the Board to report a deferred outflow
and/or inflow for the effect of the net change in the Board’s proportion of the collective
net pension asset and/or liability and difference during the measurement period between
the Board’s contributions and its proportionate share of total contributions to the pension
system not included in pension expense. Also included as deferred outflows are the
Board’s contributions to the pension system subsequent to the measurement date.

(9) Income Taxes
The Board is a public benefit corporation of the State of New York. As such, income earned
in the exercise of its essential government functions is exempt from State and Federal
income taxes.

(h) Subsequent Events
The Board has evaluated subsequent events through the date of the report which is the date
the financial statements were available to be issued.

(2) Cash and Equivalents and Investments

The Board’s investment policies are governed by State statute. Board monies must be deposited
in Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) insured commercial banks or trust
companies located within the State. The Board is authorized to use demand accounts and
certificates of deposit. Permissible investments include obligations of the U.S. Treasury and
U.S. agencies, repurchase agreements, and obligations of the State or its localities.

Collateral is required for demand deposits and certificates of deposit in an amount equal to or
greater than the amount of all deposits not covered by FDIC insurance coverage.
Obligations that may be pledged as collateral are outlined in Chapter 623 of the laws of the
State.
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(2) Cash and Equivalents and Investments, Continued

The Board’s cash and equivalents at December 31, 2016 and 2015 include the following

captions on the statements of net position:

2016 2015

Cash and equivalents $17,411,381 21,006,461
Restricted cash and investments:
Capital projects 15,297,444 15,297,444
Debt service reserve 22,906,531 20,701,070
Total $55,615,356 57,004,975
Cash and equivalents are comprised of the following:

2016 2015
Petty cash (uncollateralized) $ 100 100
Deposits 45,914,035 46,098,270
Investments 9,701,221 10,906,605
Total $55,615,356 57,004,975

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits - In the case of deposits, this is the risk that, in the event of a
bank failure, the Board’s deposits may not be returned to it. As noted above, by State
statute, all deposits in excess of FDIC insurance coverage must be collateralized. As of
December 31, 2016 and 2015, all uninsured bank deposits were fully collateralized with
securities held by the pledging financial institution’s trust department or agent in the Board’s

name.

Custodial Credit Risk - Investments - For investments, this is the risk that, in the event of the
failure of the counterparty, the Board will not be able to recover the value of its investments
that are in the possession of an outside party. At December 31, 2016 and 2015, all of the
Board’s restricted cash in the form of investments was registered in the Board’s name and

was invested in U.S. Government backed securities.
The Board’s investments at December 31, 2016, consist of the following:

Investments Maturity
U.S. Treasuries 3/1/17 - 11/1/41
Federal Home Mortgage Corp. 1/11/17 - 6/20/17
Federal Farm Credit Bank 2/17/17 - 5/30/17

Total investments
These investments are classified as Level 1.
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$ 1,255,632
8,041,174
404,415

$ 9,701,221




NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(2) Cash and Equivalents and Investments, Continued
Maturity Schedule

Less than one year $ 8,619,216
More than one year 1,082,005

$ 9,701,221

The Board’s investments at December 31, 2015, consist of the following:

Investments Maturity Fair Value

U.S. Treasuries 1/14/16 - 11/1/41 $ 2,875,605
Federal Home Mortgage Corp. 1/8/16 - 6/24/16 8,031,000
Total investments $ 10,906,605

These investments are classified as Level 1.
Maturity Schedule

Less than one year $ 10,446,302
More than one year 460,303
$ 10,906,605

Concentration Credit Risk - For investments, this is the risk of loss attributable to the quantity of
the government’s investment in a single issuer. Investments in single issuers that equal or
exceed 5% of total investments have a reportable concentration of credit risk. At December
31, 2016, the Board held 82.89% and 12.94% of its investment balance in Federal Home
Mortgage Corp. and U.S. Treasury notes, respectively.

(3) Receivables

Major revenues accrued by the Board at December 31, 2016 and 2015 include the following:

(a) Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable primarily represents amounts due from customers for current and
delinquent water and wastewater services provided, including penalties, unpaid bill
charges, collection fees and shut-off charges.

Customers are billed either on a monthly or quarterly basis depending on the type of user
(industrial or residential), and the level of water and sewer usage. Customers may make
payments without penalty on current charges up until 20 days after receiving their bill.
Any unpaid balances remaining after these 20 days are subject to a penalty of 6%, and
those customers receive an unpaid bill notice. If balances still remain unpaid after 30
additional days, final unpaid notices are mailed. The customers are then given 10 days
to remit payment, after which the property is tagged, and shut-off procedures begin.
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(3) Receivables, Continued

(a) Accounts Receivable, Continued
During the first week of December of every year, unpaid balances are transferred to the City
tax roll for collections through the subsequent year’s tax levy or in-rem property sales.
Any amounts relating to unpaid water and wastewater balances collected by the City
through these means are delivered to the Board.

As of December 31, 2016, $1,102,478 was included in allowance for uncollectible accounts
to account for receivable balances that may not be collected. There was no balance as of
December 31, 2015.

(b) Due from Other Governments
Due from other governments represents amounts due primarily from the City. Amounts
accrued at December 31, 2016 and 2015 consist of:

2016 2015
City of Niagara Falls - tax transfer $ 1,253,422 494,160
Due from Cascades Company 209,518 -

$ 1,462,940 494,160

The tax transfer represents uncollected water and sewer charges that have been turned over
to the City for collection in conjunction with the City’s property tax levy. The City
remits these charges to the Board each January and July for collections it receives for the
previous six-month period. This amount includes collected but not yet remitted charges
at year-end. Charges from all previous years’ water and sewer operations transferred to
the City that are not collected totaled $6,062,119 and $3,670,545 at December 31, 2016
and 2015, respectively. Management has recorded an allowance for uncollectible
accounts with respect to these balances of $4,599,179 and $3,176,385 at December 31,
2016 and 2015, respectively.

(4) Notes Receivable

Cascades Company

During 1987, Nitec Paper Corporation filed for bankruptcy with several years of outstanding
taxes, water and sewer charges due to the City, the County of Niagara (the County), and the
Niagara Falls Board of Education (the Board of Education). The City obtained the deed in
lieu of foreclosure and sold the plant to Cascades Company for outstanding taxes and
charges totaling $5,400,000. Upon closing, $100,000 was paid to the City with the
remaining $5,300,000 to be paid over 30 years as follows: Commencing November 1, 1988
through October 1, 1997, monthly payments of interest only at 3%; beginning on November
1, 1997 through October 1, 2017, monthly payments of interest and principal of $29,394.
The Board receives 59.4% of these monthly payments, with the remaining 40.6% split
between the City (16.2%), the County (6.8%), and the Board of Education (17.6%).
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(4) Notes Receivable, Continued

Cascades Company, Continued

2016 2015
Cascades Company $ 172,222 373,291
Less current portion (172,222) (201,069)
Notes receivable - noncurrent portion $ - 172,222

(5) Capital Assets

The Board’s capital assets activity for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 is
summarized as follows:
Balance Balance
1/1/2016 Increases Decreases 12/31/2016

Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land $ 463,713 - - 463,713
Construction in progress 1,545,362 6,211,254 (290,001) 7,466,615
Total capital assets not
being depreciated 2,009,075 6,211,254 (290,001) 7,930,328
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Plant and transmission costs:
Water system 87,488,822 - - 87,488,822
Wastewater system 78,730,158 - - 78,730,158
Machinery and equipment 7,390,209 290,001 (30,102) 7,650,108
Total capital assets
being depreciated 173,609,189 290,001 (30,102) 173,869,088
Less accumulated depreciation:
Plant and transmission costs:
Water system (34,113,319) (2,892,764) - (37,006,083)
Wastewater system (17,197,022) (2,567,253) - (19,764,275)
Machinery and equipment (3,117,215)  _(541,262) 30,102 (3,628,375)
Total accumulated
depreciation (54,427,556) (6.001,279) 30,102  (60,398,733)
Total being depreciated, net 119,181,633  (5,711,278) - 113,470,355
Capital assets, net $ 121,190,708 499,976 (290,001) 121,400,683
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Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(5) Capital Assets, Continued

Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land
Construction in progress

Total capital assets not
being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated:

Plant and transmission costs:
Water system
Wastewater system
Machinery and equipment

Total capital assets
being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation:
Plant and transmission costs:
Water system
Wastewater system
Machinery and equipment

Total accumulated
depreciation

Total being depreciated, net

Capital assets, net

Balance Balance
1/1/2015 Increases Decreases 12/31/2015
463,713 - - 463,713
7,526,517 3,951,746 (9,932,901) 1,545,362
7,990,230 3,951,746 (9,932,901) 2,009,075
86,566,694 922,128 - 87,488,822
73,039,921 5,690,237 - 78,730,158
6,549,953 856,853 (16,597) 7,390,209
166,156,568 7,469,218 (16,597) 173,609,189
(31,177,532)  (2,935,787) - (34,113,319)
(14,866,451)  (2,330,571) - (17,197,022)
(2,726,487) (396,811) 6,083 (3,117,215)
(48,770,470) (5,663,169) 6,083 (54,427 ,556)
117,386,098 1,806,049 (10,514) 119,181,633
$ 125,376,328 5,757,795 (9,943,415) 121,190,708

Insurance proceeds for flood damage incurred in 2014 of $2,463,683 were recorded as an
increase in construction in progress in 2015.

(6) Bond Indebtedness

The Authority issued debt to provide for the acquisition of the water and sewer systems and for
the initial funding of operating and maintenance and debt reserves. During the years ended
December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Authority issued Series 2016A bonds and Series 2015D

bonds, respectively.

The proceeds of the Series 2005A - Clean Water issue were used to obtain the North Gorge
Interceptor capital project from the City and to fund further capital improvements.
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(6) Bond Indebtedness, Continued

The net proceeds of the Series 2005 issue were used to eliminate outstanding short-term debt,
fund current and future capital improvements, and to refund a portion of outstanding debt in
the amount of $16,020,000. Such amount was deposited in an irrevocable trust to provide
for future debt service payments on the Series 2003A bonds. Accordingly, the trust account
assets and the liability for the defeased bonds are not included in the Board’s financial
statements.

The effect of the refunding transaction was a decrease in debt service payments of $1,603,619
and an economic gain of $1,124,676. The economic gain is the difference in present values
of the old and new debt service payments.

The premium on the Series 2005 bonds amounted to $1,495,985, and has been deferred and is
being amortized over the life of the bonds. The premium is included in the bonds payable
balance in the Board’s statements of net position.

The proceeds of Series 2012B amounted to $6,607,122 - Clean Water issue were used to payoff
the EFC Note used to fund North Gorge Interceptor Capacity Restoration Project.

In 2013, the Board issued $74,240,000 in general obligation bonds with an average interest rate
of 4.72% and received an additional premium of $142,002. The bonds were used for an
advanced refunding of $63,535,000 of 2003 Bonds with an average interest rate of 3.79%.
The net proceeds of approximately $64 million were deposited in a trust with an agent to
provide for future debt service payments on the bonds. As a result, the bonds are considered
defeased and the liability for those bonds has been removed from the Board’s financial
statements. The economic gain on the transaction (the difference between the present values
of the debt service payments on the old and new debt) is approximately $1.7 million.

During 2014 net proceeds of the Series B bonds were used to entirely refund the Series 2004
Serial Bonds of $4,095,000, specifically reducing the interest to be paid by approximately
$610,000.

During 2015, net proceeds of the Series D bonds were used to entirely refund the Series
2005A&B Serial Bonds of $4,380,000 specifically reducing the interest to be paid by
approximately $550,000. As a result, the bonds are considered defeased and the liability for
these bonds has been removed from the Board’s financial statements. The economic gain on
the transaction (the difference between the present values of the debt service payments on
the old and new debt) is approximately $450,000.

During 2016, net proceeds of the Series A bonds were used to entirely refund the Series 2005
bonds of $23,115,000 specifically reducing the interest to be paid by approximately
$4,093,685. As a result, the bonds are considered defeased and the liability for these bonds
has been removed from the Board financial statements. The economic gain on the
transaction (the difference between the present values of the debt service payments on the
old and new debt) is $4,108,685.

Serial bond activity for the year ended December 31, 2016 is presented on the following page:
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(6) Bond Indebtedness, Continued
Serial Bond Activity:

Niagara Falls Public Water Authority Bonds:

Series 2005 Bonds

Series 2013A Bonds
Series 2013B Bonds
Series 2016A Bonds

New York State Environmental Facilities
Corporation Water Revolving Funds
Revenue Bonds:

Series 2013B - Clean Water

Series 2013B - Drinking Water
Series 2013B - Drinking Water
Series 2013B - Drinking Water
Series 2015D - Drinking Water
Series 2014B - Drinking Water
Series 2012B - Clean Water

Totals

Reconciliation to statements of net position:
Principal outstanding
Unamortized premium on bonds

Current portion of bonds payable
Non-current portion of bonds payable

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

Year of Yearof Interest
Issue Maturity Rate %
2005 2034 5.00-5.50
2013 2034 3.0-5.0
2013 2024 4.309
2016 2034 3.13-5.0
2013 2033 3.88-5.05
2013 2023 4.75-4.91
2013 2019 5.14-5.59
2013 2019 5.14-5.59
2015 2034 3.81-4.57
2014 2021 5.40
2012 2041 0.26 -4.27
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Principal Principal
Original Outstanding Outstanding
Amount 1/1/2016 Issued Paid 12/31/2016

23,115,000 23,115,000 - 23,115,000 -
36,060,000 35,780,000 - 285,000 35,495,000
8,415,000 7,005,000 - 760,000 6,245,000
23,130,000 - 20,130,000 - 20,130,000
14,030,000 12,975,000 - 550,000 12,425,000
5,580,000 5,580,000 - - 5,580,000
6,770,000 4,590,000 - 1,150,000 3,440,000
3,385,000 2,295,000 - 575,000 1,720,000
4,380,000 4,380,000 - 160,000 4,220,000
- 4,095,000 - - 4,095,000
6,607,122 5,900,000 - 175,000 5,725,000
$ 131,472,122 105,715,000 20,130,000 26,770,000 99,075,000
105,715,000 99,075,000
834,976 2,324,756
106,549,976 101,399,756
3,655,000 3,780,000
102,894,976 97,619,756
106,549,976 101,399,756



NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(6) Bond Indebtedness, Continued
The annual maturities of long-term debt as of December 31, 2016 are as follows:

Premium
Year on bonds Serial bonds Total
2017 $ 129,754 3,780,000 3,909,754
2018 129,754 3,915,000 4,044,754
2019 129,754 4,055,000 4,184,754
2020 129,754 4,135,000 4,264,754
2021 129,754 4,280,000 4,409,754
2022-2026 648,770 24,615,000 25,263,770
2027-2031 648,770 30,740,000 31,388,770
2032-2036 378,446 21,815,000 22,193,446
2037-2041 - 1,740,000 1,740,000
$ 2,324,756 99,075,000 101,399,756
Annual interest payments due on serial bonds as of December 31, 2016 are as follows:

2017 $ 3,242,017

2018 3,486,817

2019 3,132,360

2020 3,228,716

2021 2,741,537

2022-2026 13,013,405

2027-2031 7,865,384

2032-2036 1,867,509

2037-2041 197,460

Total $ 38,775,205

Financing Agreement Covenants

The financing agreement between the Authority and the Board relating to all current and future
bonding contain various covenants pertaining to the use and maintenance of the trust funds
established from the proceeds of each bonding. At December 31, 2016, management
believes the Board was in compliance with the following loan covenants:

The Board is required to establish and collect rates, fees and charges sufficient in each fiscal
year at least equal to the sum of:

(1) 115% of the estimated aggregate debt service and projected debt service payable in such
fiscal year;

(2) 100% of Board operating expenses and Authority expenses payable in such fiscal year;
and

(3) 100% of the amount necessary to pay the required deposits for such fiscal year.
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(6) Bond Indebtedness, Continued
The Board shall review the adequacy of fees, rates and charges at least semi-annually.

The Board shall enforce the payment of any and all amounts owed for the use of the systems.

The Board shall (unless required by law) not furnish or supply, or cause to be furnished or
supplied, any product, use or service of the systems, free of charge.

The debt service fund balance, beginning with the first day of each calendar month, shall receive
all revenues until the balance in the debt service fund equals the minimum monthly balance.
The minimum monthly balance is defined as an amount equal to the sum of the aggregate
amounts of debt service that have accrued with respect to all series of bonds, calculating the
debt service that has accrued as an amount equal to the sum of:

(1) The interest on the bonds that has accrued and is unpaid and that will have accrued by
the end of the then calendar month; and

(2) The portion of the next due principal installment for the bonds that would have accrued
(as deemed to accrue in the manner interest accrues) by the end of the then calendar
month.

(7) Compensated Absences

As explained in note 1, the Board reports the value of compensated absences as a liability. The
annual budgets of the operating funds provide funding for these benefits as they become
payable. The payment of compensated absences is dependent on many factors; therefore,
the timing of future payments is not readily determinable. The current portion payable is
estimated at 5% of the total compensated absences liability. Additionally, for the year ended
December 31, 2016, the compensated absences for three individuals whose contracts were
terminated in February 2017 are considered part of the current portion payable. The current
portion of the liability amounted to $76,550 and $41,836 at December 31, 2016 and 2015,
respectively. The long-term portion of the liability amounted to $721,561 and $794,878 at
December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

(8) Postemployment Benefits

The Board provides postemployment benefits to eligible retirees in the form of health insurance.
The obligation of the Board and its employees to contribute to the cost of providing these
benefits has been established pursuant to various collective bargaining agreements and
Board policy for those individuals not included in one of the bargaining units. Under such
agreements, participants are not required to contribute to the health care plan. In 2008, the
Board adopted the requirements of GASB Statement No. 45. In conformance with the
provisions of that statement, the Board recognizes the costs of postemployment health care
in the year when the employees’ services are received, reports the accumulated liability from
prior years, and provides information useful in assessing potential demands on the Board’s
future cash flows. Recognition of the liability accumulated from prior years will be phased
in over 30 years commencing in 2008.
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(8) Postemployment Benefits, Continued

Plan Description - The Board provides continuation of medical, prescription drug, dental, vision
and chiropractic coverage for employees who retire and are at least age 50 and have an age,
plus years of service, of at least 70. All retirees and future retirees hired prior to June 1,
2006 have no contribution requirements for both individual and family coverage. All future
retires hired after June 1, 2006 are required to pay 20% of the individual and family
premiums.

The Board provides certain health care benefits for retired employees. Substantially all of the
employees may become eligible for these benefits if they reach the normal retirement age
and have the required minimum age plus years of service working for the Board. The
Board, on an annual basis, accrues the cost that represents the present value of these benefits
to be paid over the estimated lives of the retirees. The annual other postemployment benefit
cost (OPEB) charged to operations for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015
amounted to $5,465,210 and $5,269,304, respectively. At December 31, 2016 and 2015, the
current portion of the postemployment benefits liability was $2,041,134 and $1,910,713,
respectively. The non-current portion of the postemployment benefits liability amounted to
$22,101,261 and $18,974,047 at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

The number of participants as of January 1, 2016 and 2015 was as follows:

2016 2015

Active employees 80 79
Retired employees 75 17
Total 155 156

Funding Policy - The Board currently pays for postemployment health care benefits on a pay-as-
you-go basis. These financial statements assume that pay-as-you-go funding will continue.

2016 2015
Benefit Obligations and Normal Costs
Actuarial accrued liability (AAL):

Retired employees and dependents $ 37,841,626 37,863,374
Active employees 32,014,836 29,845,347
Total $ 69,856,462 67,708,721
Underfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) $ 69,856,462 67,708,721
Normal costs at beginning of year 1,153,871 1,107,716
Interest on normal cost 46,155 46,155
$ 1,200,026 1,153,871
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(8) Postemployment Benefits, Continued

Level Dollar Amortization

Calculation of ARC under projected Unit Credit Method:
Amortization of UAAL over 30 years with interest to

end of year
Interest on amortization payment
Normal costs with interest to end of year

Annual required contribution (ARC)

Annual OPEB Cost Contribution

Contributions made for years ended December 31, 2016

and 2015

Contributions as a percentage of required contribution

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

Annual required contribution (OPEB cost)

Contributions made on a pay-as-you-go basis

Increase in net OPEB obligation
Net OPEB obligation at beginning of year

Net OPEB obligation at end of year

Actuarial methods and assumptions:
Actuarial cost method

Discount rate

2016 trend rate (Medical)

2017 trend rate (Medical)

Yearly decrease after year 2

Years until ultimate rate

The remaining amortization period at
December 31, 2016 and 2015
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2016 2015
$ 3,407,824 3,400,266
857,360 715,167
1,200,026 1,153,871
$ 5465210 5269304
2,207,575 2,021,177
40.4% 38.4%
5,465,210 5,269,304
(2,207,575) (2,021,177)
3,257,635 3,248,127
20,884,760 17,636,633
$ 24142395 20,884,760
Projected Projected
Unit Credit  Unit Credit
4% 4%
8.50% 9.00%
8.00% 8.50%
0.50% 0.50%
5 years 6 years
22 years 23 years



NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(9) Pension Plans

(a) Plan Descriptions and Benefits Provided

Employees’ Retirement System (ERS)

The Board participates in the New York State and Local Employees’ Retirement System
(ERS). This is a cost-sharing multiple-employer retirement system. The System
provides retirement benefits as well as death and disability benefits. The net position of
the System is held in the New York State Common Retirement Authority (the
Authority), which was established to hold all net assets and record changes in plan net
position allocated to the System. The Comptroller of the State of New York serves as
the trustee of the Board and is the administrative head of the System. System benefits
are established under the provision of the New York State Retirement and Social
Security Law (RSSL). Once a public employer elects to participate in the System, the
election is irrevocable. The New York State Constitution provides that pension
membership is a contractual relationship and plan benefits cannot be diminished or
impaired. Benefits can be changed for future members only by enactment of a State
statute. The Board also participates in the Public Employees; Group Life Insurance Plan
(GLIP), which provides death benefits in the form of life insurance. The System is
included in the State’s financial report as a pension trust fund. That report, including
information  with regard to benefits provided, may be found at
www.osc.state.ny.us/retire/publications/inex.php or obtained by writing to the New York
State and Local Retirement System, 110 State Street, Albany, New York 12244,

The System is noncontributory except for employees who joined after July 27, 1976, who
contribute 3 percent of their salary for the first ten years of membership, and employees
who joined on or after January 1, 2010 who generally contribute 3.0 to 3.5 percent of
their salary for their entire length of service. In addition, employee contribution rates
under ERS tier VI vary based on a sliding salary scale. The Comptroller annually
certifies the actuarially determined rates expressly used in computing the employers’
contributions based on salaries paid during the Systems fiscal year ending March 31.

Contributions for the current year and two preceding years were equal to 100 percent of the
contributions required, and were as follows:

ERS
2016 $ 646,238
2015 725,071
2014 864,054
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(9) Pension Plans, Continued

(b) Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

At December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Board reported the following liability for its
proportionate share of the net pension liability for ERS. The net pension liability was
measured as of March 31, 2016 and 2015. The total pension liability used to calculate
the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation. The Board’s
proportionate share of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the Board’s
long-term share of contributions to the System relative to the projected contributions of
all participating members, actuarially determined. This information was provided by

ERS in reports provided to the Board.

Actuarial measurement date 3/31/2016 3/31/2015
Net pension liability $ 2,157,242 478,381
Board’s proportion of the Plan’s net

pension liability 0.0134405%  0.0141606%

For the year ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Board recognized pension expense of
$902,036 and $464,170 for ERS, respectively. At December 31, 2016 and 2015 the
Board’s reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions from the following sources:

2016 2015
Deferred  Deferred Deferred  Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of  Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources Resources Resources

Differences between expected

and actual experience $ 10,901 255,705 15,314 -
Changes of assumption 575,271 - - -
Net difference between projected

and actual earnings on pension

plan investments 1,279,794 - 83,089 -
Changes in proportion and

differences between the Board’s

contributions and proportionate

share of contributions 134,079 15,458 124,923 -
Board’s contributions subsequent

to the measurement date 485,013 - 574,956 -
Total $ 2,485,058 271,163 798,282 -

Board contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of
the net pension liability in the subsequent year. Other amounts reported as deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be
recognized in pension expense as follows:
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(9) Pension Plans, Continued

(b) Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions, Continued

Year ended ERS
2017 $ 445,866
2018 445,866
2019 445,866
2020 391,284
2021 -

Thereafter -

(c) Actuarial Assumptions
The total pension liability as of the measurement date was determined by using an actuarial
valuation as noted in the table below, with update procedures used to roll forward the
total pension liability to the measurement date. The actuarial valuations used the
following actuarial assumptions:

Significant actuarial assumptions used in the valuations were as follows:

Measurement date March 31, 2016

Actuarial valuation date April 1, 2015

Interest rate 7.0%

Salary scale 3.8% Average

Decrement tables April 1, 2010 - March 31, 2015
System’s Experience

Inflation rate 2.5%

Annuitant mortality rates are based on April 1, 2010 - March 31, 2015 System’s experience
with adjustments for mortality improvements based on MP-2014.

The actuarial assumptions used in the April 1, 2015 valuation are based on the results of an
actuarial experience study for the period April 1, 2010 - March 31, 2015.

The long term rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building
block method in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected returns net of investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major
asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long term expected rate of return
by weighting the expected future real rates of return by each the target asset allocation
percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of the arithmetic real rates
of return for each major asset class included in the target asset allocation are summarized
below:
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(c) Actuarial Assumptions, Continued

Measurement date March 31, 2016

Asset type:
Domestic equity 7.30%
International equity 8.55%
Real estate 8.25%
Private equity 11.00%
Absolute return strategies 6.75%
Opportunities portfolio 8.60%
Real assets 8.65%
Bonds and mortgages 4.00%
Cash 2.25%
Inflation - indexed bonds 4.00%

(d) Discount Rate

The discount rate used to calculate the total pension liability was 7.0% in 2016 and 7.5% in
2015. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumes that
contributions from plan members will be made at the current contribution rates and that
contributions from employers will be made at statutorily required rates, actuarially.
Based upon the assumptions, the System’s fiduciary net position was projected to be
available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members.
Therefore the long term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied
to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

(e) Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to the Discount Rate
The following presents the Board’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated
using the discount rate of 7.0%, as well as what the Authority’s proportionate share of
the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-
percentage point lower (6.0%) or 1-percentage point higher (8.0%) than the current rate:

1% Current 1%
Decrease  Assumption  Increase
(6.0%) (7.0%) (8.0%)
Employer’s proportionate share of
the net pension asset (liability) $ 4,864,423 2,157,242 (130,211)
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(f) Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position
The components of the current-year net pension liability of all participating employers as of
the respective measurement dates, were as follows:

(Dollars in Millions)

Measurement date 3/31/2016 3/31/2015
Employers’ total pension liability $(172,303) (164,592)
Plan net position 156,253 161,213
Employers’ net pension liability $ (16,050) (3.379)
Ratio of plan net position to the

Employers’ total pension liability 90.7% 97.95%

(9) Contributions to the Pension Plan
Employer contributions are paid annually based on the System’s fiscal year which ends on
March 31%. Retirement contributions as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 represent the
projected employer contribution for the period of April 1, 2016 through March 31, 2017
and April 1, 2015 through March 31, 2016, respectively based on paid ERS wages
multiplied by the employer’s contribution rate, by tier. This amount has been recorded as
deferred outflows of resources in the accompanying financial statements.

(10) Net Position

The Board’s financial statements utilize a net position presentation. Net position is categorized
as net investment in capital assets, restricted for debt service, restricted for capital projects
and unrestricted.

Net Investment in Capital Assets - This category groups all capital assets into one component of
net position. Accumulated depreciation and the outstanding balances of debt that are
attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of these assets reduce the
balance in this category.

The Board’s investment in capital assets, net of related debt is in a surplus position of
$18,908,087 and $14,640,371 at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. The surplus
results from the amortization of the Board’s capital debt, as outstanding principal for the
majority of Board’s serial bonds is not paid until late into the life of the debt while
depreciation occurs ratably over the life of the assets.
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Restricted Net Position - This category represents external restrictions imposed by creditors,
grantors, contributors, or laws and regulations of other governments and restrictions
imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Restricted for Capital Projects:

Amounts restricted for capital projects is $15,297,444 at December 31, 2016 and 2015. In
2007, the Board received $19,000,000 from the Power Authority under a “Relicensing
Settlement Agreement.” The Agreement provided for the creation of a “Niagara Falls
Water Board Capital Improvement Fund.” These funds are restricted for future use
related to capital improvements of the Board including but not limited to any specific
project including the Falls Street Tunnel project. At December 31, 2016, approximately
$9,685,000 of these funds are included in this account.

Restricted for Debt Service:

Board restrictions at December 31, 2016 and 2015 of $22,906,531 and $20,701,070,
respectively, are for debt service.

Unrestricted Net Position - This category represents net position of the Board not restricted for
any project or other purpose. Additions of $4,267,716 in net investment in capital assets and
$2,205,461 of restrictions for debt service decreased unrestricted net position by $6,473,177.
The total loss for the year of $1,324,667 also decreased unrestricted net position.

(11) Labor Relations

The majority of the Board’s employees are represented by four bargaining units, with the
balance governed by Board policies. Contracts for all of the bargaining units covered a six-
year term which expired on December 31, 2010. The Board is currently in negotiations with
the bargaining units regarding new contracts. As of December 31, 2016, there were no
finalized contracts and there was only verbal agreements in place.

(12) Risk Management and Contingent Liabilities

Risk management and contingent liabilities at December 31, 2016 are detailed as follows:

(a) Insurance

The Board is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts; theft of, damage to and
destruction of assets; injuries to employees; and natural disasters, for which the Board
carries commercial insurance. There were no settlements that significantly exceeded
insurance coverage for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015.
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(12) Risk Management and Contingent Liabilities, Continued
(b) Litigation
The Board is involved in litigation arising in the ordinary course of its operations. The

Board believes that its ultimate liability, if any, in connection with these matters will not
have a material effect on its financial condition or results of operations.

At December 31, 2015 the financial statements reflect the result of the jury award of a
lawsuit for damages incurred as a result of an accident. The award was made subsequent
to year end but prior to the date that the financial statements were made available. The
award originally totaled $586,479. Award payable of $500,000 was accrued as
insurance would cover amounts in excess of that. In 2016 the lawsuit was settled for
$331,404 resulting in a miscellaneous revenue of $168,596.

(13) Significant Events

(a) Management Restructuring
In February 2017 the Board underwent significant management restructuring. As part of the
restructuring three Directors and general counsel to the Board were replaced.
Additionally, the Director of Financial Services resigned prior to year-end.

(b) New York Office of the State Comptroller Audit
The New York Office of the State Comptroller (OSC) released an audit of the Water Board
for the period of January 1, 2013 through April 30, 2015. Issues noted by OSC were
addressed through the additions of schedule 1 and 2 on pages 41 - 42.
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Niagara Falls Water Authority (a Blended Component Unit)

Other Supplementary Information
Statements of Net Position
December 31, 2016 and 2015

Assets
Current assets - cash and equivalents
Noncurrent assets - due from Water Board

Total assets

Liabilities
Current liabilities - bonds payable
Noncurrent liabilities - bonds payable
Risk management and contingent liabilities (note 12)

Total liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Gain on refunding

Net Position
Unrestricted

41

Schedule 1

2016 2015
$ 78,959 82,830
102,758,300 106,815,680
102,837,259 106,898,510
3,780,000 3,655,000
97,619,756 102,894,976
101,399,756 106,549,976
1,092,840 -
$ 344,663 348,534




NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD

Niagara Falls Water Authority (a Blended Component Unit)

Other Supplementary Information
Statements of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015

Operating revenue - other services
Operating expenses - contractual expenses

Change in net position
Net position at beginning of year

Net position at end of year

42

Schedule 2

2016 2015
$ - -
3,871 3,299
(3,871) (3,299)
348,534 351,833
$ 344,663 348,534




NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Funding Progress
Other Postemployment Benefits Plan
Last three fiscal years

Unfunded
liability
Actuarial Unfunded asa
Fiscal Valuation actuarial percentage
year ended Date Value of  Accrued accrued  Funded Covered of covered
December 31, January 1, assets liability liability ratio payroll payroll
2016 2014 $ - 69,856,462 69,856,462 0% 4,994,649  1399%
2015 2014 - 67,708,721 67,708,721 0% 3,649,206  1855%
2014 2014 - 65,509,282 65,509,282 0% 4,881,465 1342%
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Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
Year ended December 31, 2016 and 2015

NYSERS Pension Plan

2016 2015
Board's proportion of the net pension liability 0.0134405% 0.0141606%
Board's proportionate share of the net pension liability $ 2,157,242 $ 478,381

©

Board's covered payroll 4,397,005 $ 4,082,614

Board's proportionate share of the net pension liability
as a percentage of its covered - employee payroll 49.06% 11.72%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total
pension liability 90.70% 97.95%

* The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the March 31, 2016 and
2015 measurement dates of the plan.
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Schedule of Employer Pension Contributions
Year ended December 31, 2016 and 2015

NYSERS Pension Plan

2016 2015 2014 2013

Contractually required contribution $ 646,238 725,071 864,054 900,289
Contributions in relation to the

contractually required contribution 646,238 725,071 864,054 900,289
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - - - -
Board's covered employee payroll $ 4,397,005 4,082,614 4,483,962 4,442,277
Contributions as a percentage of

covered employee payroll 14.70% 17.76% 19.27% 20.27%
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER
MATTERS, INCLUDING COMPLIANCE WITH INVESTMENT GUIDELINES,
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Board of Directors
Niagara Falls Water Board

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the
Niagara Falls Water Board (the Board), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2016, and the
related notes to financial statements, which collectively comprise the Board’s basic financial
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated July 24, 2017.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Board’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Board’s
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Board’s
internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the Board’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to
merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Board’s financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, including Investment Guidelines for Public Authorities
and Board’s Investment Guidelines, honcompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed an instance of noncompliance or other
matter that is required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards and which is described
in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses as item 2016-001.

The Board’s Response to Finding

The Board’s response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and responses. The Board’s response was not subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion
on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Board’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Board’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

EFPR Group, CPAs, PLLC

Williamsville, New York
July 24, 2017
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Schedule of Findings and Responses
Year ended December 31, 2016

(2016-001) PARIS Filing

Condition - The Board did not file the independent audit report within 90 days after the end of the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2016 via the Public Authorities information System (PARIS).

Criteria - Pursuant to Section 2800 of Public Authorities Law, the Board is required to submit their
annual report via PARIS within 90 days after the end of each fiscal year.

Effect - The Authorities Budget Office has the authority to “publicly warn and censure authorities
for non-compliance” with this requirement and to recommend the “suspension or dismissal of
officers or directors, based on information that is, or is made, available to the public under law.”

Cause - Prior to the beginning of the audit fieldwork for the year ended December 31, 2016 three
Directors had their employment contracts terminated. Additionally, before year-end the Director of
Financial Services resigned. This caused the timing of the audit fieldwork to be moved back as well
as a learning curve for new accounting personnel to produce essential reports needed to complete
the audit.

Recommendation - We recommend that the Board submit the independent audit report to PARIS as
soon as possible.

Management’s Correction Action - The Board has approved the independent audit report and will
file with PARIS upon receipt of the final reports.
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Status of Prior Year Audit Findings
Year ended December 31, 2016

(2015-001) PARIS Filing

Condition - The Board did not file the independent audit report within 90 days after the end of the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2015 via the Public Authorities information System (PARIS).

Status - This was a one time issue due to the OSC audit. However, due to different circumstances,
this finding was repeated for the year ended December 31, 2016.

Management’s Correction Action - The Board has approved the independent audit report which will
be filed with PARIS.

49



.
YEFPRGrROUP CPAS:

6390 Main Street, Suite 200
Williamsville, NY 14221

P 716.634.0700
TF 800.546.7556

F 716.634.0764
w EFPRgroup.com

July 24, 2017

CONFIDENTIAL

The Board of Directors
Niagara Falls Water Board

Dear Board Members:

We have completed our audit of the financial statements of the Niagara Falls Water Board
(the Board) for the year ended December 31, 2016. Considering the test character of our audit, you
will appreciate that reliance must be placed on adequate methods of internal control as your
principal safeguard against irregularities which a test examination may not disclose. We now
present for your consideration our comments and recommendations based upon observations made
during our audit.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors,
management and others within the Board.

We now present for your consideration our comments and recommendations based upon
observations made during out audit.

Monthly Financial Close

Internal financial reports were not prepared for the Board on a monthly basis. Significant
adjustments were made at year-end by management that were not reflected in internally prepared
financial reports throughout the year. In order for management to make appropriate financial
decisions, we recommend that accurate internal financial reports be prepared on a timely basis
subsequent to month end. Additionally, these procedures would highlight cash flow and other
operational problems.

Plant Fund General Ledger

The Board does not maintain adequate accounting records for the plant fund. No general
ledger or supporting cash receipts or cash disbursement journals were maintained. In order to
properly account for transactions and prepare accurate financial statements, we recommend that the
Board maintain a general ledger and cash receipts and cash disbursement journals for the plant fund
similar to how the other funds are maintained.


ncometto
Williamsville


The Board of Directors
Niagara Falls Water Board
Page 2

Accounts Receivable

During the course of our audit, we noted several accounts receivable which were more than
one year old. Although an adequate allowance for uncollectible accounts has been recorded, we
recommend that management review the receivable balances for reasonableness of collection. After
making a final attempt at collection of these balances, any accounts which are over one year old
should be written off against the allowance.

* * * * *

We take this opportunity to thank the staff of the Niagara Falls Water Board for the courtesy
and cooperation extended to us during the audit. If you have any questions regarding the foregoing
comments or wish any assistance in their implementation, please contact us at your convenience.

Very truly yours,

EFPR GROUP, CPAs, PLLC

=

Douglas E. Zimmerman, CPA
Partner
Chief Operating Officer
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REPORT TO THE BOARD

July 24, 2017

The Board of Directors
Niagara Falls Water Board

Dear Board Members:

We have audited the financial statements of the Niagara Falls Water Board (the Board) as of
and for the year ended December 31, 2016, and have issued our report thereon dated July 24, 2017.
Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our responsibilities under
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and Government Auditing
Standards, as well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We
have communicated such information in our engagement letter. Professional standards also require
that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit.

Significant Accounting Policies

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The
significant accounting policies used by the Board are described in note 1 to the financial statements.
As described in note 2 to the financial statements, the Board adopted Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 72 - “Fair Value Measurement and Application,” during
the year ended December 31, 2016. We noted no transactions entered into by the Board during the
year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions
have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period.

Accounting Estimates

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by
management and are based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current
events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive
because of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future
events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates
affecting the financial statements were:

e Collection of accounts receivable
e Useful lives used to depreciate capital assets

e Estimated unbilled receivables


ncometto
Williamsville


The Board of Directors
Niagara Falls Water Board
Page 2

e Compensated absences

e Postemployment benefits

e Pension plans

For the year ended December 31, 2016, we evaluated the key factors and assumptions used

by management in determining accounting estimates and were reasonable in relation to the financial
statements taken as a whole.

Sensitive Disclosures

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their
significance to financial statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting the financial
statements were:

e Bond indebtedness (note 6)

e Postemployment benefits (note 8)

e Pension plans (note 9)

e Risk management and contingent liabilities (note 12)

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing
our audit.

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely adjustments identified
during the audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of
management. There were no material uncorrected misstatements detected as a result of our audit
procedures.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as
a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that
could be significant to the financial statements or the auditors’ report. We are pleased to report that
no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the
management representation letter.



The Board of Directors
Niagara Falls Water Board
Page 3

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation
involves application of an accounting principle to the Board’s financial statements or a
determination of the type of auditors’ opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our
professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the
consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other
accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles
and auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the Board’s auditors.
However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our
responses were not a condition to our retention. During our annual audit of the Board, we noted a
compliance and other matter which is described in the schedule of findings and responses as item
(2016-001).

Other Information in Documents Containing Audited Financial Statements

With respect to the required supplementary information accompanying the financial
statements, we made certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods
of preparing the information to determine that the information complies with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, the method of preparing it has not changed from
the prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the
financial statements. We compared and reconciled the required supplementary information to the
underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements
themselves.

This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Directors and management of
the Niagara Falls Water Board and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other
than these specified parties.

We appreciate the opportunity to serve as your auditors. Please contact us at your
convenience if you would like to meet with us to discuss our findings in further detail or to review
any other questions that you might have.

Very truly yours,

EFPR Growp, CPAs, PLLC

EFPR GROUP, CPAs, PLLC
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REPORT TO THE BOARD

May 13, 2016

The Board of Directors
Niagara Falls Water Board

Dear Board Members:

We have audited the financial statements of the Niagara Falls Water Board (the Board) as of
and for the year ended December 31, 2015, and have issued our report thereon dated May 13, 2016.
Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our responsibilities under
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and Government Auditing
Standards, as well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We
have communicated such information in our engagement letter. Professional standards also require
that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit.

Significant Accounting Policies

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The
significant accounting policies used by the Board are described in note 1 to the financial statements.
As described in note 1 to the financial statements, the Board adopted Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 68 - “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions -
an Amendment to GASB Statement No. 27” and GASB Statement No. 71 - “Pension Transition for
Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date - an Amendment of GASB Statement No.
68,” during the year ended December 31, 2015. We noted no transactions entered into by the Board
during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant
transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period.

Accounting Estimates

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by
management and are based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current
events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive
because of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future
events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates
affecting the financial statements were:

e Collection of accounts receivable
e Useful lives used to depreciate capital assets

o [Estimated unbilled receivables



The Board of Directors
Niagara Falls Water Board
Page 2

e Compensated absences

e Postemployment benefits

e Pension plans

For the year ended December 31, 2015, we evaluated the key factors and assumptions used

by management in determining accounting estimates and were reasonable in relation to the financial
statements taken as a whole.

Sensitive Disclosures

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their
significance to financial statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting the financial
statements were:

¢ Bond indebtedness (note 6)

e Postemployment benefits (note 8)

e Pension plans (note 9)

e Risk management and contingent liabilities (note 12)

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing
our audit.

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely adjustments identified
during the audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of
management. There were no audit adjustments.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as
a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that
could be significant to the financial statements or the auditors’ report. We are pleased to report that
no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the
management representation letter.



The Board of Directors
Niagara Falls Water Board
Page 3

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation
involves application of an accounting principle to the Board’s financial statements or a
determination of the type of auditors’ opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our
professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the
consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other
accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles
and auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the Board’s auditors.
However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our
responses were not a condition to our retention. During our annual audit of the Board, we noted a
compliance and other matter which is described in the schedule of findings and questioned costs as
item (2015-001).

Other Information in Documents Containing Audited Financial Statements

With respect to the required supplementary information accompanying the financial
statements, we made certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods
of preparing the information to determine that the information complies with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, the method of preparing it has not changed from
the prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the
financial statements. We compared and reconciled the required supplementary information to the
underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements
themselves.

This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Directors and management of
the Niagara Falls Water Board and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other
than these specified parties.

We appreciate the opportunity to serve as your auditors. Please contact us at your
convenience if you would like to meet with us to discuss our findings in further detail or to review
any other questions that you might have.

Very truly yours,

EFPR Group, CPAs, PLLC

EFPR GROUP, CPAs, PLLC
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Board of Directors
Niagara Falls Water Board:

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Niagara Falls Water Board (the
Board) as of and for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the related notes to financial
statements, which collectively comprise the Board’s basic financial statements as listed in the table
of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the Board’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Board’s internal control. Accordingly, we express
no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Niagara Falls Water Board as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the
changes in financial position, and cash flows thereof for the years then ended, in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

As discussed in note 9 to the financial statements, the Board adopted the provisions of
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 68 - “Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Pensions - an Amendment of GASB Statement No. 27 and GASB Statement No. 71
- “Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date - an
Amendment of GASB Statement No. 68,” during the year ended December 31, 2015. Our opinion
is not modified with respect to this matter.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis on pages 3 through 10, and the required supplementary
information as listed in the table of contents on pages 39 to 41 be presented to supplement the basic
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part
of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an
opinion or provide any assurance.



Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated May 13,
2016, on our consideration of the Niagara Falls Water Board’s internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and
not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report
is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the Niagara Falls Water Board’s internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

EFPR Growp, CPAs, PLLC

Williamsville, New York
May 13, 2016



NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2015 and 2014

As management of the Niagara Falls Water Board (the Board), we offer readers of the Board’s
financial statements this narrative and analysis of the financial activities of the Board for the years
ended December 31, 2015 and 2014.

Following this Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) are the financial statements of the
Board together with the notes thereto. Please read the MD&A in conjunction with the Board’s
financial statements and the accompanying notes in order to obtain a full understanding of the
Board’s financial position and results of operations.

The Board was created by an Act of the State of New York, as more fully described in note 1 to the
financial statements, and commenced operations on September 25, 2003. In accordance with an
agreement with the City of Niagara Falls, New York (the City) the Board received all assets,
liabilities and operating activities (including all personnel) of the City’s former Water and Sewer
Funds. In return, the Board issued debt, which was used to defease outstanding City bonded debt
relating to its Water and Sewer Funds.

The Board adopted the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
Statement No. 68 - “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions - an Amendment of GASB
Statement No. 27” and GASB Statement No. 71 - “Pension Transition for Contributions Made
Subsequent to the Measurement Date - an Amendment of GASB Statement No. 68,” during the year
ended December 31, 2015.

Financial Highlights

e The assets and deferred outflows of the Board exceeded its liabilities by $58,918,534 and
$56,998,633 (net position) at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. At December 31,
2015 and 2014, $8,279,649 and $6,371,794 (unrestricted net position), respectively, may be
used to meet the Board’s ongoing obligations.

e The Board’s operating income for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 was
$5,875,062 and $3,904,840, respectively.

e The Board’s total bond indebtedness decreased by $3,606,938 during the current fiscal year,
as a result of principal payments made of $7,920,000 and premium amortization of $66,938,
offset by issuance of $4,380,000 of principal.

* The Board reflected a liability for postemployment benefits of $20,884,760 and $17,636,633
at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.



NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD

Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Board’s basic financial
statements which include the financial activities of the Board, and its blended component unit, the
Niagara Falls Public Water Authority (the Authority). The reasons for blending the financial
activities are explained in note 1 to the financial statements. An overview of the responsibilities of
the Board and the Authority is presented below.

* XK ¥ ¥ %

Board Authority
Owns the System *  Issues debt
Operates and maintains the System * Provides proceeds of debt for
Responsible for System improvements construction and improvements
Sets rates and collects revenues *  Provides oversight regarding
Pays debt service on bonds adequacy of revenues and System
conditions

The financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the Board’s
finances in a manner similar to a private-sector business, and are organized as follows:

The statement of net position presents information on all of the Board’s assets, deferred
outflows of resources and liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net
position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of
whether the financial position of the Board is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of revenue, expenses and changes in net position presents information on how
the Board’s net position changed during the reporting period. All changes in net position are
reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the
timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for
some items that will result in cash flows for future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected water and
sewer rents, earned but unused vacation and postemployment benefits).

The statement of cash flows presents information depicting the Board’s cash flow activities
for the reporting period and the effect that these activities had on the Board’s cash and
equivalent balances.

The notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the financial statements. The notes to the financial
statements can be found on pages 16 through 38 of this report.

Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of the Board’s financial
position. Assets and deferred outflows exceeded liabilities by $58,918,534 at December 31, 2015,
as compared to $56,998,633 at December 31, 2014, as presented below:



NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD

Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

Niagara Falls Water Board’s Net Position

December 31, Increase/(Decrease)

2015 2014 Dollars Percent

Current assets $ 34,571,622 30,798,316 3,773,306 12.25%
Noncurrent assets 157,361,444 161.157.044 (3.795.600) (2.36%)
Total assets 191,933,066 191,955,360 (22,294) 0.00%

Deferred outflows 798.282 - 798,282  100.00%
Current liabilities 10,670,532 11,528,181 (857,649) (7.44%)
Noncurrent liabilities 123,142,282 123,428,546 (286.,264) (0.23%)
Total liabilities 133,812,814 134,956,727 (1,143,913) (0.85%)
Net investment in capital assets 14,640,371 15,219.414  (579,043) (3.80%)
Restricted 35,998,514 35,407,425 591,089 1.67%
Unrestricted 8,279,649 6,371,794  1,907.855 29.94%

Total net position $ _58918,534 56.998.633 1,919,901 3.37%

The Board’s net investment in capital assets, is a surplus net position of $14,640,371 and
$15,219,414 at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. This results from the timing of the
amortization of the Board’s capital debt, as outstanding principal for most of the Board’s serial
bonds is not paid until late into the life of the debt, while depreciation occurs annually.

The Board’s unrestricted net position was $8,279,649 and $6,371,794 at December 31, 2015 and
2014, respectively. These assets are not limited as to how and for what they may be used. The
restricted debt service portion of the Board’s net position ($20,701,070 and $20,109,981 at
December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively) represents funds that are set aside to be used towards
debt service. The restricted capital projects portion of the Board’s net position ($15,297,444 at
December 31, 2015 and 2014) represents funds that are set aside primarily for the reconstruction of
the Falls Street Tunnel.

A comparison of current assets to current liabilities of the Board at December 31, 2015 and 2014
follows:

2015 2014
Current assets $ 34,571,622 30,798,316
Current liabilities 10,670,532 11,528,181
Ratio of current assets to current liabilities 3.24 2.67

The Board’s total net position increased by $1,920,835 ($1,919,901 before cumulative effect of
change in accounting principle of $934) during the year ended December 31, 2015, as compared to
an increase of $416,506 for the year ended December 31, 2014. Key elements of the current year’s
increase in net position are as follows:
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

Niagara Falls Water Board’s Changes in Net Position

Increase/
2015 2014 (decrease)
Total operating revenue $ 33,175,352 29,640,395 3,534,957
Total operating expenses (27.300.290) (25.735,555) (1.564.735)
Operating income 5,875,062 3,904,840 1,970,222
Total non-operating revenue (expenses) (3.954.227) (3.488.334) (465.893)
Change in net position $ _1.920.835 416,506 1,504,329

The Board’s major sources of operating revenue are charges for water and sewer services which
comprise approximately 98% of total operating revenue. These revenues combined comprise an
approximate $3.5 million increase in operating revenue under 2015. These revenues are dependent
upon rates charged for these services, with such rates being determined by the Board. Please see the
section entitled “Economic Factors and Next Year’s Rates” within this MD&A for a listing of the
rates charged during 2015 and approved rates for 2016.

The Board’s largest operating expense area relates to its employees. Together, personnel costs
(salaries) and employee benefits approximate 50% of all operating expenses. In 2015, these costs
totaled approximately $13.7 million as compared to $13.3 million in 2014, representing an
approximate 3.6% increase in this area. This increase is due to the rising costs of providing health
care and other employee benefits.

Within the non-operating revenue (expenses) category, interest expense is by far the largest expense
item and represents the cost of carrying serial bonds totaling $105,715,000 and $109,255,000 at
December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. In 2015, the Board recognized an expense of $500,000
related to a jury award for litigation. See note 12(b).

The following is a summary of the Board’s cash flow activities for the years ended December 31,
2015 and 2014:

2015 2014

Cash flows provided by (used in):

Operating activities $ 13,978,428 11,427,045

Capital and related financing activities (11,109,707) (13,294,465)

Investing activities 27.757 3.084.716
Net increase in cash and equivalents 2,896,478 1,217,296
Cash and equivalents at beginning of year 18.109.983  16.892.687
Cash and equivalents at end of year $21,006.461  18.109.983

The Board’s available cash and equivalents increased by $2,896,478 during the year ended
December 31, 2015, as compared to an increase of $1,217,296 during the year ended December 31,
2014. Cash provided by operating activities reflected a positive balance of $13,978,428 for the year
ended December 31, 2015.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital Assets - The Board’s investment in capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) as of
December 31, 2015, amounted to $121,190,708, as compared to $125,376,328 at December 31,
2014. This includes land, plant and transmission (infrastructure type assets), machinery and
equipment, and construction in progress. The Board’s greatest investment in capital assets comes in
the form of infrastructure. Significant factors affecting capital assets during the reporting period
include:

e The Board recorded total additions to capital assets of $7,469,218.

e Construction in progress increased by $3,951,746, and decreased by $9,932,901 which
represents completed capital projects transferred to their applicable asset categories, net of
insurance proceeds.

e The Board recorded total depreciation of $5,663,169 and $5,232,346 for the years ended
December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

A summary of capital assets, net of depreciation where applicable, is as follows:

2015 2014
Nondepreciable assets:
Land $ 463,713 463,713
Construction in progress 1,545,362 7,526,517
Depreciable assets:
Plant and transmission assets (water system) 53,375,503 55,389,162
Plant and transmission assets (wastewater system) 61,533,136 58,173,470
Machinery and equipment 4,272,994 3.823.466
Total $ 121,190,708 125,376,328

Construction in progress represents ongoing capital construction which will be transferred to the
appropriate asset category (and begin to be depreciated) upon completion.

More detailed information about the Board’s capital assets is presented in the notes to financial
statements.

Serial Bonds - At December 31, 2015, the Board had outstanding serial bonds totaling
$105,715,000, as compared to $109,255,000 at December 31, 2014. During the year ended
December 31, 2015, the Board made principal payments of $7,920,000 on these bonds.

The Board used bond debt to finance the original purchase of the assets (net of liabilities and
including the water, sewer and storm water systems) from the City. In the future, the Board may
utilize bond debt issuances as a primary source of funds for construction, renovations and system
improvements.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysjs, Continued

Postemployment Benefits - Upon retirement, the Board’s employees are entitled to continuous
health insurance coverage. At December 31, 2015 and 2014, the liability recorded for these benefits
amounted to $20,884,760 and $17,636,633, respectively. The underfunded actuarial accrued
liability is $67,708,721 and $65,509,282 at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Compensated Absences - Upon separation, Board employees are entitled to payment of unused
sick and vacation time. The total liability relating to these payments at December 31, 2015 is
$836,714, compared to $936,292 at December 31, 2014. The timing of the payments relating to
compensated absences is dependent upon many factors, including the retirement or separation from
service, and is therefore difficult to predict; however, the Board estimates that $41,836 of such
liability is current at December 31, 2015.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Rates

As noted earlier, the Board’s largest sources of operating revenues are water and sewer rents from
customers. These revenues result from rates charged based on water usage by the individual
customer. Rates can be adjusted accordingly in order to help meet the expenses of the Board.
When considering rate changes, the Board utilizes the services of a rate consultant to help forecast
the magnitude and effects of potential changes. As required by law, the general public’s opinions
are also taken into consideration, through public hearings, when contemplating a change in rates
charged for services. Water rates charged for 2015 and approved rates to be charged for 2016 are as
follows:

2015 2016
Amount to be charged Amount to be charged
(per 100 cubic feet) (per 100 cubic feet)
Inside Outside Inside Outside
Amount Consumed city city city city
First 20,000 cubic feet per quarter 3.13 8.37 3.27 8.74
Next 60,000 cubic feet per quarter 2.71 7.31 2.83 7.63
Next 120,000 cubic feet per quarter 2.30 6.09 2.40 6.36
Over 200,000 cubic feet per quarter 1.91 5.12 1.99 5.35
Minimum charge for water consumption
per quarter 40.69 108.81 42.51 113.62
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

In addition to the above schedule of rates for water consumed, a demand charge is assessed for each
user’s meter, as set forth below:
2015 Rate 2016 Rate

Size and Type (per quarter) (per quarter)
Under 1” Disc § 370 3.70
1” Disc 25.00 25.00
2” Disc 40.00 40.00
2” Compound 40.00 40.00
3” Compound 50.00 50.00
4> Compound 100.00 100.00
6” Compound 220.00 220.00
8” Compound 250.00 250.00
10” Compound 275.00 275.00
12” Compound 400.00 400.00

In addition to charging for water consumption and services, the Board also charges users with
respect to sewer and wastewater services provided. All users have been divided into two “user
classes” - Commercial/Small Industrial/Residential Users (CSIRU) and Significant Industrial Users
(SIU).

Sewer rates for the CSIRU class are determined by the total metered water consumption in each
quarter. Rates charged for 2015 and rates to be charged during 2016 are as follows:

Amount Consumed 2015 2016
Minimum charge per quarter
(up to 1,300 cubic feet) $ 53.95 56.29
Additional usage in excess
0f 1,300 cubic feet ($/cubic feet) 4.15 4.33

Sewer rates for the SIU class are determined each quarter based on the actual measured quantities
and composition of wastewater flow. Such rates are determined by the Board and are based upon
five representative 24-hour composite samples taken quarterly. Rates for the SIU class for the year
ended December 31, 2015 were $2,840 per million gallons for wastewater flow; $0.94 per pound
for all suspended solids discharged; and $1.62 per pound for all soluble organic carbon compounds
discharged. Approved rates for 2015 were $2,913 per million gallons for wastewater flow; $0.94
per pound for all suspended solids discharged; and $1.62 per pound for all soluble organic carbon
compounds discharged. In addition, STU’s are charged fees, as needed, for certain other
“substances of concern” which are discharged in their wastewater.

Contacting the Board’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide taxpayers, customers, and creditors with a general
overview of the Board’s finances and to show the Board’s accountability for the money it receives.
If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact Ms. Mary
Jean Buddenhagen, Michael O’Laughlin Municipal Water Plan, 5815 Buffalo Avenue, Niagara
Falls, New York 14304.
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD

Statements of Net Position
December 31, 2015 and 2014

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and equivalents
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for
uncollectible accounts
Due from other governments
Prepaid expenses
Notes receivable - current portion

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Restricted cash and investments - capital projects
Restricted cash and investments - debt service reserve
Notes receivable - noncurrent portion

Capital assets:
Land
Plant and transmission assets
Machinery and equipment
Construction in progress
Less accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation

Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

Deferred outflows of resources - pensions

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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2015 2014
$ 21,006,461 18,109,983
12,415,858 11,395,673
494,160 189,649
454,074 907,877
201,069 195,134
34,571,622 30,798,316
15,297,444 15,297,444
20,701,070 20,109,981
172,222 373,291
463,713 463,713
166,218,980 159,606,615
7,390,209 6,549,953
1,545,362 7,526,517
(54,427,556) (48,770,470)
121,190,708 125,376,328
157,361,444 161,157,044
191,933,066 191,955,360
798,282 -
(Continued)
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Liabilities
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable

Accrued liabilities

Overpayments

Award payable (note 12(b))

Current portion of long-term liabilities:
Compensated absences
Postemployment benefits
Bonds payable

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences
Postemployment benefits
Bonds payable
Net pension liability - proportionate share - ERS System

Total noncurrent liabilities
Risk management and contingent liabilities (note 12)

Total liabilities

Net Position

Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for capital projects
Restricted for debt service
Unrestricted

Total net position

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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2015 201
$ 1,272,362 2,924,319
3,288,722 3,281,953
1,899 20,616
500,000 -
41,836 46,814
1,910,713 1,714,479
3,655,000 3,540,000
10,670,532 11,528,181
794,878 889,478
18,974,047 15,922,154
102,894,976 106,616,914
478,381 -
123,142,282 123,428,546
133,812,814 134,956,727
14,640,371 15,219,414
15,297,444 15,297,444
20,701,070 20,109,981
8,279,649 6,371,794
$ 58,918,534 56,998,633




NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD

Statements of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014

Operating revenue:
Water rents and charges
Sewer rents and charges
Licenses and permits
Other services

Total operating revenue

Operating expenses:
Personnel costs
Contractual expenses
Employee benefits
Depreciation expense

Total operating expenses
Operating income

Non-operating revenue (expenses):
Use of money and property
Gain on sale of property
Interest expense
Award payable (note 12(b))

Total non-operating revenue (expenses)
Change in net position
Net position at beginning of year, before restatement
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle (note 13)
Net position at beginning of year, as restated

Net position at end of year, as restated

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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2015 2014
$ 11,550,903 11,246,172
21,112,768 17,924,980
250,258 236,549
261,423 232,694
33,175,352 29,640,395
5,021,834 4,943,369
7,905,491 7,249,300
8,709,796 8,310,540
5,663,169 5,232,346
27,300,290 25,735,555
5875062 3,904,840
618,846 534,736
26,141 27,085
(4,099.214)  (4,050,155)
(500,000) -
(3.954227)  (3,488,334)
1,920,835 416,506
56,998,633 56,582,127
(934) -
56,997,699 56,582,127
58,918,534 56,998,633




NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD

Statements of Cash Flows

Years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers and users
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Proceeds from sale of bonds
Gain on sale of property
Expenditures of insurance proceeds
Disposal of capital assets
Acquisition of capital assets
Premium paid on capital debt
Principal paid on capital debt
Interest paid on capital debt

Net cash used in capital and related
financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest earned
Change in restricted cash and investments - capital projects
Change in restricted cash and investments - debt
service reserve

Net cash provided by investing activities
Net change in cash and equivalents

Cash and equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and equivalents at end of year

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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015 2014

$ 32,027,073 29,837,965
(7,410,106)  (8,231,572)
(10,638,539)  (10,179,348)
13,078,428 11,427,045
4,380,000 4,095,000
26,141 (27,085)

- (645,540)

(6,083) -
(3,375,054)  (5,075,704)
(66,938) (66,938)
(7,920,000)  (7,227,122)
(4,147,773)  (4,347,076)

(11,109,707)

(13,294,465)

618,846 534,736
- (2,453)

(591,089) 2,552,433
27,757 3,084,716
2,896,478 1,217,296
18,109,983 16,892,687

$ 21,006,461 18,109,983

(Continued)
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Statements of Cash Flows, Continued

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Operating income
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation expense
Changes in:
Accounts receivable
Due from other governments
Prepaid expenses
Notes receivable
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Overpayments
Compensated absences
Postemployment benefits
Net pension liability
Deferred outflows

Total adjustments

Net cash provided by operating activities

Supplemental schedule of cash flow information - adjustment
for capital assets financed by accounts payable

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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2015 2014

$ 5875062 3,904,840
5,663,169 5,232,346
(1,020,185) 30,382
(304,511) (30,175)
243,754 (189,816)
195,134 189,374
251,631 (792,456)
55,328 (108,657)
(18,717) 7,989
(99,578) (99,691)
3,248,127 3,282,909
(283,297) -
172,511 ;
8,103,366 7,522,205

$ 13,978,428 11,427,045
$ 581,172 2,484.740




NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2015 and 2014

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the Niagara Falls Water Board (the Board) have been prepared in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
(GAAP) as applied to governmental units. Included in the Board’s reporting entity is a
blended component unit, the Niagara Falls Public Water Authority (the Authority).

(a) Reporting Entity
The Board was created by Chapter 325 of the Laws of 2002 of the State of New York (the
State), codified as Sections 1231-a of Title 10-C of Article 5 of the Public Authorities
Law of the State, as amended (the Board Act). The Authority was created by Chapter
275 of the Laws of 2002 of the State, constituting the Niagara Falls Public Water
Authority Act, codified as Sections 1230-a through 1230-aa of Title 10-B of Article 5 of
the Public Authorities Law of the State, as amended (the Authority Act).

The Board is a corporate municipal instrument of the State consisting of five members
primarily responsible for the jurisdiction, control, possession, supervision and use of
water, wastewater and storm water systems within the City of Niagara Falls, New York
(the City).

The Authority is a public benefit corporation consisting of three members and is primarily
responsible for obtaining financing for water, wastewater and storm water systems
within the City.

Board members for both the Board and Authority are appointed pursuant to the enabling
legislation.

Pursuant to the Board Act and the Authority Act, the Board, the Authority and the City
executed an acquisition agreement effective September 25, 2003 whereby the Authority
issued bonds enabling the Board to purchase all of the assets, net of liabilities, of the
City’s public water, wastewater and storm water systems. The Board began operations
of these systems on that date.

Currently there are approximately 15,941 residential, 281 commercial and 32 large industrial
type customers. Total population served by the water system is estimated at 51,000.
The average daily demand is 21.5 million gallons per day. The Board’s wastewater
system generally covers the same service area and customer base as the water system.
The wastewater treatment plant processes approximately 32.3 million gallons of
wastewater per day.

Blended Presentation of Component Unit - Although they are legally separate entities,
blended component units are, in substance, part of the government’s operations. The
following is a brief description of the blended component unit included in the primary
government.
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

(a) Reporting Entity, Continued
Niagara Falls Public Water Authority - Among the powers given to the Authority is the
ability to borrow money and issue negotiable or non-negotiable notes, bonds or other
obligations for the acquisition, renovation and improvement to the regional water
system.

The Authority may also apply for licenses, permits and approval of plans associated with the
acquisition, renovation and improvement of the regional water system. In the process of
borrowing funds to improve facilities, professional consultants may be retained to offer
technical services and advice for the purpose and benefit of acquiring or improving the
systems. ‘

The Authority has entered into an agreement with the Board to make payments for the debt
service required by these bonds. The Board is also required to make payments for
Authority expenses. The obligation to make debt service is a general obligation to which
its full faith and credit are pledged.

The Authority is considered a component unit since the Board is obligated to pay debt
service and fund other accounts of the Authority. Thus, the Authority is “fiscally
dependent” upon the Board to establish rates and collect fees necessary to pay these
debts. Further, the Authority is “blended” with the Board in the financial statements
because the Authority exists solely to provide services that predominantly benefit the
Board.

(b) Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting
The financial statements of the Board have been prepared in accordance with GAAP as
applied to governmental units. The Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing government accounting and
financial reporting principles.

The activities of the Board are accounted for similar to those often found in the private
sector using the flow of economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting. All assets, liabilities, deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of
resources, net position, revenues, and expenses are accounted for through a single
enterprise fund with revenues recorded when earned and expenses recorded at the time
liabilities are incurred.

Revenues from providing water and sanitary sewer services are reported as operating
revenues. Transactions which are capital, financing or investing related are reported as
non-operating revenues. All expenses related to operating systems are reported as
operating expenses. Interest expense and financing costs are reported as non-operating
expenses.

(c) Budgets

The annual budget is the financial plan for the effective operation of the Board and the
Authority. The Board uses the budget as a management tool for internal control
purposes and to assist in setting of appropriate user charges.
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

(d) Assets, Liabilities and Net Position

Cash and Equivalents - The Board’s cash and equivalents represent cash on hand,
demand deposits, and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or
less from the date of acquisition.

Restricted Cash and Investments - Capital Projects - In 2007, the Board received
$19,000,000 from the New York State Power Authority (the Power Authority) which is
restricted for capital improvement projects including, but not limited to, the Falls Street
Tunnel. At December 31, 2015 and 2014, the total amount restricted for capital projects
amounted to $15,297,444.

Restricted Cash and Investments - Debt Service Reserve - As a result of the purchase of
the water and sewer systems from the City, certain bond covenants, as disclosed in note
6, were established requiring resources (consisting of cash and investments) to be
maintained for specific purposes necessary to operate the water and sewer systems.

Cash has been deposited into various trust funds with a fiscal agent to satisfy certain
covenants. Further, the amounts have been invested into various short-term investments
in compliance with the Board’s investment policy. Certain funds were used for their
intended purposes and are no longer available for investment.

The debt service reserve fund was established to fulfill the debt service reserve
requirements on the outstanding bonds as and when they become due.

Accounts Receivable - All receivables are reported at their gross values and, where
appropriate, are reduced by the estimated portion that is expected to be uncollectible.
The Board has adopted a policy of recognizing water and sewer revenues in the period in
which the services are provided. Billings to customers generally consist of revenues
earned from the prior three months for quarterly billed customers, and revenues earned
from the prior month for monthly billed customers.

The collection of current water and sewer charges is performed by the Board. The City,
acting as collecting agent for the Board, collects delinquent water and sewer charges.

Prepaid Expenses - Prepaid expenses reflect costs applicable to future accounting
periods and are recorded as prepaid items in the financial statements.

Capital Assets - Capital assets acquired by the Board as part of the September 25, 2003
acquisition agreement with the City were reported at fair value on the acquisition date.
Capital assets acquired by the Board subsequent to the initial acquisition are stated at
cost including interest capitalized during construction, where applicable. Costs include
material, direct labor and other items such as supervision, payroll taxes, employee
benefits, transportation, and certain preliminary legal, engineering and survey costs. The
costs of repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred. Contributed fixed assets are
recorded at fair market value at the date received.
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Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

(d) Assets, Liabilities and Net Position, Continued

Construction projects are conducted on a continuing basis in order to maintain or
enhance the systems. Preliminary legal, engineering and survey costs include studies
conducted prior to the actual construction period that directly result in specific
construction projects. While capital projects are in process, all associated costs are
recorded as construction in progress. Once completed, all costs, including legal,
engineering, survey and construction costs, are reclassified to their respective asset
categories and depreciated according to their useful lives.

Depreciation has been recorded using the straight-line method of depreciation. The
estimated useful lives of the Board’s major classes of depreciable assets are based on the
utility of the respective assets. The estimated useful lives of depreciable fixed assets are

as follows:
Assets Years
Land N/A
Plant and transmission assets 25-50
Machinery and equipment 5-20

e Compensated Absences - Board employees are granted vacation and sick leave and earn
compensatory absences in varying amounts. In the event of termination or upon
retirement, all union employees are entitled to payment for accumulated vacation and
compensatory time limited to amounts defined under their respective collectively
bargained agreements. All non-union employees are entitled to similar benefits as
defined by their respective contracts with the Board.

Payments of vacation and sick leave and compensatory time are dependent upon many
factors; therefore, the timing of future payments is not readily determinable. However,
management believes that sufficient resources will be available for the payments of
vacation leave and compensatory time when such payments become due.

e Postemployment Benefits - In accordance with GASB Statement No. 45, the Board
recognizes in its financial statements, the financial impact of postemployment benefits,
principally employer funded health care costs. The impact on the Board’s financial
position and results of its operations is more adequately disclosed under note 8.

e Bond and Note Discounts/Premiums - Are presented as components of bonds payable.
The discounts/premiums are amortized over the life of the bonds and notes on a method
that approximates the effective interest method.

e Long-term Obligations - Long-term debt is reported as a liability in the accompanying
statements of net position. Bond premiums are deferred and amortized over the life of
the respective bonds.
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Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

(d) Assets, Liabilities and Net Position, Continued

Retirement Plan - The Board provides retirement benefits for substantially all of its
regular, full-time employees through contributions to the New York State Employees’
Retirement System (ERS). The ERS provides various plans and options, some of which
require employee contributions.

Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources - Pensions - In the Statement of Net
Position, in addition to assets and liabilities, the Board will sometimes report separate
section for deferred outflows of resources and another for deferred inflows of resources.
Deferred outflows of resources-pensions, represent a consumption of net position that
applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources
(expense/expenditure) until then. The Board has two items that qualify for reporting in
this category. The first item is related to pensions reported in the district-wide Statement
of Net Position. This represents the effect of the net change in the Board’s proportion of
the collective net pension asset or liability and difference during the measurement period
between the Board’s contributions and its proportionate share of total contributions to
the pension system not included in pension expense. The second item is the Board
contributions to the pension systems subsequent to the measurement date. Deferred
inflows of resources - pensions, represents a provision of net position that applies to a
future period and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources until then. The
Board has two items that qualify for reporting in this category.

(e) Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

(f) Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015, the Board adopted the provisions of GASB

Statement No. 68 - “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions - an Amendment
to GASB Statement No. 27” and GASB Statement No. 71 - “Pension Transitions for
Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date - an Amendment to GASB
Statement No. 68.” The primary objective of the Statements is to improve accounting
and financial reporting by state and local governments for pensions.  The
implementation of the Statements requires the Board to report as an asset and/or liability
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Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

(f) Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, Continued

its portion of the collective pension asset and/or liability in the New York State
Employees’ Retirement System. The implementation of the Statements also requires the
Board to report a deferred outflow and/or inflow for the effect of the net change in the
Board’s proportion of the collective net pension asset and/or lability and difference
during the measurement period between the Board’s contributions and its proportionate
share of total contributions to the pension system not included in pension expense. Also
included as deferred outflows are the Board’s contributions to the pension system
subsequent to the measurement date. See notes 9 and 13 for the financial statement
impact of implementation on the financial statements.

(g) Income Taxes
The Board is a public benefit corporation of the State of New York. As such, income earned
in the exercise of its essential government functions is exempt from State and Federal
income taxes.

(h) Subsequent Events
The Board has evaluated subsequent events through the date of the report which is the date
the financial statements were available to be issued.

Subsequent to the completion of the audit fieldwork for the year ended December 31, 2015
and prior to the issuance of the final audit report the Niagara Falls Water Board received
a Report of Examination for the period of January 1, 2013 through April 30, 2015 from
the State of New York Office of Comptroller regarding the financial management of the
Niagara Falls Public Water Authority and Niagara Falls Water Board. The potential
impact of the Report of Examination on the financial statements can not be determined
as of the date of this report.

(2) Cash and Equivalents and Investments

The Board’s investment policies are governed by State statute. Board monies must be deposited
in Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) insured commercial banks or trust
companies located within the State. The Board is authorized to use demand accounts and
certificates of deposit. Permissible investments include obligations of the U.S. Treasury and
U.S. agencies, repurchase agreements, and obligations of the State or its localities.

Collateral is required for demand deposits and certificates of deposit in an amount equal to or
greater than the amount of all deposits not covered by FDIC insurance coverage.
Obligations that may be pledged as collateral are outlined in Chapter 623 of the laws of the
State.
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Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(2) Cash and Equivalents and Investments, Continued

The Board’s cash and equivalents at December 31, 2015 and 2014 include the following
captions on the statements of net position:

2015 2014
Cash and equivalents $21,006,461 18,109,983
Restricted cash and investments:
Capital projects 15,297,444 15,297,444
Debt service reserve 20,701,070  20.109.981
Total $57,004975  53,517.408
Cash and equivalents are comprised of the following:
2015 201
Petty cash (uncollateralized) § 100 100
Deposits 46,098,270 42,202,048
Investments 10,906,605  11,315.260
Total $57.004.975 53,517,408

All deposits and investments are carried at fair value. Investments at December 31, 2015 and
2014 are in the form of U.S. Treasury securities, notes issued by the Federal National
Mortgage Association and Federal Home Loan Bank and investment type money market
funds.

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits - In the case of deposits, this is the risk that, in the event of a
bank failure, the Board’s deposits may not be returned to it. As noted above, by State
statute, all deposits in excess of FDIC insurance coverage must be collateralized. As of
December 31, 2015 and 2014, all uninsured bank deposits were fully collateralized with
securities held by the pledging financial institution’s trust department or agent in the Board’s
name.

Custodial Credit Risk - Investments - For investments, this is the risk that, in the event of the
failure of the counterparty, the Board will not be able to recover the value of its investments
that are in the possession of an outside party. At December 31, 2015 and 2014, all of the
Board’s restricted cash in the form of investments was registered in the Board’s name and
was invested in U.S. Government backed securities.

(3) Receivables

Major revenues accrued by the Board at December 31, 2015 and 2014 include the following:

(a) Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable primarily represents amounts due from customers for current and
delinquent water and wastewater services provided, including penalties, unpaid bill
charges, collection fees and shut-off charges.
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Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(3) Receivables, Continued

(a) Accounts Receivable, Continued

Customers are billed either on a monthly or quarterly basis depending on the type of user
(industrial or residential), and the level of water and sewer usage. Customers may make
payments without penalty on current charges up until 20 days after receiving their bill.
Any unpaid balances remaining after these 20 days are subject to a penalty of 6%, and
those customers receive an unpaid bill notice. If balances still remain unpaid after 30
additional days, final unpaid notices are mailed. The customers are then given 10 days
to remit payment, after which the property is tagged, and shut-off procedures begin.

During the first week of December of every year, unpaid balances are transferred to the City
tax roll for collections through the subsequent year’s tax levy or in-rem property sales.
Any amounts relating to unpaid water and wastewater balances collected by the City
through these means are delivered to the Board.

(b) Due from Other Governments
Due from other governments represents amounts due primarily from the City. Amounts
accrued at December 31, 2015 and 2014 consist of:

015 2014
City of Niagara Falls - tax transfer $ 494,160 189.649

The tax transfer represents uncollected water and sewer charges that have been turned over
to the City for collection in conjunction with the City’s property tax levy. The City
remits these charges to the Board each January and July for collections it receives for the
previous six-month period. This amount includes collected but not yet remitted charges
at year-end. Charges from all previous years’ water and sewer operations transferred to
the City that are not collected totaled $3,670,545 and $3,846,085 at December 31, 2015
and 2014, respectively. Management has recorded a full allowance for uncollectible
accounts with respect to these balances at December 31, 2015 and 2014.

(4) Notes Receivable

Cascades Company

During 1987, Nitec Paper Corporation filed for bankruptcy with several years of outstanding
taxes, water and sewer charges due to the City, the County of Niagara (the County), and the
Niagara Falls Board of Education (the Board of Education). The City obtained the deed in
lieu of foreclosure and sold the plant to Cascades Company for outstanding taxes and
charges totaling $5,400,000. Upon closing, $100,000 was paid to the City with the
remaining $5,300,000 to be paid over 30 years as follows: Commencing November 1, 1988
through October 1, 1997, monthly payments of interest only at 3%; beginning on November
1, 1997 through October 1, 2017, monthly payments of interest and principal of $29,394.
The Board receives 59.4% of these monthly payments, with the remaining 40.6% split
between the City (16.2%), the County (6.8%), and the Board of Education (17.6%).
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(4) Notes Receivable, Continued

2015 2014
Cascades Company $ 373,291 568,425
Less current portion (201.069) (195.134)
Notes receivable - noncurrent portion $ 172,222 373.291

(5) Capital Assets

The Board’s capital assets activity for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 is

summarized as follows:

Balance Balance
1/1/2015 Increases Decreases 12/31/2015
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $ 463,713 - - 463,713
Construction in progress 7.526.517 3.951.746  (9.932.901) 1,545.362
Total capital assets not
being depreciated 7.990.230 3,951,746  (9.932.90D) 2,009,075
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Infrastructure:
Water system 86,566,694 922,128 - 87,488,822
Wastewater system 73,039,921 5,690,237 - 78,730,158
Machinery and equipment 6,549,953 856.853 (16,597) 7,390,209
Total capital assets
being depreciated 166,156,568  7.469.218 (16,597) 173,609,189
Less accumulated depreciation:
Infrastructure:
Water system (31,177,532) (2,935,787) - (34,113,319)
Wastewater system (14,866,451) (2,330,571) - (17,197,022)
Machinery and equipment (2,726.487) _(396.811) 6,083 (3.117.215)
Total accumulated
depreciation (48.770,470) (5.663.169) 6,083 (54.427.556)
Total being depreciated, net 117,386,098 1,806,049 (10,514) 119,181,633
Capital assets, net $ 125,376,328 5757795  (9.943.415) 121.190.708

Insurance proceeds for flood damage incurred in 2014 of $2,463,683 were recorded in offset
increase in construction in progress.
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(5) Capital Assets, Continued

Balance Balance
1/1/2014 Increases Decreases 12/31/2014
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $ 463,713 - - 463,713
Construction in progress 6.709.632  6.806.420  (5.989.535) 7.526.517
Total capital assets not
being depreciated 7,173,345  6.806.420  (5.989.535) 7,990.230
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Infrastructure:
Water system 86,409,563 157,131 - 86,566,694
Wastewater system 68,489,493 4,550,428 - 73,039,921
Machinery and equipment 5,322,252 1,282,475 (54.774) 6.549.953
Total capital assets
being depreciated 160,221,308  5.990.034 (54,774) 166,156,568
Less accumulated depreciation:
Infrastructure:
Water system (28,280,036) (2,897,496) - (31,177,532)
Wastewater system (12,918,259) (1,948,192) - (14,866,451)
Machinery and equipment (2,394.602) _(386.658) 54,773 (2.726.487)
Total accumulated
depreciation (43,592,897) (5.232.346) 54,773 (48.770.470)
Total being depreciated, net 116,628,411 757.688 (1) 117.386.098
Capital assets, net $ 123,801,756 7.564,108 (5,989,536) 125.376.328

(6) Bond Indebtedness

The Authority issued debt to provide for the acquisition of the water and sewer systems and for
the initial funding of operating and maintenance and debt reserves. During the years ended
December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Authority issued Series 2015D bonds and Series 2014B

bonds, respectively.

The proceeds of the Series 2005A - Clean Water issue were used to obtain the North Gorge
Interceptor capital project from the City and to fund further capital improvements.
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(6) Bond Indebtedness, Continued

The net proceeds of the Series 2005 issue were used to eliminate outstanding short-term debt,
fund current and future capital improvements, and to refund a portion of outstanding debt in
the amount of $16,020,000. Such amount was deposited in an irrevocable trust to provide
for future debt service payments on the Series 2003A bonds. Accordingly, the trust account
assets and the liability for the defeased bonds are not included in the Board’s financial
statements.

The effect of the refunding transaction was a decrease in debt service payments of $1,603,619
and an economic gain of $1,124,676. The economic gain is the difference in present values
of the old and new debt service payments.

The premium on the Series 2005 bonds amounted to $1,495,985, and has been deferred and is
being amortized over the life of the bonds. The premium is included in the bonds payable
balance in the Board’s statements of net position.

The proceeds of Series 2012B amounted to $6,607,122 - Clean Water issue were used to payoff
the EFC Note used to fund North Gorge Interceptor Capacity Restoration Project.

In 2013, the Board issued $74,240,000 in general obligation bonds with an average interest rate
of 4.72% and received an additional premium of $142,002. The bonds were used for an
advanced refunding of $63,535,000 of 2003 Bonds with an average interest rate of 3.79%.
The net proceeds of approximately $64 million were deposited in a trust with an agent to
provide for future debt service payments on the bonds. As a result, the bonds are considered
defeased and the liability for those bonds has been removed from the Board’s financial
statements. The economic gain on the transaction (the difference between the present values
of the debt service payments on the old and new debt) is approximately $1.7 million.

During 2014 net proceeds of the Series B bonds were used to entirely refund the Series 2004
Serial Bonds of $4,095,000, specifically reducing the interest to be paid by approximately
$610,000.

During 2015, net proceeds of the Series D bonds were used to entirely refund the Series
2015A&B Serial Bonds of $4,380,000 specifically reducing the interest to be paid by
approximately $550,000. As a result, the bonds are considered defeased and the liability for
these bonds has been removed from the Board’s financial statements. The economic gain on
the transaction (the difference between the present values of the debt service payments on
the old and new debt) is approximately $450,000.

Serial bond activity for the year ended December 31, 2015 is presented on the following page:
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(6) Bond Indebtedness, Continued
The annual maturities of long-term debt (by debt type) as of December 31, 2015 are as follows:

Premium

Year on bonds Serial bonds Total
2016 66,938 3,655,000 3,721,938
2017 66,938 3,780,000 3,846,938
2018 66,938 3,915,000 3,981,938
2019 66,938 4,055,000 4,121,938
2020 66,938 4,135,000 4,201,938
2021-2025 326,416 23,800,000 24,126,416
2026-2030 140,725 30,710,000 30,850,725
2031-2035 33,145 29,685,000 29,718,145
2035-2040 - 1,250,000 1,250,000
2040 - 730,000 730,000
§ 834,976 105,715,000 106,549,976

Annual interest payments due on serial bonds as of December 31, 2015 are as follows:

2016 $ 4,056,356
2017 3,925,541
2018 3,830,996
2019 3,670,959
2020 3,363,352
2021-2025 14,851,549
2026-2030 10,073,053
2031-2035 3,190,365
2036-2040 227,145
2041 27,331
Total $ 47,216,647

Financing Agreement Covenants

The financing agreement between the Authority and the Board relating to all current and future
bonding contain various covenants pertaining to the use and maintenance of the trust funds
established from the proceeds of each bonding. At December 31, 2015, management
believes the Board was in compliance with the following loan covenants:

The Board is required to establish and collect rates, fees and charges sufficient in each fiscal
year at least equal to the sum of:

(1) 115% of the estimated aggregate debt service and projected debt service payable in such
fiscal year;

(2) 100% of Board operating expenses and Authority expenses payable in such fiscal year;
and

(3) 100% of the amount necessary to pay the required deposits for such fiscal year.
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(6) Bond Indebtedness, Continued

The Board shall review the adequacy of fees, rates and charges at least semi-annually.

The Board shall enforce the payment of any and all amounts owed for the use of the systems.

The Board shall (unless required by law) not furnish or supply, or cause to be furnished or
supplied, any product, use or service of the systems, free of charge.

The debt service fund balance, beginning with the first day of each calendar month, shall receive
all revenues until the balance in the debt service fund equals the minimum monthly balance.
The minimum monthly balance is defined as an amount equal to the sum of the aggregate
amounts of debt service that have accrued with respect to all series of bonds, calculating the
debt service that has accrued as an amount equal to the sum of:

(1) The interest on the bonds that has accrued and is unpaid and that will have accrued by
the end of the then calendar month; and

(2) The portion of the next due principal instaliment for the bonds that would have accrued
(as deemed to accrue in the manner interest accrues) by the end of the then calendar
month.

(7) Compensated Absences

As explained in note 1, the Board reports the value of compensated absences as a liability. The
annual budgets of the operating funds provide funding for these benefits as they become
payable. The payment of compensated absences is dependent on many factors; therefore,
the timing of future payments is not readily determinable. The current portion payable is
estimated at 5% of the total compensated absences liability. The current portion of the
liability amounted to $41,836 and $46,814 at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
The long-term portion of the liability amounted to $794,878 and $889,478 at December 31,
2015 and 2015, respectively.

(8) Postemployment Benefits

The Board provides postemployment benefits to eligible retirees in the form of health insurance.
The obligation of the Board and its employees to contribute to the cost of providing these
benefits has been established pursuant to various collective bargaining agreements and
Board policy for those individuals not included in one of the bargaining units. Under such
agreements, participants are not required to contribute to the health care plan. In 2008, the
Board adopted the requirements of GASB Statement No. 45. In conformance with the
provisions of that statement, the Board recognizes the costs of postemployment health care
in the year when the employees’ services are received, reports the accumulated liability from
prior years, and provides information useful in assessing potential demands on the Board’s
future cash flows. Recognition of the liability accumulated from prior years will be phased
in over 30 years commencing in 2008.
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(8) Postemployment Benefits, Continued

Plan Description - The Board provides continuation of medical, prescription drug, dental, vision
and chiropractic coverage for employees who retire and are at least age 50 and have an age,
plus years of service, of at least 70. All retirees and future retirees hired prior to June 1,
2006 have no contribution requirements for both individual and family coverage. All future
retires hired after June 1, 2006 are required to pay 20% of the individual and family
premiums.

The Board provides certain health care benefits for retired employees. Substantially all of the
employees may become eligible for these benefits if they reach the normal retirement age
and have the required minimum age plus years of service working for the Board. The
Board, on an annual basis, accrues the cost that represents the present value of these benefits
to be paid over the estimated lives of the retirees. The annual other postemployment benefit
cost (OPEB) charged to operations for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014
amounted to $5,269,304 and $5,055,866, respectively. At December 31, 2015 and 2014, the
current portion of the postemployment benefits liability was $1,910,713 and $1,714,479,
respectively. The non-current portion of the postemployment benefits liability amounted to
$18,974,047 and $15,922,154 at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

The number of participants as of January 1, 2015 and 2014 was as follows:

2015 2014
Active employees 79 80
Retired employees 77 15

1

N
N
N
N

Total 1

Funding Policy - The Board currently pays for postemployment health care benefits on a pay-as-
you-go basis. These financial statements assume that pay-as-you-go funding will continue.

2015 2014
Benefit Obligations and Normal Costs
Actuarial accrued liability (AAL):
Retired employees and dependents $ 37,863,374 37,827,312
Active employees 29,845,347 27,681,970
Total $ 67.708.721 65,509,282
Underfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) $ 67,708.721 65,509,282
Normal costs at beginning of year 1,107,716 1,065,111
Interest on normal cost 46,155 44,380

$ _1.153.871 1,109,491
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2015 2014
Level Dollar Amortization
Calculation of ARC under projected Unit Credit Method:
Amortization of UAAL over 30 years with interest to
end of year $ 3,400,266 3,373,009
Interest on amortization payment 715,167 573,366
Normal costs with interest to end of year 1,153,871 1,109,491
Annual required contribution (ARC) $ _5.269.304 5,055,866
Annual OPEB Cost Contribution
Contributions made for years ended December 31, 2015
and 2014 2,021,177 1,772,957
Contributions as a percentage of required contribution 38.4% 35.1%
Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation
Annual required contribution (OPEB cost) 5,269,304 5,055,866
\ Contributions made on a pay-as-you-go basis (2.021.177) (1,772.957)
, Increase in net OPEB obligation 3,248,127 3,282,909
Net OPEB obligation at beginning of year 17,636,633 14,353,724
Net OPEB obligation at end of year $ 20,884,760 17.636,633
Actuarial methods and assumptions:
Actuarial cost method Projected Projected
Unit Credit  Unit Credit
Discount rate 4% 4%
2015 trend rate (Medical) 9.00% 9.00%
2016 trend rate (Medical) 8.50% 8.50%
Yearly decrease after year 2 0.50% 0.50%
Years until ultimate rate 6 years 7 years
The remaining amortization period at
December 31, 2015 and 2014 22 years 23 years
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(9) Pension Plans

(a) Plan Descriptions and Benefits Provided

Employees’ Retirement System (ERS)

The Board participates in the New York State and Local Employees’ Retirement System
(ERS). This is a cost-sharing multiple-employer retirement system. The System
provides retirement benefits as well as death and disability benefits. The net position of
the System is held in the New York State Common Retirement Authority (the
Authority), which was established to hold all net assets and record changes in plan net
position allocated to the System. The Comptroller of the State of New York serves as
the trustee of the Board and is the administrative head of the System. System benefits
are established under the provision of the New York State Retirement and Social
Security Law (RSSL). Once a public employer elects to participate in the System, the
election is irrevocable. The New York State Constitution provides that pension
membership is a contractual relationship and plan benefits cannot be diminished or
impaired. Benefits can be changed for future members only by enactment of a State
statute. The Board also participates in the Public Employees; Group Life Insurance Plan
(GLIP), which provides death benefits in the form of life insurance. The System is
included in the State’s financial report as a pension trust fund. That report, including
information ~ with regard to  benefits provided, may be found at
www.osc.state nny.us/retire/publications/inex.php or obtained by writing to the New York
State and Local Retirement System, 110 State Street, Albany, New York 12244,

The System is noncontributory except for employees who joined after July 27, 1976, who
contribute 3 percent of their salary for the first ten years of membership, and employees
who joined on or after January 1, 2010 who generally contribute 3.0 to 3.5 percent of
their salary for their entire length of service. In addition, employee contribution rates
under ERS tier VI vary based on a sliding salary scale. The Comptroller annually
certifies the actuarially determined rates expressly used in computing the employers’
contributions based on salaries paid during the Systems fiscal year ending March 31.

Contributions for the current year and two preceding years were equal to 100 percent of the
contributions required, and were as follows:

ERS
2015 $ 725,071
2014 864,054
2013 900,289
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(b) Pension Liabilities. Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

At December 31, 2015, the Board reported the following liability for its proportionate share

of the net pension liability for ERS. The net pension liability was measured as of March

31, 2015. The total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was
determined by an actuarial valuation. The Board’s proportionate share of the net
pension liability was based on a projection of the Board’s long-term share of
contributions to the System relative to the projected contributions of all participating
members, actuarially determined. This information was provided by ERS in reports

provided to the Board.
Actuarial valuation date 3/31/2015
Net pension liability $ 478,381
Board’s proportion of the Plan’s net

pension liability 0.0141606%

For the year ended December 31, 2015, the Board recognized pension expense of $464,170
for ERS. At December 31, 2015 the Board’s reported deferred outflows of resources
and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows  Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected

and actual experience § 15314 -
Net difference between projected and actual

earnings on pension plan investments 83,089 -
Changes in proportion and differences

between the Board’s contributions and

proportionate share of contributions 124,923 -
Board’s contributions subsequent to

the March 31, 2015 measurement date 574,956 -
Total $ 798,282 -

Board contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of
the net pension liability in the year ended December 31, 2016. Other amounts reported
as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions
will be recognized in pension expense as follows:
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(b) Pension Liabilities. Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

Year ended ERS
2016 $ 55,831
2017 55,831
2018 55,831
2019 55,831
2020 -

Thereafter -

(c) Actuarial Assumptions
The total pension liability as of the measurement date was determined by using an actuarial
valuation as noted in the table below, with update procedures used to roll forward the
total pension liability to the measurement date. The actuarial valuations used the
following actuarial assumptions:

Significant actuarial assumptions used in the valuations were as follows:

Measurement date March 31, 2015

Actuarial valuation date April 1, 2014

Interest rate 7.5%

Salary scale 4.9% Average

Decrement tables April 1, 2005 - March 31, 2010
System’s Experience

Inflation rate 2.7%

Annuitant mortality rates are based on April 1, 2005 - March 31, 2011 System’s experience
with adjustments for mortality improvements based on MP-2014.

The actuarial assumptions used in the April 1, 2011 valuation are based on the results of an
actuarial experience study for the period April 1, 2005 - March 31, 2010.

The long term rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building
block method in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected returns net of investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major
asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long term expected rate of return
by weighting the expected future real rates of return by each the target asset allocation
percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of the arithmetic real rates
of return for each major asset class included in the target asset allocation are summarized
below:
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(¢) Actuarial Assumptions, Continued

Measurement date March 31, 2015

Asset type:
Domestic equity 7.30%
International equity 8.55%
Real estate 8.25%
Private equity 11.00%
Absolute return strategies 6.75%
Opportunities portfolio 8.60%
Real assets 8.65%
Bonds and mortgages 4.00%
Cash 2.25%
Inflation - indexed bonds 4.00%

(d) Discount Rate

The discount rate used to calculate the total pension liability was 7.5% The projection of
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumes that contributions from plan
members will be made at the current contribution rates and that contributions from
employers will be made at statutorily required rates, actuarially. Based upon the
assumptions, the System’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make
all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore the long term
expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of
projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

(e) Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to the Discount Rate
Assumption
The following presents the Board’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated
using the discount rate of 7.5%, as well as what the Authority’s proportionate share of
the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-
percentage point lower (6.5%) or 1-percentage point higher (8.5%) than the current rate:

1% Current 1%
Decrease  Assumption  Increase
(6.5%) (1.5%) (8.5%)
Employer’s proportionate share of
the net pension asset (liability) $ 3.188.615 478,381 (1.809.729)
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(f) Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position
The components of the current-year net pension asset/(liability) of all participating
employers as of the respective valuation dates, were as follows:

(Dollars in Millions)
Valuation date 3/31/2015
Employers’ total pension liability $(164,592)
Plan net position 161,213
Employers’ net pension asset/(liability) $ _(3,379)
Ratio of plan net position to the
Employers’ total pension asset/(liability) 97.95%

(g) Contributions to the Pension Plan
Employer contributions are paid annually based on the System’s fiscal year which ends on
March 31%. Retirement contributions as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 represent the
projected employer contribution for the period of April 1, 2015 through March 31, 2016
and April 1, 2014 through March 31, 2015, respectively based on paid ERS wages
multiplied by the employer’s contribution rate, by tier. This amount has been recorded as
deferred outflows of resources in the accompanying financial statements.

(10) Net Position

The Board’s financial statements utilize a net position presentation. Net position is categorized
as net investment in capital assets, restricted for debt service, restricted for capital projects
and unrestricted.

Net Investment in Capital Assets - This category groups all capital assets into one component of
net position. Accumulated depreciation and the outstanding balances of debt that are
attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of these assets reduce the
balance in this category.

The Board’s investment in capital assets, net of related debt is in a surplus position of
$14,640,371 and $15,219,414 at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. The surplus
results from the amortization of the Board’s capital debt, as outstanding principal for the
majority of Board’s serial bonds is not paid until late into the life of the debt while
depreciation occurs ratably over the life of the assets.
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Restricted Net Position - This category represents external restrictions imposed by creditors,
grantors, contributors, or laws and regulations of other governments and restrictions
imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Restricted for Capital Projects:

Amounts restricted for capital projects are $15,297,444 and $15,297,444 at December 31,
2015 and 2014, respectively. In 2007, the Board received $19,000,000 from the Power
Authority under a “Relicensing Settlement Agreement.” The Agreement provided for
the creation of a “Niagara Falls Water Board Capital Improvement Fund.” These funds
are restricted for future use related to capital improvements of the Board including but
not limited to any specific project including the Falls Street Tunnel project. At
December 31, 2015, approximately $9,685,000 of these funds are included in this
account.

Restricted for Debt Service:

Board restrictions at December 31, 2015 and 2014 of $20,701,070 and $20,109,981,
respectively, are for debt service.

Unrestricted Net Position - This category represents net position of the Board not restricted for
any project or other purpose.

(11) Labor Relations

The majority of the Board’s employees are represented by four bargaining units, with the
balance governed by Board policies. Contracts for all of the bargaining units covered a six-
year term which expired on December 31, 2010. The Board is currently in negotiations with
the bargaining units regarding new contracts.

(12) Risk Management and Contingent Liabilities

Risk management and contingent liabilities at December 31, 2015 are detailed as follows:

(a) Insurance

The Board is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts; theft of, damage to and
destruction of assets; injuries to employees; and natural disasters, for which the Board
carries commercial insurance. There were no settlements that significantly exceeded
insurance coverage for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014.

(b) Litigation
The Board is involved in litigation arising in the ordinary course of its operations. The
Board believes that its ultimate liability, if any, in connection with these matters will not
have a material effect on its financial condition or results of operations.
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Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(12) Risk Management and Contingent Liabilities, Continued

(b) Litigation, Continued

The accompanying 2015 financial statements reflect the result of the jury award of a lawsuit
for damages incurred as a result of an accident. The award was made subsequent to year
end but prior to the date that the financial statements were made available. The award
totaled $586,479. Management continues to evaluate its options with respect to any
potential appeal, but has not yet made a determination as to any further litigation. The
Water Board is insured for this claim, but that insurance policy is subject to a $500,000
self-insured retention (deductible), which includes legal fees and expenses. This amount
has been reflected in the financial statements for 2015. The insurance will pay the
amount of any settlement or judgment in excess of $500,000.

(c) New York Office of the State Comptroller
The New York Office of the State Comptroller (OSC) has released an audit of the Water
Board. The Board has 90 days to implement a corrective action plan to address the
recommendations made by the OSC.

(13) Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015, the Board implemented GASB Statement No.
68 - “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions - an Amendment to GASB
Statement No. 277 and GASB Statement No. 71 - “Pension Transition for Contributions
Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date - an Amendment to GASB Statement No. 68.”
The implementation of these Statements resulted in the reporting of an asset, deferred
outflow of resources, liability and deferred inflow of resources related to the Board’s
participation in the New York State Employees’ retirement systems. The Board’s net
position at January 1, 2015 has been restated as follows:

Net position at beginning of year, as previously stated $ 56,998,633
GASB Statement No. 68 implementation:
Beginning System liability - Employees’ Retirement

System as of December 31, 2014 (637,717)
Reduction in prepaid attributable to contributions
subsequent to the March 31, 2014 measurement date (254,557)

Beginning deferred outflow of resources attributable to
contributions subsequent to the March 31, 2014

measurement date 891,340
Cumulative effect of implementation 934
Net position at beginning of year, as restated $ 56,997,699
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Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Funding Progress

Other Postemployment Benefits Plan

Last three fiscal years

Actuarial
Fiscal
year ended Value of Accrued
December 31, assets liability
2015 $ - 67,708,721
2014 - 65,509,282
2013 - 53,231,551

Unfunded

actuarial

accrued  Funded
liability ratio

67,708,721 0%
65,509,282 0%
53,231,551 0%
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Unfunded
liability
asa
percentage
Covered  of covered
payroll payroll

3,649,206 1855%
4,881,465 1342%
4,911,524 1084%



NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015

NYSERS Pension Plan
Fund's proportion of the net pension liability 0.1416060%
Board's proportionate share of the net pension liability $ 478,381
Board's covered payroll $ 4,082,614
Board's proportionate share of the net pension liability
as a percentage of its covered - employee payroll 11.72%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total
pension liability 97.95%

* The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the March 31, 2015 and
2014 measurement dates of the plan.
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Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Employer Pension Contributions
For the year ended December 31, 2015

NYSERS Pension Plan

2015 2014 2013

Contractually required contribution ~ $ 725,071 864,054 900,289

2012

2011

Contributions in relation to the

contractually required contribution 725,071 864,054 900,289
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - - -
District's covered employee payroll ~ $ 4,082,614 4,483,962  4,442277
Contributions as a percentage of
covered employee payroll 17.76% 19.27% 20.27% N/A N/A
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER
MATTERS, INCLUDING COMPLIANCE WITH INVESTMENT GUIDELINES,
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Board of Directors
Niagara Falls Water Board

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the
Niagara Falls Water Board (the Board), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2015, and the
related notes to financial statements, which collectively comprise the Board’s basic financial
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated May 13, 2016.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Board’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Board’s
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Board’s
internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the Board’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to
merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Board’s financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, including Investment Guidelines for Public Authorities
and Board’s Investment Guidelines, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed an instance of noncompliance or other
matter that is required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards and which is described
in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2015-001.

The Board’s Response to Finding

The Board’s response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs. The Board’s response was not subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion
on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Board’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Board’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

EFPR Gouowp, CPAs, PLLC

Williamsville, New York
May 13, 2016
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year ended December 31, 2015

(2015-001) PARIS Filing

Condition - The Board did not file the independent audit report within 90 days after the end of the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2015 via the Public Authorities information System (PARIS).

Criteria - Pursuant to Section 2800 of Public Authorities Law, the Board is required to submit their
annual report via PARIS within 90 days after the end of each fiscal year.

Effect - The Authorities Budget Office has the authority to “publicly warn and censure authorities
for non-compliance” with this requirement and to recommend the “suspension or dismissal of
officers or directors, based on information that is, or is made, available to the public under law.”

Cause - Subsequent to the completion of the audit fieldwork for the year ended December 31, 2015
and prior to issuance of the audit report the Board received a Report of Examination for the period
of January 1, 2013 through April 30, 2015 from the State of New York Office of Comptroller
(OSC) regarding the financial management of the Niagara Falls Public Water Authority and Niagara
Falls Water Board. The issuance of the audit report was delayed until any potential impacts of the
Report of Examination on the audited financials, could be determined.

Recommendation - We recommend that the Board submit the independent audit report to PARIS as
soon as possible.

Management’s Correction Action - The Board has approved the independent audit report and will
file with PARIS upon receipt of the final reports.
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Board of Directors
Niagara Falls Water Board:

Report on the Financial Stalements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Niagara Talls Water Board (the
Board) as of and for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the related notes to financial
statements, which collectively comprise the Board’s basic financial statements as listed in the table

of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accépted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement,

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the Board’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Board’s internal control. Accordingly, we express
no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

6390 Main Street, Suite 200 | Williamsvitle, New York 14221 | » 716.634.0700 | e 800.546.7556 | £ 716.634.0764 | ToskiCPA.com




Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Niagara Falls Water Board as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the
changes in financial position, and cash flows thereof for the years then ended, in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis on pages 3 through 9, and the schedule of funding progress
other postemployment benefits plan on page 34 be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opimion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an
opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March
26, 2015, on our consideration of the Niagara Falls Water Board’s internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and
not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report
is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the Niagara Falls Water Board’s internal control over financial reporting and

compliance.

ekt 4 lo., CPRs, P

Williamsviile, New York
March 26, 2015




NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2014 and 2013

As management of the Niagara Falls Water Board (the Board), we offer readers of the Board’s
financial statements this narrative and analysis of the financial activities of the Board for the years
ended December 31, 2014 and 2013.

Following this Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) are the financial statements of the
Board together with the notes thereto. Please read the MD&A in conjunction with the Board’s
financial statements and the accompanying notes in order to obtain a full understanding of the
Board’s financial position and results of operations.

The Board was created by an Act of the State of New York, as more fully described in note 1 to the
financial statements, and commenced operations on September 25, 2003. In accordance with an
agreement with the City of Niagara Falls, New York (the City) the Board received all assets,
liabilities and operating activities (including all personnel) of the City’s former Water and Sewer
Funds. In return, the Board issued debt, which was used to defease outstanding City bonded debt
relating to its Water and Sewer Funds.

Financial Highlights

¢ The assets of the Board exceeded its liabilities by $56,998,633 and $56,582,127 (net
position) at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. At December 31, 2014 and
2013, $6,371,794 and $8,178,940 (unrestricted net position), respectively, may be used
to meet the Board’s ongoing obligations.

¢ The Board’s operating income for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 was
$3,904,840 and $5,588,228, respectively.

* The Board’s total bond indebtedness decreased by $3,199,060 duriﬁg the current fiscal
year, as a result of principal payments made of $3,132,122 and premium amortization of

$66,938.

* The Board reflected a liability for postemployment benefits of $17,636,633 and
$14,353,724 at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. '

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Board’s basic financial
statements which include the financial activities of the Board, and its blended component unit, the
Niagara Falls Public Water Authority (the Authority). The reasons for blending the financial
activities are explained in note 1 to the financial statements. An overview of the responsibiliiies of
the Board and the Authority is presented below.

Board Authority
*  Owns the System *  Issues debt
*  Operates and maintains the System *  Provides proceeds of debt for
*  Responsible for System improvements construction and improvements
*  Sets rates and collects revenues *  Provides oversight regarding
*  Pays debt service on bonds adequacy of revenues and System
conditions '




NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD

Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

The financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the Board’s
finances in a manner similar (o a private-sector business, and are organized as follows:

* The statement of net position presents information on all of the Board’s assets and liabilities,
with the difference between the two reported as net position, Over time, increases or
decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of
the Board is improving or deteriorating.

* The statement of revenue, expenses and changes in net position presents information on how
the Board’s net position changed during the reporting period. All changes in net position are
reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the
timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for
some items that will result in cash flows for future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected water and
sewer rents, earned but unused vacation and postemployment benefits).

» The statement of cash flows presents information depicting the Board’s cash flow activities
for the reporting period and the effect that these activities had on the Board’s cash and
equivalent balances.

» The notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the financial statements. The notes to the financial
statements can be found on pages 15 through 33 of this report.

Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of the Board’s financial
position. Assets exceeded liabilities by $56,998,633 at December 31, 2014, as compared to
$56,582,127 at December 31, 2013, as presented below:

Niagara Falls Water Board’s Net Position

December 31, Increase/(Decrease)
2014 2013 Dollars Percent
Current assets $ 30,798,316 29,385,651 1,412,665 4.81%
Noncurrent assets 161,157,044 162,327.586  (1,170,542) (0.72%)
Total assets 191,955,360 191,713,237 242,123 0.13%
Current liabilities 11,528,181 11,170,992 357,189 3:20%
Noncurrent liabilities 123,428,546 123,960,118 (531,572) (0.43%)
Total liabilities 134,956,727 135,131,110 (174,383) (0.13%)
Net investment in capital assets 15,219,414 10,445,782 4,773,632 (45.70%)
Restricted 35,407,425 37,957,405  (2,549,980) (6.72%
Unrestricted 6,371,794 8.178.940  (1,807,146) (22.10%)
Total net position $ 56,998,633 56,582,127 416,506 0.74%




NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD

Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

The Board’s net investment in capital assets, is a surplus net position of $15,219,414 and
$10,445,782 at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. This results from the timing of the
amortization of the Board’s capital debt, as outstanding principal for most of the Board’s serial
bonds is not paid until late into the life of the debt, while depreciation occurs annually.

The Board’s unrestricted net position was $6,371,794 and $8,178,940 at December 31, 2014 and
2013, respectively. These assets are not limited as to how and for what they may be used. The
restricted debt service portion of the Board’s net position ($20,109,981 and $22,662.414 at
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively) represents funds that are set aside to be used towards
debt service. The restricted capital projects portion of the Board’s net position {$15,297,444 and
$15,294,991 at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively) represents funds that are set aside
primarily for the reconstruction of the Falls Street Tunnel,

A comparison of current assets to current liabilities of the Board at December 31, 2014 and 2013
follows:

2014 " 2013
Current assets $ 30,798,316 29,385,651
Current liabilities 11,528,181 11,170,992
Ratio of current assets to current liabilities 2.67 2.63

The Board’s total net position increased by $416,506 during the year ended December 31, 2014, as
compared to an increase of $870,794 for the year ended December 31, 2013. Key elements of the
current year’s increase in net position are as follows:

Niagara Falls Water Board’s Changes in Net Position

Increase/
2014 2013 (decrease)
Total operating revenue $ 29,640,395 30,107,171 (466,776)
Total operating expenses (25.735.,555) (24.518.943) (1.216,612)
Operating income 3,904,840 5,588,228  (1,683,388)
Total non-operating revenue (expenses) (3.488.334) (4.717.434) 1,229,100
Change in net position $ _ 416,506 870,794 (454.288)




NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD

Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

The Board’s major sources of operating revenue are charges for water and sewer services which
comprise approximately 98% of total operating revenue. These revenues combined comprise an
approximate $223,000 decrease in operating revenue under 2013, These revenues are dependent
upon rates charged for these services, with such rates being determined by the Board. Please see the
section entitled “Economic Factors and Next Year’s Rates” within this MD&A for a listing of the
rates charged during 2014 and approved rates for 2015.

The Board’s largest operating expense area relates to its employees. Together, personnel costs
(salaries) and employee benefits approximate 52% of all operating expenses. In 2014, these costs
totaled approximately $13.3 million as compared to $12.4 million in 2013, representing an
approximate 6.7% increase in this area. This increase is due to the rising costs of providing health
care and other employee benefits.

Within the non-operating revenue (expenses) category, interest expense is by far the largest expense
jtem and represents the cost of carrying serial bonds totaling $109,255,000 and $112,387,122 at
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

The following is a summary of the Board’s cash flow activities for the years ended December 31,
2014 and 2013:

2014 013

Cash flows provided by (used in):

Operating activities $11,427,045 11,350,748

Capital and related financing activities (13,294,465) (2,543,144)

Investing activities 3,084,716  (7,053,294)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and equivalents 1,217,296 1,754,310
Cash and equivalents at beginning of year 16,892,687  15.138,377
Cash and equivalents at end of year $18,109.983 16,892,687

The Board’s available cash and equivalents increased by $1,217.296 during the year ended
December 31, 2014, as compared to an increase of $1,754,310 during the year ended December 31,
2013. Cash provided by operating activities reflected a positive balance of $11,381,975 for the year
ended December 31, 2014.




NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD

Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital Assets - The Board’s investment in capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) as of
December 31, 2014, amounted to $125,376,328, as compared to $123,801,756 at December 31,
2013. This includes land, plant and transmission (infrastructure type assets), machinery and
equipment, and construction in progress. The Board’s greatest investment in capital assets comes in
the form of infrastructure. Significant factors affecting capital assets during the reporting period
include:

e The Board recorded total additions to capital assets of $5,990,034.

» Construction in progress increased by $6,806,420, and decreased by $5,989,535 which
represents completed capital projects transferred to their applicable asset categories, net
of insurance proceeds.

o The Board recorded total depreciation of $6,806,420 and $5,989,535 for the years ended
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

A summary of capital assets, net of depreciation where applicable, is as follows:

2014 2013
Nondepreciable assets:
Land $ 463,713 463,713
Construction in progress 7,526,517 6,709,632
Depreciable assets:
Plant and transmission assets (water system} 55,389,162 58,129,527
Plant and transmission assets (wastewater system) 58,173,470 55,571,234
Machinery and equipment 3,823,466 2,927,650
Total $ 125,376,328 123,801,756

Construction in progress represents ongoing capital construction which will be transferred to the
appropriate asset category (and begin to be depreciated) upon completion.

More detailed information about the Board’s capital assets is presented in the notes to financial
statements.

Serial Bonds - At December 31, 2014, the Board had outstanding serial bonds totaling
$109,255,000, as compared to $112,387,122 at December 31, 2013. During the year ended
December 31, 2014, the Board made principal payments of $3,132,122 on these bonds.

The Board used bond debt to finance the original purchase of the assets (net of liabilities and
including the water, sewer and storm water systems) from the City. In the future, the Board may
utilize bond debt issuances as a primary source of funds for construction, renovations and system

improvements.




NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD

Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

Postemployment Benefits - Upon retirement, the Board’s employees are entitled to continuous
health insurance coverage. At December 31, 2014 and 2013, the liability recorded for these benefits
amounted to $17,636,633 and $14,353,724, respectively. The underfunded actuarial accrued
liability is $65,509,282 and $53,231,551 at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Compensated Absences - Upon separation, Board employees are entitled to payment of unused
sick and vacation time. The total liability relating to these payments at December 31, 2014 is
$936,292, compared to $1,035,983 at December 31, 2013. The timing of the payments relating to
compensated absences is dependent upon many factors, including the retirement or separation from
service, and is therefore difficult to predict; however, the Board estimates that $46,814 of such
liability is current at December 31, 2014.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Rates

As noted earlier, the Board’s largest sources of operating revenues are water and sewer rents from
customers. These revenues result from rates charged based on water usage by the individual
customer, Rates can be adjusted accordingly in order to help meet the expenses of the Board.
When considering rate changes, the Board utilizes the services of a rate consultant to help forecast
the magnitude and effects of potential changes. As required by law, the general public’s opinions
are also taken into consideration, through public hearings, when contemplating a change in rates
charged for services. Water rates charged for 2014 and approved rates to be charged for 2015 are as

follows:

2014 2015
Amount to be charged Amount to be charged
(per 100 cubic feet) {per 100 cubic feet)
Inside  Outside Inside Outside
Amount Consumed city city city city
First 20,000 cubic feet per quarter 3.13 837 3.13 8.37
Next 60,000 cubic feet per quarter 2.7 7.31 2.71 7.31
Next 120,000 cubic feet per quarter 2.30 6.09 2.30 6.09
Over 200,000 cubic feet per quarter 1.91 5.12 1.91 5.12
Minimum charge for water consumption
per quarter 40.69 108.81 40.69 108.81




NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD

Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

In addition to the above schedule of rates for water consumed, a demand charge is assessed for each

user’s meter, as set forth below:
2014 Rate 2015 Rate

Size and Type (per quarter) (per quarter)
Under 1” Disc : $§ 370 3.70
1 Disc 25.00 25.00
2” Disc 40.00 40.00
2” Compound 40.00 40.00
3” Compound 50.00 50.00
4” Compound 100.00 100.00
6 Compound 220.00 220.00
8” Compound 250.00 250.00
107 Compound 275.00 275.00
12” Compound 400.00 400.00

In addition to charging for water consumption and services, the Board also charges users with
respect to sewer and wastewater services provided. All users have been divided into two “user
classes” - Commercial/Small Industrial/Residential Users (CSIRU) and Significant Industrial Users
(STU).

Sewer rates for the CSIRU class are determined by the total metered water consumption in each
quarter. Rates charged for 2014 and rates to be charged during 2015 are as follows:

Amount Consumed 2014 015
Minimum charge per quarter

(up to 1,300 cubic feet) $ 53.95 53.95
Additional usage in excess

0f 1,300 cubic feet ($/cubic feet) 4,15 4.15

Sewer rates for the SIU class are determined each quarter based on the actual measured quantities
and composition of wastewater flow. Such rates are determined by the Board and are based upon
five representative 24-hour composite samples taken quarterly, Rates for the SIU class for the year
ended December 31, 2014 were $2,840 per million gallons for wastewater flow; $0.94 per pound
for all suspended solids discharged; and $1.62 per pound for all soluble organic carbon compounds
discharged. Approved rates for 2015 were $2,913 per million gallons for wastewater flow; $0.94
per pound for all suspended solids discharged; and $1.62 per pound for all soluble organic carbon
compounds discharged. In addition, SIU’s are charged fees, as needed, for cettain other
“substances of concern” which are discharged in their wastewater,

Contacting the Board’s Financial Management

This fmancial report is designed to provide taxpayers, customers, and creditors with a general
overview of the Board’s finances and to show the Board’s accountability for the money it receives.
If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact Ms. Mary
Jean Buddenhagen, Michael O’Laughlin Municipal Water Plan, 5815 Buffalo Avenue, Niagara
Falls, New York 14304,




NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Statements of Net Position
December 31, 2014 and 2013

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and equivalents
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for
uncollectible accounts
Due from other governments
Prepaid expenses
Notes receivable - current portion

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Restricted cash and investments - capital projects
Restricted cash and investments - debt service reserve
Notes receivable - noncurrent portion

Capital assets:
Land
Plant and transmission assets
Machinery and equipment
Construction in progress
Less accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation

Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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2014 2013
§ 18,109,983 16,892,687
11,395,673 11,426,055
189,649 159,474
907,877 718,061
195,134 189,374
30,798,316 29,385,651
15,297,444 15,294,991
20,109,981 22,662,414
373,291 568,425
463,713 463,713
159,606,615 154,899,056
6,549,953 5,322,252
7,526,517 6,709,632
(48,770,470)  (43,592,897)
125,376,328 123,801,756
161,157,044 162,327,586
191,955,360 191,713,237
(Continued)




NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Statements of Net Position, Continued

Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Contract retainage payable
Overpayments
Unexpended insurance proceeds
Current portion of long-term liabilities:
Compensated absences
Postemployment benefits
Bonds payable

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences
Postemployment benefits
Bonds payable

Total noncurrent liabilities
Risk management and contingent liabilities (note 12}

Total Habilities

Net Position

Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for capital projects
Restricted for debt service
Unrestricted

Total net position

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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014 013

$ 2,924,319 1,853,249
3,281,953 3,687,531

- 186,482

20,616 12,627

- 645,540

46,814 51,799
1,714,479 1,601,642
3,540,000 3,132,122
11,528,181 11,170,992
889,478 984,184
15,922,154 12,752,082
106,616,914 110,223,852
123,428,546 123,960,118
134,956,727 135,131,110
15219414 10,445,782
15,297,444 15,294,991
20,109,981 22,662,414
6,371,794 8,178,940

$ 56,998,633 56,582,127




NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD

Statements of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013

Operating revenue:
Water rents and charges
Sewer rents and charges
Licenses and permits
Other services

Total operating revenue

Operating expenses:
Personnel costs
Contractual expenses
Employee benefits
Depreciation expense

Total operating expenses
Operating income

Non-operating revenue (expenses):
Use of money and property
Gain on sale of property
Interest expense
Debt issuance costs

Total non-operating revenue {expenses)
Change in net position
Net position at beginning of year

Net posttion at end of year

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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201 201

$ 11,246,172 11,097,080
17,924,980 18,296,694
236,549 231,433
232,694 481,964
29,640,395 30,107,171
4943369 4,789,375
7249300 7,186,059
8,310,540 7,626,702
5,232,346 4,916,807
25,735,555 24,518,943
3,004,840 5588228
534,736 568,750
27,085 -
(4,050,155} (4,438,048)
- (848,136)
(3,488334)  (4,717.434)
416,506 870,794
56,582,127 55,711,333

$ 56,998,633 56,582,127




NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers and users
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Proceeds from sale of bonds
Gain on sale of property
Proceeds from insurance recoveries
Expenditures of insurance proceeds
Acquisition of capital assets
Premium paid on capital debt
Principal paid on capital debt
Interest paid on capital debt

Net cash used in capital and related
financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Debt issuance costs
Interest earned
Change in restricted cash and investments - capital projects
Change in restricted cash and investments - debt
service reserve

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

Net change in cash and equivalents

Cash and equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and equivalents at end of year

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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2014 2013

$ 29,837,965 28,514,397
(8,231,572)  (7,574,719)
(10,179,348)  (9,588,930)

11,427,045 11,350,748

4,095,000 74,240,000

(27,085) ;

- 3,500,000
(645,540)  (2,854,460)
(5,075,704)  (6,468,870)

(66,938) -
(7227,122)  (66,545,000)
(4,347,076)  (4,414,814)
(13,294,465)  (2,543,144)
- (848,136)

534,736 568,750
(2,453) (21,067)
2,552,433 (6,752,841)
3,084,716 (7,053,294)

1,217,296 1,754,310

16,892,687 15,138,377

$ 18,109,983 16,892,687

(Continued)




NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Statements of Cash Flows, Continued

014 013

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Operating income $ 3,904,840 5,588,228
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation expense 5,232,346 4,916,807
Changes in:
Accounts receivable 30,382 (2,480.,840)
Due from other governments (30,175) 193,038
Prepaid expenses (189,816) (132,458)
Notes receivable : 189,374 683,784
Accounts payable (792.456) (256,202)
Accrued liabilities (108,657) 226,948
Overpayments 7,989 11,244
Compensated absences (99,691) (88,561)
Postemployment benefits 3,282,909 2,688,760
Total adjustments 7,522,205 5,762,520
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 11,427,045 11,350,748

Supplemental schedule of cash flow information - adjustment
for capital assets financed by accounts payable $ 2,484,740 621,214

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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NIAGARA TFALLS WATER BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2014 and 2013

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the Niagara Falls Water Board (the Board) have been prepared in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
(GAAP) as applied to governmental units. Included in the Board’s reporting entity is a
blended component unit, the Niagara Falls Public Water Authority (the Authority).

(a) Reporting Entity
The Board was created by Chapter 325 of the Laws of 2002 of the State of New York (the
State), codified as Sections 1231-a of Title 10-C of Article 5 of the Public Authorities
Law of the State, as amended (the Board Act). The Authority was created by Chapter
275 of the Laws of 2002 of the State, constituting the Niagara Falls Public Water
Authority Act, codified as Sections 1230-a through 1230-aa of Title 10-B of Article 5 of
the Public Authorities Law of the State, as amended (the Authority Act).

The Board is a corporate municipal instrument of the State consisting of five members
primarily responsible for the jurisdiction, control, possession, supervision and use of
water, wastewater and storm water systems within the City of Niagara Falls, New York
(the City).

The Authority is a public benefit corporation consisting of three members and is primarily
responsible for obtaining financing for water, wastewater and storm water systems

within the City.

Board members for both the Board and Authority are appointed pursuant to the enabling
legislation.

Pursuant to the Board Act and the Authority Act, the Board, the Authority and the City
executed an acquisition agreement effective September 25, 2003 whereby the Authority
issued bonds enabling the Board to purchase all of the assets, net of liabilities, of the
City’s public water, wastewater and storm water systems. The Board began operations
of these systems on that date.

Currently there are approximately 18,566 residential, 255 commercial and 27 large industrial
type customers, Total population served by the water system is estimated at 51,000.
The average daily demand is 21.5 million gallons per day. The Board’s wastewater
system generally covers the same service area and customer base as the water system.
The wastewater treatment plant processes approximately 32.3 million gallons of
wastewater per day.

Blended Presentation of Component Unit - Although they are legally separate entities,
blended component units are, in substance, part of the government’s operations. The
following is a brief description of the blended component unit included in the primary
government,
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(1)} Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

(a) Reporting Entity, Continued
Niagara Falls Public Water Authority - Among the powers given to the Authority is the
ability to borrow money and issue negotiable or non-negotiable notes, bonds or other
obligations for the acquisition, renovation and improvement to the regional water
system.

The Authority may also apply for licenses, permits and approval of plans associated with the
acquisition, renovation and improvement of the regional water system. In the process of
borrowing funds to improve facilities, professional consultants may be retained to offer
technical services and advice for the purpose and benefit of acquiring or improving the
sysiems.

The Authority has entered into an agreement with the Board to make payments for the debt
service required by these bonds, The Board is also required to make payments for
Authority expenses. The obligation to make debt service is a general obligation to which
its full faith and credit are pledged.

In consideration for operating the systems and the financing of capital projects from time to
time, the Board leases all of its rights, title and interest in the systems and capital
projects to the Authority under terms and conditions of the original financing agreement.
In turn, the Authority appoints the Board as the exclusive operator of the systems.

The Authority is considered a component unit since the Board is obligated to pay debt
service and fund other accounts of the Authority, Thus, the Authority is “fiscally
dependent” upon the Board to establish rates and collect fees necessary to pay these
debts. Further, the Authority is “blended” with the Board in the financial statements
because the Authority exists solely to provide services that predominantly benefit the
Board.

{b) Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting
The financial statements of the Board have been prepared in conformity with GAAP as
applied to governmental units. The Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing government accounting and
financial reporting principles.

The activities of the Board are accounted for similar to those often found in the private
sector using the flow of economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting. All assets, liabilities, deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of
resources, net position, revenues, and expenses are accounted for through a single
enterprise fund with revenues recorded when earned and expenses recorded at the time
liabilities are incurred.
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

(b} Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting, Continued

Revenues from providing water and sanitary sewer services are reported as operating

revenues. Transactions which are capital, financing or investing related are reported as
non-operating revenues, All expenses related to operating systems are reported as
operating expenses. Interest expense and financing costs are reported as non-operating
expenses.

{c) Budgets :

The annual budget is the financial plan for the effective operation of the Board and the

Authority. The Board uses the budget as a management tool for internal control
purposes and to assist in setting of appropriate user charges.

(d) Assets, Liabilities and Net Position

Cash and Equivalents - The Board’s cash and equivalents represent cash on hand,
demand deposits, and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or
less from the date of acquisition.

Restricted Cash and Investments - Capital Projects - In 2007, the Board received
$19,000,000 from the New York State Power Authority (the Power Authority) which is
restricted for capital improvement projects including, but not limited to, the Falls Sireet
Tunnel. At December 31, 2014 and 2013, the total amount restricted for capital projects
amounted to $15,297,444 and $15,294,991, respectively.

Restricted Cash and Investments - Debt Service Reserve - As a result of the purchase of
the water and sewer systems from the City, certain bond covenants, as disclosed in note
6, were established requiring resources (consisting of cash and investments) to be
maintained for specific purposes necessary to operate the water and sewer systems.

Cash has been deposited into various trust funds with a fiscal agent to satisfy certain
covenants. Further, the amounts have been invested into various short-term investments
in compliance with the Board’s investment policy. Certain funds were used for their
intended purposes and are no longer available for investment.

The debt service reserve fund was established to fulfill the debt service reserve
requirements on the outstanding bonds as and when they become due.

Accounts Receivable - All receivables are reported at their gross values and, where
appropriate, are reduced by the estimated portion that is expected to be uncollectible.
The Board has adopted a policy of recognizing water and sewer revenues in the period in
which the services are provided. Billings to customers generally consist of revenues
earned from the prior three months for quarterly billed customers, and revenues earned
from the prior month for monthly billed customers,
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

(d) Assets, Liabilities and Net Position, Continued

The collection of current water and sewer charges is performed by the Board. The City,
acting as collecting agent for the Board, collects delinquent water and sewer charges.

¢ Prepaid Expenses - Prepaid expenses reflect costs applicable to future accounting
periods and are recorded as prepaid items in the financial statements.

e Capital Assets - Capital assets acquired by the Board as part of the September 25, 2003
acquisition agreement with the City were reported at fair value on the acquisition date.
Capital assets acquired by the Board subsequent to the initial acquisition are stated at
cost including interest capitalized during construction, where applicable. Costs include
material, direct labor and other items such as supervision, payroll taxes, employee
benefits, transportation, and certain preliminary legal, engineering and survey costs. The
costs of repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred. Contributed fixed assets are
recorded at fair market value at the date received.

Construction projects are conducted on a continuing basis in order to maintain or
enhance the systems. Preliminary legal, engineering and survey costs include studies
conducted prior to the actual construction period that directly result in specific
construction projects. While capital projects are in process, all associated costs are
recorded as construction in progress. Once completed, all costs, including legal,
engineering, survey and construction costs, are reclassified to their respective asset
categories and depreciated according to their useful lives.

Depreciation has been recorded uvsing the straight-line method of depreciation. The
estimated useful lives of the Board’s major classes of depreciable assets are based on the
utility of the respective assets. The estimated useful lives of depreciable fixed assets are

as follows:
Assets Years
Land N/A
Plant and transmission assets 25-50
Machinery and equipment 5-20

e Compensated Absences - Board employees are granted vacation and sick leave and earn
compensatory absences in varying amounts. In the event of termination or upon
retirement, all union employees are entitled to payment for accumulated vacation and
compensatory time limited to amounts defined under their respective collectively
bargained agreements. All non-union employees are entitled to similar benefits as
defined by their respective contracts with the Board.
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

{d) Assets, Liabilities and Net Position, Continued
Payments of vacation and sick leave and compensatory time are dependent upon many
factors; therefore, the timing of future payments is not readily determinable. However,
management believes that sufficient resources will be available for the payments of
vacation leave and compensatory time when such payments become due.

e Postemployment Benefits - In accordance with GASB Statement No. 45, the Board
recognizes in its financial statements, the financial impact of postemployment benefits,
principally employer funded health care costs. The impact on the Board’s financial
position and results of its operations is more adequately disclosed under note 8.

¢ Bond and Note Discounts/Premiums - Are presented as components of bonds payable.
The discounts/premiums are amortized over the life of the bonds and notes on a method

that approximates the effective interest method.

e Long-term Obligations - Long-term debt is reported as a liability in the accompanying
statements of net position. Bond premiums are deferred and amortized over the life of

the respective bonds,

e Retirement Plan - The Board provides retirement benefits for substantially all of its
regular, full-time employees through contributions to the New York State Employees’
Retirement System (ERS). The ERS provides various plans and options, some of which
require employee contributions.

{(e) Use of Estimates
The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States of America requires management {o make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

() Income Taxes
The Board is a public benefit corporation of the State of New York. As such, income earned

in the exercise of its essential government functions is exempt from State and Federal
income taxes.

(g) Subsequent Events
The Board has evaluated subsequent events through the date of the report which is the date

the financial statements were available to be issued.
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD

Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(2) Cash and Equivalents and Investments

The Board’s investment policies are governed by State statute. Board monies must be deposited
in Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) insured commercial banks or trust
companies located within the State. The Board is authorized to use demand accounts and
certificates of deposit. Permissible investments include obligations of the U.S. Treasury and
U.S. agencies, repurchase agreements, and obligations of the State or its localities.

Collateral is required for demand deposits and certificates of deposit in an amount equal to or
greater than the amount of all deposits not covered by FDIC insurance coverage.
Obligations that may be pledged as collateral are outlined in Chapter 623 of the laws of the
State.

The Board’s cash and equivalents at December 31, 2014 and 2013 include the following
captions on the statements of net position:

2014 2013

Cash and equivalents $ 18,109,983 16,892,687
Restricted cash and investments:
Capital projects _ 15,297,444 15,294,991
Debt service reserve 20,109.981 22.662.414
Total $53,517.408 54,850,092
Cash and equivalents are comprised of the following:

2014 2013
Petty cash (uncollateralized) $ 100 100
Deposits 42,202,048 43,510,269
Investments 11,315,260 11,339,723
Total $53,517,408 54,850,092

All deposits and investments are carried at fair value. Investments at December 31, 2014 and
2013 are in the form of U.S. Treasury securities, notes issued by the Federal National
Mortgage Association and Federal Home Loan Bank and investment type money market
funds.

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits - In the case of deposits, this is the risk that, in the event of a
bank failure, the Board’s deposits may not be returned to it. As noted above, by State
statute, all deposits in excess of FDIC insurance coverage must be collateralized. As of
December 31, 2014 and 2013, all uninsured bank deposits were fully collateralized with
securities held by the pledging financial institution’s trust department or agent in the Board’s
name.
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(2) Cash and Equivalents and Investments, Continued

Custodial Credit Risk - Investments - For investments, this is the risk that, in the event of the
failure of the counterparty, the Board will not be able to recover the value of its investments
that are in the possession of an outside party. At December 31, 2014 and 2013, all of the
Board’s restricted cash in the form of investments was registered in the Board’s name and
was invested in U.S. Government backed securities.

(3) Receivables

Major revenues accrued by the Board at December 31, 2014 and 2013 include the following:

(a) Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable primarily represents amounts due from customers for current and
delinquent water and wastewater services provided, including penalties, unpaid bill
charges, collection fees and shut-off charges.

Customers are billed either on a monthly or quarterly basis depending on the type of user
(industrial or residential), and the level of water and sewer usage. Customers may make
payments without penalty on current charges up until 20 days afier receiving their bill.
Any unpaid balances remaining after these 20 days are subject to a penalty of 6%, and
those customers receive an unpaid bill notice. If balances still remain unpaid after 30
additional days, final unpaid notices are mailed. The customers are then given 10 days
to remit payment, after which the property is tagged, and shut-off procedures begin.

During the first week of December of every year, unpaid balances are transferred to the City
tax roll for collections through the subsequent year’s tax levy or in-rem property sales,
Any amounts relating to unpaid water and wastewater balances collected by the City
through these means are delivered to the Board.

(b) Due from Other Governments
Due from other governments represents amounts due primarily from the Cify. Amounts
accrued at December 31, 2014 and 2013 consist of:

2014 2013
City of Niagara Falls - tax transfer $ 189,649 159,474
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(3) Receivables, Continued

(b) Due from Other Governments, Continued

The tax transfer represents uncollected water and sewer charges that have been turned over
to the City for collection in conjunction with the City’s property tax levy. The City
remits these charges to the Board each January and July for collections it receives for the
previous six-month period. This amount includes collected but not yet remitted charges
at year-end. Charges from all previous years’ water and sewer operations transferred to
the City that are not collected totaled $3,846,085 and $3,377,057 at December 31, 2014
and 2013, respectively. Management has recorded a full allowance for uncollectible
accounts with respect to these balances at December 31, 2014 and 2013.

(4) Notes Receivable

Cascades Company

During 1987, Nitec Paper Corporation filed for bankruptcy with several years of outstanding
taxes, water and sewer charges due to the City, the County of Niagara (the County), and the
Niagara Falls Board of Education (the Board of Education). The City obtained the deed in
lieu of foreclosure and sold the plant to Cascades Company for outstanding taxes and
charges totaling $5,400,000. Upon closing, $100,000 was paid to the City with the
remaining $5,300,000 to be paid over 30 years as follows: Commencing November 1, 1988
through October 1, 1997, monthly payments of interest only at 3%; beginning on November
1, 1997 through October 1, 2017, monthly payments of interest and principal of $29,394.
The Board receives 59.4% of these monthly payments, with the remaining 40.6% split
between the City (16.2%), the County (6.8%), and the Board of Education (17.6%).

2014 2013
Cascades Company $ 568,425 757,799
Less current portion (195.134) (189.374)
Notes receivable - noncurrent portion $ 373,291 568,425
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD

Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

{5) Capital Assets

The Board’s capital assets activity for the years ended December 31, 2014

summarized as follows:

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land N
Construction in progress

Total capital assets not
being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Infrastructure:
Water system
Wastewater system
Machinery and equipment

Total capital assets
being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation:
Infrastructure:
Water system
Wastewater system
Machinery and equipment

Total accumulated
depreciation

Total being depreciated, net

Capital assets, net $

and 2013 is

Balance Balance
1/1/2014 Increases Decreases 12/3172014
463,713 - - 463,713
6.709.632  6,806.420  (5.,989,535) 7.526.517
7.173.345 6,806,420  (5,989,535) 7,990,230
86,409,563 157,131 - 86,566,694
68,489,493 4,550,428 - 73,039,921
5.322.252 1.282.475 (54.774) 6.549.953
160,221,308  5.990,034 (54.774) 166.156,568
(28,280,036) (2,897,496) - (31,177,532)
(12,918,259) (1,948,192) - (14,866,451)
(2.394.602) (386.659) 54,774 (2,726.487)
(43,592.897) (5,232.347) 54,774 {48,770,470)
116.628.411 757.687 - 117.386.098
123.801.756 7,564,107 (5,989,535 125,376,328

Insurance proceeds for flood damage incurred in 2013 of $2,010,514 were recorded in offset

increase in construction in progress.
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD

Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(5) Capital Assets, Continued

Balance Balance
1/1/2013 Increases Decreases 12/31/2013

Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land $ 463,713 - - 463,713
Construction in progress 4206382 7,205,661 (4.702.411) 6,709,632
Total capital assets not
being depreciated 4,670,095 7,205,661  (4.702.411) 7.173.345
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Infrastructure:
Water system 85,650,907 758,656 - 86,409,563
Wastewater system 66,313,741 2,175,752 - 68,489,403
Machinery and equipment 3.554.249 1,768,003 - 5,322,252
Total capital assets
being depreciated 155.518.897  4,702.411 - 160.221.308
Less accumulated depreciation:
Infrastructure:
Water system (25,402,932) (2,877,104) - (28,280,036)
Wastewater system (11,172,205) (1,746,054) - (12,918,259)
Machinery and equipment (2.100,953) _(293.649) - (2,394.602)
Total accumulated
depreciation (38,676,090) (4.916.807) - (43.592.897)
Total being depreciated, net 116.842.807 (214.396) - 116.628.411
Capital assets, net $ 121,512,902 6,991,265 (4,702.411) 123,801,756

{6) Bond Indebtedness

The Authority issued debt to provide for the acquisition of the water and sewer systems and for
the initial funding of operating and maintenance and debt reserves. During the years ended
December 31, 2013, the Authority issued Series 2014B bonds and Series 2013A/B bonds,
respectively.

The proceeds of the Series 2005A - Clean Water issue were used to obtain the North Gorge
Interceptor capital project from the City and to fund further capital improvements.
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(6) Bond Indebtedness, Continued

The net proceeds of the Series 2005 issue were used to eliminate outstanding short-term debt,
fund current and future capital improvements, and to refund a portion of outstanding debt in
the amount of $16,020,000. Such amount was deposited in an irrevocable trust to provide
for future debt service payments on the Series 2003A bonds. Accordingly, the trust account
assets and the liability for the defeased bonds are not included in the Board’s financial
statements,

The effect of the refunding transaction was a decrease in debt service payments of $1,603,619
and an economic gain of $1,124,676. The economic gain is the difference in present values
of the old and new debt service payments.

The premium on the Series 2005 bonds amounted to $1,495,985, and bas been deferred and is
being amortized over the life of the bonds. The premium is included in the bonds payable
balance in the Board’s statements of net position.

The proceeds of Series 2012B amounted to $6,607,122 - Clean Water issue were used to payoff
the EFC Note used to fund North Gorge Interceptor Capacity Restoration Project.

In 2013, the Board issued $74,240,000 in general obligation bonds with an average interest rate
of 4.72% and received an additional premium of $142,002. The bonds were used for an
advanced refunding of $63,535,000 of 2003 Bonds with an average interest rate of 3.79%.
The net proceeds of approximately $64 million were deposited in a trust with an agent to
provide for future debt service payments on the bonds. As a result, the bonds are considered
defeased and the liability for those bonds has been removed from the Board’s financial
statements. The economic gain on the transaction (the difference between the present values
of the debt service payments on the old and new debt) is approximately $1.7 million.

During 2014 net proceeds of the Series B bonds were used to entirely refund the Series 2004
Serial Bonds of $4,095,000, specifically reducing the interest to be paid by approximately
$610,000.

Serial bond activity for the year ended December 31, 2014 is presented on the following page:
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD

Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(6) Bond Indebtedness, Continued
The annual maturities of long-term debt (by debt type) as of December 31, 2014 are as follows:

Premium

Year on bonds Serial bonds Total
2015 $ 66,938 3,540,000 3,606,938
2016 66,938 3,655,000 3,721,938
2017 66,938 3,780,000 3,846,938
2018 66,938 3,915,000 3,981,938
2019 66,938 4,055,000 4,121,938
2020-2024 334,687 22,565,000 22,899,687
2025-2029 186,313 29,380,000 29,566,313
2030-2034 46,224 36,150,000 36,196,224
2035-2039 - 1,225,000 1,225,000
2040-2041 - 990,000 990,000
$ 901,914 109,255,000 110,156,914

Annual interest payments due on serial bonds as of December 31, 2014 are as follows:

2015 $ 4234218
2016 4,078,228
2017 3,955,693
2018 3,860,606
2016 3,701,390
2020-2024 15,581,823
2025-2029 11,531,146
2(0330-2034 4,736,130
2035-2039 256,118
2040-2041 60,862
Total $ 51,996,214

Financing Agreement Covenants

The financing agreement between the Authority and the Board relating to all current and future
bonding contain various covenants pertaining to the use and maintenance of the trust funds
established from the proceeds of each bonding. At December 31, 2014, management
believes the Board was in compliance with the following loan covenants:

The Board is required to establish and collect rates, fees and charges sufficient in each fiscal

year at least equal to the sum of:

(1) 115% of the estimated aggregate debt service and projected debt service payable in such
fiscal year;

(2) 100% of Board operating expenses and Authority expenses payable in such fiscal year;
and

(3) 100% of the amount necessary to pay the required deposits for such fiscal year.
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(6) Bond Indebtedness, Continued

The Board shall review the adequacy of fees, rates and charges at least semi-annually.

The Board shall enforce the payment of any and all amounts owed for the use of the systems.

The Board shall (unless required by law) not furnish or supply, or cause to be furnished or
supplied, any product, use or service of the systems, free of charge.

The debt service fund balance, beginning with the first day of each calendar month, shall receive
all revenues until the balance in the debt service fund equals the minimum monthly balance.
The minimum monthly balance is defined as an amount equal to the sum of the aggregate
amounts of debt service that have accrued with respect to all series of bonds, calculating the
debt service that has accrued as an amount equal to the sum of:

(1) The interest on the bonds that has accrued and is unpaid and that will have accrued by
the end of the then calendar month; and

2) The portion of the next due principal installment for the bonds that would have accrued
princip
(as deemed to accrue in the manner interest accrues) by the end of the then calendar
month.

(7) Compensated Absences

As explained in note 1, the Board reports the value of compensated absences as a liability. The
annual budgets of the operating funds provide funding for these benefits as they become
payable. The payment of compensated absences is dependent on many factors; therefore, the
timing of future payments is not readily determinable. The current portion payable is
estimated at 5% of the total compensated absences liability. The current portion of the
liability amounted to $46,814 and $51,799 at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
The long-term portion of the liability amounted to $889,478 and $984,184 at December 31,
2014 and 2013, respectively.

(8) Postemployment Benefits

The Board provides postemployment benefits to eligible retirees in the form of health insurance.
The obligation of the Board and its employees to contribute to the cost of providing these
benefits has been established pursuant to various collective bargaining agreements and
Board policy for those individuals not included in one of the bargaining units. Under such
agreements, participants are not required to contribute to the health care plan. In 2008, the
Board adopted the requirements of GASB Statement No. 45. In conformance with the
provisions of that statement, the Board recognizes the costs of postemployment health care
in the year when the employees’ services are received, reports the accumulated liability from
prior years, and provides information useful in assessing potential demands on the Board’s
future cash flows. Recognition of the liability accumulated from prior years will be phased
in over 30 years commencing in 2008.
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(8) Postemployment Benefits, Continued

Plan Description - The Board provides continuation of medical, prescription drug, dental, vision
and chiropractic coverage for employees who retire and are at least age 50 and have an age,
plus years of service, of at least 70. All retirees and future retirees hired prior to June 1,
2006 have no contribution requirements for both individual and family coverage. All future
retires hired after June 1, 2006 are required to pay 20% of the individual and family
premiums.

The Board provides certain health care benefits for retired employees. Substantially all of the
employees may become eligible for these benefits if they reach the normal retirement age
and have the required minimum age plus years of service working for the Board. The
Board, on an annual basis, accrues the cost that represents the present value of these benefits
to be paid over the estimated lives of the retirees. The annual other postemployment benefit
cost (OPEB) charged to operations for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013
amounted to $5,055,866 and $4,172,834, respectively. At December 31, 2014 and 2013, the
current portion of the postemployment benefits liability was $1,714,479 and $1,601,642,
respectively. The non-current portion of the postemployment benefifs liability amounted to
$15,922,154 and $12,752,082 at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

The number of participants as of January 1, 2014 and 2013 was as follows:

2014 2013

Active employees 80 83
Retired employees 75 74
Total 155 157

Funding Policy - The Board currently pays for postemployment health care benefits on a pay-as-
you-go basis. These financial statements assume that pay-as-you-go funding will continue.

2014 2013
Benefit Obligations and Normal Costs
Actuarial accrued liability (AAL):
Retired employees and dependents $ 37,827,312 27,421,172
Active employees 27.681.970 25,810,379
Total $ 65,509,282  53.231,551
Underfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) $ 65,509,282 53,231,551
Normal costs at beginning of year 1,065,111 944,964
Interest on normal cost 44,380 39,375

$ _1.109.491 984,339

The increase in the AAL from 2013 to 2014 was primarily caused by implementation of the
excise tax provisions of the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act.

29




NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(8) Postemployment Benefits, Continued

Level Dollar Amortization

Calculation of ARC under projected Unit Credit Method:
Amortization of UAAL over 30 years with interest to

end of year
Interest on amortization payment
Normal costs with interest to end of year

Annual required contribution (ARC)

Annual OPEB Cost Contribution

Contributions made for years ended December 31, 2014

and 2013

Contfributions as a percentage of required contribution

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

Annual required contribution (OPEB cost)
Contributions made on a pay-as-you-go basis

Increase in net OPEB obligation
Net OPEB obligation at beginning of year

Net OPEB obligation at end of year

Actuarial methods and assumptions:
Actuarial cost method

Discount rate

2014 trend rate (Medical)

2015 trend rate (Medical)

Yearly decrease after year 2

Years until ultimate rate

The remaining amortization period at
December 31, 2014 and 2013

30

2014 201
$ 3,373,009 2,720,571
573,366 467,924
1,109.491 984,339
$ 5,055,866 4,172,834
1,772,957 1,484,074
35.1% 35.6%
5,055,866 4,172,834
(1,772,957) (1.484.074)
3,282,909 2,688,760
14,353,724 11,664,964
§ 17.636.633  14.353,724
Projected Projected
Unit Credit  Unit Credit
4% 4%
8.00% 8.00%
9.00% 9.00%
0.50% 0.50%
8 years 8 years
23 years 24 years




NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD

Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

{9} Pension Plan

Plan Description - The Board participates in the New York State Employees’ Retirement
System and the Public Employees® Group Life Insurance Plan (collectively, the Retirement
Systems). These are cost sharing multiple employer retirement systems. The Retirement
Systems provide retirement benefits as well as death and disability benefits. Obligations of
employers and employees to contribute and benefits to employees are governed by the New
York State Retirement and Social Security Law (NYSRSSL). As set forth in the NYSRSSL,
the Comptroller of the State (Comptroller) serves as sole trustee and administrative head of
the Retirement Systems. The Comptroller shall adopt and may amend rules and regulations
for the administration and transaction of the business of the Retirement Systems and for
custody and control of their funds. The Retirement Systems issue a publicly available
financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information.
That report may be obtained by writing to the New York State and Local Retirement
Systems, 110 State Street, Albany, New York 12244,

Funding Policy - The Systems are noncontributory except for employees who joined the New
York State and Local Employees’ Retirement System after July 27, 1976 who contribute 3%
of their salary for the first ten years of membership and employees who join on or after
January 1, 2010 who generally contribute 3% of their salary for the entire length of service.
For employees joining afier April 1, 2012, they are required to contribute between 3% and
6%, depending on their salary, or their entire working career.

Under the authority of the NYSRSSL, the Comptroller shall certify annually the rates expressed
as proportions of payroll of members, which shall be used in computing the contributions
required to be made by employers to the pension accumulation fund. The rates billed by the
Compiroller for ERS during the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 ranged from
20.3% to 10.9%. The required contributions for the current year and two preceding years

were:
Year Contribution
2014 $ 979,609
2013 1,042,571
2012 961,791

The Board’s contributions made to the Retirement Systems were equal to 100 percent of the
contributions required for each year.

(10) Net Position

The Board’s financial statements utilize a net position presentation. Net position is categorized
as net investment in capital assets, restricted for debt service, restricted for capital projects

and unrestricted.
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(10) Net Position, Continued

Net Investment in Capital Assets - This category groups all capital assets into one component of
net position. Accumulated depreciation and the outstanding balances of debt that are
attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of these assets reduce the
balance in this category.

The Board’s investment in capital assets, net of related debt is in a surplus position of
$15,219,414 and $10,445,782 at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The surphus
results from the amortization of the Board’s capital debt, as outstanding principal for the
majority of Board’s serial bonds is not paid until late into the life of the debt while
depreciation occurs ratably over the life of the assets.

Restricted Net Position - This category represents external resfrictions imposed by creditors,
grantors, contributors, or laws and regulations of other governments and restrictions
imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Restricted for Capital Projects:

Amounts restricted for capital projects are $15,297,444 and $15,294,991 at December 31,
2014 and 2013, respectively. In 2007, the Board received $19,000,000 from the Power
Authority under a “Relicensing Settlement Agreement.” The Agreement provided for
the creation of a “Niagara Falls Water Board Capital Improvement Fund.” These funds
are restricted for future use related to capital improvements of the Board including but
not limited to any specific project including the Falls Street Tunnel project. At
December 31, 2014, approximately $9,685,000 of these funds are included in this
account.

Restricted for Debt Service:

Board restrictions at December 31, 2014 and 2013 of $20,109,981 and $22,662,414,
respectively, are for debt service.

Unrestricted Net Position - This category represents net position of the Board not restricted for
any project or other purpose.

(11) Labor Relations

The majority of the Board’s employees ate represented by four bargaining units, with the
balance governed by Board policies. Contracts for all of the bargaining units covered a six-
year term which expired on December 31, 2010. The Board is currently in negotiations with
the bargaining units regarding new contracts.
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(12) Risk Management and Contingent Liabilities

Risk management and contingent liabilities at December 31, 2014 are detailed as follows:

(a) Insurance

The Board is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts; theft of, damage to and
destruction of assets; injuries to employees; and natural disasters, for which the Board
carries commercial insurance. On March 17, 2011, the Board approved a seitlement in
the amount of $635,000 for an accident claim incurred in 2010. The Board is
responsible for its $500,000 deductible related to this claim with insurance covering any
amounts in excess of this amount. Accordingly, an accrual of $500,000 was recorded at
December 31, 2010. As of December 31, 2013 the amount was paid in full.

There were no other settlements that significantly exceeded insurance coverage for the years
ended December 31, 2014 and 2013. '
(b) Litigation
The Board is involved in litigation arising in the ordinary course of its operations. The
Board believes that its ultimate liability, if any, in connection with these matters will not
have a material effect on its financial condition or results of operations.
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Funding Progress
Other Postemployment Benefits Plan
Last three fiscal years

Actuarial Unfunded
Fiscal actuarial
year ended Value of Accrued accrued  Funded
December 31 assets liability liability ratio
2014 $ - 65,509,282 65,509,282 0%
2013 - 53,231,551 53,231,551 0%
2012 - 51,591,740 51,591,740 0%

34

Unfunded
lability
as a
percentage
Covered  of covered

payroll payrol

4,881 465 1,342%
4,911,524 1,084%
4,771,624 1,081%




Tosk1 & Co., P.C.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS,
INCLUDING COMPLIANCE WITH INVESTMENT GUIDELINES, BASED ON AN
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Board of Directors
Niagara Falls Water Board:

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the
Niagara Falls Water Board (the Board), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2014, and the
related notes to financial statements, which collectively comprise the Board’s basic financial
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated March 26, 2015. '

Internal Control Qver Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Board’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Board’s
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Board’s
internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the Board’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to
merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Maiters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Board’s financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, including Investment Guidelines for Public Authorities
and Board’s Investment Guidelines, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Board’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Board’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Tk £ Go., @PAs, P o

Williamsville, New York
March 26, 2015
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Status of Prior Year Audit Findings
Year ended December 31, 2014

(2013-1) Financial Statements

Condition - The financial statements of the Board at December 31, 2013 required significant
adjusting journal entries in order to properly reflect them in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Status - During the year ended December 31, 2014, there were no significant adjusting journal
entries required.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT

The Board of Directors
Niagara Falls Water Board:

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Niagara Falls Water Board (the
Board) as of and for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the related notes to financial
statements, which collectively comprise the Board’s basic financial statements as listed in the table
of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the Board’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Board’s internal control. Accordingly, we express
no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

300 Essjay Road, Suite 115 | Williamsville, NY 14221 | 716.634.0700 | v¢ 800.546.7556 |r 716.634.0764 | ToskiCPA.com



Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Niagara Falls Water Board as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the
changes in financial position, and cash flows thereof for the years then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis on pages 3 through 9, and the schedule of funding progress
other postemployment benefits plan on page 34 be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an
opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated May 30,
2014, on our consideration of the Niagara Falls Water Board’s internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and
not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report
is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the Niagara Falls Water Board’s internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

TToakl £ O, CPAs, P

Williamsville, New York
May 30, 2014



NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2013 and 2012

As management of the Niagara Falls Water Board (the Board), we offer readers of the Board’s
financial statements this narrative and analysis of the financial activities of the Board for the years
ended December 31, 2013 and 2012.

Following this Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) are the financial statements of the
Board together with the notes thereto. Please read the MD&A in conjunction with the Board’s
financial statements and the accompanying notes in order to obtain a full understanding of the
Board’s financial position and results of operations.

The Board was created by an Act of the State of New York, as more fully described in note 1 to the
financial statements, and commenced operations on September 25, 2003. In accordance with an
agreement with the City of Niagara Falls, New York (the City) the Board received all assets,
liabilities and operating activities (including all personnel) of the City’s former Water and Sewer
Funds. In return, the Board issued debt, which was used to defease outstanding City bonded debt
relating to its Water and Sewer Funds.

Financial Highlights

o The assets of the Board exceeded its liabilities by $56,582,127 and $55,711,333 (net
position) at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. At December 31, 2013 and
2012, $8,178,940 and $8,742,845 (unrestricted net position), respectively, may be used
to meet the Board’s ongoing obligations.

e The Board’s operating income for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 was
$5,588,228 and $703,020, respectively.

e The Board’s total bond indebtedness increased by $7,628,063 during the current fiscal
year, as a result of principal payments made of $66,545,000 and new bonds issued of
$74,240,000.

e The Board reflected a liability for postemployment benefits of $14,353,724 and
$11,664,964 at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Board’s basic financial
statements which include the financial activities of the Board, and its blended component unit, the
Niagara Falls Public Water Authority (the Authority). The reasons for blending the financial
activities are explained in note 1 to the financial statements. An overview of the responsibilities of
the Board and the Authority is presented below.

Board Authority

*  Owns the System *  Issues debt

*  Operates and maintains the System *  Provides proceeds of debt for

* Responsible for System improvements construction and improvements

*  Sets rates and collects revenues *  Provides oversight regarding

* Pays debt service on bonds adequacy of revenues and System
conditions



NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD

Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

The financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the Board’s
finances in a manner similar to a private-sector business, and are organized as follows:

e The statement of net position presents information on all of the Board’s assets and liabilities,
with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or
decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of
the Board is improving or deteriorating.

e The statement of revenue, expenses and changes in net position presents information on how
the Board’s net position changed during the reporting period. All changes in net position are
reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the
timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for
some items that will result in cash flows for future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected water and
sewer rents, earned but unused vacation and postemployment benefits).

e The statement of cash flows presents information depicting the Board’s cash flow activities
for the reporting period and the effect that these activities had on the Board’s cash and
equivalent balances.

e The notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the financial statements. The notes to the financial
statements can be found on pages 15 through 33 of this report.

Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of the Board’s financial
position. Assets exceeded liabilities by $56,582,127 at December 31, 2013, as compared to
$55,711,333 at December 31, 2012, as presented below:

Niagara Falls Water Board’s Net Position

December 31, Increase/(Decrease)
2013 2012 Dollars Percent
Current assets $ 29,385,651 25,705,491 3,680,160 14.31%
Noncurrent assets 162,327.586 153,454,198 8.873.388 5.80%
Total assets 191,713,237 179.159.689  12.553.548 7.01%
Current liabilities 11,170,992 9,500,802 1,670,190 17.58%
Noncurrent liabilities 123,960,118 113,947.554 10,012,564 8.79%
Total liabilities 135,131,110 123,448,356 11.682.754 9.46%
Net investment in capital assets 10,445,782 15,784,991 (5,339,209) (3.38%)
Restricted 37,957,405 31,183,497 6,773,908 21.72%
Unrestricted 8,178,940 8.742.845 (563.905) (6.45%)
Total net position $ 56,582,127 55,711,333 870,794 1.56%




NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD

Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

The Board’s net investment in capital assets, is a surplus net position of $10,445,782 and
$15,784,991 at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. This results from the timing of the
amortization of the Board’s capital debt, as outstanding principal for most of the Board’s serial
bonds is not paid until late into the life of the debt, while depreciation occurs annually.

The Board’s unrestricted net position was $8,178,940 and $8,742,845 at December 31, 2013 and
2012, respectively. These assets are not limited as to how and for what they may be used. The
restricted debt service portion of the Board’s net position ($22,662,414 and $15,909,573 at
December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively) represents funds that are set aside to be used towards
debt service. The restricted capital projects portion of the Board’s net position ($15,294,991 and
$15,273,924 at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively) represents funds that are set aside
primarily for the reconstruction of the Falls Street Tunnel.

A comparison of current assets to current liabilities of the Board at December 31, 2013 and 2012
follows:

2013 2012
Current assets $ 29,385,651 25,705,491
Current liabilities 11,170,992 9.500,802
Ratio of current assets to current liabilities 2.63 2.71

The Board’s total net position increased by $870,794 during the year ended December 31, 2013, as
compared to a decrease of $3,106,670 for the year ended December 31, 2012. Key elements of the
current year’s increase in net position are as follows:

Niagara Falls Water Board’s Changes in Net Position

Increase/
2013 2012 (decrease)
Total operating revenue $ 30,107,171 25,048,794 5,058,377
Total operating expenses (24,518.943) (24.345.774) (173,169
Operating income 5,588,228 703,020 4,885,208
Total non-operating revenue (expenses) (4,717.434) (3.809,690) (907.744)
Change in net position $ 870,794  (3.106,670) 3,977,464



NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD

Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

The Board’s major sources of operating revenue are charges for water and sewer services which
comprise approximately 98% of total operating revenue. These revenues combined comprise an
approximate $4.7 million increase in operating revenue over 2012. These revenues are dependent
upon rates charged for these services, with such rates being determined by the Board. Please see the
section entitled “Economic Factors and Next Year’s Rates” within this MD&A for a listing of the
rates charged during 2013 and approved rates for 2014.

The Board’s largest operating expense area relates to its employees. Together, personnel costs
(salaries) and employee benefits approximate 51% of all operating expenses. In 2013, these costs
totaled approximately $12.4 million as compared to $12.1 million in 2012, representing an
approximate 2.8% increase in this area. This increase is due to the rising costs of providing health
care and other employee benefits.

Within the non-operating revenue (expenses) category, interest expense is by far the largest expense
item and represents the cost of carrying serial bonds totaling $112,387,122 and $104,692,122 at
December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

The following is a summary of the Board’s cash flow activities for the years ended December 31,
2013 and 2012:

2013 201

Cash flows provided by (used in):

Operating activities $ 11,350,748 8.830,656

Capital and related financing activities (2,543,144) (10,646,430)

Investing activities (7.053.294) 914,985
Net increase (decrease) in cash and equivalents 1,754,310 (900,789)
Cash and equivalents at beginning of year 15,138,377 16,039,166
Cash and equivalents at end of year $ 16,892,687 15,138,377

The Board’s available cash and equivalents increased by $1,754,310 during the year ended
December 31, 2013, as compared to a decrease of $900,789 during the year ended December 31,
2012. Cash provided by operating activities reflected a positive balance of $11,350,749 for the year
ended December 31, 2013.



NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD

Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital Assets - The Board’s investment in capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) as of
December 31, 2013, amounted to $123,801,756, as compared to $121,512,902 at December 31,
2012. This includes land, plant and transmission (infrastructure type assets), machinery and
equipment, and construction in progress. The Board’s greatest investment in capital assets comes in
the form of infrastructure. Significant factors affecting capital assets during the reporting period
include:

¢ The Board recorded total additions to capital assets of $4,702,411.

o Construction in progress increased by $7,205,661, and decreased by $4,702,411 which
represents completed capital projects transferred to their applicable asset categories.

e The Board recorded total depreciation of $4,916,807 and $4,783,588 for the years ended
December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

A summary of capital assets, net of depreciation where applicable, is as follows:

2013 2012
Nondepreciable assets:
Land $ 463,713 463,713
Construction in progress 6,709,632 4,206,382
Depreciable assets:
Plant and transmission assets (water system) 58,129,527 60,247,975
Plant and transmission assets (wastewater system) 55,571,234 55,141,536
Machinery and equipment 2,927,650 1.453.296
Total $ 123,801,756 121.512.902

Construction in progress represents ongoing capital construction which will be transferred to the
appropriate asset category (and begin to be depreciated) upon completion.

More detailed information about the Board’s capital assets is presented in the notes to financial
statements.

Serial Bonds - At December 31, 2013, the Board had outstanding serial bonds totaling
$112,387,122, as compared to $104,692,122 at December 31, 2012. During the year ended
December 31, 2013, the Board made principal payments of $66,545,000 on these bonds and issued
bonds of $74,240,000.

The Board used bond debt to finance the original purchase of the assets (net of liabilities and
including the water, sewer and storm water systems) from the City. In the future, the Board may
utilize bond debt issuances as a primary source of funds for construction, renovations and system
improvements.



NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD

Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

Postemployment Benefits - Upon retirement, the Board’s employees are entitled to continuous
health insurance coverage. At December 31, 2013 and 2012, the liability recorded for these benefits
amounted to $14,353,724 and $11,664,964, respectively. The underfunded actuarial accrued
liability is $53,231,551 and $51,591,740 at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Compensated Absences - Upon separation, Board employees are entitled to payment of unused
sick and vacation time. The total liability relating to these payments at December 31, 2013 is
$1,035,983, compared to $1,124,544 at December 31, 2012. The timing of the payments relating to
compensated absences is dependent upon many factors, including the retirement or separation from
service, and is therefore difficult to predict; however, the Board estimates that $51,799 of such
liability is current at December 31, 2013.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Rates

As noted earlier, the Board’s largest sources of operating revenues are water and sewer rents from
customers. These revenues result from rates charged based on water usage by the individual
customer. Rates can be adjusted accordingly in order to help meet the expenses of the Board.
When considering rate changes, the Board utilizes the services of a rate consultant to help forecast
the magnitude and effects of potential changes. As required by law, the general public’s opinions
are also taken into consideration, through public hearings, when contemplating a change in rates
charged for services. Water rates charged for 2013 and approved rates to be charged for 2014 are as
follows:

2013 2014
Amount to be charged  Amount to be charged
(per 100 cubic feet) (per 100 cubic feet)
Inside Outside Inside Outside

Amount Consumed city city city city
First 20,000 cubic feet per quarter 3.05 8.16 3.13 8.37
Next 60,000 cubic feet per quarter 2.64 7.12 2.71 7.31
Next 120,000 cubic feet per quarter 2.24 5.94 2.30 6.09
Over 200,000 cubic feet per quarter 1.86 4.99 1.91 5.12
Minimum charge for water consumption

per quarter 39.65 106.08 40.69 108.81



NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD

Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

In addition to the above schedule of rates for water consumed, a demand charge is assessed for each

user’s meter, as set forth below:
2013 Rate 2014 Rate

Size and Type (per quarter) (per guarter)
Under 17 Disc $ 3.70 3.70
1” Disc 25.00 25.00
2” Disc 40.00 40.00
2” Compound 40.00 40.00
3” Compound 50.00 50.00
4> Compound 100.00 100.00
6” Compound 220.00 220.00
8” Compound 250.00 250.00
10” Compound 275.00 275.00
12” Compound 400.00 400.00

In addition to charging for water consumption and services, the Board also charges users with
respect to sewer and wastewater services provided. All users have been divided into two “user
classes” - Commercial/Small Industrial/Residential Users (CSIRU) and Significant Industrial Users
(SIU).

Sewer rates for the CSIRU class are determined by the total metered water consumption in each
quarter. Rates charged for 2013 and rates to be charged during 2014 are as follows:

Amount Consumed 2013 2014
Minimum charge per quarter

(up to 1,300 cubic feet) $ 49.72 53.95
Additional usage in excess

of 1,300 cubic feet ($/cubic feet) 4.04 4.15

Sewer rates for the SIU class are determined each quarter based on the actual measured quantities
and composition of wastewater flow. Such rates are determined by the Board and are based upon
five representative 24-hour composite samples taken quarterly. Rates for the SIU class for the year
ended December 31, 2013 were $2,840 per million gallons for wastewater flow; $0.94 per pound
for all suspended solids discharged; and $1.62 per pound for all soluble organic carbon compounds
discharged. Approved rates for 2014 were $2,913 per million gallons for wastewater flow; $0.94
per pound for all suspended solids discharged; and $1.62 per pound for all soluble organic carbon
compounds discharged. In addition, SIU’s are charged fees, as needed, for certain other
“substances of concern” which are discharged in their wastewater.

Contacting the Board’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide taxpayers, customers, and creditors with a general
overview of the Board’s finances and to show the Board’s accountability for the money it receives.
If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact Ms. Mary
Jean Buddenhagen, Michael O’Laughlin Municipal Water Plan, 5815 Buffalo Avenue, Niagara
Falls, New York 14304.



NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Statements of Net Position
December 31, 2013 and 2012

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and equivalents
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for
uncollectible accounts
Due from other governments
Prepaid expenses
Notes receivable - current portion

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Restricted cash and investments - capital projects
Restricted cash and investments - debt service reserve
Notes receivable - noncurrent portion

Capital assets:
Land
Plant and transmission assets
Machinery and equipment
Construction in progress
Less accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation

Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

10

2013 012

$ 16,892,687 15,138,377
11,426,055 8,945,215
159.474 352,512
718,061 585,603
189,374 683,784
29,385,651 25,705,491
15,294,991 15,273,924
22,662,414 15,909,573
568,425 757,799
463,713 463,713
154,899,056 151,964,648
5,322,252 3,554,249
6,709,632 4,206,382
(43,592,897) (38,676,090)
123,801,756 121,512,902
162,327,586 153,454,198
191,713,237 179,159,689
(Continued)



NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Statements of Net Position, Continued

Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Contract retainage payable
Overpayments
Unexpended insurance proceeds
Current portion of long-term liabilities:
Compensated absences
Postemployment benefits
Bonds payable

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences
Postemployment benefits
Bonds payable

Total noncurrent liabilities
Risk management and contingent liabilities (note 12)

Total liabilities

Net Position

Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for capital projects
Restricted for debt service
Unrestricted

Total net position

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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2013 201
1,853,249 1,488,237
3,687,531 3,370,412
186,482 70,905
12,627 1,383
645,540 -
51,799 56,227
1,601,642 1,503,638
3,132,122 3,010,000
11,170,992 9,500,802
984,184 1,068,317
12,752,082 10,161,326
110,223,852 102,717,911
123,960,118 113,947,554
135,131,110 123,448,356
10,445,782 15,784,991
15,294,991 15,273,924
22,662,414 15,909,573
8,178,940 8,742,845

$ 56,582,127 55,711,333




NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD

Statements of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

Operating revenue:
Water rents and charges
Sewer rents and charges
Licenses and permits
Other services

Total operating revenue

Operating expenses:
Personnel costs
Contractual expenses
Employee benefits
Depreciation expense

Total operating expenses
Operating income

Non-operating revenue (expenses):
Use of money and property
Interest expense
Debt issuance costs

Total non-operating revenue (expenses)
Change in net position
Net position at beginning of year

Net position at end of year

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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2013 2012

$ 11,097,080 10,158,445
18,296,694 14,519,527
231,433 244,000
481,964 126,822
30,107,171 25,048,794
4,789,375 4,771,623
7,186,059 7,485,844
7,626,702 7,304,719
4,916,807 4,783,588
24,518,943 24,345,774
5,588,228 703,020
568,750 568,405
(4,438,048) (4,331,131
(848,136) (46,964)
(4,717.434)  (3,809,690)
870,794  (3,106,670)
55,711,333 58,818,003

$ 56,582,127 55,711,333




NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

2013 2012
Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers and users $ 28,514,397 25,926,484
Payments to suppliers (7,574,719) (8,279,330)
Payments to employees (9,588,930) (8,816,498)
Net cash provided by operating activities 11,350,748 8,830,656
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Proceeds from sale of bonds 74,240,000 6,607,122
Proceeds from insurance recoveries 3,500,000 -
Expenditures of insurance proceeds (2,854,460) -
Acquisition of capital assets (6,468,870) (4,479,047)
Payments on revenue note payable - (5,416,047)
Principal paid on capital debt (66,545,000) (2,930,000)
Interest paid on capital debt (4,414,814) (4,428,458)
Net cash used in capital and related
financing activities (2,543,144)  (10,646,430)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Debt issuance costs (848,136) (46,964)
Interest earned 568.750 568,405
Change in restricted cash and investments - capital projects (21,067) 3,066,740
Change in restricted cash and investments - debt
service reserve (6,752,841) (2,673,196)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (7,053,294) 914,985
Net change in cash and equivalents 1,754,310 (900,789)
Cash and equivalents at beginning of year 15,138,377 16,039,166
Cash and equivalents at end of year $ 16,892,687 15,138,377
(Continued)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Statements of Cash Flows, Continued

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Operating income
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation expense
Changes in:
Accounts receivable
Due from other governments
Prepaid expenses
Notes receivable
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Overpayments
Compensated absences
Postemployment benefits

Total adjustments

Net cash provided by operating activities

Supplemental schedule of cash flow information - adjustment
for capital assets financed by accounts payable

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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013 2012

$ 5,588,228 703,020
4,916,807 4,783,588
(2,480,840) (952,035)
193,038 (135,935)
(132,458) (125,059)
683,784 1,978,360
(256,202) (668,427)
226,948 329,831
11,244 (12,700)
(88,561) 182,890
2,688,760 2,747,123
5,762,520  8.127.636

$ 11,350,748 8,830,656
621,214 (513,059)




NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2013 and 2012

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the Niagara Falls Water Board (the Board) have been prepared in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
(GAAP) as applied to governmental units. Included in the Board’s reporting entity is a
blended component unit, the Niagara Falls Public Water Authority (the Authority).

(a) Reporting Entity
The Board was created by Chapter 325 of the Laws of 2002 of the State of New York (the
State), codified as Sections 1231-a of Title 10-C of Article 5 of the Public Authorities
Law of the State, as amended (the Board Act). The Authority was created by Chapter
275 of the Laws of 2002 of the State, constituting the Niagara Falls Public Water
Authority Act, codified as Sections 1230-a through 1230-aa of Title 10-B of Article 5 of
the Public Authorities Law of the State, as amended (the Authority Act).

The Board is a corporate municipal instrument of the State consisting of five members
primarily responsible for the jurisdiction, control, possession, supervision and use of
water, wastewater and storm water systems within the City of Niagara Falls, New York
(the City).

The Authority is a public benefit corporation consisting of three members and is primarily
responsible for obtaining financing for water, wastewater and storm water systems
within the City.

Board members for both the Board and Authority are appointed pursuant to the enabling
legislation.

Pursuant to the Board Act and the Authority Act, the Board, the Authority and the City
executed an acquisition agreement effective September 25, 2003 whereby the Authority
issued bonds enabling the Board to purchase all of the assets, net of liabilities, of the
City’s public water, wastewater and storm water systems. The Board began operations
of these systems on that date.

Currently there are approximately 18,666 residential, 251 commercial and 27 large industrial
type customers. Total population served by the water system is estimated at 51,000.
The average daily demand is 17.9 million gallons per day. The Board’s wastewater
system generally covers the same service area and customer base as the water system.
The wastewater treatment plant processes approximately 34.17 million gallons of
wastewater per day.

Blended Presentation of Component Unit - Although they are legally separate entities,
blended component units are, in substance, part of the government’s operations. The
following is a brief description of the blended component unit included in the primary
government.
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies. Continued

(a) Reporting Entity, Continued

Niagara Falls Public Water Authority - Among the powers given to the Authority is the
ability to borrow money and issue negotiable or non-negotiable notes, bonds or other
obligations for the acquisition, renovation and improvement to the regional water
system.

The Authority may also apply for licenses, permits and approval of plans associated with the
acquisition, renovation and improvement of the regional water system. In the process of
borrowing funds to improve facilities, professional consultants may be retained to offer
technical services and advice for the purpose and benefit of acquiring or improving the
systems.

The Authority has entered into an agreement with the Board to make payments for the debt
service required by these bonds. The Board is also required to make payments for
Authority expenses. The obligation to make debt service is a general obligation to which
its full faith and credit are pledged.

In consideration for operating the systems and the financing of capital projects from time to
time, the Board leases all of its rights, title and interest in the systems and capital
projects to the Authority under terms and conditions of the original financing agreement.
In turn, the Authority appoints the Board as the exclusive operator of the systems.

The Authority is considered a component unit since the Board is obligated to pay debt
service and fund other accounts of the Authority. Thus, the Authority is “fiscally
dependent” upon the Board to establish rates and collect fees necessary to pay these
debts. Further, the Authority is “blended” with the Board in the financial statements
because the Authority exists solely to provide services that predominantly benefit the
Board.

(b) Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the Board have been prepared in conformity with GAAP as
applied to governmental units. The Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing government accounting and
financial reporting principles.

The activities of the Board are accounted for similar to those often found in the private
sector using the flow of economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting. All assets, liabilities, deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of
resources, net position, revenues, and expenses are accounted for through a single
enterprise fund with revenues recorded when earned and expenses recorded at the time
liabilities are incurred.
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

(b) Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting, Continued

Revenues from providing water and sanitary sewer services are reported as operating

revenues. Transactions which are capital, financing or investing related are reported as
non-operating revenues. All expenses related to operating systems are reported as
operating expenses. Interest expense and financing costs are reported as non-operating
expenses.

(c) Budgets

The annual budget is the financial plan for the effective operation of the Board and the

Authority. The Board uses the budget as a management tool for internal control
purposes and to assist in setting of appropriate user charges.

(d) Assets, Liabilities and Net Position

Cash and Equivalents - The Board’s cash and equivalents represent cash on hand,
demand deposits, and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or
less from the date of acquisition.

Restricted Cash and Investments - Capital Projects - In 2007, the Board received
$19,000,000 from the New York State Power Authority (the Power Authority) which is
restricted for capital improvement projects including, but not limited to, the Falls Street
Tunnel. At December 31, 2013 and 2012, the total amount restricted for capital projects
amounted to $15,294,991 and $15,273,924, respectively.

Restricted Cash and Investments - Debt Service Reserve - As a result of the purchase of
the water and sewer systems from the City, certain bond covenants, as disclosed in note
6, were established requiring resources (consisting of cash and investments) to be
maintained for specific purposes necessary to operate the water and sewer systems.

Cash has been deposited into various trust funds with a fiscal agent to satisfy certain
covenants. Further, the amounts have been invested into various short-term investments
in compliance with the Board’s investment policy. Certain funds were used for their
intended purposes and are no longer available for investment.

The debt service reserve fund was established to fulfill the debt service reserve
requirements on the outstanding bonds as and when they become due.

Accounts Receivable - All receivables are reported at their gross values and, where
appropriate, are reduced by the estimated portion that is expected to be uncollectible.
The Board has adopted a policy of recognizing water and sewer revenues in the period in
which the services are provided. Billings to customers generally consist of revenues
earned from the prior three months for quarterly billed customers, and revenues earned
from the prior month for monthly billed customers.

The collection of current water and sewer charges is performed by the Board. The City,
acting as collecting agent for the Board, collects delinquent water and sewer charges.
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD

Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

(d) Assets, Liabilities and Net Position, Continued

Prepaid Expenses - Prepaid expenses reflect costs applicable to future accounting
periods and are recorded as prepaid items in the financial statements.

Capital Assets - Capital assets acquired by the Board as part of the September 25, 2003
acquisition agreement with the City were reported at fair value on the acquisition date.
Capital assets acquired by the Board subsequent to the initial acquisition are stated at
cost including interest capitalized during construction, where applicable. Costs include
material, direct labor and other items such as supervision, payroll taxes, employee
benefits, transportation, and certain preliminary legal, engineering and survey costs. The
costs of repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred. Contributed fixed assets are
recorded at fair market value at the date received.

Construction projects are conducted on a continuing basis in order to maintain or
enhance the systems. Preliminary legal, engineering and survey costs include studies
conducted prior to the actual construction period that directly result in specific
construction projects. While capital projects are in process, all associated costs are
recorded as construction in progress. Once completed, all costs, including legal,
engineering, survey and construction costs, are reclassified to their respective asset
categories and depreciated according to their useful lives.

Depreciation has been recorded using the straight-line method of depreciation. The
estimated useful lives of the Board’s major classes of depreciable assets are based on the
utility of the respective assets. The estimated useful lives of depreciable fixed assets are
as follows:

Assets Years
Land N/A
Plant and transmission assets 25-50
Machinery and equipment 5-20

Compensated Absences - Board employees are granted vacation and sick leave and earn
compensatory absences in varying amounts. In the event of termination or upon
retirement, all union employees are entitled to payment for accumulated vacation and
compensatory time limited to amounts defined under their respective collectively
bargained agreements. All non-union employees are entitled to similar benefits as
defined by their respective contracts with the Board.

Payments of vacation and sick leave and compensatory time are dependent upon many
factors; therefore, the timing of future payments is not readily determinable. However,
management believes that sufficient resources will be available for the payments of
vacation leave and compensatory time when such payments become due.
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

(d) Assets, Liabilities and Net Position, Continued
e Postemployment Benefits - In accordance with GASB Statement No. 45, the Board
recognizes in its financial statements, the financial impact of postemployment benefits,
principally employer funded health care costs. The impact on the Board’s financial
position and results of its operations is more fully disclosed under note 8.

e Bond and Note Discounts/Premiums - Are presented as components of bonds payable.
The discounts/premiums are amortized over the life of the bonds and notes on a method
that approximates the effective interest method.

e Long-term Obligations - Long-term debt is reported as a liability in the accompanying
statements of net position. Bond premiums are deferred and amortized over the life of
the respective bonds.

e Retirement Plan - The Board provides retirement benefits for substantially all of its
regular, full-time employees through contributions to the New York State Employees’
Retirement System (ERS). The ERS provides various plans and options, some of which
require employee contributions.

(e) Use of Estimates
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

() Income Taxes
The Board is a public benefit corporation of the State of New York. As such, income earned
in the exercise of its essential government functions is exempt from State and Federal
income taxes.

(g) Subsequent Events
The Board has evaluated events after December 31, 2013, and through May 30, 2014, which
is the date the financial statements were available to be issued, and determined that any
events or transactions occurring during this period that would require recognition or
disclosure are properly addressed in these financial statements.
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(2) Cash and Equivalents and Investments

The Board’s investment policies are governed by State statute. Board monies must be deposited
in Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) insured commercial banks or trust
companies located within the State. The Board is authorized to use demand accounts and
certificates of deposit. Permissible investments include obligations of the U.S. Treasury and
U.S. agencies, repurchase agreements, and obligations of the State or its localities.

Collateral is required for demand deposits and certificates of deposit in an amount equal to or
greater than the amount of all deposits not covered by FDIC insurance coverage.
Obligations that may be pledged as collateral are outlined in Chapter 623 of the laws of the
State.

The Board’s cash and equivalents at December 31, 2013 and 2012 include the following
captions on the statements of net position:

2013 2012

Cash and equivalents $ 16,892,687 15,138,377
Restricted cash and investments:
Capital projects 15,294,991 15,273,924
Debt service reserve 22,662,414 15,909,573
Total $54.850.092 46,321,874
Cash and equivalents are comprised of the following:

2013 012
Petty cash (uncollateralized) $ 100 100
Deposits 43,510,269 35,515,453
Investments 11,339,723 10,806,321
Total $ 54,850,092  46.321.874

All deposits and investments are carried at fair value. Investments at December 31, 2013 and
2012 are in the form of U.S. Treasury securities, notes issued by the Federal National
Mortgage Association and Federal Home Loan Bank and investment type money market
funds.

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits - In the case of deposits, this is the risk that, in the event of a
bank failure, the Board’s deposits may not be returned to it. As noted above, by State
statute, all deposits in excess of FDIC insurance coverage must be collateralized. As of
December 31, 2013 and 2012, all uninsured bank deposits were fully collateralized with
securities held by the pledging financial institution’s trust department or agent in the Board’s
name.
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(2) Cash and Equivalents and Investments, Continued

Custodial Credit Risk - Investments - For investments, this is the risk that, in the event of the
failure of the counterparty, the Board will not be able to recover the value of its investments
that are in the possession of an outside party. At December 31, 2013 and 2012, all of the
Board’s restricted cash in the form of investments was registered in the Board’s name and
was invested in U.S. Government backed securities.

(3) Receivables

Major revenues accrued by the Board at December 31, 2013 and 2012 include the following:

(a) Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable primarily represents amounts due from customers for current and
delinquent water and wastewater services provided, including penalties, unpaid bill
charges, collection fees and shut-off charges.

Customers are billed either on a monthly or quarterly basis depending on the type of user
(industrial or residential), and the level of water and sewer usage. Customers may make
payments without penalty on current charges up until 20 days after receiving their bill.
Any unpaid balances remaining after these 20 days are subject to a penalty of 6%, and
those customers receive an unpaid bill notice. If balances still remain unpaid after 30
additional days, final unpaid notices are mailed. The customers are then given 10 days
to remit payment, after which the property is tagged, and shut-off procedures begin.

During the first week of December of every year, unpaid balances are transferred to the City
tax roll for collections through the subsequent year’s tax levy or in-rem property sales.
Any amounts relating to unpaid water and wastewater balances collected by the City
through these means are delivered to the Board.

(b) Due from Other Governments
Due from other governments represents amounts due primarily from the City. Amounts
accrued at December 31, 2013 and 2012 consist of:

2013 2012
City of Niagara Falls:
Tax transfer $ 159,474 142,993
Cascades note receivable - 209.519
Total $ 159.474 352,512

The tax transfer represents uncollected water and sewer charges that have been turned over
to the City for collection in conjunction with the City’s property tax levy. The City
remits these charges to the Board each January and July for collections it receives for the
previous six-month period. This amount includes collected but not yet remitted charges
at year-end. Charges from all previous years” water and sewer operations transferred to
the City that are not collected totaled $3,377,057 and $3,469,961 at December 31, 2013
and 2012, respectively. Management has recorded a full allowance for uncollectible
accounts with respect to these balances at December 31, 2013 and 2012.
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Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(3) Receivables, Continued

(b) Due from Other Governments, Continued
Cascades note receivable represents the Board’s share of the Cascades Company note
receivable (note 4(a)) received by the City but not yet remitted to the Board as of
December 31, 2013.

(4) Notes Receivable

(a) Cascades Company

During 1987, Nitec Paper Corporation filed for bankruptcy with several years of outstanding
taxes, water and sewer charges due to the City, the County of Niagara (the County), and
the Niagara Falls Board of Education (the Board of Education). The City obtained the
deed in lieu of foreclosure and sold the plant to Cascades Company for outstanding taxes
and charges totaling $5,400,000. Upon closing, $100,000 was paid to the City with the
remaining $5,300,000 to be paid over 30 years as follows: Commencing November 1,
1988 through October 1, 1997, monthly payments of interest only at 3%; beginning on
November 1, 1997 through October 1, 2017, monthly payments of interest and principal
of $29,394. The Board receives 59.4% of these monthly payments, with the remaining
40.6% split between the City (16.2%), the County (6.8%), and the Board of Education
(17.6%).

(b) Occidental Chemical Corporation
On September 10, 1990, the City entered into an agreement with the Occidental Chemical
Corporation (the Corporation) in which the Corporation agreed to make certain specified
payments to the City to help with the payment and implementation of a new City
drinking water treatment plant. The agreement stipulates a total of $64,900,000 to be
paid over 19 years commencing on December 30, 1994, with final payment received in

2013,
Notes receivable at December 31, 2013 and 2012 are detailed as follows:
2013 2012
Cascades Company $ 757,799 941,583
Occidental Chemical Corporation - 500,000
757,799 1,441,583
Less current portion (189.374) (683.784)
Notes receivable - noncurrent portion $ 568425 757,799
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Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(5) Capital Assets

The Board’s capital assets activity for the years ended December 31, 2013

summarized as follows;

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress

Total capital assets not
being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Infrastructure:
Water system
Wastewater system
Machinery and equipment

Total capital assets
being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation:
Infrastructure:
Water system
Wastewater system
Machinery and equipment

Total accumulated
depreciation

Total being depreciated, net

Capital assets, net

and 2012 is
Balance Balance
1/1/2013 Increases Decreases 12/31/2013
$ 463,713 - - 463,713
4206382 7.205.661 (4,702.411) 6.709.632
4,670,095  7.205.661 (4,702.41D) 7.173.345
85,650,907 758,656 - 86,409,563
66,313,741 2,175,752 - 68,489,493
3,554.249  1.768.003 - 5,322,252
155.518.897 4,702,411 - 160.221.308
(25,402,932) (2,877,104) - (28,280,036)
(11,172,205) (1,746,054) - (12,918,259)
(2,100,953) (293.649) - (2,394.602)
(38.676.090) (4.916,807) - (43.592.897)
116.842.807 (214.396) - 116,628.411
$ 121512902 6.991.265 (4,702.411) 123,801,756
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Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(5) Capital Assets, Continued

Balance Balance
1/1/2012 Increases Decreases 12/31/2012
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land 463,713 - - 463,713
Construction in progress 7,528,960  3.819.073  (7.141.651) 4,206,382
Total capital assets not
being depreciated 7.992.673  3.819.073  (7.141.651) 4.670.095
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Infrastructure:
Water system 85,487,625 163,282 - 85,650,907
Wastewater system 59,820,190 6,493,551 - 66,313,741
Machinery and equipment 3.089.574 464.675 - 3,554.249
Total capital assets
being depreciated 148.397.389  7.121.508 - 155,518.897
Less accumulated depreciation:
Infrastructure:
Water system (22,557,240) (2,845,692) - (25,402,932)
Wastewater system (9.,481,248) (1,690,957) - (11,172,205)
Machinery and equipment (1.854.014) _(246.939) - (2,100.953)
Total accumulated
depreciation (33.892.502) (4.783.588) - (38.676.090)
Total being depreciated, net 114,504.887  2.337.920 - 116,842,807
Capital assets, net $ 122497560 6.156.993 (7.141.651) 121,512,902

(6) Bond Indebtedness

The Authority issued debt to provide for the acquisition of the water and sewer systems and for
the initial funding of operating and maintenance and debt reserves. During the years ended
December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Authority issued Series 2013A/B bonds and Series 2012B

bond, respectively.

The proceeds of the Series 2005A - Clean Water issue were used to obtain the North Gorge
Interceptor capital project from the City and to fund further capital improvements.
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Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(6) Bond Indebtedness, Continued

The net proceeds of the Series 2005 issue were used to eliminate outstanding short-term debt,
fund current and future capital improvements, and to refund a portion of outstanding debt in
the amount of $16,020,000. Such amount was deposited in an irrevocable trust to provide
for future debt service payments on the Series 2003A bonds. Accordingly, the trust account
assets and the liability for the defeased bonds are not included in the Board’s financial
statements.

The effect of the refunding transaction was a decrease in debt service payments of $1,603,619
and an economic gain of $1,124,676. The economic gain is the difference in present values
of the old and new debt service payments.

The premium on the Series 2005 bonds amounted to $1,495,985, and has been deferred and is
being amortized over the life of the bonds. The premium is included in the bonds payable
balance in the Board’s statements of net position.

The proceeds of Series 2012B amounted to $6,607,122 - Clean Water issue were used to payoff
the EFC Note used to fund North Gorge Interceptor Capacity Restoration Project.

In 2013, the Board issued $74,240,000 in general obligation bonds with an average interest rate
of 4.72% and received an additional premium of $142,002. The bonds were used for an
advanced refunding of $63,535,000 of 2003 Bonds with an average interest rate of 3.79%.
The net proceeds of approximately $64 million were deposited in a trust with an agent to
provide for future debt service payments on the bonds. As a result, the bonds are considered
defeased and the liability for those bonds has been removed from the Board’s financial
statements. The economic gain on the transaction (the difference between the present values
of the debt service payments on the old and new debt) is approximately $1.7 million.

Serial bond activity for the year ended December 31, 2013 is presented on the following page:
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(6) Bond Indebtedness, Continued

The annual maturities of long-term debt (by debt type) as of December 31, 2013 are as follows:

Premium

Year on bonds Serial bonds Total
2014 $ 66,938 3,132,122 3,199,060
2015 66,938 3,540,000 3,606,938
2016 66,938 3,655,000 3,721,938
2017 66,938 3,780,000 3,846,938
2018 66,938 3,915,000 3,981,938
2019-2023 334,687 21,475,000 21,809,687
2024-2028 238,423 28,120,000 28,358,423
2029-2033 55,808 34,810,000 34,865,808
2034-2038 5,244 8,715,000 8,720,244
2039-2041 - 1,245,000 1,245,000
$ 968,852 112,387,122 113,355,974

Annual interest payments due on serial bonds as of December 31, 2013 are as follows:

2014 § 4,522,071
2015 4,264,278
2016 4,103,963
2017 3,982,528
2018 3,889,041
2019-2023 17,028,221
2024-2028 12,512,612
2029-2033 6,116,767
2034-2038 608,256
2039-2041 100.474
Total $ 57.128.211

Financing Agreement Covenants

The financing agreement between the Authority and the Board relating to all current and future
bonding contain various covenants pertaining to the use and maintenance of the trust funds
established from the proceeds of each bonding. At December 31, 2013, management
believes the Board was in compliance with the following loan covenants:

The Board is required to establish and collect rates, fees and charges sufficient in each fiscal
year at least equal to the sum of:

(1) 115% of the estimated aggregate debt service and projected debt service payable in such
fiscal year;

(2) 100% of Board operating expenses and Authority expenses payable in such fiscal year;
and

(3) 100% of the amount necessary to pay the required deposits for such fiscal year.
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Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(6) Bond Indebtedness, Continued

The Board shall review the adequacy of fees, rates and charges at least semi-annually.

The Board shall enforce the payment of any and all amounts owed for the use of the systems.

The Board shall (unless required by law) not furnish or supply, or cause to be furnished or
supplied, any product, use or service of the systems, free of charge.

The debt service fund balance, beginning with the first day of each calendar month, shall receive
all revenues until the balance in the debt service fund equals the minimum monthly balance.
The minimum monthly balance is defined as an amount equal to the sum of the aggregate
amounts of debt service that have accrued with respect to all series of bonds, calculating the
debt service that has accrued as an amount equal to the sum of:

(1) The interest on the bonds that has accrued and is unpaid and that will have accrued by
the end of the then calendar month; and

(2) The portion of the next due principal installment for the bonds that would have accrued
(as deemed to accrue in the manner interest accrues) by the end of the then calendar
month.

(7) Compensated Absences

As explained in note 1, the Board reports the value of compensated absences as a liability. The
annual budgets of the operating funds provide funding for these benefits as they become
payable. The payment of compensated absences is dependent on many factors; therefore, the
timing of future payments is not readily determinable. The current portion payable is
estimated at 5% of the total compensated absences liability. The current portion of the
liability amounted to $51,799 and $56,227 at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.
The long-term portion of the liability amounted to $984,184 and $1,068,317 at December
31,2013 and 2012, respectively.

(8) Postemployment Benefits

The Board provides postemployment benefits to eligible retirees in the form of health insurance.
The obligation of the Board and its employees to contribute to the cost of providing these
benefits has been established pursuant to various collective bargaining agreements and
Board policy for those individuals not included in one of the bargaining units. Under such
agreements, participants are not required to contribute to the health care plan. In 2008, the
Board adopted the requirements of GASB Statement No. 45. In conformance with the
provisions of that statement, the Board recognizes the costs of postemployment health care
in the year when the employees’ services are received, reports the accumulated liability from
prior years, and provides information useful in assessing potential demands on the Board’s
future cash flows. Recognition of the liability accumulated from prior years will be phased
in over 30 years commencing in 2008.
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Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(8) Postemployment Benefits, Continued

Plan Description - The Board provides continuation of medical, prescription drug, dental, vision
and chiropractic coverage for employees who retire and are at least age 50 and have an age,
plus years of service, of at least 70. All retirees and future retirees hired prior to June 1,
2006 have no contribution requirements for both individual and family coverage. All future
retires hired after June 1, 2006 are required to pay 20% of the individual and family
premiums.

The Board provides certain health care benefits for retired employees. Substantially all of the
employees may become eligible for these benefits if they reach the normal retirement age
and have the required minimum age plus years of service working for the Board. The
Board, on an annual basis, accrues the cost that represents the present value of these benefits
to be paid over the estimated lives of the retirees. The annual other postemployment benefit
cost (OPEB) charged to operations for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012
amounted to $4,172,834 and $4,150,593, respectively. At December 31, 2013 and 2012, the
current portion of the postemployment benefits liability was $1,601,642 and $1,503,638,
respectively. The non-current portion of the postemployment benefits liability amounted to
$12,752,082 and $10,161,326 at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

The number of participants as of January 1, 2013 and 2012 was as follows:

2013 2012

Active employees 83 90
Retired employees 74 _68
Total 157 158

}i

Funding Policy - The Board currently pays for postemployment health care benefits on a pay-as-
you-go basis. These financial statements assume that pay-as-you-go funding will continue.

2013 2012
Benefit Obligations and Normal Costs
Actuarial accrued liability (AAL):

Retired employees and dependents $ 27,421,172 27,599,839
Active employees 25.810.379  23.991.901
Total $ 53,231,551 51,591,740
Underfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) $ 53,231,551 51,591,740
Normal costs at beginning of year 944,964 908,620
Interest on normal cost 39,375 37.859
$ 984,339 946,479
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(8) Postemployment Benefits, Continued

2013 2012
Level Dollar Amortization
Calculation of ARC under projected Unit Credit Method:
Amortization of UAAL over 30 years with interest to
end of year $ 2,720,571 2,841,034
Interest on amortization payment 467,924 363,080
Normal costs with interest to end of year 984,339 946.479
Annual required contribution (ARC) $ _4,172.834 4,150,593
Annual OPEB Cost Contribution
Contributions made for years ended December 31, 2013
and 2012 1,484,074 1,403,470
Contributions as a percentage of required contribution 35.6% 33.8%
Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation
Annual required contribution (OPEB cost) 4,172,834 4,150,593
Contributions made on a pay-as-you-go basis (1.484.074) (1.403.470)
Increase in net OPEB obligation 2,688,760 2,747,123
Net OPEB obligation at beginning of year 11,664,964 8,917,841
Net OPEB obligation at end of year $ 14,353,724 11,664,964

Actuarial methods and assumptions:
Actuarial cost method Projected Projected
Unit Credit ~ Unit Credit

Discount rate 4% 4%
2013 trend rate (Medical) 8.50% 8.50%
2014 trend rate (Medical) 8.00% 8.00%
Yearly decrease after year 2 0.50% 0.50%
Years until ultimate rate 8 years 9 years
The remaining amortization period at

December 31, 2013 and 2012 24 years 25 years
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(9) Pension Plan

Plan Description - The Board participates in the New York State Employees’ Retirement
System and the Public Employees” Group Life Insurance Plan (collectively, the Retirement
Systems). These are cost sharing multiple employer retirement systems. The Retirement
Systems provide retirement benefits as well as death and disability benefits. Obligations of
employers and employees to contribute and benefits to employees are governed by the New
York State Retirement and Social Security Law (NYSRSSL). As set forth in the NYSRSSL,
the Comptroller of the State (Comptroller) serves as sole trustee and administrative head of
the Retirement Systems. The Comptroller shall adopt and may amend rules and regulations
for the administration and transaction of the business of the Retirement Systems and for
custody and control of their funds. The Retirement Systems issue a publicly available
financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information.
That report may be obtained by writing to the New York State and Local Retirement
Systems, 110 State Street, Albany, New York 12244,

Funding Policy - The Systems are noncontributory except for employees who joined the New
York State and Local Employees’ Retirement System after July 27, 1976 who contribute 3%
of their salary for the first ten years of membership and employees who join on or after
January 1, 2010 who generally contribute 3% of their salary for the entire length of service.
For employees joining after April 1, 2012, they are required to contribute between 3% and
6%, depending on their salary, or their entire working career.

Under the authority of the NYSRSSL, the Comptroller shall certify annually the rates expressed
as proportions of payroll of members, which shall be used in computing the contributions
required to be made by employers to the pension accumulation fund. The rates billed by the
Comptroller for ERS during the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 ranged from
10.1% to 25.4%. The required contributions for the current year and two preceding years

were:
Year Contribution
2013 $ 1,042,571
2012 961,791
2011 653,821

The Board’s contributions made to the Retirement Systems were equal to 100 percent of the
contributions required for each year.

(10) Net Position

The Board’s financial statements utilize a net position presentation. Net position is categorized
as net investment in capital assets, restricted for debt service, restricted for capital projects
and unrestricted.
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(10) Net Position, Continued

Net Investment in Capital Assets - This category groups all capital assets into one component of
net position. Accumulated depreciation and the outstanding balances of debt that are
attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of these assets reduce the
balance in this category.

The Board’s investment in capital assets, net of related debt is in a surplus position of
$10,445,782 and $15,784,991 at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. The surplus
results from the amortization of the Board’s capital debt, as outstanding principal for the
majority of Board’s serial bonds is not paid until late into the life of the debt while
depreciation occurs ratably over the life of the assets.

Restricted Net Position - This category represents external restrictions imposed by creditors,
grantors, contributors, or laws and regulations of other governments and restrictions
imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Restricted for Capital Projects:

Amounts restricted for capital projects are $15,294,991 and $15,273,924 at December 31,
2013 and 2012, respectively. In 2007, the Board received $19,000,000 from the Power
Authority under a “Relicensing Settlement Agreement.” The Agreement provided for
the creation of a “Niagara Falls Water Board Capital Improvement Fund.” These funds
are restricted for future use related to capital improvements of the Board including but
not limited to any specific project including the Falls Street Tunnel project. At
December 31, 2013, approximately $12,000,000 of these funds are included in this
account.

Restricted for Debt Service:

Board restrictions at December 31, 2013 and 2012 of $22,662,414 and $15,909,573,
respectively, are for debt service.

Unrestricted Net Position - This category represents net position of the Board not restricted for
any project or other purpose.

(11) Labor Relations

The majority of the Board’s employees are represented by four bargaining units, with the
balance governed by Board policies. Contracts for all of the bargaining units covered a six-
year term which expired on December 31, 2010. The Board is currently in negotiations with
the bargaining units regarding new contracts.
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(12) Risk Management and Contingent Liabilities

Risk management and contingent liabilities at December 31, 2013 are detailed as follows:

(a) Insurance

The Board is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts; theft of, damage to and
destruction of assets; injuries to employees; and natural disasters, for which the Board
carries commercial insurance. On March 17, 2011, the Board approved a settlement in
the amount of $635,000 for an accident claim incurred in 2010. The Board is
responsible for its $500,000 deductible related to this claim with insurance covering any
amounts in excess of this amount. Accordingly, an accrual of $500,000 was recorded at
December 31, 2010. As of December 31, 2013 the amount was paid in full.

There were no other settlements that significantly exceeded insurance coverage for the year
ended December 31, 2013.

(b) Litigation

The Board is involved in litigation arising in the ordinary course of its operations. The
Board believes that its ultimate liability, if any, in connection with these matters will not
have a material effect on its financial condition or results of operations.
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Schedule of Funding Progress

Other Postemployment Benefits Plan

Last three fiscal years

Actuarial
Fiscal
year ended Value of Accrued
December 31, assets liability
2013 $ - 53,231,551
2012 - 51,591,740
2011 - 49,882,610

Unfunded

actuarial
accrued  Funded
liability ratio

53,231,551 0%
51,591,740 0%
49,882,610 0%
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Unfunded
liability
asa
percentage
Covered  of covered
payroll payroll

4,911,524 1,084%
4,771,624 1,081%
4,588,511 1,087%
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS,
INCLUDING COMPLIANCE WITH INVESTMENT GUIDELINES, BASED ON AN
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Board of Directors
Niagara Falls Water Board:

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the
Niagara Falls Water Board (the Board), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2013, and the
related notes to financial statements, which collectively comprise the Board’s basic financial
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated May 30, 2014.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Board’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Board’s
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Board’s
internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the Board’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to
merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies may exist that were not identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. We did identify a certain deficiency in
internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses as item 2013-1
that we consider to be a significant deficiency.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Board’s financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, including Investment Guidelines for Public Authorities
and Board’s Investment Guidelines, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Niagara Falls Water Board’s Response to Finding

The Board’s response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and responses. The Board’s response was not subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion
on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Board’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Board’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

[kl £ (o, CPAs, P

Williamsville, New York
May 30, 2014
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Schedule of Findings and Responses
Year ended December 31, 2013

(2013-1) Financial Statements

Condition - The financial statements of the Board at December 31, 2013 required significant
adjusting journal entries in order to properly report them in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Criteria - Management of the Board is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over financial reporting and for properly presenting financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Effect - Several adjusting journal entries, with a gross value of approximately $5.1 million, were
recorded to correct misstatements in the financial statements as of December 31, 2013.

Cause - The misstatements resulted primarily from a deficiency in internal control over financial
reporting.

Recommendation - The Board should formalize its accounting procedures and ensure that all
accounts are properly reconciled to subsidiary schedules.

Management’s Reply - Management is taking more of an active role supervising and reviewing the
accounting records of the Board.
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Status of Prior Year Audit Findings
Year ended December 31, 2013

(2012-1) Financial Statements

Condition - The financial statements of the Board at December 31, 2012 required significant
adjusting journal entries in order to properly reflect them in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Status - During the year ended December 31, 2013, there was a reduction in the gross value of the
adjustments required of approximately $5.1 million down from approximately $7.9 million in 2012.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Board of Directors
Niagara Falls Water Board:

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the basic financial statements of the Niagara Falls Water Board (the Board) as of
and for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the related notes to the financial
statements which collectively comprise the Board’s basic financial statements as listed in the table
of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the Board’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Board’s internal control. Accordingly, we express
no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Buffalo * Rochester ® Albany ® New York City *  Los Angeles



Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Niagara Falls Water Board as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the
respective changes in financial position and cash flows thereof for the years then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

As described in note 1 to the financial statements, the Board adopted the provisions of GASB
Statement No. 62 - “Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in
Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements,” GASB Statement No. 63 - “Financial
Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position” and
GASB Statement No. 65 - “Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities.”

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis on pages 3 through 9, and the schedule of funding progress
for other postemployment benefits on page 35 be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses 1o our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an
opinion or provide any assurance.

Reports on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April 4,
2013, on our consideration of the Niagara Falls Water Board’s internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and
not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report
is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards in
considering the Niagara Falls Water Board’s internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

Tkl £ o, GPAs, Do

Williamsville, New York
April 4, 2013



NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2012 and 2011

As management of the Niagara Falls Water Board (the Board), we offer readers of the Board’s
financial statements this narrative and analysis of the financial activities of the Board for the years
ended December 31, 2012 and 2011,

Following this Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) are the financial statements of the
Board together with the notes thereto. Please read the MD&A in conjunction with the Board’s
financial statements and the accompanying notes in order to obtain a full understanding of the
Board’s financial position and results of operations,

‘The Board was created by an Act of the State of New York, as more fully described in note 1 to the
financial statements, and commenced operations on September 25, 2003. In accordance with an
agreement with the City of Niagara Falls, New York (the City) the Board received all assets,
liabilities and operating activities (including all personnel) of the City’s former Water and Sewer
Funds. In return, the Board issued debt, which was used to defease outstanding City bonded debt
relating to its Water and Sewer Funds.

Financial Highlights

e The assets of the Board exceeded its liabilities by $55,711,333 and $58,818,003 (net
position) at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. At December 31, 2012 and
2011, $8,742,845 and $12,277,176 (unrestricted net position), respectively, may be used
to meet the Board’s ongoing obligations.

* The Board’s operating income for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 was
$703,020 and $554,153, respectively.

e The Board’s total bond indebtedness increased by $3,610,184 during the current fiscal
year, as a result of principal payments made of $2,930,000 and new bonds issued of
$6,607,122.

» The Board reflected a liability for postemployment benefits of $11,664,964 and
$8,917.,841 at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Board’s basic financial
statements which include the financial activities of the Board, and its blended component unit, the
Niagara Falls Public Water Authority (the Authority). The reasons for blending the financial
activities are explained in note 1 to the financial statements. An overview of the responsibilities of
the Board and the Authority is presented below.

Board Authority
*  Owns the System * Issues debt
*  Operates and maintains the System *  Provides proceeds of debt for
*  Responsible for System improvements construction and improvements
*  Sets rates and collects revenues *  Provides oversight regarding
*  Pays debt service on bonds adequacy of revenues and System
conditions



NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD

Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

The financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the Board’s
finances in a manner similar to a private-sector business, and are organized as follows:

The statement of net position presents information on all of the Board’s assets and liabilities,
with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or
decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of
the Board is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of revenue, expenses and changes in net position presents information on how
the Board’s net position changed during the reporting period. All changes in net position are
reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the
timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for
some items that will result in cash flows for future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected water and
sewer rents, earned but unused vacation and postemployment benefits),

The statement of cash flows presents information depicting the Board’s cash flow activities
for the reporting period and the effect that these activities had on the Board’s cash and
equivalent balances.

The notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the financial statements. The notes to the financial
statements can be found on pages 15 through 34 of this report.

Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of the Board’s financial

position,

Assets exceeded liabilities by $55,711,333 at December 31, 2012, as compared to

$58,818,003 at December 31, 2011, as presented below:

Niagara Falls Water Board’s Net Position

December 31, Increase/(Decrease)
2012 *2011 Dollars Percent
Current assets $ 25,705,491 26,687,826 (982,335) (3.68%)
Noncurrent assets 153,454,198 155,516,185  (2,061.987) {1.33%)
Total assets 179.159.689 182,204,011 (3.044.322) (1.67%)
Current liabilities 9,500,802 15,755,869 (6,255,067) (39.70%)
Noncurrent liabilities 113.947.554 107.630.139 6,317,415 5.87%
Total liabilities 123.448.356 123,386,008 62,348 05%
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt 15,784,991 14,963,786 821,205 5.49%
Restricted 31,183,497 31,577,041 (393,544) (1.25%)
Unrestricted 8.742.845 12277176  (3,534,331) (28.79%)
Total net position $ 55,711,333 58818003  (3,106,670) (5.28%)

* As restated for change in accounting principle.



NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD

Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

The Board’s investment in capital assets, net of related debt, is in a surplus net position of
$15,784,991 and $14,963,786 at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. This results from the
timing of the amortization of the Board’s capital debt, as outstanding principal for most of the
Board’s serial bonds is not paid until late into the life of the debt, while depreciation occurs
annually.

The Board’s unrestricted net position was $8,742,845 and $12,277,176 at December 31, 2012 and
2011, respectively. These assets are not limited as to how and for what they may be used. The
restricted debt service portion of the Board’s net position ($15,909,573 and $13,236,377 at
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively) represents funds that are set aside to be used towards
debt service. The restricted capital projects portion of the Board’s net position ($15,273,924 and
$18,340,664 at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively) represents funds that are set aside
primarily for the reconstruction of the Falls Street Tunnel.

A comparison of current assets to current liabilities of the Board at December 31, 2012 and 2011
follows:

2012 2011
Current assets $ 25,705,491  26,687.826
Current liabilities 9,500,802 15,755,869
Ratio of current assets to current liabilities 2.71 1.69

The Board’s total net position decreased by $3,106,670 during the year ended December 31, 2012,
as compared to a decrease of $3,110,954 for the year ended December 31, 2011. Key elements of
the current year’s increase in net position are as follows:

Niagara Falls Water Board’s Changes in Net Position

Increase/
2012 *2011 (decrease)
Total operating revenue $ 25,048,794 23,496,202 1,552,592
‘Total operating expenses (24.345,774) (22,942,049) (1.,403,725)
Operating income 703,020 554,153 148,867
Total non-operating revenue (expenses) (3.809,690) (3.665.107) (144.,583)
Change in net position $ (3,106,670) (3,110,954) 4,284

* As restated for change in accounting principle.



NIAGARA FFALLS WATER BOARD

Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

The Board’s major sources of operating revenue are charges for water and sewer services which
comprise approximately 99% of total operating revenue. These revenues combined comprise an
approximate $1.7 million increase in operating revenue over 2011. These revenues are dependent
upon rates charged for these services, with such rates being determined by the Board, Please see the
section entitled “Economic Factors and Next Year’s Rates” within this MD&A for a listing of the
rates charged during 2012 and approved rates for 2013,

The Board’s largest operating expense area relates to its employees. Together, personnel costs
(salaries) and employee benefits approximate 50% of all operating expenses. In 2012, these costs
totaled approximately $12.1 million as compared to $11.2 million in 2011, representing an
approximate 8% increase in this area. This increase is due to the rising costs of providing health
care and other employee benefits,

Within the non-operating revenue (expenses) category, interest expense is by far the largest expense
item and represents the cost of carrying serial bonds totaling $104,692,122 and $101,015,000 at
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

The following is a summary of the Board’s cash flow activities for the years ended December 31,
2012 and 2011:

012 011

Cash flows provided by (used in):

Operating activities $ 8,830,656 9,094,293

Capital and refated financing activities (10,646,430) (12,853,652)

Investing activities 914,985 3.967,381
Net increase in cash and equivalents (900,789) 208,022
Cash and equivalents at beginning of year 16.039.166  15.831.144
Cash and equivalents at end of year $15,138377 16,039,166

The Board’s available cash and equivalents decreased by $900,789 during the year ended December
31, 2012, as compared fo an increase of $208,022 during the year ended December 31, 2011, Cash
provided by operating activities reflected a positive balance of $8,830,656 for the year ended
December 31, 2012,



NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD

Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital Assets - The Board’s investment in capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) as of
December 31, 2012, amounted to $121,512,902, as compared to $122,497,560 at December 31,
2011. This includes land, plant and transmission (infrastructure type assets), machinery and
equipment, and construction in progress. The Board’s greatest investment in capital assets comes in
the form of infrastructure. Significant factors affecting capital assets during the reporting period
include:

e The Board recorded total additions to capital assets of $7,121,508.

e Construction in progress increased by $3,819,073, and decreased by $7,141,651 which
represents completed capital projects transferred to their applicable asset categories.

¢ The Board recorded total depreciation of $4,783,588 and $4,729,006 for the years ended
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.,

A summary of capital assets, net of depreciation where applicable, is as follows:

2012 2011
Nondepreciable assets:
Land $ 463,713 463,713
Construction in progress 4,206,382 7,528,960
Depreciable assets:
Plant and transmission assets (water system) 60,247,975 62,930,385
Plant and transmission assets (wastewater system) 55,141,536 50,338,942
Machinery and equipment 1,453,296 1,235,560
Total $ 121,512,902 122,497,560

Construction in progress represents ongoing capital construction which will be transferred to the
appropriate asset category (and begin to be depreciated) upon completion,

More detailed information about the Board’s capital assets is presented in the notes to financial
statements,

Serial Bonds - At December 31, 2012, the Board had outstanding serial bonds totaling
$104,692,122, as compared to $101,015,000 at December 31, 2011. During the year ended
December 31, 2012, the Board made principal payments of $2,930,000 on these bonds and issued
bonds of $6,607,122.

The Board used bond debt to finance the original purchase of the assets (net of liabilities and
including the water, sewer and storm water systems) from the City. In the future, the Board may
utilize bond debt issuances as a primary source of funds for construction, renovations and system
improvements,



NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD

Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

Environmental Facilities Corporation (EFC) Revenue Note - During December 31, 2012, the
Board repaid the EFC Revenue Note in the amount of $5,416,047 from the New York State
Environmental Facilities Corporation used for the North Gorge Project.

Postemployment Benefits - Upon retirement, the Board’s employees are entitled to continuous
health insurance coverage. At December 31, 2012 and 2011, the liability recorded for these benefits
amounted to $11,664,964 and $8,917,841, respectively. The underfunded actuarial accrued liability
is $51,591,740 and $49,882,610 at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Compensated Absences - Upon separation, Board employees are entitled to payment of unused
sick and vacation time. The total liability relating to these payments at December 31, 2012 is
$1,124,544, compared to $941,654 at December 31, 2011. The timing of the payments relating to
compensated absences is dependent upon many factors, including the retirement or separation from
service, and is therefore difficult to predict; however, the Board estimates that $56,227 of such
liability is current at December 31, 2012.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Rates

As noted earlier, the Board’s largest sources of operating revenues are water and sewer rents from
customers. These revenues result from rates charged based on water usage by the individual
customer. Rates can be adjusted accordingly in order to help meet the expenses of the Board.
When considering rate changes, the Board utilizes the services of a rate consultant to help forecast
the magnitude and effects of potential changes. As required by law, the general public’s opinions
are also taken into consideration, through public hearings, when contemplating a change in rates
charged for services. Water rates charged for 2012 and approved rates to be charged for 2013 are as
follows:

2012 2013
Amount to be charged ~ Amount to be charged
(per 100 cubic feet) (per 100 cubic feet)
Inside Outside Inside Outside

Amount Consumed city city city city
IFirst 20,000 cubic feet per quarter 2.88 7.70 3.05 8.16
Next 60,000 cubic feet per quarter 2.49 6.72 2.64 7.12
Next 120,000 cubic feet per quarter 2.11 5.60 2.24 5.94
Over 200,000 cubic feet per quarter 175 4.71 1.86 4.99
Minimum charge for water consumption

per quarter 37.44 100.10 39.65 106.08



NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD

Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

In addition to the above schedule of rates for water consumed, a demand charge is assessed for each

user’s meter, as set forth below:
2012 Rate 2013 Rate

Size and Type (per.quarter) (per quarier)
Under 17 Disc $ 370 3.70
1” Disc 25.00 25.00
2” Disc 40.00 40.00
2” Compound 40.00 40.00
3” Compound 50.00 50.00
4” Compound 100.00 100.00
6" Compound 220.00 220.00
& Compound 250.00 250.00
10” Compound 275.00 275.00
12” Compound 400.00 400.00

In addition to charging for water consumption and services, the Board also charges users with
respect to sewer and wastewater services provided. All users have been divided into two “user
classes” - Commercial/Small Industrial/Residential Users (CSIRU) and Significant Industrial Users
(S1U).

Sewer rates for the CSIRU class are determined by the total metered water consumption in each
quarter. Rates charged for 2012 and rates to be charged during 2013 are as follows:

Amount Consumed 2012 2013
Minimum charge per quarter

(up to 1,300 cubic feet) $ 46.91 49.72
Additional usage in excess

of 1,300 cubic feet ($/cubic feet) 3.83 4.04

Sewer rates for the SIU class are determined each quarter based on the actual measured quantities
and composition of wastewater flow. Such rates are determined by the Board and are based upon
five representative 24-hour composite samples taken quarterly. Rates for the SIU class for the year
ended December 31, 2012 were $2,679 per million gallons for wastewater flow; $0.89 per pound
for all suspended solids discharged; and $1.53 per pound for all soluble organic carbon compounds
discharged. Approved rates for 2013 were $2,840 per million gallons for wastewater flow; $0.94
per pound for all suspended solids discharged; and $1.62 per pound for all soluble organic carbon
compounds discharged. In addition, SIU’s are charged fees, as needed, for certain other
“substances of concern” which are discharged in their wastewater.

Contacting the Board’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide taxpayers, customers, and creditors with a general
overview of the Board’s finances and to show the Board’s accountability for the money it receives.
If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact Ms, Mary
Jean Buddenhagen, Michael O’Laughlin Municipal Water Plan, 5815 Buffalo Avenue, Niagara
Falls, New York 14304.



NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Statements of Net Position
December 31, 2012 and 2011

2011
Assets 2012 (As restated)
Current assets:
Cash and equivalents $ 15,138,377 16,039,166
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for
uncollectible accounts 8,945,215 7,993,180
Due from other governments 352,512 216,577
Prepaid expenses 585,603 460,544
Notes receivable - current portion 683,784 1,978,359
Total current assets 25,705,491 26,687,826
Noncurrent assets:
Restricted cash and investments - capital projects 15,273,924 18,340,664
Restricted cash and investments - debt service reserve 15,909,573 13,236,377
Notes receivable - noncurrent portion 757,799 1,441,584
Capital assets:
Land 463,713 463,713
Plant and transmission assets 151,964,648 145,307,815
Machinery and equipment 3,554,249 3,089,574
Construction in progress 4,206,382 7,528,960
Less accumulated depreciation (38,676,090  (33,892,502)
Total capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation 121,512,902 122,497,560
Total noncurrent assets 153,454,198 155,516,185
Total assets 179,159,689 182,204,011
(Continued)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Statements of Net Position, Continued

Liabilities

Contract retainage payable

Overpayments
Current portion of long-term liabilities:

Compensated absences
Postemployment benefits
Revenue note payable

Bonds payable

Noncurrent hiabilities:

Total current liabilities

Compensated absences
Postemployment benefits

Bonds payable

Risk management and contingent labilities (note 13)

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt

Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

Net Position

Restricted for capital projects
Restricted for debt service

Unrestricted

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Total net position

11

2011
2012 {As restated)
$ 1,488,237 2,669,723
3,370,412 3,070,970
70,905 237,963
1,383 14,083
56,227 47,083
1,503,638 1,370,000
- 5,416,047
3,010,000 2,930,000
9,500,802 15,755,869
1,068,317 894,571
10,161,326 7,547,841
102,717,911 99,187,727
113,947,554 107,630,139
123,448,356 123,386,008
15,784,991 14,963,786
15,273,924 18,340,664
15,909,573 13,236,377
8,742,845 12,277,176
$ 55,711,333 58,818,003




NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD

Statements of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

Operating revenue:
Water rents and charges
Sewer rents and charges
Licenses and permits
Other services
Total operating revenue

Operating expenses:
Personnel costs
Contractual expenses
Employee benefits
Depreciation expense

Total operating expenses
Operating income

Non-operating revenue (expenses):
Use of money and property
Gain on sale of property
Interest expense
Debt issuance costs

Total non-operating revenue (expenses)
Change in net position
Net position at beginning of year, as previously stated
Restatement - note 1{e)
Net position at beginning of the year, as restated

Net position at end of year

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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2011
012 (As restated)
$ 10,158,445 8,599,911
14,519,527 14,374,294
244,000 220,089
126,822 301,908
25,048,794 23,496,202
4,771,623 4,588,511
7,485,844 6,992,507
7,304,719 6,632,025
4,783,588 4,729,006
24,345,774 22,942,049
703,020 554,153
568,405 679,094
- 16,500
(4,331,131) (4,360,701
(46,964) -
(3,809,690) (3,665,107)
(3,106,670) (3,110,954)
58,818,003 65,674,521
- {3,745,564)
58,818,003 61,928,957
$ 55,711,333 58,818,003




NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD

Statements of Cash Flows

Years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

Cash flows from operating activities:

Receipts from customers and users

Payments to suppliers

Payments to employees

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:

Proceeds from sale of bonds

Acquisition of capital assets

Proceeds from sales of capital assets

Proceeds from (payments on) revenue note payable

Principal paid on capital debt

Interest paid on capital debt

Net cash used in capital and related
financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Debt issuance costs
Interest earned
Change in restricted cash and investments - capital projects
Change in restricted cash and investments - debt
service reserve

Net cash provided by investing activities
Net change in cash and equivalents
Cash and equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and equivalents at end of year

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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2011
012 (As restated)
25,926,484 25,641,222
(8,279,330) (7,594,903)
(8,816,498) (8,952,026)
8,830,656 9,094,293
6,607,122 -
(4,479,047) (8,638,229)
- 18,594
(5,416,047) 2,825,952
(2,930,000) (2,660,000)
(4,428,458) (4,399,969)
(10,646,430)  (12,853,652)
(46,964) -
568,405 679,094
3,066,740 835,743
(2,673,196) 2,452,544
014,985 3,967,381
(900,789) 208,022
16,039,166 15,831,144
15,138,377 16,039,166
(Continued)



NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Statements of Cash Flows, Continued

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided
by operating activities:
Operating income
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation expense
Changes in:
Accounts receivable
Due from other governments
Prepaid expenses
Notes receivable
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Overpayments
Compensated absences
Postemployment benefits

Total adjustments

Net cash provided by operating activities

Supplemental schedule of cash flow information - adjustment
for capital assets financed by accounts payable

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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2011

2012 (As restated)
703,020 554,153
4,783,588 4,729,006
(952,035) (15,012)
(135,935) 103,438
(125,059) (96,258)
1,978,360 2,073,094
(668,427) (506,138)
329,831 (226,194)
(12,700) (16,500)
182,890 (57,987)
2,747,123 2,552,691
8,127,636 8,540,140
8,830,656 9,094,293
(513,059) (512,494)




NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2012 and 2011

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the Niagara Falls Water Board (the Board) have been prepared in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP)} as applied to
governmental units. Included in the Board’s reporting entity is a blended component unit,
the Niagara Falls Public Water Authority (the Authority).

(a) Reporting Entity
The Board was created by Chapter 325 of the Laws of 2002 of the State of New York (the
State), codified as Sections 1231-a of Title 10-C of Article 5 of the Public Authorities
Law of the State, as amended (the Board Act). The Authority was created by Chapter
275 of the Laws of 2002 of the State, constituting the Niagara Falls Public Water
Authority Act, codified as Sections 1230-a through 1230-aa of Title 10-B of Article 5 of
the Public Authorities Law of the State, as amended (the Authority Act).

The Board is a corporate municipal instrument of the State consisting of five members
primarily responsible for the jurisdiction, control, possession, supervision and use of
water, wastewater and storm water systems within the City of Niagara Falls, New York
(the City).

The Authority is a public benefit corporation consisting of three members and is primarily
responsible for obtaining financing for water, wastewater and storm water systems
within the City.

Board members for both the Board and Authority are appointed pursuant to the enabling
legislation.

Pursuant to the Board Act and the Authority Act, the Board, the Authority and the City
executed an acquisition agreement effective September 25, 2003 whereby the Authority
issued bonds enabling the Board to purchase all of the assets, net of liabilitics, of the
City’s public water, wastewater and storm water systems, The Board began operations
of these systems on that date.

Currently there are approximately 19,500 residential, 250 commercial and 26 large industrial
type customers. Total population served by the water system is estimated at 51,000.
The average daily demand is 18.4 million gallons per day. The Board’s wastewater
system generally covers the same service area and customer base as the water system.
The wastewater treatment plant processes approximately 34.17 million gallons of
wastewater per day.

Blended Presentation of Component Unit - Although they are legally separate entities,
blended component units are, in substance, part of the government’s operations. The
following is a brief description of the blended component unit included in the primary
government,
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

(a) Reporting Entity, Continued
Niagara Falls Public Water Authority - Among the powers given to the Authority is the
ability to borrow money and issue negotiable or non-negotiable notes, bonds or other
obligations for the acquisition, renovation and improvement to the regional water
system.

The Authority may also apply for licenses, permits and approval of plans associated with the
acquisition, renovation and improvement of the regional water system. In the process of
borrowing funds to improve facilities, professional consultants may be retained to offer
technical services and advice for the purpose and benefit of acquiring or improving the
systems.

The Authority has entered into an agreement with the Board to make payments for the debt
service required by these bonds. The Board is also required to make payments for
Authority expenses. The obligation to make debt service is a general obligation to which
its full faith and credit are pledged.

In consideration for operating the systems and the financing of capital projects from time to
time, the Board leases all of its rights, title and interest in the systems and capital
projects to the Authority under terms and conditions of the original financing agreement.
In turn, the Authority appoints the Board as the exclusive operator of the systems.

The Authority is considered a component unit since the Board is obligated to pay debt
service and fund other accounts of the Authority. Thus, the Authority is “fiscally
dependent” upon the Board to establish rates and collect fees necessary to pay these
debts. Further, the Authority is “blended” with the Board in the financial statements
because the Authority exists solely to provide services that predominantly benefit the
Board.

(b} Measurement of Focus and Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the Board have been prepared in conformity with GAAP as
applied to governmental units. The Government Accounting Standards Board (GASRB)
is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing government accounting and
financial reporting principles. Beginning in 2012, the Autherity adopted the provisions
of GASB Statement No. 62, “Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting
Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements.”
This statement codifies all sources of accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America into the GASB’s authoritative literature. Also, during 2012, the
Authority adopted Statement No. 63, “Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of
Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position,” and Statement No. 65,
“Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities.” These Statements provide
guidance on presenting deferred outflows, deferred inflows and net position.
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

{1} Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

(b} Measurement of Focus and Basis of Accounting, Continued

The activities of the Board are accounted for similar to those often found in the private

sector using the flow of economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting. All assets, liabilities, deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of
resources, net position, revenues, and expenses are accounted for through a single
enterprise fund with revenues recorded when earned and expenses recorded at the time
liabilities are incurred.

Revenues from providing water and sanitary sewer services are reported as operating

revenues. Transactions which are capital, financing or investing related are reported as
non-operating revenues. All expenses related to operating systems are reported as
operating expenses. Interest expense and financing costs are reported as non-operating
expenses.

(c) Budgets

The annual budget is the financial plan for the effective operation of the Board and the

Authority. The Board uses the budget as a management tool for internal control
purposes and to assist in setting of appropriate user charges.

(d) Assets, Liabilities and Net Position

[ ]

Cash and Equivalents - The Board’s cash and equivalents represent cash on hand,
demand deposits, and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or
less from the date of acquisition.

Restricted Cash and Investments - Capital Projects - In 2007, the Board received
$19,000,000 from the New York State Power Authority (the Power Authority) which is
restricted for capital improvement projects including, but not limited to, the Falls Street
Tunnel. At December 31, 2012 and 2011, the total amount restricted for capital projects
amounted to $15,273,924 and $18,340,664, respectively,

Restricted Cash and Investments - Debt Service Reserve - As a result of the purchase of
the water and sewer systems from the City, certain bond covenants, as disclosed in note
7, were established requiring resources (consisting of cash and investments) to be
maintained for specific purposes necessary to operate the water and sewer systems.

Cash has been deposited into various trust funds with a fiscal agent to satisfy certain
covenants. Further, the amounts have been invested into various short-term investments
in compliance with the Board’s investment policy. Certain funds were used for their
intended purposes and are no longer available for investment.

The debt service reserve fund was cstablished 1o fulfill the debt service reserve
requirements on the outstanding bonds as and when they become due.
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

(d) Assets, Liabilities and Net Position, Continued

Accounts Receivable - All receivables are reported at their gross values and, where
appropriate, are reduced by the estimated portion that is expected to be uncollectible.
The Board has adopted a policy of recognizing water and sewer revenues in the period in
which the services are provided. Billings to customers generally consist of revenues
earned from the prior three months for quarterly billed customers, and revenues earned
from the prior month for monthly billed customers.

The collection of current water and sewer charges is performed by the Board. The City,
acting as collecting agent for the Board, collects delinquent water and sewer charges.

Prepaid Expenses - Prepaid expenses reflect costs applicable to future accounting
periods and are recorded as prepaid items in the financial statements.

Capital Assets - Capital assets acquired by the Board as part of the September 235, 2003
acquisition agreement with the City were reported at fair value on the acquisition date.
Capital assets acquired by the Board subsequent to the initial acquisition are stated at
cost including interest capitalized during construction, where applicable. Costs include
material, direct labor and other items such as supervision, payroll taxes, employee
benefits, transportation, and certain preliminary legal, engineering and survey costs, The
costs of repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred. Contributed fixed assets are
recorded at fair market value at the date received.

Construction projects are conducted on a continuing basis in order to maintain or
enhance the systems. Preliminary legal, engineering and survey costs include studies
conducted prior fo the actual construction period that directly result in specific
construction projects. While capital projects are in process, all associated costs are
recorded as construction in progress, Once completed, all costs, including legal,
engineering, survey and construction costs, are reclassified to their respective asset
categories and depreciated according to their useful lives.

Depreciation has been recorded using the straight-line method of depreciation. The
estimated useful lives of the Board’s major classes of depreciable assets are based on the
utility of the respective assets. The estimated useful lives of depreciable fixed assets are
as follows:

Assets Years
Land N/A
Plant and {ransmission assets 25-50
Machinery and equipment 5-20
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

(d) Assets, Liabilities and Net Position., Continued

Compensated Absences - Board employees are granted vacation and sick leave and earn
compensatory absences in varying amounts. In the event of termination or upon
retirement, all union employees are entitled to payment for accumulated vacation and
compensatory time limited to amounts defined under their respective collectively
bargained agreements. All non-union employees are entitled to similar benefits as
defined by their respective contracts with the Board.

Payments of vacation and sick leave and compensatory time are dependent upon many
factors; therefore, the timing of future payments is not readily determinable. However,
management believes that sufficient resources will be available for the payments of
vacation leave and compensatory time when such payments become due.

Postemployment Benefits - In accordance with GASB Statement No. 45, the Board
recognizes in its financial statements, the financial impact of postemployment benefits,
principally employer funded health care costs. The impact on the Board’s financial
position and results of its operations is more fully disclosed under note 9.

Bond and Note Discounts/Premiums - Are presented as components of bonds payable.
The discounts/premiums are amortized over the life of the bonds and notes on a method
that approximates the effective interest method.

Long-term Obligations - Long-term debt is reported as a liability in the accompanying
statements of net position. Bond premiums are deferred and amortized over the life of
the respective bonds.

Retirement Plan - The Board provides retirement benefits for substantially all of its
regular, full-time employees through contributions to the New York State Employees’
Retirement System (ERS). The ERS provides various plans and options, some of which
require employee contributions.

(e) Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position -

Restatement

For the year ended December 31, 2012, the Board implemented GASB Statements No. 63 -

“Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources
and Net Position” and Statement No. 65 - “Items Previously Reported as Assets and
Liabilities.” Statement No., 63 amends the net asset reporting requirements in Statement
No. 34 - “Basic Financial Statements - and Managements’ Discussion and Analysis - for
State and Local Governments” and other pronouncements by incorporating deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources into the definitions of the
required components of the residual measure and by renaming that measure as net
position, rather than net assets. Statement No. 65 established accounting and financial
reporting standards that reclassify, as deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows
of resources, certain items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities and
recognizes as outflows of resources or inflows of resources, certain items that were
previously reported as assets and liabilities.
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

{1} Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

(e} Deferred OQutflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position -
Restatement, Continued
The implementation of these standards reduced previously reported net position as of the
beginning of the year ended December 31, 2011 by $3,745,564 to eliminate unamortized
bond and note issuance costs. In addition, 2011 amortization expense was reduced by
$275,985. This resulted in a reduction of the net position previously reported at year end
December 31, 2011 by $3,469,579. This restatement has been recorded in the statements
of net position, revenue, expenses and changes in net position and cash flows for the
year ended December 31, 2011.

(f) Use of Estimates
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

() Income Taxes
The Board is a public benefit corporation of the State of New York. As such, income earned
in the exercise of its essential government functions is exempt from State and Federal
income taxes.

(h) Reclassifications
Reclassifications have been made to certain 2011 balances in order to conform them to the
2012 presentation.

(i) Subsequent Events
The Board has evaluated events after December 31, 2012, and through April 4, 2013, which
is the date the financial statements were available to be issued, and determined that any
events or transactions occurring during this period that would require recognition or
disclosure are properly addressed in these financial statements.

(2) Cash and Equivalents and Invesiments

The Board’s investment policies are governed by State statute. Board monies must be deposited
in Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) insured commercial banks or trust
companies located within the State. The Board is authorized to use demand accounts and
certificates of deposit. Permissible investments include obligations of the U.S. Treasury and
U.S. agencies, repurchase agreements, and obligations of the State or its localities.

Collateral is required for demand deposits and certificates of deposit in an amount equal to or
greater than the amount of all deposits not covered by FDIC insurance coverage.
Obligations that may be pledged as collateral are outlined in Chapter 623 of the laws of the
State.
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(2) Cash and Equivalents and Investments, Continued

The Board’s cash and equivalents at December 31, 2012 and 2011 include the following

captions on the statements of net position:

2012 2011

Cash and equivalents $ 15,138,377 16,039,166
Restricted cash and investments:
Capital projects 15,273,924 18,340,664
Debt service reserve 15,909,573 13,236,377
Total $46321.874 47,616,207
Cash and equivalents are comprised of the following:

2012 2011
Petty cash (uncollateralized) b 100 100
Deposits 35,515,453 36,772,197
Investments 10.806.321 10,843,910
Total $46,321,874 47.616,207

All deposits and investments are carried at fair value., Investments at December 31, 2012 and

2011 are in the form of U.S, Treasury securities, notes issued by the Federal National
Mortgage Association and Federal Home Loan Bank and investment type money market
funds.

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits - In the case of deposits, this is the risk that, in the event of a

bank failure, the Board’s deposits may not be returned to it. As noted above, by State
statute, all deposits in excess of FDIC insurance coverage must be collateralized. As of
December 31, 2011, all uninsured bank deposits were fully collateralized with securities
held by the pledging financial institution’s trust department or agent in the Board’s name
however, as of December 31, 2012, all uninsured bank deposits were not fully collateralized
with securities held by the pledging financial institution’s trust department or agent in the
Board’s name. The Board’s bank deposits were under collateralized by $4,675.

Custodial Credit Risk - Investments - For investments, this is the risk that, in the event of the

failure of the counterparty, the Board will not be able to recover the value of its investments
that are in the possession of an outside party. At December 31, 2012 and 2011, all of the
Board’s restricted cash in the form of investments was registered in the Board’s name and
was invested in U.S. Government backed securities.

(33 Receivables

Major revenues accrued by the Board at December 31, 2012 and 2011 include the following:

(a) Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable primarily represents amounts due from customers for current and
delinquent water and wastewater services provided, including penalties, unpaid bill
charges, collection fees and shut-off charges.
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(33 Receivables, Continued

(a) Accounts Receivable, Continued

Customers are billed either on a monthly or quarterly basis depending on the type of user
(industrial or residential), and the level of water and sewer usage. Customers may make
payments without penalty on current charges up until 20 days after receiving their bill.
Any unpaid balances remaining after these 20 days are subject to a penalty of 6%, and
those customers receive an unpaid bill notice, If balances still remain unpaid after 30
additional days, final unpaid notices are mailed. The customers are then given 10 days
to remit payment, after which the property is tagged, and shut-off procedures begin.

During the first week of December of every year, unpaid balances are transferred to the City
tax roll for collections through the subsequent year’s tax levy or in-rem property sales.
Any amounts relating to unpaid water and wastewater balances collected by the City
through these means are delivered to the Board.

(b) Due from Other Governments
Due from other governments represents amounts due primarily from the City, Amounts
accrued at December 31, 2012 and 2011 consist of:

012 2011
City of Niagara Falls:
Tax transfer $ 142,993 216,577
Cascades note receivable 209,519 -
Total $ 352,512 216,577

The tax transfer represents uncollected water and sewer charges that have been turned over
to the City for collection in conjunction with the City’s property tax levy, The City
remits these charges to the Board each January and July for collections it receives for the
previous six-month period. This amount includes collected but not yet remitted charges
at year-end. Charges from all previous years’ water and sewer operations transferred to
the City that are not collected totaled $3,469,961 and $3,752,982 at December 31, 2012
and 2011, respectively. Management has recorded a full allowance for uncollectible
accounts with respect to these balances at December 31, 2012 and 2011.

Cascades note receivable represents the Board’s share of the Cascades Company note
receivable (note 4(a)) received by the City but not yet remitted to the Board as of
December 31, 2012,
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(4) Notes Receivable

(a) Cascades Company

During 1987, Nitec Paper Corporation filed for bankruptey with several years of outstanding
taxes, water and sewer charges due to the City, the County of Niagara (the County), and
the Niagara Falls Board of Education (the Board of Education). The City obtained the
deed in lieu of foreclosure and sold the plant to Cascades Company for outstanding taxes
and charges totaling $5,400,000. Upon closing, $100,000 was paid to the City with the
remaining $5,300,000 to be paid over 30 years as follows: Commencing November 1,
1988 through October 1, 1997, monthly payments of interest only at 3%; beginning on
November 1, 1997 through October 1, 2017, monthly payments of interest and principal
of $29,394. The Board receives 59.4% of these monthly payments, with the remaining
40.6% split between the City (16.2%), the County (6.8%), and the Board of Education
(17.6%).

(b) Occidental Chemical Corporation

On September 10, 1990, the City entered into an agreement with the Occidental Chemical
Corporation (the Corporation) in which the Corporation agreed to make certain specified
payments to the City to help with the payment and implementation of a new City
drinking water treatment plant. The agreement stipulates a total of $64,900,000 to be
paid over 19 years commencing on December 30, 1994, with final payment scheduled in
2013, The remaining balance due under this agreement transferred to the Board on
September 25, 2003,

Notes receivable at December 31, 2012 and 2011 are detailed as follows:

2012 2011
Cascades Company $ 941,583 1,119,943
Occidental Chemical Corporation 500,000 2,300,000
1,441,583 3,419,943
Less current portion (683.784) (1,978.359)
Notes receivable - noncurrent portion $ 757,799 1,441,584
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(5) Capital Assets

The Board’s capital assets activity for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 is
summarized as follows:

Balance Balance
1/1/2012 Increases Decreases 12/31/2012

Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land $ 463,713 - - 463,713
Construction in progress 7,528,960 3.819.073 (7,141,651 4,206,382
Total capital assets not
being depreciated 7.992.673 3,819,073  (7.141.651) 4,670,095
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Infrastructure:
Water system 85,487,625 163,282 - 85,650,907
Wastewater system 59,820,190 6,493,551 - 66,313,741
Machinery and equipment 3,089,574 464,675 - 3,554,249
Total capital assets
being depreciated 148,397,389 7.121.508 - 155,518,897
Less accumulated depreciation:
Infrastructure:
Water system (22,557,240) (2,845,692) - (25,402,932)
Wastewater system (9,481,248) (1,690,957) - (11,172,205)
Machinery and equipment (1.854,014) (246,939) - (2,100,953)
Total accumulated
depreciation (33,892.502) (4,783.588) - (38,676.090)
Total being depreciated, net 114,504,887 2,337,920 - 116,842,807
Capital assets, net $ 122,497,560 6,156,993 (Z,141,651) 121,512,902
Balance Balance
1/1/2011 Increases Decreases  12/31/2011
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $ 463,713 - - 463,713
Construction in progress 13,345,752 7,830,611 (13.647.403) 7,528,960
Total capital assets not
being depreciated 13,809.465 7,830,611 (13.647.403) 7,992,673
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD

Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(5) Capital Assets, Continued

Balance Balance
1/1/2011 Increases Decreases  12/31/2011
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Infrastructure:
Water system $ 85,080,670 406,955 - 85,487,625
Wastewaler system 46,832,828 12,987,362 - 59,820,190
Machinery and equipment 2,819,988 269.586 - 3.089.574
Total capital assets
being depreciated 134,733,486 13,663,903 - 148,397,389
Less accumulated depreciation:
Infrastructure:
Water system (19,639,075) (2,918,165) - (22,557,240)
Wastewater system (7,955,479) (1,525,769) - (9,481,248)
Machinery and equipment (1.568.942) (285.072) - (1.854.014)
Total accumulated
depreciation (29.163.496) (4.729.000) - (33.892,502)
Total being depreciated, net 105,569,990 8,934,897 - 114,504,887
Capital assets, net $ 119,379,455 16,765,508 (13,647,403) 122.497.560

(6) Environmental Facilities Corporation Revenue Note

During the year ended December 31, 2010, the Board commenced its North Gorge Interceptor
Capacity Restoration Project (the Project), which was an $11 million initiative to repair a
large wastewater tunnel originally constructed in 1937. The Project was funded by the New
York State Environmental Facilities Corporation (EFC) through the Clean Water State
Revolving Funds. In connection with the Project, the Board obtained an $11 million EFC
Revenue Note, of which $5,470,953 was eligible for principal forgiveness under the
American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (ARRA).

As of December 31, 2011, the Board incurred total principal draws of $11,000,000 under the
Revenue Note for Project expenditures, of which $5,470,953 was considered forgiven
during 2010 under the ARRA portion of the funding package. The remaining balance of
$5,416,047 was a non-interest bearing note and was paid in full during 2012.
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

{7} Bond Indebtedness

The Authority issued debt to provide for the acquisition of the water and sewer systems and for
the initial funding of operating and maintenance and debt reserves. During the year ended
December 31, 2011, the Authority issued no bonds. However, during the year ended
December 31, 2012, the Authority issued a Series 2012B bond.

The proceeds of the Series 2005A - Clean Water issue were used to obtain the North Gorge
Interceptor capital project from the City and to fund further capital improvements.

The net proceeds of the Series 2005 issue were used to eliminate outstanding short-term debt,
fund current and future capital improvements, and to refund a portion of outstanding debt in
the amount of $16,020,000. Such amount was deposited in an irrevocable trust to provide
for future debt service payments on the Series 2003A bonds. Accordingly, the trust account
assets and the liability for the defeased bonds are not included in the Board’s financial
statements.

The effect of the refunding transaction was a decrease in debt service payments of $1,603,619
and an economic gain of $1,124,676. The economic gain is the difference in present values
of the old and new debt service payments.

The premium on the Series 2005 bonds amounted to $1,495,985, and has been deferred and is
being amortized over the life of the bonds. The premium is included in the bonds payable
balance in the Board’s statements of net position,

The proceeds of Series 2012B amounted to $6,607,122 - Clean Water issue were used to payoff
the EFC Note used to fund North Gorge Interceptor Capacity Restoration Project.

Serial bond activity for the year ended December 31, 2012 is presented on the following page:
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(7) Bond Indebtedness. Continued

The annual maturities of long-term debt (by debt type) as of December 31, 2012 are as follows:

Premium

Year on bonds Serial bonds Total
2013 $ 66,938 3,010,000 3,076,938
2014 66,938 3,107,122 3,174,060
2015 66,938 3,215,000 3,281,938
2016 66,938 3,330,000 3,396,938
2017 66,938 3,450,000 3,516,938
2018-2022 334,687 19,395,000 19,729,687
2023-2027 278,787 23,710,000 23,988,787
2028-2032 75,047 29,205,000 29,280,047
2033-2037 12,578 14,775,000 14,787,578
2038-2041 - 1,495,000 1,495,000
$ 1,035,789 104,692,122 105,727,911

Annual interest payments due on serial bonds as of December 31, 2012 are as follows:

2013 $ 4,347,877
2014 4,255,374
2015 4,150,672
2016 4,040,240
2017 3,922,955
2018-2022 17,585,503
2023-2027 13,448,984
2028-2032 7,721,538
2033-2037 1,311,494
2038-2041 146.046
Total $ 60,930,683

Financing Agreement Covenants

The financing agreement between the Authority and the Board relating to all current and future
bonding contain various covenants pertaining to the use and maintenance of the trust funds
established from the proceeds of each bonding. At December 31, 2012, management
believes the Board was in compliance with the following loan covenants:

The Board is required to establish and collect rates, fees and charges sufficient in each fiscal
year at least equal to the sum of:

(1) 115% of the estimated aggregate debt service and projected debt service payable in such
fiscal year;

(2) 100% of Board operating expenses and Authority expenses payable in such fiscal year;
and

(3) 100% of the amount necessary to pay the required deposits for such fiscal year.
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(7} Bond Indebtedness, Continued

The Board shall review the adequacy of fees, rates and charges at least semi-annually.
The Board shall enforce the payment of any and all amounts owed for the use of the systems.

The Board shall (unless required by law) not furnish or supply, or cause to be furnished or
supplied, any product, use or service of the systems, free of charge.

The debt service fund balance, beginning with the first day of each calendar month, shall receive
all revenues until the balance in the debt service fund equals the minimum monthly balance.
The minimum monthly balance is defined as an amount equal to the sum of the aggregate
amounts of debt service that have accrued with respect to all series of bonds, calculating the
debt service that has accrued as an amount equal to the sum of:

(1) The interest on the bonds that has accrued and is unpaid and that will have accrued by
the end of the then calendar month; and

(2) The portion of the next due principal installment for the bonds that would have accrued
{(as deemed to accrue in the manner interest accrues) by the end of the then calendar
month.

(8) Compensated Absences

As explained in note 1, the Board reports the value of compensated absences as a liability, The
annual budgets of the operating funds provide funding for these benefits as they become
payable. The payment of compensated absences is dependent on many factors; therefore, the
timing of future payments is not readily determinable. The current portion payable is
estimated at 5% of the total compensated absences liability, The current portion of the
liability amounted to $56,227 and $47,083 at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
The long-term portion of the liability amounted to $1,068,317 and $894,571 at December
31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

(9) Postemployment Benefits

The Board provides postretirement benefits to eligible retirees in the form of health insurance.
The obligation of the Board and its employees to contribute to the cost of providing these
benefits has been established pursuant to various collective bargaining agreements and
Board policy for those individuals not included in one of the bargaining units. Under such
agreements, participants are not required to contribute to the health care plan. In 2008, the
Board adopted the requirements of GASB Statement No. 45. In conformance with the
provisions of that statement, the Board recognizes the costs of postemployment health care
in the year when the employees’ services are received, reports the accumulated liability from
prior years, and provides information useful in assessing potential demands on the Board’s
future cash flows., Recognition of the liability accumulated from prior years will be phased
in over 30 years commencing in 2008.
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

{9 Postemployment Benefits, Continued

Plan Description - The Board provides continuation of medical, prescription drug, dental, vision
and chiropractic coverage for employees who retire and are at least age 50 and have an age,
plus years of service, of at least 70, All retirees and future retirees hired prior to June 1,
2006 have no contribution requirements for both individual and family coverage. All future
retires hired after June 1, 2006 are required to pay 20% of the individual and family
premiums.

The Board provides certain health care benefits for retired employees. Substantially all of the
employees may become eligible for these benefits if they reach the normal retirement age
and have the required minimum age plus years of service working for the Board. The
Board, on an annual basis, accrues the cost that represents the present value of these benefits
to be paid over the estimated lives of the retirees. The annual other postemployment benefit
cost (OPEB) charged to operations for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011
amounted to $4,150,593 and $3,908,098, respectively. At December 31, 2012 and 2011, the
current portion of the postemployment benefits liability was $1,503,638 and $1,370,000,
respectively. The non-current portion of the postemployment benefits liability amounted to
$10,161,326 and $7,547,841 at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

The number of participants as of January 1, 2012 and 2011 was as follows:

012 2011

Active employees 90 86
Retired employees _68 _68
Total 158 154

li

FFunding Policy - The Board currently pays for postemployment health care benefits on a pay-as-
you-go basis. These financial statements assume that pay-as-you-go funding will continue.

2012 2011
Benefit Obligations and Normal Costs
Actuarial accrued liability (AAL):
Retired employees and dependents $ 27,599,839 27,665,829
Active employees 23,991,901 22.216.781
Total $ 51,591,740  49.882.610
Underfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) $ 51,591,740 49,882,610
Normal costs at beginning of year 908,620 873,673
Interest on normal cost 37,859 36.403

$ 946,479 910,076
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(9} Postemployment Benefits, Continued

b
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Level Dollar Amortization
Calculation of ARC under projected Unit Credit Method:
Amortization of UAAL over 30 years with interest to

end of year $ 2,841,034 2,740,828
Interest on amortization payment 363,080 257,194
Normal costs with interest to end of year 946,479 910,076

Annual required contribution (ARC) $ 4,150,593 3.908,098

Annual OPEB Cost Contribution
Contributions made for years ended December 31, 2012

and 2011 1,403,470 1,355,407
Contributions as a percentage of required contribution 33.8% 34.7%
Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation
Annual required contribution (OPEB cost) 4,150,593 3,908,098
Contributions made on a pay-as-you-go basis (1.403.470) (1.355,407)
Increase in net OPEB obligation 2,747,123 2,552,691
Net OPEB obligation at beginning of year 8.917.841 6,365,150
Net OPEB obligation at end of year $ 11,664.964 8,917,841

Actuarial methods and assumptions:
Actuarial cost method Projected Projected
Unit Credit ~ Unit Credit

Discount rate 4% 4%
2012 trend rate (Medical} 9.00% 9.00%
2013 trend rate (Medical) 8.50% 8.50%
Yearly decrease after year 2 0.50% 0.50%
Years until ultimate rate 9 years 10 years
'The remaining amortization period at

December 31, 2012 and 2011 25 years 26 years
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

{(10) Pension Plan

Plan Description - The Board participates in the New York State Employees” Retirement
System and the Public Employees’ Group Life Insurance Plan (collectively, the Retirement
Systems). These are cost sharing multiple employer retirement systems. The Retirement
Systems provide retirement benefits as well as death and disability benefits. Obligations of
employers and employees to contribute and benefits to employees are governed by the New
York State Retirement and Social Security Law (NYSRSSL). As set forth in the NYSRSSL,
the Comptroller of the State (Comptroller) serves as sole trustee and administrative head of
the Retirement Systems. The Comptroller shall adopt and may amend rules and regulations
for the administration and transaction of the business of the Retirement Systems and for
custody and control of their funds, The Retirement Systems issue a publicly available
financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information.
That report may be obtained by writing to the New York State and Local Retirement
Systems, 110 State Street, Albany, New York 12244,

Funding Policy - The Systems are noncontributory except for employees who joined the New
York State and Local Employees” Retirement System after July 27, 1976 who contribute 3%
of their salary for the first ten years of membership and employees who join on or after
Januvary 1, 2010 who generally contribute 3% of their salary for the entire length of service.
For employees joining after April 1, 2012, they are required to contribute between 3% and
6%, depending on their salary, or their entire working career.

Under the authority of the NYSRSSL, the Comptroller shail certitfy annually the rates expressed
as proportions of payroll of members, which shall be used in computing the contributions
required to be made by employers to the pension accumulation fund. The rates billed by the
Comptroller for ERS during the year ended December 31, 2012 ranged from 10.1% to
25.4% and during the year ended December 31, 2011 ranged from 12.7% to 21.5%. The
required contributions for the current year and two preceding years were:

Year Contribution
2012 $ 961,791
2011 653,821
2010 508,156

The Board’s contributions made to the Retirement Systems were equal to 100 percent of the
contributions required for each year.

{11} Net Position

The Board’s financial statements utilize a net position presentation. Net position is categorized
as invested in capital assets (net of related debt), restricted for debt service, restricted for
capital projects and unrestricted.
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(11) Net Position, Continued

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt - This category groups all capital assets into one
component of net position. Accumulated depreciation and the outstanding balances of debt
that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of these assets reduce
the balance in this category.

The Board’s investment in capital assets, net of related debt is in a surplus position of
$15,784,991 and $14,963,786 at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. The increasing
surplus results from the amortization of the Board’s capital debt, as outstanding principal for
the majority of Board’s serial bonds is not paid until late into the life of the debt while
depreciation occurs ratably over the life of the assets.

Restricted Net Position - This category represents external restrictions imposed by creditors,
grantors, contributors, or laws and regulations of other governments and restrictions
imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Restricted for Capital Projects:

Amounts restricted for capital projects are $15,273,924 and $18,340,664 at December 31,
2012 and 2011, respectively. In 2007, the Board received $19,000,000 from the Power
Authority under a “Relicensing Settlement Agreement.” The Agreement provided for
the creation of a “Niagara Falls Water Board Capital Improvement Fund.” These funds
are restricted for future use related to capital improvements of the Board including but
not limited to any specific project including the Falls Street Tunnel project, At
December 31, 2012, approximately $12,000,000 of these funds are included in this
account,

Restricted for Debt Service:

Board restrictions at December 31, 2012 and 2011 of $15,909,573 and $13,236,377,
respectively, are for debt service.

Unrestricted Net Position - This category represents net position of the Board not testricted for
any project or other purpose.

(12) Labor Relations

The majority of the Board’s employees are represented by four bargaining units, with the
balance governed by Board policies. Contracts for all of the bargaining units covered a six-
year term which expired on December 31, 2010. The Board is currently in negotiations with
the bargaining units regarding new contracts.
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued

(13) Risk Management and Contingent Liabilities

Risk management and contingent liabilities at December 31, 2012 are detailed as follows:

(a) Insurance

The Board is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts; theft of, damage to and
destruction of assets; injuries to employees; and natural disasters, for which the Board
carries commercial insurance. On March 17, 2011, the Board approved a settlement in
the amount of $635,000 for an accident claim incurred in 2010. The Board is
responsible for its $500,000 deductible related to this claim with insurance covering any
amounts in excess of this amount, Accordingly, an accrual of $500,000 was recorded at
December 31, 2010. As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, $125,000 and $250,000,
respectively, remains payable.

There were no other settlements that significantly exceeded insurance coverage for the year
ended December 31, 2012,

(b) Litigation
The Board is involved in litigation arising in the ordinary course of its operations. The
Board believes that its ultimate liability, if any, in connection with these matters will not
have a material effect on its financial condition or results of operations.
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Funding Progress

Other Postemployment Benefits

Last three fiscal years

Actuarial
Fiscal
year ended Value of Accrued
December 31 assets Liability
2012 $ - 51,591,740
2011 - 49,882,610
2010 - 36,401,220

Unfunded
actuarial
accrued  Funded
liability ratio

Unfunded
liability
as a
percentage
Covered  of covered
payroll payroll

51,591,740 0%
49,882,610 0%
36,401,220 0%
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS,
INCLUDING COMPLIANCE WITH INVESTMENT GUIDELINES, BASED ON AN
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Board of Directors
Niagara Falls Water Board:

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the
Niagara Falls Water Board (the Board), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2012, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Board’s basic financial
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated April 4, 2013.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Board’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Board’s
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Board’s
internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the Board’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies,
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. We did identify a certain
deficiency in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses as
item 2012-1 that we consider to be a significant deficiency.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Board’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, including Investment Guidelines for Public Authorities
and Board’s Investment Guidelines, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Niagara Falls Water Board’s Response to Finding

The Board’s response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and responses. The Board’s response was not subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion
on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Board’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Board’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

okl 4 lo., CPAs, Pe.

Williamsville, New York
April 4, 2013

37



NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Schedule of Findings and Responses
Year ended December 31, 2012

(2012-1) Financial Statements

Condition - The financial statements of the Board at December 31, 2012 required significant
adjusting journal entries in order to properly report them in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Criteria - Management of the Board is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over financial reporting and for properly presenting financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Lffect - Several adjusting journal entries, with a gross value of approximately $7.9 million, were
recorded to correct misstatements in the financial statements as of December 31, 2012.

Cause - The misstatements resulted primarily from a deficiency in internal control over financial
reporting.

Recommendation - The Board should formalize its accounting procedures and ensure that all
accounts are properly reconciled to subsidiary schedules.

Management’s Reply - Management is taking more of an active role supervising and reviewing the
accounting records of the Board.
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NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Status of Prior Audit Findings
Year ended December 31, 2012

(2011-1) Financial Statements

Condition - The financial statements of the Board at December 31, 2011 required significant
adjusting journal entries in order to properly reflect them in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Status - During the year ended December 31, 2012, there was a significant reduction in the gross
value of the adjustments required of approximately $7.9 million down from approximately $29
million in 2011.
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